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EVIDENCE OF RESPONDENTS GOVERNOR JOHN KASICH, SENATE
PRESIDENT THOMAS E. NIEHAUS, AND AUDITOR DAVID YOST

Pursuant to S.Ct.Prac.R. 10.7, Respondents Governor John Kasich, Senate

President Thomas E. Niehaus, and Auditor David Yost submit the following

evidence in support of the arguments in their merit brief'

VOLUME I

Exhibit A - Affidavit of Raymond E. DiRossi

Exhibit 1 Doubletree Hotel Invoice

Exhibit 2 August 1, 2011 Consulting Agreement

Exhibit 3 2012-2022 Ohio Apportionment Plan as amended
and engrossed on September 30, 2011

Exhibit 4 Historical Precedent for Non-Contiguous
Governmental Units

Exhibit 5 1971 Ohio Apportionment Plan

Exhibit 6 1981 Ohio Apportionment Plan

Exhibit 7 1991 Ohio Apportionment Plan

Exhibit 8 2001 Ohio Apportionment Plan

Exhibit 9 Map of Franklin County under Fortner Plan

VOLUME II

Exhibit B - Affidavit of Heather Mann

Exhibit 1 Proposed Terms and Conditions of Caucus and
Non-Caucus Allocation of Funds

Exhibit 2 August 5, 2011 Consulting Agreement



VOLUME III

Exhibit 3 Apportionment Plan Submission by Catherine
Turcer and Jim Slagle on behalf of the Ohio
Campaign for Accountable Redistricting/Ohio

Citizen Action

Exhibit 4 Apportionment Plan Submission by Ray DiRossi
and Heather Mann, Joint Secretaries to the Ohio

Apportionment Board

Exhibit 5 Apportionment Plan Submission by Sarah Cherry
on behalf of the House and Senate Democratic

Caucuses

Exhibit 6

Exhibit 7

Exhibit 8

Technical Amendment to Joint Secretaries' Ohio

Apportionment Plan

Amendment A to Joint Secretaries' Ohio

Apportionment Plan

Amendment B to Joint Secretaries' Ohio

Apportionment Plan

Exhibit 9 Handout to Amendment B

Exhibit 10 Representative Sandra Williams September 29,
2011 Press Release

Exhibit 11 House Minority Leader Budish September 29, 2011
Absence Letter

Exhibit 12 Ohio Commission on Hispanic and Latino Affairs

letter

Exhibit 13 Statewide Map of 2012-2022 Ohio Apportionment

Plan House Districts

Exhibit 14 Statewide Map of 2012-2022 Ohio Apportionment
Plan Senate Districts

Exhibit 15 Maps of 99 House Districts established by 2012-
2022 Ohio Apportionment Plan
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Exhibit 16 Maps of 33 Senate Districts established by 2012-
2022 Ohio Apportionment Plan

Exhibit 17 Map of Counties with "Rights"

Exhibit 18 Apportionment Board Historical Schedule Chart

Exhibit 19 Chart of Mandatory/Permissive Whole County

House Districts

Exhibit 20 Reference Sheet of 88 Counties and House District
Ratios of Representation

Exhibit 21 Comparison of apportionment plans submitted to
Ohio Apportionment Board

Exhibit 22 Maps and Lists of Population Deviation and Racial
Demographics from 2010 Census Data as Applied
to 2011 House Districts

Exhibit 23 Maps and Lists of Population Deviation and Racial
Demographics from 2010 Census Data as Applied
to 2011 Senate Districts

Exhibit 24 Final Political Indices of House and Senate
Districts under 2012-2022 Ohio Apportionment

Plan

Exhibit 25 Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Franklin County

Exhibit 26 Map of Blendon Township

Exhibit 27 Map of Clinton Township

Exhibit 28 Map of Franklin Township

Exhibit 29 Map of Hamilton Township

Exhibit 30 Map of Hilliard City

Exhibit 31 Map of Jackson Township

Exhibit 32 Map of Jefferson Township



Exhibit 33

Exhibit 34

Exhibit 35

Exhibit 36

Exhibit 37

Exhibit 38

Exhibit 39

Exhibit 40

Exhibit 41

Exhibit 42

Exhibit 43

Exhibit 44

Exhibit 45

Exhibit 46

Exhibit 47

Exhibit 48

Exhibit 49

Exhibit 50

Exhibit 51

Exhibit 52

Exhibit 53

Exhibit 54

Map of Madison Township

Map of Mifflin Township

Map of Norwich Township

Map of Perry Township

Map of Prairie Township

Map of Sharon Township

Map of Truro Township

Map of Washington Township

Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Hamilton County

Map of Columbia Township

Map of Springfield Township

Map of Sycamore Township

Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Summit County

Map of Bath Township

Map of Coventry Township

Map of Cuyahoga Falls City

Map of Springfield Township

Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Stark County

Map of Bethlehem Township

Map of Canton Township

Map of Osnaburg Township

Map of Perry Township
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Exhibit 55

Exhibit 56

Exhibit 57

Exhibit 58

Exhibit 59

Exhibit 60

Exhibit 61

Exhibit 62

Exhibit 63

Exhibit 64

Exhibit 65

Exhibit 66

Exhibit 67

Exhibit 68

Exhibit 69

Exhibit 70

Exhibit 71

Exhibit 72

Exhibit 73

Exhibit 74

Exhibit 75

Map of Plain Township

Map of Tuscawaras Township

Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Montgomery

County

Map of Clay Township

Map of Clayton City

Map of Dayton City

Map of Harrison Township

Map of Jefferson Township

Map of Miami Township

Map of Riverside City

Map of Trotwood City

Map of Sylvania Township

Map of Grafton Township

Map of Eaton Township

Map comparing 2001 House Districts 59 and 60
with 2011 House Districts 58 and 59

Map of Painesville Township

Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Medina County

Map of Brunswick Hills Township

Map of York Township

Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Licking County

Map of Etna Township
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Exhibit 76 Map of Madison Township

Exhibit 77 Map of Newark Township

Exhibit 78 Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Pickaway County

Exhibit 79 Map of Circleville Township

Exhibit 80 Map of Harrison Township

Exhibit 81 Map of Non-Contiguous areas of Auglaize County

Exhibit 82 Map of Duchoquet Township

Exhibit 83 Map of St. Mary's Township

Exhibit 84 Map of Marietta Township

Exhibit 85 Map comparing 2001 House District 41 and 2011
House District 38.

Exhibit 86 Map comparing 2001 House Districts 62 and 63
with 2011 House Districts 60 and 61

Exhibit 87 Map comparing 2001 House District 77 with 2011
House District 84

Exhibit 88 Map comparing 2001 House District 86 with 2011
House District 91

VOLUME IV

Exhibit C - Transcript of August 4, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

Meeting

Exhibit D - Transcript of August 22, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board
Regional Hearing at Ohio State University, Lima

Exhibit E - Transcript of August 22, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board
Regional Hearing at University of Toledo

Exhibit F - Transcript of August 23, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board
Regional Hearing at Cleveland State University
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Exhibit G -

VOLUME V

Exhibit H -

Exhibit I -

Exhibit J -

Exhibit K -

Exhibit L -

Exhibit M

Exhibit N -

VOLUME VI

Exhibit 0

-Exhibit P -

Exhibit Q -

Exhibit R -

VOLUME VII

Exhibit S -

Exhibit T -

Transcript of August 23, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

Regional Hearing at University of Akron

Transcript of August 23, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board
Regional Hearing at Youngstown State University

Transcript of August 24, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

Regional Hearing at Walsh University

Transcript of August 24, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

Regional Hearing at Marietta College

Transcript of August 25, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

Regional Hearing at University of Dayton

Transcript of August 25, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board
Regional Hearing at University of Cincinnati

Transcript of August 26, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board
Regional Hearing at The Ohio State University -Newark

Transcript of August 26, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board
Regional Hearing at Columbus State Community College

Transcript of September 26, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

meeting

Transcript of September 28, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

meeting

An Ohio Apportionment Plan for 2012-2022 as amended and

engrossed on September 28, 2011

Transcript of September 30, 2011 Ohio Apportionment Board

meeting

Affidavit of Clark Bensen

Affidavit of James Tilling
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing was served upon the following

this 17th day of January, 2012 by electronic mail and hand delivery:

Lloyd Pierre-Louis
Counsel ofRecord

Wesp/Barwell/Pierre-Louis Co., LLC
6400 Riverside Drive, Suite D
Dublin, OH 43017
lpl@wesplaw.com

Dennis Murray
Murray & Murray Co., L.P.A.
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Michael DeWine
Ohio Attorney General
Richard N. Coglianese

Counsel ofRecord
Michael Schuler
Erin Butcher-Lyden
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Columbus, Ohio 43215
richard.coglianese@ohioattorneygeneral.gov
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Counsel for Relators Counsel for Respondent Ohio Secretary of

State Jon Husted
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OIIIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

SENATE FINANCE HEARING ROOM

AGENDA - AUGOsT 4,2011

Attendees: John Kasich, Governor
David Yost, Auditor of State
Jon Husted, Secretary of State
Republican Legislative Appointee
Democrat Legislative Appointee

1. Call to Order

II. Present Indicia of Office and Letters of Appointment

III. Election of Chair of Apportionment Board

IV. Selection of Secretary to the Apportionment Board

V. Election of Vice Chair of Apportionment Board

VL Announcement of Attomey Representation

VII. Appointment of official Court Reporter

VIII. Adoption of Rules and Procedures

1X. Adoption of Public Hearing Schedule

X. Adoption of Public Records Policy

XI. Designation of place for public review of proposed apportionment plan

XIL Establishing time, date, and place of next meeting

XIII. Adjoum



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

ROLL CALL

DATE: 814111

Govemor Kasich 3 3 3

Auditor Yost 3 3 3

Secretary Husted 3 3 3

President Niehaus 3 3 3

Leader Budish 3 3 3
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3

3

3

3

3

3

Govemor Kasich 3 3 3
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Governor Kasich 3 3 3

Auditor Yost 3 3 3

Secretary Husted 3 3 3
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Members

Governor Kasich
Auditor Yost
Secretary Husted
President Niehaus

Leader Budish
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President Niehaus 3 3 3

Leader Budish 3 3
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BEFORE THE OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD
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In the Matter of the
Establishment of the Ohio :
General Assembly District :

Lines in the State of

Ohio.

PROCEEDINGS

before Governor John R. Kasich, Secretary of State

Jon Husted, Auditor David Yost, Senate President Tom

Niehaus, and House Minority Leader Armond Budish, the

Ohio Apportionment Board, at the Ohio Statehouse, One

Capital Square, Senate Finance Hearing Room,

Columbus, Ohio, called at 2:30 p.m. on Thursday,

August 4, 2011.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC.

222 East Town Street, Second Floor

Columbus, Ohio 43215-5201
(614) 224-9481 - (800) 223-9481

Fax - (614) 224-5724

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481



Proceedings
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20
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Thursday Afternoon Session,

August 4, 2011.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. We'll get

started here. I have a script which I am going to

stick to, believe it or not.

Pursuant to Article 11, Section 1 of the

Ohio Constitution, I hereby call to order this

meeting of the 2011 Board of Apportioning persons.

There is a quorum of members present, but for the

record would each member of the Board please indicate

their presence by stating their name. Why don't we

start down at the far end.

LEADER BUDISH: Armond Budish.

AUDITOR YOST: Dave Yost.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Secretary of State Jon

Husted.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: President of the

Senate Tom Niehaus.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Thank you. This

meeting is called pursuant to Article 11, Section 1

of the Ohio Constjtution whiuhequires that:after

each decennial census, the Ohio Board of Apportioning

persons, including the Governor, Secretary of State,

Auditor of State, and two persons selected by the

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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16

17

18
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24

25

leadership of the General Assembly convenes between

August 1 and October 1 of the year the census figures

are released to establish the district lines of the

Ohio General Assembly.

Article 11 of the Constitution governs

the procedures for this apportionment, and we will,

therefore, proceed under its provisions.

Members have been provided with a copy of

the proposed agenda for this meeting which was

distributed in advance.

The first item of business is for the

members of the Board to verify their membership on

the Board by presenting their letters of appointment,

in the case of legislative apportioning persons, and

oaths of office in the case of other members.

We will now receive these documents. T.

would like to indicate for the record that I have the

certificates of office for the Secretary of State,

the Auditor, and myself. I also have letters from

House Speaker Bill Batchelder, President Tom Niehaus,

Senate Democratic Leader Capri Cafaro, and House

Democratic'Leaci choosing and

appointing Leader Budish and President Niehaus to

serve on this Board.

We have now received the appropriate

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio.(614) 224-9481
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18
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20
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23

24

25

documentation for each member, and it all appears to

be in order.

Is that correct, counselor?

MR. GRODHAUS: Correct.

GOVERNOR KASICH: The next item on the

agenda is the selection of a chair.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Mr. Governor, I move

that Governor Kasich be named as the Chair of the

Apportionment Board.

GOVERNOR KASICH: We have a motion. Is

there a second?

AUDITOR YOST: Second.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Auditor Yost seconds.

The nomination has been made and seconded. Are there

any other nominations?

I was going to nominate Armond Budish,

but I had a second thought.

If not, all in favor signify by saying

aye.

Opposed?

Motion is carried and I will serve as the

chair.

The next item on the agenda is for the

selection of a secretary to the Board of Apportioning

persons. The secretary will keep the minutes, call

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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3

6

8

9

10

11

12

the roll, record all votes and maintain custody of

all the records of the Apportionment Board including

the proposed plan to be filed with the Board.

I will now entertain a motion for

secretary.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Mr. Chairman, I move

that Heather Mann and Ray DiRossi be named

co-secretaries of the Apportionment Board.

GOVERNOR KASICH: We have a motion. Is

there a second?

AUDITOR YOST: Second.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Auditor Yost seconds

the motion. The nomination has been made and

seconded. Are there any other nominations?

Is there any discussion of the

nomination?

If not, all if in favor signify by saying

20

21

23

24

25

aye.

Opposed?

Motion is carried. Heather Mann and Ray

DiRossi will jointly serve in the role as secretary

the Board.

I will now give to staff the

documentation provided to me. Great.

The next item on the agenda is the

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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7

8

9

10

11

12

selection of a vice chair to the Board of

Apportioning persons. I nominate Auditor Yost to

serve as vice chair of the 2011 Apportionment Board.

Is there a second?

SECRETARY HUSTED: I second.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Secretary Husted

seconds the motion. The nomination has been made and

seconded. Are there any other nominations?

Is there any discussion of the

nomination?

If not, all if in favor signify by saying

aye.

Those opposed?

If not, will the Secretary please call

20

21

22

23

24

25

the roll.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: Aye.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: Yes.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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GOVERNOR KASICH: We have five in favor.
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Therefore, Auditor Yost serves as vice chairman of

the Apportionment Board.

Historically, the Attorney General has

represented the Board and all persons serving on the

Board. Attorney General Mike DeWine has appointed

Mark Braden to be here today to be available to the

Board.

I would like to ask Mr. Braden to

identify himself on the record.

MR. BRADEN: Mark Braden of the law firm

of Baker & Hostetler.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Could I see some

identification?

Thank you, Mr. Braden. Thank you and

! welcome.

At this point given the official and

historic nature of our proceedings, we need to

appoint an official court reporter for the

proceedings of the Apportionment Board. For the

record I'd like to ask our court reporter who is here

_-jrom the firm of Armstrong & Okey,-*o_xzlease ._identify

herself .

COURT REPORTER: My name is Karen Gibson.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. Karen, the court

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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20

21

22

23

24

25

reporter with Armstrong & Okey. According, I will

now entertain a motion to appoint an official court

reporter for these proceedings.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Mr. Chairman, I move

that the firm of Armstrong & Okey be the official

court reporter for the 2011 Apportionment Board and

that said court reporter please prepare and provide

each member of the Board a copy of the transcript of

each of our meetings.

AUDITOR YOST: I second the motion.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Auditor Yost seconds

the motion. The nomination has been made and

seconded. Are there any other nominations?

Is there any discussion of the

nomination?

aye.

the roll.

If not, all in favor signify by saying

Those opposed?

If not, will the Secretary please call

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: Aye.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: Yes.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. Unanimous for

the appointment of Armstrong & Okey as the official

court reporter for the 2011 Apportionment Board. The

motion, of course, carries. Thank you.

This brings us to our next agenda item

which is the adoption of the rules of the 2011

Apportionment Board. All the members should have a

copy of the proposed rules which I provided to each

of you in advance of today's meeting. These proposed

rules are, in essence, a revised version of the rules

of the 2011 Apportionment Board which were on file

with the Legislative Service Commission.

Our intention is to vote on the rules as

a block unless there is an amendment. At this time I

would entertain a motion regarding the rules.

Mr. Budish is recognized.

LEADER BUDISH: _1 would like to make

several amendments, if I might. How do you want to

do this, Governor?

GOVERNOR KASICH: Well, you have four of

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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them; is that correct?

LEADER BUDISH: I believe there's five.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. Would you -- I

guess we will proceed by having you, if you want to,

give a short description of them generally is how the

process should proceed.

LEADER BUDISH: Shall I do it one at a

time or?

GOVERNOR KASICH: Yes, whatever you are

comfortable with. One at a time would be great.

LEADER BUDISH: My first amendment,

Mr. Governor, is to Rule 11-1-04 entitled "Officers;

participation of members; and minutes." The

amendment very briefly allows us to add two

non-voting members to the Board. This makes the

Board comparable to the structure set forth in Senate

Joint Resolution 5 which passed the Ohio Senate last

year while still avoiding any potential

Constitutional problems.

I see Senator Husted is smiling.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yeah. What happened

to that?

LEADER BUDISH: This was, you may recall,

I believe, promoted by Senator Husted -- then Senator

Husted, now Secretary Husted. The benefit which then

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio ( 614) 224-9481
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Senator Husted made clear to me back then it would

allow additional perspectives on the Board to be

presented during the various deliberations and Board

discussions and help ensure a more fair, equitable,

and bipartisan discussion and result.

I will keep my remarks brief as I always

do on the floor. Thank you.

GOVERNOR KASICH: That's not what I hear.

Armond, do you want to go to the second

amendment and then we will come back and present them

one at a time?

LEADER BUDISH: Well, I have also

introduced -- I would like to move to amend 11-1-02,

"Apportionment Board defined." This would take

effect only if 11-1-04 is also agreed to and simply

change the definition of the Apportionment Board.

Next is amendment to Section 11-1-06

entitled "Quorum," and, again, this change would

follow then Senator Husted's plan in Senate Joint

Resolution 5 which would ensure bipartisan support

for any of the apportionment plan by requiring that

any majority minority party

member. Seeing as there is only one, there would be

only one on it.

And, again, I believe that this would

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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ensure bipartisan acceptance of any plan which is

what the public wants and expects.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay.

LEADER BUDISH: Next is an amendment to

11-1-08 entitled "Public hearings." This change

requires that there be an opportunity for public

comment not just on the apportionment process as we

go around the state but also on any plan or plans

during the congressional redistricting field hearings

which have been held over the last week or two.

We heard repeatedly from the public that

they appreciated the opportunity to discuss the

process, but they also made it very clear they would

like the opportunity to be permitted to provide input

into any redistricting plan, and I believe that the

feeling would be the same from the public wanting the

opportunity to comment on any specific

reapportionment plan.

Next is 11-1-09 entitled "Apportionment

plans." This changes the date for submission of any

plan up two weeks to September 9. It makes it clear

that all maps both public and those generated by

members of this Board and our staff must be in by

that deadline, changes the deadline to September 9.

And the purpose for this is so that there
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will be time for meaningful public review and

feedback of any plan that is developed.

And last is 11-1-10 entitled

"Consideration of apportionment plans; adoption of

plan." This gives more time to consider the plans.

It also requires a ranking of plans that are

submitted. This ranking being required is base --

would be based on compliance with the Constitution,

federal law, and any other objective criteria that

this Board adopts such as preserving communities of

interest as well as the minority voting rights.

It affords an opportunity for this Board

to explain why the plan that this Board adopts best

fulfills our obligations to follow the Constitution

and federal law. It adds transparency to the

process. It gives the public, I believe, greater

confidence in the process and the results.

Those are the portions that I move to

amend.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. Why don't we

take them one at a time. The gentleman has made a

motion. We r^d tn-;k.nnw_whether there is a second.

Is there a second to the motion on 11-1 -- 11-1-04?

Do I hear a second?

Going once. Going twice. Motion dies.
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They have been received before, Mr. Budish.

11-1-02, is there a second? 11-1-02.

Hearing none the motion dies.

11-1-06 involving a quorum, is there a

second to Mr. Budish's amendment?

Hearing none the motion dies.

11-1-08 on public hearings, is there a

second to the -- to the motion? Hearing none it

dies.

AUDITOR YOST: Mr. Chair, question for

our senior scholar. Would you accept an amendment to

your amendment that eliminated "or Apportionment

Board members or staff" and substituted a timeframe

for the beginning of the hearings of August 22? So

that your amendment language would read "all plans

submitted for consideration by members of the

public" --

GOVERNOR KASICH: What number are you on,

Mr. Yost?

AUDITOR YOST: 11-1-08.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay.

LEADER BUDISH;Howwould it read? I'm

25

sorry.

AUDITOR YOST: "All plans submitted for

consideration by members of the public by August 22"
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and then deleting "or Apportionment Board members or

staff."

LEADER BUDISH: Yes, I would agree with

that change.

AUDITOR YOST: With that amendment I

would second it.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. Discussion?

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Mr. Chairman, move to

table.

GOVERNOR KASICH: There is a motion to

table this amendment. All those in favor to table

this motion signify by saying aye.

Aye.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Aye.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Aye.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Those opposed?

LEADER BUDISH: Nay.

AUDITOR YOST: Nay.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Call the roll, please.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

r?c ,., M-ANN;, Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: No.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.
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MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: No.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Vote being 3 to 2, the

motion is -- the amendment is tabled. Okay.

11-1-09, "Apportionment plans," there has been a

motion on the plan. Is there a second?

Hearing none the amendment dies.

11-1-10, motion on the floor. Is there a

second?

Hearing none the motion fails for lack of

a second.

Is there further discussion on the

proposed rules as amended?

If not, will the Secretary -- is there

further discussion on the proposed rules?

I'm sorry. The Clerk is informing me we

must go back and call the roll on the full amendment.

I thought it was tabled.

Oh, the amendment to amend. Okay. So we

are now voting.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: I would like to move

we table the full amendment. My first motion was to

table the amendment of the amendment. I would also

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio ( 614) 224-9481
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like to move that we table the full amendment.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. The Clerk will

call the roll.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: No.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: No.

GOVERNOR KASICH: The amendment -- the

amended amendment is now tabled by a vote of 3 to 2.

Is there any further discussion on the

proposed rules as amended? If not, will the

Secretary please call the roll on the motion to adopt

the proposed rules.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

iS; MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: Aye.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.
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MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: No.

GOVERNOR KASICH: 4 to 1, therefore; the

rules are adopted. The motion to adopt Rules 1

through 12 as amended passes. The rules have been

adopted. I instruct the Secretary of the Board to

certify and file these rules forthwith as prescribed

by the Ohio Revised Code.

The rules we have just adopted provide

for a series of public hearings around the state to

receive public input and comment on the apportionment

plan. At this point I would entertain a motion to

establish a schedule of these public hearings, 11 of

them, I believe.

SECRETARY HUSTED: So moved.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Secretary Husted moves.

Is there a second?

AUDITOR YOST: Yes.

GOVERNOR KASICH: The motion has been

madg_an^?_--secended. Any discussion?

If not, the Secretary will call the roll.

Oh, Mr. Budish, yes, sir.

LEADER BUDISH: The only discussion I
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would add I believe this is premature in this

schedule in that it would only allow for the public

to comment on the process as opposed to any specific

plan; therefore, I would oppose this schedule.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Duly noted.

The Secretary will call the roll.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: Aye.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: No.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. The motion has

been made and seconded. It's passed. The motion

carries.

The Secretary is instructed to make the

schedule available to the press and the public.

The rules "also call for the 7ij3p ^c dr.«ri

Board to adopt a public records policy pursuant to

Ohio Revised Code 149.43. A proposed public records

policy was distributed to members earlier and is in
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your folders. Do I have a motion on the proposed

policy?

SECRETARY HUSTED: I move on the motion

on the proposed policy.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Is there a second?

AUDITOR YOST: Second.

GOVERNOR KASICH: The motion has been

made and seconded. Any discussion?

If not, the Secretary will call the roll.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: Aye.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: Yes.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Vote being 5 to.0 the

motion carries. The Secretary is instructed to make

icy available<to the public and tk^

23

24

25

press.

At this time I would like to ask

Secretary Husted to provide us with an overview of
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the Secretary's redistricting website.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Thank you,

Mr. Chairman. And this is a process as we have been

talking so far about public input. This will give

the public an unprecedented opportunity to have input

into this process. We are introducing

reshapeohio.org and this was made available through

the generosity of the General Assembly and support of

this Apportionment Board.

The goal is to provide an open and

interactive process where Ohioans can learn more

about the two separate but parallel processes drawing

state House and congressional districts which takes

place as all of you know only once every 10 years

after release of the census data.

The following proceedings of the --

following the proceedings of the Apportionment Board

and the Legislative Committee that the Ohio House and

Senate have form -- have been formed to hear the

testimony on congressional districts, you can keep up

to date what we are doing and what's going on.

It also includes

testimony and the minutes of those meetings and even

trying to allow people to have their own hand at

drawing maps which was referenced in the rules
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adopted today. The Apportionment Board is ready and

willing to accept suggestions for how to best

formulate the boundaries for the Ohio House and the

Senate.

Technology upgrades over the past 10

years have made this possible for greater public

participation. It used to be that the state would

set up computers at designated spots around the state

like libraries. Those with an interest could go and

use the software and only during certain hours and it

was clunky and inconvenient and in some cases you

have to be a computer whiz really to figure out how

to do this.

At reshapeohio.org you can draw the maps

at any hour of the day from the convenience of your

own home using a web-based software s_ystem called

Maptitude which is the same software those of us

legally responsible for drawing the maps will be

using. Maptitude is very user friendly. Though with

any program you will find you have to spend some time

getting the hang of it.

This is not an easy proceqs ,_T^ ^s?.wnn

231 embark on drawing their own maps, they will find that

24

25

tinkering for a few minutes can quickly find it

turning into hours, and you might find it more
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And is

you have questions

this, Doug is here

on our behalf, and

through that.

Let me

stands right now.

today and get some

Doug Larkin in the audience? If

about the technology aspects of

today. He is leading this effort

he is available to talk you
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talk about the status of it as it

You can go to reshapeohio.org

of the background information

about redistricting and to familiarize yourself with

the Maptitude through a quick-start guide to use the

program and the web tutorial. However, the actual

software and date will be posted within the next 10

days.

It has taken a little time to do all the

tests with the most recent data, and we want to make

sure we have it right. We are currently in the

process of refining the 2010 populated data as I

alluded to earlier and making sure the maps can be as

precise as possible down to split precincts and

census blocks and this is esr j=N L"_.^ the state

you are going to be able to publicly do that.

Once the data is complete and accurate,

we will make it -- as we can make it and the actual
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software is available, reshapeohio.org will go out to

Ohioans so they can beginning drawing maps. This

will be very soon. If you would like to be notified

when it is up and running, you can visit

reshapeohio.org and provide us your e-mail address

under the Draw Your Own Map section link, and we will

send you an e-mail with all that information.

The software under consideration, as I

mentioried, Maptitude software, you will be able to

draw both the General Assembly and congressional maps

of the site unlike the Apportionment Board which

plans to accept General Assembly map submissions.

There is no -- no formal submission process or

deadline for the congressional maps.

That does not prevent an Ohioan with a

good idea for how to draw 16 equal congressional

districts from sharing their ideas with their own

legislator or their own leaders of the General

Assembly who are responsible for passing new

congressional districts in the form of a bill.

The software provides two avenues for

4rawing maps.. -One, you can start.&= at.wth

an empty map; or, two, you can start from where the

lines are today. So I answered Aaron Marshall's

question from earlier, you can start from where we
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are today, and then you can go from there.

The Secretary of State's Office will

provide technical support on using the software, and

you will find as I mentioned an e-mail address and a

way to communicate with us at reshapeohio.org.

Overall, Mr. Chairman, the

reshapeohio.org was a priority for me because the

redistricting is an important and serious process,

and we have a great -- we will have a great impact on

Ohio's future including leaders that we elect and the

policies we will embark on as a state and nation.

The challenges we face in this country

require an engaged and informed public, and we hope

this public process for redistricting will provide

another important means to that end. Ohioans will

find drawing these districts isn't easy, isn't as

easy as it seems. It's always easier for us to talk

about fair and compact and contiguous, and you will

find out it's a lot easier to say than it is to do.

It can be a very different puzzle. Even

if someone doesn't submit a map for your own

r,onsideration, :there^_ ^^ ^^ ^':'=ting oneself -an

the shoes of the mapmakers and using the software

just to gain a better understanding of the process.

Let me emphasize openness and
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transparency are critical to ensuring Ohioans have

confidence in the maps that are ultimately adopted

and by extension of the legislatures who will be

elected to represent them in their districts in the

next 10 years.

And I know, Governor Kasich, that this is

an important issue for all members of this Board, and

I want to ensure you as the Chair of this Board that

the Secretary of State's Office, thanks to the

resources granted to us, will make this the most

open, transparent, and public friendly process that

has existed in the Apportionment Board to date.

Thank you.

GOVERNOR KASICH: The rules call for the

Apportionment Board to designate a place or places

where the public may view the plans for apportionment

that are filed with the Board. Is there a motion on

the designation of a place for public review of

submitted plans?

SECRETARY HUSTED: So moved.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Okay. I think you are

moving ^t.he Board designate ^,_.*^^bs^te with the address

of www.reshapeohio.org and a physical space adjacent

to the Ohio House of Representatives Chambers, 2nd

Floor Statehouse, Columbus, Ohio 43215 where the
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public may review the plans.

SECRETARY HUSTED: That's correct.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Is there a second?

AUDITOR YOST: Second.

GOVERNOR KASICH: The motion has been

made and seconded. is there any discussion?

If none, the Secretary will call the

roll.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: Aye.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: Yes.

GOVERNOR KASICH: 5 to nothing the

Secretary reports so, now, the motion carries. The

Secretary is instructed to make the location and

website a.s th^ l^.T-aces for public review of

plans available to the press.

At this time I will entertain a motion to

establish the date and place of the next meeting of

ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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the 2011 Apportionment Board.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Mr. Chairman, I move

that the next meeting of the Board be set for Monday,

September 26, 2011, at 9 a.m. in the Ohio Senate

Finance Hearing Room.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Is there a second?

AUDITOR YOST: I second the motion.

GOVERNOR KASICH: The motion has been

made and seconded. Any discussion?

If not, the Secretary will call the roll.

MS. MANN: Governor Kasich.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Aye.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost.

AUDITOR YOST: Aye.

MS. MANN: Secretary Husted.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Yes.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Yes.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: No.

GOVERNOR KASICH: 4 to 1, the motion is

approved on-the motion to s^-,t and looation

of the next Apportionment Board meeting for Monday,

September 26, at 11 o'clock right here in the Ohio

Senate Finance Hearing Room. The motion has carried.
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Any further business to come before the

2011 Apportionment Board?

Oh, okay. I'm sorry. Let's go back and

the motion was made for 9 a.m., not 11 a.m., so we

will spread the word on that. The Secretary will

notify the appropriate parties including the press.

Any further business to come before the

2011 Apportionment Board?

If not, I will entertain a motion --

SECRETARY HUSTED: Mr. Chairman, I do

have an issue I would like to raise that is important

to the elections process and to the Apportionment

Board.

There is currently an effort underway to

referendum the House Bill 194 and the elections law

changes that occurred recently in the General

Assembly. To the extent that that is relevant, if

that's successful as discussed in the media, it will

make it very difficult for us on timelines currently

available to execute a March primary because what

would happen is the legislation would move the

prim^ary eferendum would stay the -.i

legislation or the law and, therefore, would make it

very difficult for us to execute a March primary.

I raise that as an issue for the Board to
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be aware and also to the legislative leaders because

we may have to revisit this issue legislatively in

the future so that the work of the Board and then

that of the legislature and you, Mr. Governor, as it

relates to congressional districts can be implemented

in a way that allows us to execute a primary.

So I will keep the Board informed of that

process and make you aware of any necessary changes

we would suggest along the way if a referendum is

indeed filed.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Appreciate the

gentleman's comments. I think we will be able to

deal with it. We will see what happens in the

election. We will then proceed.

So if there is no further business, I

entertain a motion to adjourn.

SECRETARY HUSTED: Mr. Governor, I move

we adjourn.

adjourned.

3:08 p.m.)

GOVERNOR KASICH: Is there a second?

AUDITOR YOST: Yes.

GOVERNOR KASICH: Meeting stands

(Thereupon, the meeting was adjourned at
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CERTIFICATE

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is

a true and correct transcript of the proceedings

taken by me in this matter on Thursday, August 4,

2011, and carefully compared with my original

stenographic notes.

Karen Sue Gibson; Registered

Merit Reporter.

(KSG-5391)
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do sofemnly swear to defendanduphoCdtFi.e Constitution of

these 2lnitedStates andthe Constitution of the State of Ohio,

to faithfull'y, d"tfgentCy andimpartialty d`ucfiar.ge.adtfie duties

of the office of the Auditor of the State of Ohio; =-

as I shall-6e 6i.etd accountabCe to the peopCe of this State,

andunto God ^- ^

96ureen O'Connor, ChiefJustice

Sworn to before me on this date



Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland
Home Office: P.O. Box 1227, Baltimore, MD 21203-1227

Bond No. 09004491

Public Official Bond

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That Dave Yost (hereinafter called Principal) and the Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland, having its principal office

in the City of Baltimore, Maryland, as Surety (hereinatter called Surety), are held and firmly bound unto State of Ohio,
Auditor of State in the penalty Twenty Thousand Dollars to the payment whereof, well and truly to be made and done, the
Principal binds himself, his heirs, executors and administrators, and the Surety binds itself, its successors and assigns, jointly
and severally, firmly be these presents.

Signed, sealed and dated this 10th day of January, 2011

THE CONDf1TONS OF '1'HE AFOREGOING OBLIGATION ARE SUCH, That whereas the Principai .was

appointed(elected to the position oL• Auditor of State

NOW TI EREFORE, if the Principal shall, during the term beginning on the 10th day of Janua#y ; 2011 shall and faithfully
perform all and singular the duties incumbent upon him be reason of his election or appointment as aforesaid and.honestly
account for all moneys coming into his hands according to law, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise of full
force and virtue.

This bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions precedent to the right

of recovery hereunder:

FIR,ST:That regardless of the number of years this bond sball continue or be continued in force, or be renewed, and of the
number of years this bond shall continue or be continued in force, or be renewed, and of the number of annual premiums that
shall be payable or paid, the Surety shall not be liable hereunder for more in the aggregate than the above named penalty.

SECOND: That the Surety may, if it shall so elect, cancel this Bond by giving thirty (30) days notice in writing to State of
Ohio, Auditor of State
And this Bond shall be deemed canceled at theexpiration of said thirty (30) days; the Surety remaining liable, however,
subject to all the tenns, conditions and provisions of this bond, for any act or acts covered by this Bond which may have been
conunitted by the Principal up to the date of such cancellation; and the Surety shall, upon surrender of this Bond and its
release from all liability hereunder, refund the premium paid, less a pro rata thereof for the time this Bond shall have been in
force.

Witnes

Fi Deposit Company of Maryland

form#



Power of Attorney
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a
corporation of the State of Maryland; by WILLIAM J. MII.LS, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant
Secretary, in pursuance of authority granted by Article VI, Section 2, of the By-Laws of said y, which are set forth on
ihe reverse side hereof and are hereby certified to be in full force and effect on the d ereby nominate,
constitute and appoint Janet E. KAISER and Alisa C. LONG, both o ttue and lawful agent

and Attorney-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for u t d deed: any and all
bonds and undertakings, and the execution of suc ese presents, shall be as

binding upon said Company, as fullyy an , ts t ey had been duly executed and
aclmowledged by the regulari ce in Baltimore, Md., in their own proper persons.
This power of SER, Alisa C. LONG, dated February 28, 2005.e ' •

The said Assistant the extract set forth on the reverse side hereof is a true copy of Article VI,

Section 2, of the By- and is now in fotce.
IN WITNESS OF, the said Vice-President and Assistant Secretary have hereunto subscribed their names and

affixed the Corporate Seal of the said FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, this 28th day of April,

A.D. 2010.

A'[TEST:
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND

^I "`""zs Wv 4

By:
Gregory E. Murray Assistant Secretary William J. Mills Vice President

StateofMaryland lss:
Cityof Baltimore f

On this 28th day of April, A.D. 2010, before the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, duly
commissioned and qualified, came WILLIAM J. MILLS, Vice President, and GREGORY E. MURRAY, Assistant Secretary
of the FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers
described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and they each acknowledged the execution of the same, and being
by me duly sworn, severally and each for himself deposeth and saith, that they are the said officers of the Company aforesaid,
and that the seai affixed to the preceding instr•.unent is the Corporate Sea1_ of said Company, and that the said Corporate Seal
and their signatures as such officers were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instniment by the authority and direction of

the said Corporation.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Official Seal the day and year fast above

written.

Constance A. Dunn Notary Public
My Commission Expires: July I4, 2011

POA-F 142-5113



tI'IDEI,ITY AND DEPOSTT COMPANY
oF IdARYr.APID

3910 KESWICK ROAD, BAL'nMo1tE, MD 2121 t-2226

Statement of Finanelal CondiNon
As of December 31, 2009

ASSETS

Botids ........................ .... ................»................... .._........._..__........................................_...... S 156,584,995....._.
Stocks .......... ........ ................................................................. ................ .._..... ........... ......,........_
Cash and Shod Term Investments................... ........... .......... ............._....................................._. 9.7t9,598

Reinsurattce Recovereble .........................................._...............__...... 9,347,241

Other Accounts Receivable ............... .................................. _........................... .........................._.... 51,052,264

TorAt. ADnnnTeD Asst:'t's ......... ........ _............................. ........ ............................... ....... ..».. S 249.241,769

LIABILITIES, SURPLUS AND OTHER FUNDS $ 76,835
Resarve for Taxes and Sxpenses ........................................... .............................................. _..._....
Ccded Reinsmance Premiums Payable ......................... _............. ................................. .................. 5$,237.612

Securfties Lending Collateral LiabiHty .............:..... »........... _.............................................. :..:-.., 5.511,875
TDTAt.LtAHtt.trns ....... ........................................................ ........ S 63,626,322

5.4A0^^Capital Stock, PaidUp ............... _ ..................... .............. ............ .._ $

owpsua ................. ......................._ ..

Surplus as regards Policyholders _ .......................... ..... __.._............. _. ..._..._». . , :165;415,447, . , .
TtyfAL ....:.. .. ......... ................. .................. ...».....-... ...... ........,._. .............................. ..... $ 249,241,769

Securities earried at $38,385,957 in the abovo statamem are deposited as requlred by law.

Securities carried on the basis prescribed by the National Association oflnsurance Commissioners: On the basis of
Deeamber 31, 2009 niarket quotationa for all bonds and stocks owned, the Company's total ndmitted essets would be
$247,657,513 . and surplus as regards policyholders $196,999,703.

1, DENNIS F. KERRTGAN, Corporate Secretary of the Ftsart'v nt+u Dta'osff CoMeANY oF Mnttvt:ANn, do hereby

ocrtify that tha}foregoing statement is a correct exhibh of the assets and liabilities of tfie said Company on the 31at

day ofDeumber, 2009.

State ofIllinios
City of Schaumburg } S.S'

Subreribed end smvm t0. bcfue me, n Notuy Public of an: State ofIlGnois, in 8ro Q'ty of Sebnumlnug, this t^dayof Mamh.201o.

Mwtpc.swtne>7+

tWUVNASfA25.2tt1 I

hAnn.^Mn^•I-l-nnnl./•.`^" .



omce of Flnanael
Repulatlon 8w%4ea
So V4est Town Streel
Thkd Pbar- SuMa 30D
Cdunbx^ Ohb43275
(614) 6442658
Fax(614)6L<-3258
www.ohloiruwarM:e.pov

()tiio D'epartment of Insurance
Ted Shicidend- Govemor
AAr/ Jo Hutlwn- OkWcr

Certificate of Compliance

Issued

Effective

Expires

I, Mary Jo Hudson, hereby certify that I am the Director of Insurance in the State of Ohio and have

supervision of insurance business in said State and as such I hereby certify that

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, THE

is authorized to transact the business of insurance under the followine section(s) of the Ohio Revised Code:

Section 3929.01 (A)
Allied Lines

Boiler & Machinery

Burglary & Theft
CommercialAuto - LiabilityOther . . :.... . ..-: -... _. -;..

Commercial Auto -No Fault

Commercial Auto - Phys. Damage

Credit

Earthqualce

Fidelity

Financial Guaranty

Fire

Glass

Inland Marine . . . .

Multiple Peril - Commercial

Multiple Peril - Homeowners

Other Liability

Surety

Workers Compensation

FIDELITY ?.ND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND TI^ certified in its annual statement to
this Department as of December 31, 2009 that it has admitted assets in the amount of $249.241.769.

liabilities in the amount of $63.826.322, and surplus of at least $185.415.447.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and caused my seal to be affixed at

Columbus, Ohio, this day and date.

qr-
Director

03/30/10
04/02/10
04/01/11

INS7236(Rev.6/2003) AccretlRetl by n,e National Associa5on of Insunnee Gmnmiasionere (NAa:)



JOHN R. KASICH
GOVERNOR

STATE OF OHIO r .o
cr,

m -^
n

^ ^rn
January 14, 2011 ^ CD

om
m ^v
n
1'n 'Honorable Jon Husted ^

mObio Seoretary of State o
180 E. Broad St., 16" F1oor '
Columbus, Ohio 43215

Re: Auditor of State's Bond

Dear Secretary Husted:

Ohio Revised Code Section 117.03 requires the Auditor of State to prbvide abond to the
State of Ohio conditioned on the faithfiil discharge of his office. The statute further requires the
Governor to approve the surety issuing the bond. The bond, with my approval and the Auditor's
oath of office endorsed thereon, is required to deposited with you and kept in your office

This letter is evidence if my approval of the surety as required by Section117:03

Sincerely,

Enclosures

cc: Honorable Dave Yost, Auditor of State

77 South High Street, 30'h Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215



OATH

I, JON HUSTED, do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution

of the United States and the Constitution of Ohio, and will faithfully and

impartially discharge and perform all of the duties incumbent upon me

as the Secretary of State of Ohio according to the best of my ability, and

understanding. This I do as I shall answer unto God.

The Honorable Maureen O'Connor

Chief Justice, Supreme Court of Ohio

Date

Sworn to and subscribed by Jon Husted in my presence this 9th day of

January, 2011, in Franklin County, State of Ohio.

Notary Public
JACItLCI.

soc.^eo ta1.



To alrto tivhom these Presents shaCCcome, Greeting:

7Cnow 1Je, TF.a.t YVhereas

JON HUSTED

of.7Nontgomery County has 6een duCy eCectedto the,1wsition of

TAerefore, By virtuz.of tke authority vestedin the Governor by the Constitution

and'inyarsua,nce of aprovfsion of the Statutes, I da hereby commission him, the said

autfcorizfng andemyowering (iim to execute andd'ucharge alCandsinguCar, the duties

ayyertaining to saidoffice, andto enjoy aiTtheyrivifeges andimmunities thereof.



0
0
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The Cincinnati Insurance Company

6200 S GIL[40RE RD

PAIFFIELD OH 45U14-5141

Public Official Bond No. 0530352

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That Jon Ruated
of KE'Pi'ERING State of OE (hereinafter called the Principal) and

The Cincinnati Insurance Company (hereinafter called the Surety), a corporation organized under the laws of the state of

ohio with its prinGpal office In the City of FAIRFIELD and the State of oR are held

and Ttrmly bound unto State of Ohio

(hereinafter called the Obligee) in the sum of
Oae Hundred Thousand and No1100 Dollars; ( $100, 000.00 ) for the payment whereof

to the Obligee the Principal binds himself/herself. his/her heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, and the Surety

binds itself, its successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, finnly by these presents.

Signed, seated and dated thls 4th day of January , A.D. 2011

Whereas the above named Principal has been duly appointed or elected to the office of Secretaxy of State

and

Whereas, the effective date of this bond Is January 10 2011

Now, therefore, the condition of the foregoing obligation is such that if the Principal shalt faithfully perform such duties as

may be imposed on him/her by law and shall honestly account for all money that may come into his/her hands In his/her

official capacity during such period, then this obiigation shall be void; otherv+ise, it shall remain In full force until cancelled

as provided herein.

This Bond is executed by the Surety upon the following express conditions, which shall be conditions precedent to the right

of recovery hereunder:

First: That the Surety may, if it shall so elect, cancel this Bond by giving thirty (30) days notice in writing to
and thls

State of Ohio
Bond shall be deemed canceled at the expiration of said thirty (30) days; the Surety ramaining tiable, however, subject to

all terms, conditions, and provisions of this Bond, for any act or acts covered by this Bond which may have been

committed by the Principal up to the date of such cancellatlon; and the Surety shall, upon surrender of this Bond and its
release from all llability hereunder, refund the premium paid, less a pro rata part therefore for the time this Bond shall have

been in force,

Second: That the Surety shall not be liable hereunder for the ioss of any pubiic moneys or funds occurrEng
through or resulting from failure of, or default in payment by, any banks or depositories In which any publlc moneys or
funds have been deposited, or may be deposited by or placed to the crediL or under control of the Principal, whether or
not such banks or depositories were or may be selected or designated by the Principal or by other persons; or by reason

of the allowance to . or acceptance by the Principal of any interest on said public moneys or funds, any law decision,

ordinance, or statute to the contrary notwithstanding.

Third: That the Surety shall not by liable for any loss or losses, resulting from the failure of the Principal to collect
any taxes, licenses, levies, assessments, etc., with the collection of which he/she may be chargeable by reason of his/her

election or appointment as aforesaid.

Jon Nusted

Principal

Attomey-in-Fact: Nicole A Laber



STATE OF ' Ohio

COUNTY OF Mont9omexy

ss

Jon Husted being

duly sworn, says that he/she will support the constitution of the United States and of the State of Ohio

and that he/she wili faithfully, honestly, and impartially perform and discharge the duties of the ofFice position to which

he/she has been appointed while he/she shall hold said office.

Sworn to by said Qoa xusted
/ t

Before me, and by him/her subscribed in my presence this l0

:.a.o. 2ot1
tlay of

Notary Public



THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY

_ Fairfield, Ohio

POWER OF ATTORNEY 0530352

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation organized under the laws

of the State of Ohio, and having its principal offiee in the City of Fairfield, Ohio, does hereby constitute and appoint

Nicole A Laber

of Dayton, OR its true and lawful Attomey(s)-in-Fact to sign, execute, seai
and deliver on its behalfas Surety, and as its act and deed, any and all bonds. policies, undertakings, or other like instmments, as follows:

Any such obligations in the United States,
1'wenty Nlillion and No/100 Dollars ($20,oU0,e00.110).

This appointment is made under and by authority of the following resolution passed by the Board of Directors of said Company
at a meeting held in the principal office of the Company, a quorum being present and voting, on the 6th day of December, 1958, which

resolution is still in effecto

RESOLVED, that the President or any Vice Ptesident be hereby authorized, and empowered to appoint Attorneys-in-
Fact of the Company to execute any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the
Corporation, and may authoriu any officer or any such Attomey-in-Fact to affix the corporate seal; and may with or
without cause modify or revoke any such appointment or authority. Any such writings so executed by such Attorneys-in-
Fact shall be binding upon the Company as if tbey had been duly executed and acknowledged by Ihe regularly elected

ofticers of the Company.

This Power of Attomey is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority ofthe following Resolution adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Company at a meeting duly called and held on the 7th day ofDecember, 1973.

RESOLVED, that the signature of the President or a Vice President and the seal of the Company may be affixed by
facsimile on any power of attomey granted, and the signature of the Secretary or Assistant Sccretary and the seai of the
Company may be affixed by facsimile to any certificate of any such power and any such power of certificate bearing

such facsimile signature and sea) shall be valid and binding on the Company. Any such power so executed and sealed
and certified by cerdficate so exeeuted and sealed shall, with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached,

continue to be validand binding an the Company..
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be sealed with its

corporate seal, duly attested by its Vice President this 1 st day ofApril, 2007.

THE CINCINNATi INSURANCE COMPANY

STATE OF OHIO ) ss:
COUNTY OF BUTLER ) Vice President

On tbis ist day of April, 2007, before me eame the above-named Vice President of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE
COMPANY, to me personally known to be the officer described herein, and acknowledged that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument

is the carporate sesl of said Company and the corporate seal and the signature of the officer were duly affixed and subscribed to said

instrument by the authority and direetion of said corporation.
at

¢l A R` '''•.S

9{^=e
oc

ARK J. H4 R, Attorney at Law
•^• .}'. 'r•^w 0 ^t4 _ OTARY PU i - STATE OF OHIO
4j f Qf 0^ My oommisd hae no smplratian
•^^tMtM1111100 date. Saetien 141.03 O.R.C.

I, the undersigned Secretary or Assistant Secretary of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, hereby cenify that the

above is a true and correct copy of the Original Power of Attorney issued by said Company. and do hereby funher certily that the said

Power of AttomLy is still in full force and effect.

GIVEN under my hand and seal of said Company at Fairfield. Ohio.

this4th dayofTanuary 203S.--

Secretary

BN-1005 (3/02)



August 4, 2011

The Honorable John Kasich
Governor of the State of Ohio
77 S. High St. 30" Floor
Columbus, OH 43215

Dear Governor Kasich:

Pursuant to the Article XI of the Ohio Constitution, we hereby appoint Senate President Tom
Niehaus as the Republican Legislative appointee to the Ohio Apportionment Board.

If you would like to discuss this appointment further, or if you have any questions, please don't
hesitate to get in touch with either of us at any time.

i Thomas E. Niehaus
President
Ohio Senate

illiam G. Batchelder
Speaker
Ohio House of Representatives

STATEHOUSE COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215



SENATOR CAPRI S. CAFARO
Senate Minority Leader
32nd Ohio Senate District

August 2, 2011

The Honorable John Kasich
Govemor, State of Ohio
77 South High Street

30"' Floor
Columbus, OH 43215

Dear Governor Kasich:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1, Article XI of the Ohio Constitution, we hereby
choose and appoint Armond Budish of Cuyahoga County, Beachwood, OH 44122, as one
of those "...persons responsible for the apportionment of this state for members of the

general assembly.

Sincerely,

atj^ ..$ CVW4- A.,2.4
Capri S. Cafaro Armond Budish
Minority Leader Minority Leader
Ohio Senate Ohio House of Representatives

Ohlo Senate
Sulehouse.3rd EE)oor
Cdumhue.Ohio43215
I614)d6b7162(Phnne)
(614)466-5559(Pa.a,
xnatoirafarufn'maild.rns^a¢ d.us

Distriet address:
Ine Nain.nve.. SW

Smie9U1
Wartea l)li 4418I
3)q.372=2Q00w1
130.391.+fJ-l0aal

...®..



* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-01 Rule to provide for notification of meeting.

of(A) This rule is adopted in compliance with, and under authority of, division (F)
section 121.22(F) of the Revised Code as amended, and effective November 28,

1975.

(B) Any person may determine the time and place of all regularly scheduled meetings,
aad the time, place, and purpose of all specially scheduled meetings, and the time
and place of public hearings ``s of the Ohio
annortionment board by one of the following methods:

(1) Consulting the website of the office of the vovemor at

http'//eovemor ohio gov/apnortionment.

,•,'^'^==_ n..i...._.b..., nh:..n4^ic

U 1 o l. a 29.t, n_ef,. ,.s
(3j(2j Consulting the public bulletin boards located

the o n_fr go Besf D_e-a °`--°^ outside of the chambers of the
Ohio house of repLesentatives and the Ohio senate on the second floor of the
Obio statehouse, Columbus, Ohio 43215.

P^uestin3) R

have reh

2 electronic notice of all meetines of the aon
segELtyi-y of the a^ortionment board shall maintain a

uested such notification A reqnest for such noo

ortioni
st of all ne

an ation:

(a) Shall contain the name of the person makine the reouest and an email
address to which electronic notice should be sent. and:

(b) Shall be sent in writine either:

(i) Bv mail to: "Secreta_w to the Apportionment Board- c/o Leeislative
Task Force on Redistrictine 77 South High Street Columbus.
Ohio 43215." or:

M edistrictine.ohio.

e process. The
ons whors

99v, and:iil Bv electronic mail to: redistrictin

1'xust be received fort^-eieht hours prior to any regula_rlv scheiiuled

llbdldt pubhc hearmmeeting. speciay sceue meemg or

^e aews ffte'" ""°"^',a"^"

r

Isnda.diecr.rufe.r.vid/4. m,utoringmnCi4i:Oros3AuXl 2V1106J11 /d::0, y:F5337, 1m:1430J9, re:38237Q A: 34733817
Pnntdaie:U81U4,2011102811d
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011-1-01

the event of a regularly schm

aeRaesxefl

,r 44Effess"^ E+ aD'..

affeph-f$
ftvvOfReRHk9

ul0 meetin

3

ft^ aetitee o

^

ec 0

Enxg aet}eE

a]
ovide

0 eduledse

er encv nature or public hearing the secretarv shallem
0 such

ne nor or anee
notice

^
meeting or hearing by providing the notice described in naraeranhs Bl(1)Bl(21.

oror 31 of this rule not later than twenty-four hours nnor to the meeting
hearine In the event of a special meeting of an emereency nature the secretarv
shallptovide notice of such meeting bxprovidine the notice described in naragr_aph
(R)(1)(Bl(2) or Bl(3) of this rule In such event however the notice need not be
given twenty four hours ^rior to the meetm^ but shall be eiven nnmedratel^nnon
the scheduling of such meetine.



011-1-01

Effective:

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: Ohio Constitution, Ark X1, Sec. I
Rule Amplifies: Ohio Constitation, Art. Xl, Sec. 1, Revised Code

121.22
Prior Effec6ve Dates: 3/4/76, 9/7/91, 8/13/01

4



* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-02 "Apportionment Board" defined.

The term "Apportionment Board" is adopted for use in this chapter to designate the five
persons directed by the Constitution of the State of Ohio, Article Xl, Section 1, to
establish the boundaries of House of Representatives and Senate districts following the
federal decennial census 28902010. Such persons, collectively, shall be referred to in this
chapter as "Members" and, individually, as "Member." The term "Secretary" is adopted
for use in this chapter to designate the person or persons selected by the board to serve as
the secretary in rule 011-1-04 of the Administrative Code.

The rules stated herein, as s=lementedsupplement by
priaeiglesRobert's Rules of Order, sball be the rules of procedures of the A"ertiesm-eaE

Beff ELa^]ortionment board.

(.rqlrvLeeerWe.xslS.)f. meJioringronf: i4iS.0^m3AUg?.:OIIO3r3R, (Jr.O. P:35S31, Pa'/43039, rn:19S3?!, J:?fi3391] prinldale:118:'04i201110:2RAM



011-1-02

Effective:

Certification

Date

Promulga.ted Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: Ohio Constitution, Art. XI, See. 1
Rule Amplifies: Ohio Constitution, Art. XI, Sec. 1

Prior Effective Dates: 9/7191, 8/13/01

2



* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-03 Open meetings.

All meetings and public hearings of the 20G12011 Appei4ieaffient -apportionment
board shall be held in accordance with the '-'Sunshine Law,'-' section 121.22 of the Revised
Code and pursuant to rule 011-1-01 of the Administrative Code, as amended

IYIuLeecnde..x9:.14.nnt6vrUrX/wd:i4i2.0rur3Ju130.2U110/:48.f8v:0.G:8323Zyu:14303Y. +v:282372. d:347340)) PnM nye:OA'04R01110:261M



011-1-03

Effective:

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: Ohio Constitution, Art. Xl, Sec. I
Rule Amplifies: Ohio Constitution, Art. XI, Sec. 1, Revised Code

121.22
Prior Effective Dates: 9/7/91, 8/13/01

2



** * DRAFT -N4T YET FILED * * *

011-1-04 Officers; participation of members; minutes.

The Appo.itieftmeat Beafdzgportionment boazd sball, by majority vote, elect a C-hairchair
and a`T -:Ch-"^6r. ice-chair. The Boe^rjboard shall also elect, by majority vote, a
$eeFetarysecre of the $earqboard, who does not have to be aMember-member. The
-̀,'iee U=^a:ice-chair shall assume the duties of the GhaiFchair when the Ekakchair is
unable to attend the meeting. Each Mefffl)effmember shall be entitled to participate in all
voting and debates, regardless of position held on the Apporfionment Board.

Minutes of each meeting of the nortionment board shall be
maintained by a court reporter chosen by the BeaF&oard by majority vote. she
meeti$go€ the t1-Pperfio^Such nunutes
circulated among the Membersmembers and adopted by majority vote at a subseyuent
meeting of the board. Upon any Meaber-6member's request, a transcript shall be
provided upon completion and verification.

[rqlexhunr:rvle-ddl<.m^d^m-0^AlooCi(120ruaJ.luB/,30I106:]I,Id1O.P:A533).Pn:143039,ru.-IA}3?A&34i3411]
prinidate:UWOL2011ID:39AM



011-1-04

Effective:

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under: 111.15
Statutory Authority: Ohio Constitution, Art_ XI, Sec. 1

Rule Amplifies: Ohio Constitution, Art. XI, Sec. 1

Prior Effective Dates: 9/7/91, 8/13/01

2



* ** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-05 Calling of meetings.

After the initial meeting of the ^ppet^ieamea^BsardapPortionment board, at which the
$esrtlboard is convened, a meeting of the t^pperlieuaaeat l^rd?pportionment board
may be called upon twenty-four hours notice. Such call and notice to each
NqemUerinember of the Apgertie°"'---` °"°'a"""ortionment board shall be issued by the
Ghai£chair, or may be dispensed with if a motion to recess the meeting designates a time
certain for continuation of the meeting. However, a meeting may be called by the
Ekeir-chair, upon proper notice, prior to a previously designated meeting, should the

Fk>^:r^•hair deem it necessary.

^x9lesLCrcnrle1.1I2.14.mrUrurin^mol:e40.0rm'3Ju130,101112-26.(dv:0,F:65237.im:1{3039.:n:18I374.
d'34734211 pnvldefe:08XWt201110:19dbf
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* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-06 Quorum.

A majority of the five 1vleffibersmembers of the ApgefEieume-14 BeWda.̂ .portiomment

board constitutes a quorum. A
majority of the Beffdboard is required for any official actions

of the board including but not ^m'ted to the adoption of a plan of apporlionment. All
questions not committed by this chapter to the ^ has's discretion and all motions

before the "npp^^^= °` a-PPortionment boazd shall be determined by majority
vote. Members of the t1}^get#ieameat^eeu^a^p°rh°nment board or their designees may,
from time to time, conduct public hearings referred to in rule 011-1-08 of the
Administrative Code, absent a quorum of #Fea^eFSmembers.

[apdoFCU:rvle.:^1PJe, on0ioring^wl:idiLOrm3lu/30,]01/11:38. fAv.O. y:8i^)i, yuad3039, ra:2d?3:i, A:3J)3d3Q priuldele:0&OL'I01110:30AM
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* * ^` DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *
TO BE RESCINDED

011-1-07 Consultation with counsel and other advisors.

Members of the Apportionment Board may consult with their respective legal counsel
and other advisors for a period not exceeding ten minutes and not to exceed three such
consultations per meeting of the Board. However, the Chair of the Apportionment Board
may consult as often as the Chair deems necessary with any legal counsel or other

advisors regarding rules and procedures.

]rry•lo'/̂ :mlcnil.la. (dn:0, p:35331, p^: IJSOi9, rn::R:35/. A:3Ji]Sd)] ^ ^^^ prmldslz.06:04i101110:309M
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* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * ^ *

011-1-07 Records retention and nublic records nolicies.

(A) Pursuant to section 149.34 of the Revised Code, the Ohio Wortionment board shall
adopt the Ohio department of administrative services eeneral records retenh^n
schednles for Eeneral administration records nersonnel records, fiscal records, and
information technology records.

pursuant to division E of section of 149.43 of the Revised Code the Ohio
auoortionment board shall adopt a public records nolicv.

[s4luGect:mlrxr!?./4. nmAUringmo1:14i20mr3dug$201111.01. r:O, dSDe, pn:143039, rn:2g9383,
C:347359/] pnmde1c:08iU41]011103f AM
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* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-08 Public hearings.

The Appe#iensaefttBeardapporEtonment board shall direct the geereta£ysecre of the
$saF$board to organize a series of public hearings in at least five locations around the
Statestate of Ohio for the $eard Meffibersboard members or their designees to receive
public comment and input on the apportiornnent process-

The SeeFetsFysecre of the Eeapdboard shall notify the Meff6ersmembers of the
Apper&nmeat $eardaMoztionment board or their designees of the time, date, and
location of each public hearing as soon as possible and in no event less than twenty-four
hours prior to each public hearing.

The zSeerets.eysecre of the $eardboard shall nrovide notice

emcifueseae
rescribed in of rule 011-1-01 of the Administrative

Code not less than twenty-four hours prior to the public hearings.

The &-eFetuy&egje-taW of the $eaedL.Qard shall preside over these public hearings.
Members of the AggeAieffmef& Baafdaportionment boazd need not be present at these
public hearings. Each Membermember of the Apgetfiesmei4 Beffdaportionment boazd
may designate an individual(s) to represent the Membet''Yembar at any or all of these
public hearings. Any individual so designated to represent aMembermember of the
$eardboard shall have no voting rights. No official business or action of the
Appei4ieflmefA $eerdapportionment board, other than the receiving of public comment
and input, shall take place at the public hearings referred to in this rule.

of the public heartngs m the manner

(aR'IcsLcrcrulessldJP.m^tfiuriu^2ol.lei:.Ora.r3l+Ax0,10fJ1.:39 jAv0,P:53^131,pc143[+39,ra:SS]]76.J.31134{)] prlmdnW 0&99r201110:31dId
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* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-09 Apportionment plans.

Any person or organization may submit for the consideration of the Agger#ieamest
Reatportionment board a detailed plan for the apportionment of the members of the
Ohio 6eaeFal ^,ssemblygeneral assembly.

Apportionment plans submitted to the $affQboard for consideration should be complete
for the entire Statestate, with legal definitions and visual renresentations of the proposed
boundaries. Partial apportionment plans which propose minority districts need not be
complete for the entire Sta4estate• but should include legal definitions and visual
Legresentations of the pronosed boundaries of adjaEenE all districts in the county or

tv districts .counties which would contain the proposed minori

The aortionment board shall only consider those plans submitted
to the SeefetaFysecretaEy of the $saFdboard prior to 9:08twelve s-m: p.m. on September

2423 29811011.

Plans submitted to the BeaFdboard for consideration shall be submitted to the secretary of
the Beardboard at the office of the Ohio house clerk on the second floor of the Ohio
statehouse Columbus Ohio 43215

. Ten paper copies and one electronically-stored copy of legal
de nitions and visual representations for each plan shall be submitted, in additiea to the

L.. ..-1....:H,.A

""
^i^S'IT^I

e moAeddE'e9s
te be + a by the o,..._,....-. . ° nn n"r ..'.`_..'

fi)13teaEten^ srme Eae

The Secretary of the Board shall deliver promptly, but in no event
later than 4-2.:88 ive p.m. September 2323 2842011, to the is4effiberemembers of the

nnorfionment board one copy of each plan submitted and shall
retain the remaining copies for review by the public at a nlace, eF places. or website
designated by the Bef&dboard.

^x!tlexLcvl:rvlcsnVLld m^0iorin^rooFiOlLO^w9Juli0,?01/IT:Jtl. ^dv:0.Vr£5237, w:l{3039, rc::S?3T'. A:iJJid5A pinldale:09iL4401110:32AA1
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** * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *
011-1-10 Consideration of apportionment plans; adoption of plan.

'fhe A--e,^ppD&°-'agportionment board shall reconvene during the week of

September 24^5., 299+2011, to consider the various plans submitted to the Board and
shall meet on or before October 1, 200+2011, to adopt an appropriate plan for the

apportionment of the members of the Ohio FreaeralVise^Seneral assemblv.

During the meeting or meetings of the ^eardboard the week of September 2425,
2891•2011, a sponsor of a plan may personally or through a representafive present the
substance of their plan to the #Fembersme ers of the AppeFtieftir^

$earda^portionment board for a period not to exceed ten minutes, unless extended by a

rityj of the Bea^board. The public may offer testimony or comment not to exceedma o
five minutes on any apportionment plan before the $ee^dboard unless extended by a
majority of the Bsnrdboard. The ^ei^p^ of the apportionment
board may limit testimony or comment on plans before the $ea^board as the C^chair
deems necessary.

Any person wishing to testify on a given plan must provide written notice to the
6kaffchair or the $eerefsrgsecre of the $ear,Elboard puor to the meeting scheduled to
consider the various plans submitted.

=orhonment board may ask questions of thoseMembers of the AppertiearnentBeafla
persons testifying on the various apportionment plans before the $eaFdb2ard during the
meeting scheduled to consider these plans. Members of the $eerdboard may request
testimony from experts during this meeting.

4mbeWmembers of the t4ppet#ieament Bearda^Portionment
ment nl an.mav offer amendmenL to the anuortion

The Ghachair of the Appeftienment Beanlapportionment board may offer amendments
on behalf of those persons sponsoring apportionment plans who are not members of the
Apper4ien3xent Bear•daportionment board_

[sryknheer:mlexdLl4.nmLnrinFtanla>1:.UruaLlu150.101112:5Z(de0.K85??Lpc1+i939,in::823:8.d]473J6j]
Drivldatet)&'U4Q0111094dbt
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* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-11 Publication of apportionment plan.

When the apportionment plan is determined and adopted by a majority vote of the
t^ppet2ieamegt-$ear^ap^ortionrnent board, the Ceveiiiofzovemor shall arrange for
publication of such apportionment plan no later than October 5, 28812011 . Pursuant to

section 107 09 of the Revised Code and section 7 . 16 of the Revised Code as enacted

House Bill 153 of the 129th General Assembly and effective Sentember 29 2011_ the
first uublication of such apportionment plan shall be made in its
news.papers one in Cleveland, one in Cincinnah and one in Columbus, and mav be made
in a prenrinted inserk The second vubhcation shall be made in abbreviated form in those

a ers ursuant to section 7.16 of the Revised Codeews 0 er ne vaus
^p pn

nublications are required if the second. abbreviated notice meets the reauirements of

section 7.16 of the Revised Code.

^xTlexhe.l:rvlessllJl. ornAudngfaul:l4i).OrwixWR=.1011/0:10. OR:O, P: 85237,Yn:143039, nc18)J?9. 234isi8lj
^^ Pnnldale:OSi04QOll 10:32AA1
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* ** DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-12 Reconvening the apportionment board.

Should fnrther action be necessary pursuant to Article Xl, Section 13 of the Constitution

of the 6tateste.te of Ohio, this A-ppait-i=amea=n`°"'?pPo^onment boazd shall reconvene
at the request of the Geyemer@overnor subject to this chapter.

( sry4sLezlaa+ksrl3.l>, mreNUrirrg /^•%idi?.O r•rsi,lu130, I01101:OJ. lilv: 0, £.: Si]li, Iw: 1+3039, m::523811, rE 347349II p^t dme:0Et0AROl1 10:33 AM
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Mann, Heather

From: Cherry, Sarah
Sent: Thursday, August 04, 2011 11:34 AM
To: Mann, Heather
;c: G!assbum, Chris
Subject: Possible amendments to the Rules
Attachments: Rule 6- Quorum.doc; Rule 8 - Public hearings.doc; Rule 9 - Apportionment plans.doc; Rule

10 - Consideration and Adoption of plan.doc

Hi Heather.

Attached, please find the proposed changes to the rules that you and I just discussed. Leader Budish may bring these up

at today's meeting, so I wanted you to have them.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks!

Sarah A. Cherry
Legal Counsel, Minority Caucus
Ohio House of Representatives
77 South High Street, 14th Floor
Columbus, OH 43215
office: (614) 466-6040
sarah cherry ohr.state.oh.us

CONFIDENTIAUTY NOTICE
fhe information contained in this e-mail is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and it may
contain information that is privileged, confidential, attorney work product and/or exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If
the reader of this message is not the intended recipient (or the employee or agent responsible to deliver it to the intended
recipient), you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this e-mail is prohibited. If you have received

this e-mail in error, please notdy the sender by return e-mail.
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* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

o11-1-06 Quornm_

A majority of the five Membersmembers of the 40a^aPPortioument

board constitutes a quorum. A
, majority of the Beardboard is required for any official actions

a_ r , ° Yi" `_ ` exce t
of the board, . ,. a the

adoption of a plan which shall be done only with the affirmative vote of one board member

affiliated with the minority political party. All
questions not committed by this chapter to the ChaiE!schair's discretion, and all motions

before the n"^̂iomaent a"""''apportionment board shall be determined by majority
vote. Members of the AppFUtiemnegt4 aapportionment board or their designees may,
from time to time, conduct public hearings referred to in rnle 011-1-08 of the
Administrative Code, absent a quorum ofMeraber-smembers.
I srylcrMrr, rvlerd2/J, mrM.rin,qrad: ifi dOra3.Hd 30.10/l /1:l$ (Aa: rn yrirrt darc:0'/A0/30111238 Y1d



* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-08 Public hearings.

The Apportionment Boardapportionment board shall direct the Secretarysecretary of the
Boardboard to organize a series of public hearings in at least five locations around the
Statestate of Ohio for the Board Membersboard members or their designees to receive
public comment and input on the apportionment process and all plans submitted for

consideration bv members of the public or apportionment board members or staff.

[NOTE: in effect, requiring trfo sets ofpublic hearings around the state]

The Secretarysecretary of the Boardboard shall notify the Membersmembers of the
Apportionment Boardapportionment board or their designees of the time, date, and
location of each public hearing as soon as possible and in no event less than twenty-four

hours prior to each public hearing.

The Secretarysecretary of the Boardboard shall provide notice notify the various media
entities and other pertinent persons or organizations of the public hearings in the manner
prescribed in paragraphs (B)(1), (B)(2), or (B)(3) of rule 011-1-01 of the Administrative
Code not less than twenty-four hours prior to the public hearings.

The Secretarysecretary of the Boardboard shall preside over these public hearings.
Members of the Apportionment Boardapportionment board need not be present at these
public hearings. Each Membermember of the Apportionment Boardapportionment board
may designate an individual(s) to represent the Membermember at any or all of these
public hearings. Any individual so designated to represent a Membermember of the
Boardboard shall have no voting rights. No official business or action of the
Apportionment Boardapportionment board, other than the receiving of public comment
and input, shall take place at the public hearings referred to in this rale,
I,tty)edKW nk.nl2l4, au+hwinF mot i3i'_Oro.c3JU730,10f! 1::39, (dv: 01pti"t dxtc 07/3M30111239PM



* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-09 Apportionment plans.

Any person or organization may submit for the consideration of the Agpertisaffient
Beardapportionment board a detailed plan for the apportionment of the members of the

Ohio General Assembbgeneral assembly_

Apportionment plans submitted to the Beardboard for consideration should be complete
for the entire Statestate, with legal definitions and visual representations of the proposed
boundaries. Partial apportionment plans which propose minority districts need not be
complete for the entire Statestate, but should include legal definitions and visual
representations of the proposed boundaries of adjacent all districts in the county or
counties which would contain the proposed minority districts -

The pportionment board shall only consider those plans created or

submitted
to the Secretarysecretary of the Bear'dboard prior to 9=.88twelve ,a=m: p.m. on September

2-5,q9, 200I2011.

Plans submitted by the public to the Boardboard for consideration and plans created by
members or staff of the Apportionment Board shall be submitted to the secretary of
the Beardboard at the office of the Ohio house clerk on the second floor of the Ohio
statehouse, Columbus Ohio 43215 a4dr-ess Y"fi a" 1 n,1 , 01 .o.ho

Ten paper copies and one electronically-stored copy of legal
definitions and visual representations for each plan shall be submitted. in additiAig tAtl^

Indip,ati ng ft1 r . -t s tti aa ,.:fi°a :^ ^a° 011. '01 of the
These instructions shaII be posted for the public in a way desienated

by the board by August 8,2011. "1'he Secretary of the Board shall deliver promptly, but in no

event
later than -1-2:0Ofive p.m. September 25,-49 28012011, to the 114embersmembers of the

A-ppeFfienmentBeaEdapportiomnent board one copy of each plan submitted and shall
retain the remaining copies for review by the public at a place, oF places, or website
designated by the Beardboard.

[ y1^n: nde.nf 214. wlM1u.Ury; n.vl: iai 2Uma3 Jn! 30..0// /3:48. (M: 0[ Print dece:0160P^1113:49 PM



* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-10 Consideration of apportionment plans; adoption of plan.

The "-ppe,4ionment4lear4apportionment board shall reconvene dar;og ^
242s ''^^"^ between Sept. 12 and Sept. 23 to consider the various plans

9epU--------
submitted to the Board and
shall meet on or before October 1, 2om011, to adopt an appropriate plan for the
apportionment of the members of the Ohio 6ea"-Assemblygeneral assembly.

Before adopting a plan, the board must rank the plans according to compliance with the
Ohio Constitution, federal law, and any additional objective criteria that the board adopts

to guide its decisions.

During the meeting or meetings of the Beardboard ` -°'- °°° ' 4 26opto

^^^' 20115 between Sept. 12 and Sept. 23 a sponsor of a plan may personally or through a

representative present the
substance of their plan to the Meffiber-smembers of the AppertienmeHt
$eardapporflonment board for a period not to exceed ten minutes, unless extended by a
majority of the Beardboard. The public may offer testimony or comment not to exceed
five minutes on any apportionment plan before the Beardboard, unless extended by a
majority of the Bear-dboard The Chafrchair of the " -fie--"°"` B Eiapportionment
board may limit testimony or comment on plans before the Beardboard as the C-hair-chair

deems necessary.

Any person wishing to testify on a given plan must provide written notice to the
Qiair-chair or the geeretaf}secretary of the Beardboard prior to the meeting scheduled to

consider the various plans submitted.

Members of the AppaaerAne^` °"'^^pportionment board may ask questions of those
persons tesrifying on the varrio•us apportionment plans before the R-eudboatd during the

meeting scheduled to consider these plans. Members of the Bsardboard may request
testimony from experts during this meeting.

offer ameadmea'-
members of the flpget#ienmeatBeardapportiomnent

board may offer amendments to the apportionment plan.

The C-ha}rchair of the "-o' l^apportionment board may offer amendments

on behalf of those persons sponsoring apportionment plans who are not members of the -

t^ppertienrnea^Boarapportionment board
,,;i^Krrit=.-^ra,a.a^^xroor 1a;_.u.w 30eo.zaii::n,(rwo]wiae=a:omorzo>>i+_:s-rrra



Amendment to amendment

* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-04 Officers; participation of members; minutes.

The =_pper-fie"•"e"' ne""apportionment board shall, by majority vote, elect aQhairchair
and aViee-C-hek:=ce-chair. The Beardboard shall also elect, by majority vote, a
Seeretar-ysecretary of the Beardboard, who does not have to be aMembeFmember. The board

shall also Apnoint two additional non-voting members to serve on the Aaportionment

Board one of whom shall be chosen by the speaker of the House of Representatives and the

leader in the Senate of the political party of which the speaker is a member, the other of

whom shall be chosen by the legislative leaders in the two houses of the maior volitical

partv of which the speaker is not a member. The
v ^^'°:.-;^-^^. ice-chair shall assume the duties of the Ghairchair when the C-ltairchazr is
unable to attend the meeting. Each Membennember shall be entitled to participate in all
voting and debates, regardless of position held on the Apportionment Board.
Minutes of each meeting of the a4pgertieafnentBeardapportionment board shall be
maintained by a court reporter chosen by the Bear-dboard by majority vote. At eaeh
meeting4the n f«:. ... a a+heSuch minutes shall be
circulated among the lvlex3bersmembers and adopted by majority vote at a subsequent
meeting of the board. Upon any "ember!smember's request, a transcript shall be
provided upon completion and verification.
[.rdrdmer, rrr/e..r.d 1N..rnrhrxiqynxrl: iJi 2.0 m.ilug 1, ]fA/ i'1: ]], iAia n) print dxm: OS/U IC011 Oo' PM



Amendment to amendment

* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-02 "Apportionment Board" defined.

The term "Apportionment Board" is adopted for use in this chapter to designate the five
persons directed by the Constitution of the State of Ohio, Article XI, Section 1, to
establish the boundaries of House of Representatives and Senate districts following the

federal decennial census 20002010 and any additional non-votin¢ members appointed to the

Board by those five persons. Such persons, collectively, shall be referred to in this
chapter as "Members" and, individually, as "Member."
The rules stated herein, as supplementedsupplennent by gener-al par4iax3entafy
pfineiplesRobert's Rules of Order, shall be the rules of procedures of the AppeAieBffiepA

Beardappor6onment board.
(•(d,Jieu: rn&.xd 114 eminuii>AUUh i4i.1.U nn'3./n( 30. '1111111 V3. fJ•' ()) pdnt d:ne 09/101'.01 I 01 41 PM _



Amendment to amendment

* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-06 Quorum.

A majority of the five Mernbersmembers of the a" ppe=ief.R=" Apportionment

board constitutes a quorum. A '
majority of the Bsafdboard is required for any official actions

of the board,i"ehw4ng-imi not k444 to the a4eoiexce t

adoption of a lan which shall be done by ma'ori vote which shall include the affirmative

vote of one board member affiliated with the minority uolitical party. All

questions not committed by this chapter to the C-h.&echair s discretion, and all motions

^^ifiew==c`°"""''apportionment board shall be determined by majoritybefore the " ^
vote. Members of the ApperEienntent-^PPorhonment board or their designees may,
from time to time, conduct public hearings referred to in rule 011-1-08 of the
Administrative Code, absent a quorum of Merabersmembers.
(.vMenmr. rNe.avl?.bl. mNs,rlnAVwlr W2 n ra+i.Gd i0 IDtl Gn< In prim Aere^ nil342ul I 13as PM
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Amendment to amendment

* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-08 Public hearings.

The ArpeAienllent-Beefdapportionment board shall direct the SeefetaFYsecretary of the
Beardboard to organize a series of public hearings in at least five locations around the
$tatestate of Ohio for the Beard4v4embersboard members or their designees to receive
public comment and input on the apportionment process and all plans submitted for
consideration by members of the nublic or apportionment board members or staff.
The $eeFetarysecretary of the Beardboard shall notify the N4en*er^smembers of the
AppertienmentBeardapportionment board or their designees of the time, date, and
location of each public hearing as soon as possible and in no event less than twenty-four

hours prior to each public hearing.

The $eeretarysecretary of the Beardboard shall provide notice iiefify °-'°'`e"° medi
a>..- ..^ :.. o of the public hearings in the manneretAities

prescribed in paragraphs (B)(1), (B)(2), or (B)(3) of rule 011-1-01 of the Administrative
Code not less than twenty-four hours prior to the public hearings.

The Seeretarysecretary of the Bswdboard shall preside over these public hearings.
Members of the A:ppertientnent-Beardapportionment board need not be present at these
public hearings. Each lvterubermember of the #pperEie[unentBeardapportionment board
may designate an individual(s) to represent the Memberinember at any or all of these
public hearings. Any individual so designated to represent aMetnbertnember of the
Beai-7dboard shall have no voting rights. No official business or action of the
ApperEienmeat-$eardapportionrnent board, other than the receiving of public comment
and input, shall take place at the public hearings referred to in this rule.
I ,irkelren: mlr.ed ;_1J..m0uxirx rw,lr i4i `^O isr.r3 Jnl 34 3n111?:39. kh•: 01 prini date 07/31V1011 113 o yryf



Amendment to amendment

* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-09 Apportionment plans.

Any person or organization may submit for the consideration of the ApperHenrnegt
Beafdapportionment board a detailed plan for the apportionment of the members of the
Ohio aen,ml-A„an*lygeneral assembly.

Apportionment plans submitted to the Beardboard for consideration should be complete
for the entire 81atestate, with legal definitions and visual representations of the proposed
boundaries. Partial apportionment plans which propose minority districts need not be
complete for the entire Statestate, but should include legal defmitions and visual
representations of the proposed boundaries of adjaeent all districts in the county or
counties which would contain the proposed minority districts .

The Appertianrxet- Beardapportionment board shall only consider those plans created by

members or staff of the aooortionment board or submitted by the aublic
to the Secretarysecretary of the Boar-dboard prior to %00twelve a-nr. p.m. on September

25,49, 20012011.

Plans submitted bv the nublic to the Besrdboard for consideration and plans created by
members or staff of the Apportionment Board shall be submitted to the secretary of
the Beardboard at the office of the Ohio house clerk on the second floor of the Ohio
statehouse, Columbus Ohio 43215 address , ° ' a . . a :_ rwe n, , Ln, ,.o+,..,
^ a-' is*-a!^?v°''Ten paper copies and one electronically-stored copy of legal
definitions and visual representations for each plan shall be submitted. inadditietr#e tEie

a CD °nr^''

^ a ' CThese instructions shall be posted for the nublic in a wav designated
by the board by Aueast 8, 2011. The Secretary of the Board shall deliver promptly, but in no

event
later than -1-2BOfive p.m. September 2-54;9^ 2Q"2011, to the N4etnbersmembers of the
Apgertisnment-Beardapportionment board one copy of each plan submitted and shall
retain the remaining copies for review by the public at a place, er places, or website
designated by the Beefdboard.

(.pi. Jn•er: rnln11 _'.1J..nrrlmm^yend: IJ, ].ll ru,3.IM 30.:0l1 l':l.C l.hr 01 pnnl dms 117OU/?011 1 ':JN 1



Amendment to amendment

* * * DRAFT - NOT YET FILED * * *

011-1-10 Consideration of apportionment plans; adoption of plan.

The Appsr#isanzentBeardapportionment board shall reconvene
Q.pi L'^ ^^` k44 between Sept 12 and Sept. 23 to consider the various plans^_-__=_.^.. ^
submitted to the Board and
shall meet on or before October 1, 29(42011, to adopt an appropriate plan for the
apportionment of the members of the Ohio 6enehrl-4 sseatblygeneral assembly.

Before adopting a plan, the board must rank the plans according to compliance with the
Ohio Constitution, federal law, and any additional objective criteria that the board adopts
to guide its decisions.

During the meeting or meetings of the Beafdboard
2^^Q0! ; between Sept. 12 and Sept. 23 a sponsor of a plan may personally or through a

representative present the
substance of their plan to the Menibersmembers of the tltperfienrxertt
Bear-da.pportionment board for a period not to exceed ten minutes, unless extended by a
majority of the BeaT-dboard. The public may offer testimony or comment not to exceed
five minutes on any apportionment plan before the Beardboard, unless extended by a
majority of the Beardboard. The Ghairchair of the ApperbiermientBeardapportionment
board may limit testimony or comment on plans before the Beardboard as the QwdFchair

deems necessary.

Any person wishing to testify on a given plan must provide written notice to the
C-hairchair or the Seefetarysecretary of the Bear-dboard prior to the meeting scheduled to

fl.n .urinne nlane enhmittetj^.vianiu..a ur.. r.........., i...,...., .,............__.

Members of the AppertientneetBeardapportionment board may ask quesfions of those
persons testifying on the various apportionment plans before the Beardboard during the
meeting scheduled to consider these plans. Members of the BeRrdboard may request
testimony from experts during this meeting.

Only
f tyAp, ^,,..,,:a_._t.,._. the *"e"'b°-smembers of the a4pper4iernnefit Beardapportionment
board may offer amendments to the apportionment plan.

The Qmirchais ef t're Appa;*iomuext-^dapportionment board may offer amendrr^^ ^ -^
on behalf of those persons sponsoring apportionment plans who are not members of the
AppeFEier^nen4 Beardapportionment board.
I .n L-Jwn Wk..ml I 14. unOn,rnp; onJ: t!, '.n r.nJ.Ld?n. 241 r' _i-. RAv lll piint dam; .4atV'01 1 12 >] I'M



2011 APPORTIONMENT BOARD PROPOSED REG[ONAL HEARING S(:fIEDULE

Monday, August 22, 2011

10:00AM-12:00PM Lima Ohio StateUniversity -Lima
Life & Physical Sciences Building - Science 100
4240 Campus Drive
Lima, Ohio 45804

3:30PM - 5:30PM Toledo University of Toledo
Scott Park Campus Auditorium
Toledo, Ohio 43606

Tuesday, August 23, 2011

9:00AM -11:00AM Cleveland Cleveland State University
Maxine Goodman Levin College of Urban Affairs Atrium
1717 EucGd Avenne
Cleveland, Ohio 44115

1:00PM - 3:00PM University of Alo:on
Martin University Center Ballroom
Akron, Ohio 44325

5:00PM - 7:0oPM Youngstown Youngstown State University
ICilcawley Center Chestnut Room
1 University Plaza
Youngstown, OH 44555-0002

Wednesday, August 24, 2011

9:00AM-11:00AM Canton Walsh University
Bacrette Center - Fran Corp Conference Center
2020 Easton Street N.W.
North Canton, Ohio 44720

3:00PM - 5:00PM Matietta Marietta College
Andrews Hall Great Room #203
215 5th Street
Marietta, OH 45750

Thursday, August 25, 2011

10:00AM -12:00PM Dayton University of Dayton
"1700" Auditorium (former NCR HQ)
1700 South Patterson Blvd.
Dayton, Ohio 45479

3:00PM - 5:00PM Cincinnati University of Cincinna6
Tangeman University Center - Main Street Cinema
Cincinnati, Ohio 45221

Friday, August 26,2011

9:00AM-11:00AM Newark The Ohio State University -Newark
Reese Center-Alfred Perf6rniing Arts Hall (RS110)
1179 University Drive
Newark, Ohio 43055.

2:00PM - 4:00PM Columbus Columbus State Community College
Workforce Development Center Ballroom
315 Cleveland Avenue
Columbus, Ohio 43215



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY

This public records policy is adopted pursuant to R.C. 149.43(E) and is effective for public records
requests received on and after August 4, 2011 _

PUBLIC RECORDS

Section 1. Definition of a public record

In accordance with R.C. 149.011 a record is defmed as "any document, device, or item, regardless of
physical form or characteristic, created or received by or coming under the jurisdiction of any public
office of the state or its political subdivisions, which serves to document the organization, functions,
policies, decisions, procedures, operations, or other activities of the office."

Any questions as to whether or not a record is a "public record" should directed to the records
officer of the Apportionment Board.

Section 1.1 Organization and Maintenance

It is the policy of the Apportionment Board that, as required by Ohio law, records will be
organized and maintained so that they are readily available for inspection and copying. Record
retention schedules shall be readily available to the public at the Ohio House of Representatives
Clerk's Office in the Ohio Statehouse.

PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS AND RESPONSES

Section 2 Evaluation of a Public Records Request

Each request for public records should be evaluated for a response using the following

euidelines.

Section 2.1 Identification of a Public Records Request

Although no specific language is required to make a request, the requester must at least identify
the records requested with sufficient clarity to allow the public office to identify, retrieve, and
review the records. If it is not clear what records are being sought, the records custodian must
contact the requester for clarification, and should assist the requester in revising the request by
informing the requester of the manner in which the office keeps its records.

Section 2.2 Method of Public Records Requests and Identity of Requester

The requester does not have to put a records request in writing, although wtn'tien requests aie
preferred for accuracy, and does not have to provide his or her identity or disclose the intended

use of the requested public record.

Section 2.3 Availability of Public Records for Inspection and Production of Copies

I



Public records are to be available for inspection during regular business hours, with the
exception of published holidays. Public records will be made available for inspection promptly.
Copies of public records must be made available within a reasonable period of time. "Prompt"
and "reasonable" take into account the volume of records requested, the proximity of the location
where the records are stored, and the necessity for any legal review of the records requested.

Section 2.4 Time Constraints for Satisfying PubHc Records Requests

Each request should be evaluated for an estimated length of time to gather the records. If
feasible, routine requests for records should be satisfied as soon as reasonably possible.

Section 2.5 Denial of Public Records Requests

Any denial of public records requests must include an explanation, including legal authority. If
portions of a record are public and portions are exempt, the exempt portions are to be redacted
and the rest of the record released. If there are redactions, each redaction must be explained with
citations to the legal authority used for the redaction.

COSTS FOR OBTAINING COPIES OF PUBLIC RECORDS

Section 3 Charges for Copies and Postage

Those seeking public records will be charged the actual cost of making copies, as follows:

Section 3.1 The charge for paper copies (8.5" x 1" one-sided, black ink) is 10 cents per page.

Section 3.2 The charge for downloaded computer files to a compact or digital video disk is $1
per disk.

Section 3.3 There is no charge for e-mailed documents.

Section 3.4 Requesters may ask that documents be mailed to them. They will be charged the
actual cost of postage and mailing supplies.

2
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Series Title Description Retention Period
Number

GAR-PP 01
D'vec6ves, Manuals and

Publicafions produced by an agency detailing
and/or procedures of anregulafionsoperations

Retain until superseded, obsolete, or
replaced, then lransfer to State

i iHandhooks
,, Archives fw the r possible n:tent on or

agencY- destruction.

Retain unfil superseded, obsolete or
Deparfinental Policies Includes published reports, unpublished replaced, then transfer to State

GAR-PP-02 and Procedures substanflve reports and policy studies. Archives for their possible retention or
destruction.

GAR-PP-03
^^uhve Orders and

Instructions issued by the Governor as the Chief
^ycave of State Government (Original on file

Retain until su ded, obsolete, orperse

Prociamaflons parmarrimgy with Secretary of State).
replaced, then destroy.

Retain unBl audited by Auditor of
Reports m^^ by state agency staff w outside State and audM1 report is released and

GAR-PP-04
Management and oonsugants conceming the management or all discrepancies are resolved, then
Opera4ons Reports operations of a state agency. Uansfer to State Archives for their

possible retention or destruction.
Upon publira8on, ful811 the

GAR-RPM- Annual Reports
also includes other published periodic feports on requirements of O.R.C. 149.11.

iD hot agency activi8es. en noesfroy ezcess cop es w
longer of administrative value.
Upon publicafion, fulgg the

GAR-RPM- StatePuhliptions
Printed matter pubfished by state agencies for requirements of O.R.C. 149.11.

02
, disfdbufion to the public. Desfroy excess copies when no

longer of administrative value.

Retain in agency un(d1 no longer of

GpR-RPM- Printed or recorded copies of public speeches administrative value, then t2nsfer to

03
S chespw given try representatives of state agencies. state archives for their possible

retention or destmction.

Retain in agency until no longer of

GAR-RPM- Newspaper Releases Includes news/piess releases and bullefins issued administrative value, then transfer to

04 and News Bulletins by an agency. state archives for their possible
reten6on wdestruction.

GAR-RPM- Photo File
Includes negatives, prints, slides, transparencies,

Retain uMil iMormagon is no longer
current then to State Archives for

05 and related items. possible retenflon or destrucgon.

GAR-RPM- yi l MaterialslA
InGudes exBribils, movies, and videotape Retain until information is no longer

D6
nv suau productions. current, then to State Archives.

GAR-RPM- Monthly & Weekly Documents status of on-going pmjects and issues; Retain 1 year, then destroy.
07 Reports advises supervisors of vadous events and issues.

GAR-RPM- Minutes of Agency Staff Minutes and supporting records documenting
Retain 2 years, then transfer to State
Anhives fortheir possible retention or

08 Meetin s9 intemal decisions.policy destruction.

GAR-RPM- Minutes of Official Public Official minutes, orders and decisions of a state
Retain 2 yeare, then transfer to State

rMeirpossibleretentionwh f
09 Meefings agency,commission,board,orcouncil.

s^reGOtl
n

Records documenting the entry and tleparture of
GAR-RPM- vsitors Log employees and visitors into a State office building Retain 1 year, then destmy.
10 during andlor after office hours.

Conespondence of the head of an agency dealing

GAR-CM- Correspondence,
with significant aspects of the adminishaGon of

Conespondence indudes informationtheir offices
Retain 2 years then transfer to State

01 Fxecutive
.

concerning agency policies, procedures, pmgram,
^ives

fiscal and personnel matters.

_ Includes intemal correspondenre- Qetters, inemes);
also, correspondence fnHn various individuals, - : . - :

GAR-0M- Correspondence,
mmpanies, and organizaBons requesting
infonnation pertaining to agency and legal Retain 6 months, then destmy.

02 General inteipnaagons and other miscellaneous inquides.
This correspondence is informative (it does not
attempt to influence agency policy).

GAR-CM- Includes Mailing lists, directodes, rosters, and Retain untâ superseded, obsolete, or

04
Lists/Directones registers compiled by an agency. replaced, then destroy.

Includes telephone messages, post-it-notes, drafts

http://apps.das.ohio.gov/rims/General/General.asp 8/4/2011
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and other limited documents which serve to convey Retain unfil no longer of administmfive^^M
Transient Documents infonnafion of temporery importance in lieu of oral then destroy.valueg5

communication.
,

Retain until superseded by a revised

RR 01GAR
Records Retention fonn used to identify the length of time a record retention schedule, or until record

ii t d thl- - Schedule must be retained before final disposition. enseries is no onger ma n a ne ,
destroy.

Used for conducting an inventory of an agency's Retain until superseded by an

GAR RR-02
Records Inventory & record series. Requests vital information to be used updated inventory or unfil record

l t d th- Analysis Worksheet in detennining the retention period and dispositlon onger crea enseries is no e ,
of a recortl. desfroy.

For deposits, destrudions and
retums, retain 2 years after

Records Storage Service A fonn that is used to deposit relrieve, retum and transaction is completed then destmy.
GAR-RR-03 Request destmy records stored off-site. For retrievals only, retain until

transaction is completed (e.g.. Retum
to storage), then destroy.

GM-RR-04 Certificate of Records
Fofm used to certify the destruction or Uansfer of
records according to an approved records retenfion Retain 2 years, then destroy.

Disposal schedule.

GAR-LL-01
Attomey General's

Fonnal opinions and informal opinions issued to
state agencies with a0 pertinent materials attached

Retain until no longer of administrative
then desfroy.or legal value to agencyOpinions thereto.

,

Copies of state and federal legislation of interest to Retain unifi no longer of use, then
GAR-LL-02 L.egislaGon an agency. destmy-

Indudes worksheets and intonnafion used to draft Retain 1 year after rule published,
GAR-LL-03 Administrative Rules mles, JCARR proceedings, transcdpts of public then destroy.

hearings etc.
Relain 2 years after case is dosed
and no further appeals can be filed,

Claims and Lfligation then destroy. It rase is dismissed
GAR•LL-g4 Records i out prejudice, retain one year aft

statute of limitations runs, then
desfroy.

Used by state agencies to request that the Attomey Retain until no longer of administrative
GAR-LL-05 Delinquenl Claim General pursue collection of dollars owed to them vadue, then destroy.

that they have not been able to collect

GAR-LL-D6
I

Licenses, Permlts, II documents relating to applirafion and grant or
Retain 1 years after final expiration,
including all renewals, or 1 year after

Cethficafions denial of an adminisbatrve ricense, permit, etc. denial, then destroy.

GAR-OES- Office Equipment
Used to request installafinn or modification of an

yh

Retain unhl audited by Audilor of
State and audft report is released and

01 Senrice Request
one,equipment or servlce provided by telep discrepancies are resolved, thenall

computer, copier oompanies, etc. destroy.

Nginal computer pdntout, instrudions and vrork
GAR-OES- Equipment Inventory and sheets used to complete equipment inventory Retain ungl superaeded, then destroy.
02 Assignment Sheets reports for pagers, laptops, cellular phones, etc.

GAR-0ES- Delivery Slips and Retain until no longer of administretive

03 Packing Lsts - value, then destroy.

Din:d Purchase Orders, Retain until audited by Auditor of

GAR-OES-
Requisitions and Other State and audg report is released and

04
Documents Related to all dscrepandes are resolved, then
Purchase of CGOods or destroy.
Serv)ces

Authorizes payment to another state agency for
Retain until audHed by Auditor of
^th and audl report is released andGAR-OES- Intra-State Transfer

heV
goods and/or services reoeived and serves as the all discrepancies are resolved, then05 ouc r basis for disbursing funds. deshoy.

GAR-OES- Invoices (Accounts
Bill fa' goods shipped or services rendered. They

i i

Retain until audited by Auditor of
^re and audit report is released and

06 Payable Invoices)
v ngare matched with pun:hase orders and rece

and attached to vouchers for payment.reports
all discrepandes ae resoNed, then

, desiroy.

Used to make emergency purchases of all
Retain until audited by Auditor of
Stateand audft report is released andGAR-OES-

07
Release and Permitto
Make Direct Purchases

materials, supplies and equipment and to make all d iscrepancies an; resolved, then
direct purchases or engage in rontract of services. destroy.

RetaiP until audited by Auditor of
?3Ar3.,q;ES_ Used to order supplies, fonns, food, atc,imm a`- J`^ ^iu a,i7 a.dd R re^tsls^^isd and

D6
ons for SuppliesRequisN StDremom all discrepanaes arere3olved, then

destroy.

Postal Records,
GAR-0ES- Registered Mail, Insured Retain 1 year, then destmy.
09 Mail Logs, and Metered

Recards

GAR-OES- Postal Reports, Stamp Retain 1 year, then destmy.
10 RequisiGons

http://apps.das-ohio.gov/rims/General/General.asp 8/4/2011
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Retain until audited by Auditor of
GAR-0ES- Release for Abandoned Used for the salvage of equipment or property of State and audit report is released and
11 Pfoperty the State of Ohio. all discrepandes afe resolved, then

destroy.

GAR-0ES-
Used to submit spedfication for a printing job to

Retain until audited by Auditor of
State and audit report is released and

12 Pririting Orders State Pdnting and to encumber the dollars needed all discrepancies are resolved, then
for the job. destroy.

AII Bidding Documents,
RFP's, RFQ's or Similar For sale of gods, retain five years then

GAR-C-01 Documents (Purchasing, destroy. For services, retain 16 years,
wnstruction, personnel then destmy.
servic

Retain untr7 audited by Auditor of
Vender Master Input Used to establish desaiptive infonna6on about a State and audit report is released and

GAR-C-02 Document vendor or update previously entered vendor data. all discrepancies am resolved, then
destroy.

GAR-BLM- Lease Records of Lands
Fulfill the requirements of O.R.C.
117.49. Retain 2 years after expiration

01 or Buildings of lease, then destroy.

GAR-BLM- Maintenance and Repair Retain 2 years, then destroy.
02 of Building

Appiaisals, encumbrances, fund transfers, plans,
'

Retain pennanengy with the original
GAR-BLM- Purchase of Land

s opinions, contradsresolutions, Attomey General
and any other original doouments related to the

instrument filed pursuant to O.R.C.
03 Records acquisition of real property by the State of Ohio

11749. Retain photocopies in agency
until property conveyed, then destioy.

through O.R.C. 127.13 or other O.R.C. sedions.

GAR-BLM- Deed Records, Real
Retain for I year after permanently
recorded with county auditor, then

04 Property destroy.

^P^I Asset Records
Reta"n 2 years after asset is sokl, then
destroy.

t-,AR.gLM_ Used to establish descriptive infortnafion for each
Retain until audited by Auddor of
State and audit report is 2leased and

Gs
Capifal Projects Master capital project and to update previously entered all discrepancies an: resolved, then

capital projects data. destroy.

Retain until audited by Auditor of
Out-of-State Travel Intemal fonn used to obtain authorization for out-of- State and audh report is released and

GAf2 VT-01 Request state travel for a state employee. all discrepancies are resolved, then
deatroy.

Retain until audited by Auditor of

GAR-VT-02 Travel Expense Report
Used for claiming reimbursement for in-state and State and audit report is released and
out of state trtvel. all discrepancies are resolved, then

destroy.

Includes service records, compilafion sheets,
operation maintenance reports of licensed vehides,

GAR-Vr-03 VeNde Opemtions File
'^'artanty and guaranty statements, operagng Retain during ownership of vehide,
manual, reports and shop-wurk orders, accident then destroy.
reports, repair records, mileage and usage logs
etc.

u . Vehide to Salvage
Fonn infiated when salvaging a state veMde.

lists accessoriesdltion of vehideD db

Retain untii audited by Aua¢ur of
State and audit report is released and

GAR- i -04 Infonnation Sheet
,eso es con all discrepancies are resolved, then

installetl on vehide. destroy.

Retain until superseded. The curtent
GP-O-01 Organizational Charts chart will be aud'rted by Auditor of

State.
DAS to retain 3 years; all other

List of all positions wkhin an agency by pos@ion agencies retain unfil superseded by a

GP-O-02
Employee Posifion contfol number, induding both filled and vacant new roster, then destfoy, provided
Control Rosters positians. Used for budget and personnel audfted by Auditor of State and audit

purposes. report is released and all
disaepandes are resoNed.

"A COMPREHENSIVE LIST OF WHAT MUST BE Retain 7 years after employee leaves
MAINTAINED IN AN EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL employmenl then transferto DAS to

GP-0-03 Employee Pensonnel Fle FILE IS BEING COMPILED BY DAS AND WILL BE keep permanently. PLEASE DELAY
------- -^---------------- DISTRIBUTED WHEN COMPLEfED.7HIS PAGE ANY TRANSFERS UNTIL-YOU----^

WILL BE UPDATE!?ATk'i4P.Ti 7lME. - RECEIVE DAS NOTIFICATION.

Vacency posfings and spplications, resumes, civii Retain 7 years after position filled or
GP-O-04 Hidng Materials service applicaflons and interview questions from decision not to fill the position is

applicants not hired. made.

Employee FMLA, EAP, Retain 7 years after employee
GP-0-05 Disability and Workers separation, then destroy.

Compensation Reconls

Civil Service Exam
Announcements, Cover Retain until superseded, replaced or

htlp://apps.das.ohio.gov/rims/General/General.asp 8/4/2011
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Sheet Position obsolete, then destroy. (DAS keeps
GP-O-06 Descriptions and for 7 years.)

Position Descriptions

Retain 7 years after case is closed,

GP 0-07
Employee Discipline and then destroy. (Be aware that some
Grievance Records collective conM1acts specify where

such documents can be kept)

GP-O-08 Training Manuals Manuals produced by an agency for intemal Retain until superseded, obsolete, or
personnel training, replaced, then des[roy.

Retain until audited by AudAOr of

GP-PAY-01 ttentlance Records Timesheets, leave reques[s, etc.
State and audit report is released and
aB discrepancies are resolved, then
destroy.

Retain until audded by Auditor of

Payroll Warrant Records State and audit report is released and

GP-PAY-02 and Payroll all discrepancies an: resolved, then

Disbursement Records desboy If Federal funds are involved,
retain according to appropriate
Feder°al schedules.

Retain 7 yeas after the expiraNon of

PAY 03GP
7emporary Personnel comracts, then destroy provided

ditd b A f Sdit-- Contracts or oy u tate and auditau e
report is released and all
discrepancies are resolved.

Requests for outside agency (ex. Highway Pabol,

Requests for Auditor, EOD...) to investigate an employee. Retain 1 year after completion of
GP-M-01 Investigations Includes request referral, and any attached investigation or decision not to

documentation including preliminary investigation inves6gate, then destroy.
before the rafertal.

GP-M-02 Internal Investigations Employee investigations file. Retain 3 years, then destroy.

Retain until audited by Auditor of

GP-M-03 Telephone Logs, Bills Listing of long distance calls made by agency State and audH repod is released and
and Call Records personnel for a particutar time pedod. all discrepancies are resolved, then

destroy.
Fnancial Disclosure
Statements & JoiM

GP-M-04 Legislative and Ethics Retain 2 years, then destroy.
Commission "JLEC'
Statements

Employee Training
Records, Workfonxa

GP-M-05 Devetopment, Tuition
Reimbursement and Retain 2 years, then destroy.

Other Eduration
Assistan

GP-M-06
F,^^ghts and Trtle VII Contains complaints and hearing information. Retain 7 years, then destroy.

Retain 2 years, then transfer to Sfate
GP-M-07 AfFnnative Action Plans Archives for their possible retention or

desVuction.
Accident, Heatth &

GP-M-08 Safety Records, Incident
Reports, OSHA Reports, Retain 5 years, then destroy.

etc.

plirafion, Affidavit and
Related Documents tor Retain unlil audited by Auditor of

GF-NN-01 Replacement Warrants State and audft report is released and

Never Received Lost ad discrepaneles are resolved, then, ,
Stolen, dwtmy'

GF-VW-02 ditor of State Rewrite Form used to change the address or other Retain until no longer of administrative
information on a warrant use, then destroy.

Request for Stop, Retain until audited by Auditor oF

GF-NM-03 Release or Cancellalion Sfate and audit report is released and

of Warrant all discrepanaes are resolved, then
destroy.

_ Retain until audited by Auditor of

GF-W V-04 Vouchers and Voucher State and aud'd report is released and
Joumals E^ .rs^a M^ are resolved, then

7estwy.^.-`
Retain until audited by Auditor of

GF-W V-05 Employee Tuition State and audit report is released and
Reimbursement Records all discrepanrJes are resolved, then

destroy.

GF-G-01 Retain for 1 year after gr•ant is
awarded and complete, or sudits

GmntApplications and conducted and closeout documents
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Related Documents are received, then transfer to State
Archives for their possible retention or
destnrc6on.

AII records conceming federal grants to state
Retain until state and fedeml audits
have been conducted, aud8 reports

GF-G-02 Federal Gmnt Fles agencies which document the expenditure and use raleasad, and audit resolutions issued
of federal monies. or resolved, ihen destroy.

Used to establish a grant master plan in CAS.
Retain until audited by Auditor of

GF-G-03 Gmnt Master Infomation Pmvides a profile of the grant Enables the system
State and audit report is released and
all discrepancies are resolved, then

to collect finandal totals for a grant destroy.

lotrnent and Plan YWrksheets used for proposed budgets, legislative Retain uniâ I budget is in effect, then
GF-BA-D7 Adjustment tesfimony and retatEd documents. destroy.

Executive Budget Retain un6i the end of biennium, then
GF-BA-02 Proposal destroy.

Retain ungt audited by Auditor of
Fund Appropdation Allows state agencies to establish or increase State and audit report is released and

GF-BA-03 Request appmpdation auModty in spevial funds. all discrepancies are resolved, then
destroy.

Used to transfer approprlafions at the Spending Retain until audited by Auditor of

GF-BA-04
Spending Authodty

ority Code (SAC) level on the Central
Accounting System between quarters of the fiscal

and audit report is released and^^
Adjustment year if they are within the same appmpdaBon line

all discrepancies are resolved, then

item of an appropdation bill.
destloy.

Request for Transferof Retain until audited by Auditor of
General Appropriation Allows state agencies to transfer funds between Slate and audit report is released and

GF-BA-05 and Re-sllotment of appropdation line items. O.RC.127.'13. all discrepancies are resolved, then
Ouarters destroy.

Used to record receipts or repayment where the Retain unfil audited by Audftor of
Refund of Expendihue odginat payment was in error, dupficated, or made State and audit report is released and

GF-BA-O6 WMin the Biennium for illegally. This is done vrithin the biennium for the all discrepancies are resolved, then
Pdor Year prior year. destmy.

To request Contrdling Board approval of

Controlling Boafd
emergency expendgures for Capital Improvement

GF-BA-07 ^neral Request
Projecls, purchases made wigiout competlGve Retain 2 years, then destroy.
selection, and transfer of Capital Improvement
Funds.

Audit reports and workpapers aeated by an
Retain unBl audited by AudRor of
State and aud@ report is released and

GF-M-01 Intemal AudH Reports agency's intemal audit unit or similar functioning all disaepancies are resolved, then
unit destroy.

GF-M-02
Federal or State AudR Copies of audit reports issued by the Auditor of Retain 2 years, then desfroy.
Reports State or federel government

Retain unfil audited by Auditor of
Bonds & Bond Coupons, State and audit report is released and

GF-M-03 Redeemed ell discrepancies are resolved, then
destroy.
Retain 10 years after final call date,

GF-M-04 Bond Registers then destroy.

Retain unfil audited by Auditor of
State and audd report is released and

GF-M-05 Petty Cash Records atl discrepancies are resolved, then
destroy.

Cash in Treasury Detail Retain unhl audited by Auditor of
Ledger, Cash Receipt State and aud"d report is released and

GF-M-O6 Records & Cash all discrepancies are resolved, then
Transfer, Register of dfttroy.
Intra-Treasury

oaunting Emity Retain until audited by Auditor of
Description, Accounts State and audd report is released and

GF-M-07 Payable Ledger and all discrepancies are resolved, then
Accounts Rewivable destroy.
Ledger

GF-M-08 Balance Sheets Retain 2 years, then dastroy.

Bank Deposit SGps, Retain un1J audited by Auditor if
Ledgers, Bank State and auAitFeport"is feleased and

GF-M-09 Statements, Canceged all discrepancies are resolved, then
Checks and Refated destmy
Documents

^Batch Control Used by agency to maintain a log of batches Retain unul batches are verified, then
GF-tv1-10 Sheet submitted to CAS. destmy.

Continuation Sheet for CAS documents (Formedy Retain as long as attached GAS
GF-M-11 CAS Coding Attachment Encumbrance Coding Tmveler). document, then destroy.

Various computergenerated reports distributed by Retain until audited by Audi[or of
GF-M-12 CAS Reports and OBM to various state agencies State and audR report is released and

Inquiries by Data all discrepancies are resolved, then
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Classification destroy.

Used by OBM to define allocation units and be
Retain until audited by Auditor of
Sthth and audit report is released and

GF-M-13
OBM Allocation
UnitlSAC Definitlon

agencies to define their Spending Authodty Codes
'

alI discrepancies are resolved, then
SAC s .^ ^ destroy-

Used to deposit and record revenue receipts fmm
any known revenue source and to hold unknown
receipts for redistdbution. Also used by agendes Retain until audited by Auditor of

Revenue Receipts and which have established a deparbnental hokfing State and audit report is released and
GF-M-14 Holding Account fund from which revenue is redistributed or by any all discrepancies are resolved, then

Redistribution agency which receives revenue from an unknown destmy.
source and deposits it to a fund using the revenua
source hold.
Used by State Accounting to indcate enors on Retain until error is conected, then

GF-M-15 Conection Notice documents retumed to an agency site. destroy.

Referral letters, requests for routine informafion or
GAR-CM- Conespondence, publicafions provided to the public by an agency Retain 6 months, then destroy.
03 Routine which are answered by standard form Ietlers.

Conkact Encumbrances, For sale of goods, retain five years
Procurements, after contract expires, then destroy.

GAR-C-03 Complefnts to Vendors, For services, retain 16 years, then
and Related Contract destroy,
Documents

Informagon Resources
gency IT plans, data processing servlces plans,

strategic plans, and n:lated records used to plan for
Retain unfit superseded, obsolete or

[hen transfer to Statere lacedP
IT-AD-01

Management and Data
Processing Services

infonnation systems development, technology
i i

,
Archives for their possible retention or

on, orsacquisitions, data pr^ssing services prov destrudion. See GAR-PP-02Plans areas,related
Records of data processing policies including those Retain until superseded, obsolete or
coverrng access and security, systems replaced, then bansfer to State

IT-AD-02 Data Processing Polides development, data retention and disposition, and Archives for their possble retention or
data ownership. destruc tion. See GAR-PP-02

Data Processing Retain until audited by Auddor of

Producl/Vendor and Information on data processing equipment, State and aud8 report is released and
IT-AD-03 State Conbacts software, and other products and their vendois. all discrepancies are resolved, then

Reference Files destroy. See GA.^R-G-02

Reports and other records fiom OGS detailing Retain until aud'aed by Auditor of

OGSData Center Time charges for use of Me Office of General Services State and aud@ report is reieased and
IT-AD-04 Billing Records mmputer services including monthly billing reports, all discrepancies are resoNed, then

mpies of vouchers and bills. destroy. See GAR-NN-04

Copies of records created to ini5ate the pumhasing
Copies of Purduse pmcess, authorize and provide funds for, or satisfy Retain until audited by Auditor of
Requisitions, Orders, daims and expedite payments for private service State and aud@ report is released and

IT-AD-05 and Billing Records for pmviders including copies of purchase onfers, all discrepancies are resolved, then
Data Processing invoice requests, receipts, agency vouchers, dastroy. See GAR-OES-04
Services service reports, and othersupporting

documentation.
Eledmnic and manuai records used to document,
calculate costs and bill progrem units for computer Retain until audited by Auditor of

Records of Chargebacks usage and data pmcessing services. These State and audit report is released and
IT-AD-06 to Data Processing records are also used for cost recovery, budgeting, all discrepancies are resolved, then

Services iisers or ad^ninisLauve purposes. Records Not..,.:ere_: d estmy. See GAR-OE$-u5
Chargeback records subject to Fede21 audit
requirements should be scheduled separately.

Retain for 3 years after
discongnuance of system and until all

Records necessary for using the system: user system data is destroyed or
guides, system or sub-system definitions, system ^nsfened to new operating

frSD-01
Data Systems
Spedfcations

eowcharts, program descriptions and
documentation, job contml or work flow records,

env'imnment, then destroy. If all data
is not destroyed or transferred,

system specfications, and input and output transfer spedfications to State
specifications. Archives for fheir possible retention or

destruction.
Retain 3 yeafs after discontinuance of

Records generally created dudng development or system orapplication and until
nwdification and necessary to access, retdeve, system"s or apptiration"s data is

Data manipulate and interpret data in an automated destroyed or transferred to a new
IT-SD-02 DocumentetioN4ata. system including data element didionary, file strudure orfonnat, then destroy. If all

Didionary Records layout, code book drtabk:, and other records that ata is not destroyed or trensferred,
explain theme !ae'!9-pu'pa.ye`> transfer records to State Archives for
relationships, and origin of the data eiements. their possible retenfion or destmdion.

Automated program code which generates the Retain for 3 system update cydes

IT-SD-03
utomated Program machine-language instructions used to operate an after code is supemeded or replaced,

Listing/Source Code automated infonnation system. then destroy.

Roufine or benchmark data sets, related Retain until no longer oi administrative
IT-SD-06 Test Database/Files documentation, and test resulls constmcted or value to agency, then destroy.

used to test or develop a system.
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Records of procedures for data entry, the operation Retain until superseded, obsolete or

Data Processing of compaiterequipment, production control, tape replaced, then transfer to Stale
IT-0P-01 Operating Procedures library, system backup, and other aspects of a data Archives for their possible retention or

processing operation. destruction. See GAR-PP-02

Maintenance Contracts
Maintenance contracts for data processing

For sale of goods, retain five years
after contrdd e^ires, then destroy.

IT-OP-03 FIes
equipment, and related records including copies of For services, retain 16 years, then
contracts, service histories, and work orders. destroy. See GAR-C-03

Operating System and Records relating to the replacement of equipment Retain I year after successflil
IT-OP-04 Hardware Conversion or computer operd8ng systems. conversion, then destroy.

Plans
Copy of program code, program flowcharis, Retain unfil all data in system has
pmgtam mainterance log, system change notices, been mgrated or destroyed. If all data

Techniml Program odginal design documents, specificafions, is not destroyed or transferred,
ITSD-04 Documentation requirements, acceptance tests, and other records hansfer documentation to State

that document computer programs and the Archives for their possible retentlon or
modifications made to computer programs. destruction.

Records used in the procurement of system
hardware and software including request for
proposals, proposals, quotations and bids, For sale of goods, refain five years

IT-SD-05
Dath Processing
Procurement Files

benchmarklaaeptance testing infonnation,
cortespontlence, dupliqte copies of contracts,

then destroy. For services, retain 16
years, then destroy. See GAR-C-01

purchase oniers, technical reviews, and vendor
infomnation including references and literature on
the fion or produd line.
Records documenting the use, operation, arM Retain until the agency no longer uses

Data Processing
maintenance of an agencys data processing
equipment including operating manuals,

rEdated hardware and all data is
bl iIT-OP-02 Hardware

Documentation
hardwafeloperating system requirements,

transferred to and made usea e n
new haMware environment, then

hardware configurations, and equipment controt destmy
systems.
Records related to the proteclion and

IT-OP-05
Data Processing
Disaster Preparedness

reestablishment of data processing services,
equipment and data (back-up files) in case of a

Retain until superseded by revised
plan, then destroy.

and Recovery Plans disester.
Copies of master files or databases, appliragon
so$ware, logs, directodes, and other records Retain for a minimum of 12 backup

ITAP-ge System Backup Files needed to restore a system in case of a disaster or cycles, then desboy.
inadvertent destruclion.
Electronic or textual records created to control or

OP-07R
System Users Access

monitor individual access to a system and its data
including but notcreated for security purposes

Retain until no lon er of adminsftrative
g- Records

,
limited to user account records, security logs, and

^lue to agency, then destroy.

password files.
Electronic files or automated logs created to
monitor compufer system usage induding but not Retain unlil no longer of administrdtive

IT-OP-0e Computer Usage Files limited to log-in files, system usage files, data entry value to agency, then destroy.
logs, and records of individual computer program
usage.

summary Computer Summary reports and other paper mcords aeated Retain until no longer of administiatNe
IT-OP-09 Usege Reports o document computer usege. value to agency, then destrny.

Computer Run
Records used to schedule computer runs including

run ieports, run requests, anddaily schedules
Retain unfil no longer of administmfive

thl l tIT-0P-10 Scheduling Records
,

other records documenting the successful
enor fisca va ue o agency,

dsstroy
completron of a run.
Copies of records or forms designed and used
solely for data input and oontrol when the data Retain unfil all data has been entered

rT-OP-11 Input Documents processing und provides centrelized data input into the system and, if required,
services and original records are retained by the verified, then destmy.
pnx,iram unif.
Data gene2ted during the creation of a master file Retain for a minimum of 12

rr-OP-12 Audit Trail Files or database used to validate a master file or database/master file backup cycles,
database during a processing cyde. then destroy.

Automated records used to conbol the location, Retain unfil related m-cords or media

IT-0P-13
Automated Tape Librery maintenance, and disposition of magneiic media in are destroyed or withtlrawn from the
System Files a tape Iibrary. tape library, then destroy.

.. . RecoNs used to eontrol the location,.maintariance,.
- -'

IT-OP-14
Tape-LibFp:.y^'---^°-^-

and disposrf^on of magnetic media in a tape library
n•.ii" ^^gs, control logs, and "scratch

_ ' "
tYetain until superseded, then destroy.

Records reports"regarding the destruction of tape libmry
electmnic files.

Retain sde visit reports, problem and
Records documenting support services provided to equipment service reports, and

ff-AS-01
SitelEquipment Support specific data processing equipment or installations mutine conespondence and
Files including site visit reports, program and equipment memomnda until warranty or

senrice reports, service histories, and guardntee of service has expired, then
correspondence and memorenda. For service destroy. Retain service histories and
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contracts, see IT-OP-03. other summary records unGl the
related equipment is no longer in use,

- then destroy.

Records used to document requests for technical

Help Desk Telephone
m^stance and responses to these requests as
v"ell as to mlled infortnatron on the use of

Retain ungl no longer of administrative
IT-AS-0Z and ReportsLogs computer equipment for progrem delivery, security,

value, then destroy.

or other purposes.

Memoranda, flyers, catalogues, n:gistration forms,
Training Course rosters, and other records relagng to tmining Retain unfil superseded, obsolete, or

IT-AS-03 Infonnation courses nm by a data processing user support or replaced, then destroy. See GP-O-08
otfice automation support unit.
Summary reports and other records created to Rafain until no longer of adminstrative

IT-CS-01 Netwodc Usage Reports dowment cwnputer usage for repoNng or other value to agency, then destroy.
purposes.
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JOHN R . KASICH
GOVERNOR OF OHIO

Sham This Page:

AMUI'tlUnmW
Gov. John R. Kaskh will ccnvene the 2011 Boatd of Apportioning Persons on Thursday. August 4, 2011 at

2:30 p.m. in the Senate Finance Hearing Romn in the Ohio Statehouse.

I<aach, Seadary of State Jon Husted, Auditw of State Dave Yost and two yet4o-be-named legislatlve

members (one Republiran and one Oemooat) will comprise the board. The purpose of the meeting is to elect

a chauman, virm chaimwn and secretary of the board. They will adopt mles and procedures fnrthe

subrmssion and comment af apportionment plans and for the nmice and folmat of the regional hearings that

vrill be held throughoul the slate. The board must complele and pubGsh ils work by October 1, 2011.

The board meets every 10 yeaB following the resutts ofihe federal deeennial census. The frve-member board

is responsible fnr redravdng boundaries for ea<h of the 99 Ohio House and 33 Ohio Senate disbirls to reflect

popuiagon dlanges.

The Apporgonment Board, established by Mi4e 11 oFthe Ohio Constifuiion, eonsists of the govemor,

sectdary of state, aud"dororsfete and two additional members, ane appointed by the majotity pany and one

appointed bythe minoriy party oFthe Ohlo General Assembly.

Is0111Ni1.L

1M1k v2nt to vmdc wfth you to create a better Ohio. Contact gre Govemor, tell us how you'd fix Ohio, or stay In(ormed by signing up for our maiGng IisL

Contact the GovemorShare Your ldeasStay InformedMedia lnquhiesScheduling Request

http://governor.ohio.gov/Administration/Apportionment.aspx 8/3/2011
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Adopting General
Assembly and
Congressional Districts*
PREPARED BY: LY{vDA.J .JACOBSEN, LSC STAFFAZTORNEY

REYIEWED BY' MICHAEL BURNS, L.S'C Dl['ISION CHIEF

In Ohio, General Assembly and Congressional districts are adopted using
different procedures. This informational brief describes the timelines and

procedures for adopting district plans for both.
The Apportionment Board adopts General Assembly districts, and is

constitutionally required to adopt those districts between August 1 and
October 1, 2011. Congressional districts, which are adopted by the General
Assembly, are on a different timeline. Those districts must be adopted prior
to February 8, 2012, which is the deadline to file candidacy paperwork for

the May 2012 primary election.

General Assembly districts

Persons responsible

Article XI of the Ohio Constitution specifies the process for adopting
General Assembly districts. According to Section 1 of that Article, the
following persons are responsible for apportioning Ohio for members of the
General Assembly:

• The Governor;
• The Auditor of State;
• The Secretary of State;
• One person chosen by the S ep aker of the House of Representatives__

and the leader in the Senate of';lte-politycaâ party uiAvj'iich the Speaker of the

House is a member;

Volume 129Issue I - Revised
July 15,2011

The Ohio Constitution
designatesfrve
officials, commonly
referred to as the
Apportionment Boar4
to establish General
Assembly districts.

* This Members Only brief is an update of an earlier brief on this subject dated

December 21, 2010 (Volume 128 Issue 14).
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Once General Assembly
district boundaries
are established they
generally cannot be
changed until the next
census and the ensuing
apportionment.

• One person chosen by the

legislative leaders in the two houses
of the major political party of which
the Speaker of the House is not a

member.
These persons, or a majority

of them, are required to meet and
establish boundaries for the 99 House
districts and 33 Senate districts.'

Together, they are commonly referred
to as the Apportionment Board.

Timelinesfor adopting General

Assembly districting plans

The Apportionment Board
is required to meet and establish
General Assembly districts on a
date designated by the Governor
between August 1 and October 1
in each year ending in the numeral
"1." The Governor must give the
Board members two weeks' advance
notice of the date, time, and place of
the meeting. The General Assembly
district plan must be published no
later than October 5 of the year in
which it is made.2

Generally, once district bound-

aries are established, they cannot
be changed until the next federal
decennial census and the ensuing
apportionment. However, there is one
exception. If the Ohio Supreme Court
or the U.S. Supreme Court invalidates
the General Assembly district plan,
the Apportionment Board must meet

^d^t°ra^tine a new district planusing
the provisions of Article XI that
remain effective. The Governor must
give the Board members two weeks'
advance written notice of the date,
time, and place of that meeting.'

Criteria for GeneralAssembly
districting

The Ohio Constitution establishes
various requirements that General
Assembly district plans must
meet. One requirement deals with
population equality between districts.
Population equality is based on the
"ratio of representation." The ratio
of representation is determined by
dividing the population of the state
by 99 for House districts, and by 33
for Senate districts. The population
of each district generally must be
between 95% and 105% of the
applicable ratio of representation.
If a county contains a population

of between 90% and 110% of the
ratio of representation for the House,
reasonable effort must be made to
create a House district consisting of
the whole county.

In addition to population equality,
General Assembly district plans must
meet other criteria. House districts
must be compact and composed of

contiguous territory, and the boundary
of each district must be a single,
nonintersecting, continuous line.
Where possible, the districts must

be composed of whole counties.
Where districts cannot meet the
other requirements and be composed
of whole counties, they must be
drawn so as to keep government units
whole, giving.preference, in order,

to counties, towns,hily mM
corporations, and city wards.'

Senate districts must be composed
of three contiguous House districts.
A county with at least one whole
Senate ratio of representation must

July 15, 2011
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have as many Senate districts wholly
within its borders as it has whole
Senate ratios of representation. The
population of the districts must be

between 95% and 105% of the Senate
ratio of representation.5

In addition to these specific

criteria, the U.S. Supreme Court has
stated that the Equal Protection Clause
of the Fourteenth Amendment to the
U.S. Constitution applies to both
Congressional and state legislative

districting plans. Although state
legislative plans may have a wider
population variance between districts
than Congressional plans, the districts
still must have substantial equality of

population.`

Process for establishing General

Assembly districting plans

In the past, the Apportionment
Board has established rules for its
operation and for the submission of
potential district plans by members
of the public. On August 3, 2001, for
example, the Apportionment Board
filed rules specifying the process by
which the 2001 General Assembly
plans would be considered and
adopted. The rules required the Board
to conduct its meetings in accordance
with the Open Meetings (Sunshine)
Act, provided for submission of
proposed plans by members of the
public, and established times for

purpose of adopting district plans.'

Constitutionally, a majority of the
entire Board, not just a majority of
the quorum, is required to adopt a

district plan.
Because each new Apportionment

Board adopts it own rules, the

processes set forth in the 2001
rules may or may not be used in the

future.

Congressional districts

Persons responsible

The U.S. Constitution requires
Congressional representatives to be
apportioned according to the number
of persons in each state.g It does not
specify how districts must be drawn.
In Ohio, Congressional district plans
are enacted by the General Assembly
and codified in section 3521.01 of the

Revised Code.

2imelinesfor adopting
Congressional districting plans

The federal census determines the
population as ofApril 1, in each year
ending in the numeral "0." Within one
week after the opening of Congress
the following year, the President
must report the census counts,
and the number of Congressional
representatives to which each-state

public corrmmentt*r, 1?ror+etserl plaa^s ^.ls entitled, to the Clerk: of the U.S.
A majority of the 13oard constituted -House of Representatives. And
a quorum, and a majority of the within 15 days after receiving that
quorum generally could act on the information, the Clerk must notify
Board's behalf, other than for the each state governor of the number

The process for

adopting a General

Assembly district
plan varies with

each Apportionment
Board depending on
the rules adopted by
the Board.

In Ohio,
Congressional district
plans are enacted by
the General Assembly
and codified in the
Revised Code.

3
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Under current law,

the fzling deadline

for the 2012 Ohio

primary election is

February 8, 2012.

The Congressional

district?ng plan will need

to be enacted before that

date.

July15,2011

of representatives to which the

governor's state is entitled.'

The detailed census reports, wliich
identify the number of people living in
each census block, block group, and

tract, must be released by April 1 of the
year after the census is taken. Those

reports, along with the apportionment
determination delivered by the Clerk
of the U.S. House, form the basis for

Congressional redistricting.10
There is no statutory deadline

for completion of Congressional
redistricting. Instead, the filing
deadline for nominations for the office

of Congressional representative in the
year after census data is released
serves as the practical deadline.
Because candidates are nominated in
the district in which they are seeking
election, the districts must be drawn
prior to the filing deadline for the
primary election at which candidates
will seek nomination. The General
Assembly therefore generally enacts
the Congressional districting plan
between April 1 of the year ending in
the numeral "1" (when census data is
officially released) and the primary
filing deadline for the following

year.
For example, the 2000 census

figures were released in March
2001." The first election required to
be conducted using those figures was
the May 7, 2002, primary election.

After therelease of the census data
in ivlarch 2001, the G@neral Assembly
had until the February 21, 2002, filing
deadline for the 2002 primary election
to enact a Congressional districting

plan. The bill enacting those districts
was an emergency measure that
passed the General Assembly on
January 23, 2002, and took effect
January 24, 2002.12

The timeline will be similar for
2012. The 2012 primary election
will be held on May 8." The filing
deadline for that election will be 90
days before the day of the primary
election,14 which will be February
8, 2012. Thus, the Congressional

districting plan will need to be enacted
prior to February 8, 2012, to allow
candidates time to obtain signatures
and file their candidacy petitions on
that date.

Redrawing Congressional districts
between censuses

It is not entirely clear under what
circumstances a state may redraw
Congressional districts between
censuses. Plans must be redrawn if
a districting plan is determined to
be unconstitutional. And in 2006,
the U.S. Supreme Court permitted
the Texas Legislature to redraw,
in the middle of the decade, a
districting plan that had been adopted
by a federal court.15 The Supreme
Court did not determine, however,
whether a legislature may draw a
new redistricting plan mid-decade
if the prior plan was adopted by the
legislature. Thus, it is uncertain
whethez statesxnax redraw tlaeirAwn.
legislatively enacted plans prior to the
next census.
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Criteria for Congressional

districting

The U.S. Constitution does
not set forth specific criteria that
Congressional districts are required
to meet. However, the U.S. Supreme

Court has identified various criteria
that districts must meet in order
to fulfill the requirements of the
Fourteenth and FifteenthAmendments
to the U.S. Constitution. Additionally,
statutory requirements, such as
applicable provisions of the Voting
Rights Act of 1965, must be met.

Congressional districts must be
as equal in population as practicable.
Unlike General Assembly districts,
which may vary in population by up to
5% above or below the ideal population,
Congressional districts must be as
equal as possible. The Supreme Court
has required that "absolute population
equality be the paramount objective
of apportionment" in establishing
Congressional districts.lb

In addition to strict population
equality, Congressional districts also
must meet statutory requirements
arising from the Voting Rights Act of
1965.17 Depending upon the particular
state, different parts of that act may
apply. Section 2 of the act applies
to all jurisdictions. It prohibits any
state or political subdivision from
imposing a voting qualification or a
standard, practice, or procedure that

language minority group. Under this
section, Congressional districting
plans cannot dilute the voting strength
of certain minorities. Some practices

that have been questioned under the
section include multimember districts,
the packing of minority voters into a
limited number of districts, and the
fracturing of minority voting strength

by dividing minority voters into a
large number of districts.18 After a
Congressional redistricting plan is
established, it is often challenged
on Section 2 grounds. As a result,
federal courts often determine whether
Congressional redistricting plans

meet the requirements of the Voting
Rights Act.

Courts have recognized several

policies or goals as traditional
redistricting principles. These
principles include:19

• Compactness;
• Contiguity;
• Preservation of political

subdivisions;
• Preservation of communities

of interest;
• Preservation of cores of prior

districts;
• Protection of incumbents;

and
• Compliance with Section 2 of

the Voting Rights Act.
The persons responsible for

drawing Congressional district maps
determine„which of these principles

results in a denial or abr d"lent of wih be considered; and how much
the right to vote on aceouni ofrace, cutisieYeiation each will receive, in
color, or status as a member of a establishing the districts.

Congressional

districts must be as
equal inpopulation
as practicable.

Congressional
districts also must

satisfy^ requirements
of the votingRights

Act of 1965.

Courts have
recognized seven

policies or goals
_

redistricting
principles, including

compactness,

contiguity, and
preservation of

communities of
interest.

5
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Process for adopting Congressional
districts

Although some states have enacted
a statutory process for adopting
Congressional district plans, such
as having those districts detennined
by a board or commission, nothing
in Ohio law specifies a particular
process for adopting Congressional

districts. Traditionally, those districts
have been adopted by statutory

enactment of the General Assembly.
The bill establishing those districts
is enacted according to the same
process as other bills are enacted by
the General Assembly and is subject
to gubernatorial veto in the same
manner as other bills. P'=

Endnotes

t Ohio Constitution Article XI, Section 1.

2 Ohio Constitution Article Xl, Section 1.

Ohio Constitufion Article Xl, Sections 6 and 13.

" Ohio ConstitutionArticle Xi, Sections 2, 3, 7, 8, and 9.

Ohio Constitution Article Xl, Sections 4 and 11.

6 Reynolds v Sims, 377 U.S. 533, 568 (1964).
Rules and Procedures for the 2001 Apportionment Board, Ohio Administrative Code rules

011-1-01 through 011-1-12. '

" United States Constitution Article 1, Section 2.

2 United States Code (U.S.C.) § 2a.
ro National Conference of State Legislatures. Redistricting Law 2010 (2009): pp. 7-10.

11 http://www.aensus.gov/population/www/censusdata/c2kproducts.html.

11 Arn, Snh, H R, 471 of the 124th GeneralAssemblv.

" R.C. 3501.01, as amended by Am. Sub. H-B. 194 of the 129th General Assembly.

14 1LC. 3513.05, as amended by Am. Sub. HB. 48 of the 128th General Assembly.
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BEFORE THE OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

In the Matter of the
Establishment of the Ohio
General Assembly District
Lines in the State of
Ohio.

PROCEEDINGS

before Auditor Dave Yost, Leader Budish Designee

Representative Kathleen Clyde, Governor Designee

Michael Grodhaus, President Niehaus Designee Matt

Schuler, Secretary of State Designee Halle Pelger,

Secretary Heather Mann, Secretary Ray DiRossi, the

Ohio Apportionment Board, at Ohio State University

Lima, Life & Physical Sciences Building, Science

100, 4240 Campus Drive, Lima, Ohio, called at

10:05 a.m. on Monday, August 22, 2011.
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August 22, 2011.

MR. DiROSSI: We'll go ahead and come to

order and get started. I will now call to order

our first hearing of eleven regional hearings of

the Ohio Apportionment Board here at the Ohio State

University Lima Campus.

And as people arrive, for people who are

joining us, we would ask that you fill out a

witness slip if you're wishing to testify, and we

have those in a couple locations, but we have some

here down on the table here. And if you could just

fill one of those out if you'd like to testify and

give them to our two staff members, both Lisa and

Kvlia nvor hPrP in thc hark rnrnar __ T knnw_______ _

number of you have already filled out slips

already.

Our 2011 Apportionment Board, which is

responsible for drawing districts for both the Ohio

Senate and the Ohio House of Representatives, held

itsinitial meetingnn-Augu.st;-Jtb,= 2Q=1^ earlier

this year and, at that meeting, the Board adopted

rules which required a series of public hearings

throughout the state to gather public input and
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comment.

At that meeting, they appointed both

Heather Mann and myself to serve as joint

secretaries of the board, but seeing that today we

have the Vice-Chairman of the Apportionment Board,

State Auditor Dave Yost, here with us today, I'd

ask if Auditor Yost would preside over this

hearing.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Ray.

Will the secretary please call the

role? And during the role call, each member should

state their name and the office they represent, if

they are present as a designee.

MR. DiROSSI: Auditor Yost?

AUDITOR YOST: David Yost, Auditor of

State.

MR. DiROSSI: Matt Schuler?

MR. SCHULER: Matt Schuler, serving for

Senator Tom Niehaus.

MR. DiROSSI: Halle Pelger?

MS. PELGER: Here, representing

Secretary of State Jon Husted.

MR. DiROSSI: Mike Grodhaus?

MR. GRODHAUS: Present, representing

Governor Kasich.
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MR. DiROSSI: Represent Clyde?

REPRESENTATIVE CLYDE: Kathleen Clyde,

representing Minority Leader Armond Budish.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

We'd first like to thank the Ohio State

University Lima Campus President Gordon Gee, the

Board of Trustees, the Rhodes State College

President Debra L. McCurdy, and Nadine Gunto and

Jerry Haudenshield for hosting us here today, as

well as Lisa Griffin, who coordinated the

arrangements for these hearings.

I'd like to remind everybody that the

purpose of this hearing is to gather information,

comments, and input regarding the upcoming

reconfiguration of House and Senate district

l ; nca . . .

The Apportionment Board and the panel

before you is not responsible for re-drawing Ohio's

congressional districts. New congressional

districts will be established by the state

legislature as a bill that will be voted upon by

the members of tfz^- Representatives

and the Ohio Senate, and the bill will then go to

be signed or vetoed by the Governor.

But we would ask all witnesses to please
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limit your comments and testimony to the matter

before the Apportionment Board; that being, Ohio

House and Ohio Senate districts.

We're here today to listen. We're not

here to debate you. We're not here to debate one

another. We're here to get input from Ohioans on

the apportionment process and how it impacts your

community and your representation in the Ohio

General Assembly.

Today, we have a limited amount of time

for the hearing. We're scheduled to have another

hearing today up in Toledo. And we want to give

everyone a full opportunity to offer their input.

We're set to be here for two hours and may ask

witnesses to limit their testimony in the interest

of time and out of courtesy for other persons who

wish to address the panel.

In Ohio, as in most states, legislative

reapportionment occurs in the years ending in 1,

which are also the years following the federal

decennial census figures released by.the U.S.

DepartmLent-o-f Comerce. Census figures this year -=.

indicate that Ohio's population is 11,536,504

people. That means, ideally, each of the 99 House

districts should contain 116,530 people and each of
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the 33 Senate districts should contain 349,590

people.

Anyone who has researched or tried to

actually draw legislative districts knows that the

process involves far more than somebody putting

roughly the same number of people in each

district.

In Ohio, the General Assembly districts

must conform to traditional redistricting

principles and other requirements that are embodied

in Article 11 of the Ohio Constitution. Article 11

contains specific rules governing the construction

of these districts, including several layers of

sometimes complex requirements.

In addition to the Ohio Constitution,

the Rpar•i mu et alsn rnmply with all a_pplicable

federal laws; most notably, the Voting Rights Act.

And all of these standards are not necessarily

consistent with each other.

Because these hearings are being held

today for the purpose of receiving your input on

the proc^-*,g, . QWT-F; q:ing to go ove-rthe details

of the law here. However, copies of Article 11 and

the Ohio Constitution, as well as other

information, such as population changes, the
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apportionment process, and how the public may

submit plans are available for you at the table.

We encourage you to pick these up and review them,

as they are the same guidelines that the Board has

to follow as it draws legislative districts.

Before we go on, and speaking of how

difficult it can be, the Secretary of State's

office has prepared a process that will allow folks

in Ohio to participate and try their hand at the

line drawing process. And I would like to now call

upon the representative of the Secretary of State's

office, Halle Pelger, to give us a brief overview

of that.

MS. PELGER: Thanks, Auditor Yost.

Last month, the Secretary of State Jon

Husted, with the support of the legislative task

force on redistricting, as well as the

Apportionment Board, launched a website called

reshapeohio.org. The site has two main purposes.

One is to learn more about the process that we're

undertaking here, and the other is to allow people

tWir own hand at drawing niaps.

This was, obviously, referenced by

Auditor Yost, and it's something that is not as

easy as one may think. It becomes very addictive
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once you try to add people into and subtract people

out of certain districts.

In the past, the Apportionment Board had

.set up computers at designated spots around the

state in libraries and government offices. With

technology advancement, we can now let you do that

from your own home. You can access reshapeohio.org

at any time and work on your map, save your map

there.

Right now, we have over 300 users signed

up, and we'll see how many submit them. You can,

once you finish your map, submit that map to us and

we will try to help you get what you need to submit

it to the Apportionment Board. Information about

that and those guidelines are provided on the table

o,^±side, yn„ can also find them on the website.

The point of the website, and we're

grateful for the support of the Board, is to

provide openness and transparency to this process.

We think it's important to hear from everyone who's

willing to try their hand and who's here to talk to

u^uda-y- hope you'llget to reshapeohi.d.oj^ig-

and try it out.. . .

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Halle.

A few other items.before we begin.
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These proceedings will be transcribed by a court

reporter so that the Board, in its deliberations,

may consider the things that are said here today.

So please speak clearly and loud enough for the

panel and the audience and the court reporter to

hear. And I would emphasis that I wear a hearing

aid device and would appreciate it if everybody

would keep their voice up. I know the court

reporter would, as well.

If you have written testimony, please

submit it to our staff so that it may be included

in the official record of the proceeding, and

there's -- there is where you should take it to.

For the record, could you state your

name?

MS. GRIFFIN: I'm Lisa Griffin.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Lisa.

MS. CONNELLY: Kylie Connelly.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

And let the record reflect, also, Mark

Braden, counsel tothe Board, is also present.

-^. ,-_- ,.
And we"will make sure t`^iat al^"^esd^^^t '^"

received at the hearing is available through the

Secretary of State's website at reshapeohio.org.

And with that, we're ready for our first
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witness. The Board calls Keith A. Cheney.

MR. CHENEY: Mr. Chairman, Members of

the Committee, I thank you for the opportunity to

appear before you today. I am a lifelong resident

of Allen County. And under full disclosure, I'm

also the executive chairman of Allen County

Republican Party. In the private sector of my

life, I'm senior vice-president of Certified Oil

Company, which is an Ohio-based company.

In my 17 years as county chairman, I've

had the opportunity to work closely not only with

the constituents with this county, but also with

three state representatives that have represented

this district. Bill Thompson, John Willamowski,

and currently State Representative Matt Huffman.

The benefits I have witnessed and

realized by singular county state representatives

are numerous. I want to share a few of them with

you here today.

Thus, the first being; the residents

understand and know who their state representative

4they have an issue they feel. nee"-^

23

24

25

addressed, they know exactly who to contact; thus,

eliminating; in their minds, any governmental time

lapseto resolve their issue that is important to
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The advance of one county to work with

one state representative allows a cohesive

partnership between state and local government and,

certainly, is expeditious in the resolution of

issues and is also advantageous in accomplishing

tasks to benefit not only the residents of this

county but, ultimately, our state.

A singular county state representative

is also very important and beneficial to our

business community. The relationship they're able

to develop benefits in the retention and growth of

business within our county. It also allows our

businessmen and our businesswomen the benefit of

working with one person as they deal with

government regulations that may have a direct

affect on their business. In short, and simply,

they know exactly who to talk to to get the things

done in Columbus that ultimately makes them

successful here in this county.

In conclusion, I would say that Allen

County certainly does meet c^^ p^^u^^^^ztrr %

requirements, as mentioned by the chairman in his

opening statement, as a singular representative

25 1 district by Ohio legislative standards.
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But most importantly, here in Allen

County, a single state representative is easily

accessible to meet the needs of our constituents,

and readily and rapidly.

I come before you today in favor of

retaining a singular state representative district

for Allen County, exclusively to Allen County.

Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Any questions for this

witness from the members of the board?

Seeing none,.I thank you for your

testimony, sir.

MR. CHENEY: Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Our next witness this

morning is Jim Link.

MR, T.TNK: Thank Vrnu,

Members of the Board, my name is Jim

Link. I'm a life-long resident also of Allen

County. I'm currently.the Allen County treasurer.

Also, on a professional level, I teach the Becker

CPA Review, which is a professional group for those

want tb sit €or he CPA exam 9^_

that for 15 years.

My testimony for you is short and sweet,

also.
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I also agree with the singular

representative for our district here in Allen

County. When I talk to people from other counties,

they often have to divide. "Well, I live on this

side of the border or that side of the border,"

almost as if your county is divided by Main

Street.

Case in point, I speak to my sister and

other family members in Columbus. Some of them

don't even know when they move to and fro if their

work is within one congressional district, their

home is in another. They have to do some research

sometimes to find out who their representative is.

Here in Allen County, that has never

been the case. We have been able the avoid that

confusion. We don't believe in dividing Main

Street by east or west or north or south. We also

think it's also helpful that if we speak with one

clear voice.

And to some -- I have to say, there's a

few representatives that Chairman Cheney mentioned

tfiat I' ll also mentpio N.''Vie 1950s and

1970s, we had the late Walter White. Everybody in

Allen County knew Walter White. Everybody knew how

to get ahold of him.
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We were followed up from '73 to '86 by

Ben Rose. Everybody knows Ben Rose in Allen

County. He's also still with the Ohio Ethics

Commission.

We also had William Thompson from 1987

to 1997. John Willamowski, who is now the Third

District Court of Appeals Justice, from 198- --

1997 to 2006. Everybody knows the Willamowski law

practice and they also know the Willamowski family

here in Allen County

Currently, we have.Matt Huffman, who has

been serving since 2007, as our present state

representative. He worked with Lima City Council

and is well known throughout the Community.

In summary, I also support the singular

r epr eselltati v o

4.

fo Aiie.. County and Hcuse D:.str^ct

Thank you:

AUDITOR YOST: Are there any questions

for this witness?

Thank you, sir; for your testimony.

MR. LINK: Thanlt`ytca-jWies.

AUDITOR YOST: Our third witness of the

morning is W. Dan Reiff.

MR. REIFF: Good morning.
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AUDITOR YOST: Good morning, sir.

MR. REIFF: I've been an Allen County

Commissioner for about ten years. I've been

involved in politics for nearly 20 in some form or

another; previously, as a township trustee. And I

own my own business for more than 30 years in Allen

County.

I think we should keep our district

intact, as we believe this.allows residents to

better know and communicate with a single

representative from the county.

I've been involved with some form of

politics, like I say, as long as I can remember,

and -- and single county, single rep, it gives

clarity of issues, not only for the voters, but

also for the elector.

Allen County's system works; has worked

for decades. We feel it should continue. If it

ain't broke, no need to fix it.

Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, sir. Any

questions' for^

Thank you, sir, for your testimony.

Our next witness will be Sam Bassett.

MR. BASSETT: While it's indicated you
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can't accept gifts, I wonder if you'd take one of

these and pass them down, please. A few props, if

you would.

AUDITOR YOST: I see that we have the

Governor's chief legal counsel here. Can we get a

ruling on whether this constitutes a de minimis?

MR. GRODHAUS: I think it's de minimis.

We can accept it.

MR. BASSETT: Thank you very much.

I'm Sam Bassett. I happen to be an

Allen County Commissioner, as Mr. Reiff was

preceding me.

And I do thank you for the opportunity

to offer a few brief remarks at this hearing of the

Ohio Apportionment Board of the Ohio -- at the Ohio

State lJ'ni'versity ii• i.iima r.ampl^S.

I am, of course, Allen County

Commissioner Sam Bassett. It's been my privilege

to be a resident of Allen County for over 60 years

- I'm much younger than that, of course - and have

represented the citizens of Allen County as a

townsYiip trustee fcYr 62=1^ 3 - as a county =

commissioner for nearly ten years now.

I do pass out a flag representing Allen

County, and that flag was developed some -- over 20
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years ago in a contest of high school students in

Allen County. And a young man at Bath Local

Schools, Tony Mikesell, won a $50 savings bond

developing that flag.

He suggested that the background, red,

white, and blue, represents our country and the

foundation of the Constitution upon which our

government rests. Secondly, the twelve stripes,

red and blue, represent the twelve townships of

Allen County; the eight stars, small stars, the

eight villages; and the two large stars, the two

cities in Allen County. And the center circle

represents a solid core of the State of Ohio. And

that's what we're here to talk about is, I believe,

the representation.

In -- during all the years I've been --

it's been my privilege to work closely with our

elected officials, the representatives and

senators. The challenge of effective

representation has, I believe, been met here in

Allen County and our region of the state. In terms

,
, the single county^zsffre^re' ntative's;of £he 11ous ^

representative has been effective and served our

citizens well. I believe the citizens of our

twelve townships, eight villages, and two cities of
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our county have solid representation at the General

Assembly.

In terms of the Senate, the current

configuration brings together the common interests

of our strong agricultural community, as well as

our business and industrial economic interests.

In summary, I believe the current

structure has served our county and our region

quite well with solid representation at the state

level.

I would be happy to respond to any

questions you might have.

AUDITOR YOST: Any questions for the

witness?

Sir, I have one. What is the current

popuiati'vn of Alie:, Co nty?

MR. BASSETT: It's just over -- just

under 103,000.

AUDITOR YOST: Okay.

MR. BASSETT: And it has some slight

decline in the last, I think, census. As --.as we

hear from oar TIML4Z^Mpllz efforts that°"weare

on a slight decline in terms of population and,

yet, Allen County represents the largest county in

the general area and, I believe, represents the
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largest county of the senatorial district.

I think we are the regional center for

health care for the major area and do, indeed,

represent a major economic center for the

agricultural community, as well as the business and

industrial community.

AUDITOR YOST: Looking at the area

around Allen County, is there a particular -- of

the surrounding counties, is there one that has

greater affinity and more similarities to Allen

County and its communities than the others?

MR. BASSETT: Well, I would suggest that

Auglaize probably is the closest to us and -- of

course, in terms of proximity and also has much

similarity in terms of agricultural basis, as well

as Mercer and Darke Counties. Those are, of

course, part of the current senatorial district.

Those all seem to have a common base of interest

relative particularly to.agricultural interests.

And, of course, we're striving now to

stimulate the whole notion of regionalization,

'm.-..-.+^` =
--_^- ^.. ...

sugges'at we can start workingtogether inoz^

effectively, reduce cost, and to deliver services

more effectively if we, indeed, work together.

We think that the region is, indeed,
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moving in that direction, and we would like to

sustain the current structure such that those

current efforts will be accentuated and built to a

greater and brighter future for our community.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Commissioner.

Any follow-up questions?

Thank you for your testimony.

MR. BASSETT: Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: The next witness this

morning is Bruce French. Good morning, Mr. French.

MR. FRENCH: Good morning,

Mr. Chairman. Thank you for the opportunity to

appear this morning.

My name is Bruce French. I live in

Allen County.. I teach at Ohio Northern University

. ., Hardin Cn,^nty ^ _uhirh is immediately adiaCent to

the east.

I have submitted a -- not a prepared

statenient on my own behalf, but a prepared

statement from a -- kind of a highly unusual -

source, Legislative Council of the State of

Wyomrhg, its current efforts at

reapportionment in -- in light of the decennial

census.

25 1 1 wanted to indicate my initial interest
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noted in the report at Footnote 10, Brown versus

Thompsbn, which is a case in which the United

States Supreme Court approved, to my knowledge, the

greatest variation in the one person, one vote

formula by recognizing the unique topography of the

State of Wyoming and recognized local -- a local

senatorial district of a 70 percent deviation off

the one person, one vote.

And I mentioned that only in part. This

is a much more extensive study which generally

supports the -- the 10 to 15 percent deviation,

which is much more prevalent, to encourage the

Board to -- first, to build districts, both

senatorial and assemblematic districts, working

from existing political institutions. So I would

17 start my building from the political subdivisions

18 and I would then build up the ladder in terms of

19 making the numbers work.

20 I share the view of the other persons

21 who have testified that having a representative

M7- cipally, Alleri County ha's "worke wrezr-

23 the past years and would encourage the -- when the

24 numbers are, in fact, factored into it, again, a

25 single member district being provided for Allen
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There was a question to the prior

witness in terms of whether adjacent counties --

which adjacent counties-have a closer affinity to

Allen County, and I would agree with the prior

witness, that I would -- essentially, my indication

would be Auglaize County would be kind of my pick,

if you need to put the votes together to make that

work.

Otherwise, I think the report that I've

provided to the committee is kind of a helpful

background in terms of the process of another

state, obviously smaller, similarly -- well,

obviously, totally rural, but nonetheless, kind of

an approach to what the constitutional principles

are.

I will be happy to answer any questions

you might have.

AUDITOR YOST: Any questions from the

Board?

Representative Clyde.

MENTATIVE CLYDR: Thank you,

Mr. Auditor.

Thanking the witness for your

25 + testimony. I appreciate your expertise on the
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18 terms of how.the numbers work and where we draw the

171 "Here's what we've done. Here's our best shot in

21 So I think -- the more transparency

20 input at that point, yes.

19 lines," and then we have a further opportunity for

24 the ultimate plan that would be adopted for the

process, and wonder if you could comment on if the

public input is helpful on the process that we

adopt, but I'm wondering on the substance of what

we put out there. I think that the map, as is

drawn, matters a lot to the general public, as

we've seen.

And do you think that we could stand to

have the maps as soon as possible and have an open

process for the public viewing those maps? Do you

think that there's a need for public input once we

actually have maps to look at and have a more open

process?

MR. FRENCH: Thank you.

I think that this initial hearing is a

good first step.. Clearly, the second step is

roughout' the process; I thirik it" 5=a `5-6zi+

23 would help and, ultimately, with voter support.of

25 apportionment in the. State of Ohio.
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AUDITOR YOST: Any other questions from

the Board?

Thank you for your testimony, sir.

MR. FRENCH: All right. Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: I'd like the record to

reflect that we have received written testimony

from John Nixon. That's Nancy, Ignatius, x-ray,

orange, Nancy. And this gentleman is the president

of Lima City Council.

I'd like to ask counsel, may we receive

this without reading it into the record just in

written form?

Counsel is indicating that that's fine.

So the record will reflect we have received that.

Our next *.7itness is --T'd like, for the

record, to note the presence of Tricia Bell from

WLIO TV and, also, Lou Wilin from The Courier, a

staff writer. So welcome members of the Board and

State to these proceedings. Do either of them wish

-- okay.

Are there any`dther witnesses:th^t

24

25

to come before the Board this morning?

I see that we should also probably note

for the record that State Senator Keith Faber is
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present and the chair has not noted previously,

State Representative Matt Huffman is also present

today. We welcome those members of the

legislation.

Seeing that there are no other

witnesses, we stand adjourned until our next

regional hearing at the University of Toledo this

afternoon from 3:30 to 5:30 p.m. The address up

there is 2225 Nebraska Avenue.

Thank you all for being here.today.

(Thereupon, the hearing was adjourned at

10:32 a.m.)

25
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STATE OF OHIO

COUNTY OF LORAIN.

CERTIFICATE

I do certify that the foregoing is a true

and correct transcript of the proceedings taken by

me in this matter on Monday, August 22, 2011, and

carefully compared with my original stenographic

notes.

Laurel M. Keller, RPR
Registered Professional Reporter

and Notary Public within and for

the State of Ohio.
My commission expires 12/11/10.
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ARTICLE XI: APYURTibWMENT

REPEALEA WHAT OFFICERS MAY BE REMOVED.

§6

RBPEALED. LocAL TAXATlON.

§7

ARTicLE M:APPORTIONMENT

(1851, rep. 1933)

(1851, rep. 1933)

tion of the state as detemilned by the federal decennial
census or, if such is unavailable, such other basis as
the General Assembly may direct, shall be divided by
the number'°thirty-three" and the quotient shall be the
ratio of representation in the Senate for ten years next
.succeeding such apportionment

(1967)

POPULATION OF BAQI HOUSE OF REPRESENTATHIE'S

DL4TRICr.

§3 The population of each House of Representatives

district shall be substantially equal to the ratio of rep-
resentation in the House of Representatives, as provid-
ed in section 2 of this Article, and in no event shall any
House of Representatives district contain a population
of less than ninety-five per cent nor more than one
hundred five per cent of ehe ratio of representation in
the House of Representatives, except in those instanc-
es where reasonable effort is made to avoid dividing a
county in accordance with section 9 of this Atticle.

(1967)

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE FOR APPOR77ONDfE'NT OF STATE FOR

dlFshfBERS OF GENERAL ASSEbfBLE

§1 The govemor, auditor of state, secretary of state,
one person chosen by the speaker ofthe House ofRep-
iesentatives and the leader in the Senate of the political
party of which the speaker is a member, and one per
son chosen by the legislative leaders in the two houses
of the major political party of which the speaker is not
a member shall be the persons responsible for the ap-
portionnrent of this state for members of the gener•al
assembly.

Such persons, or a majority of their number, shall meet
and establisb in the manner prescribed in this Article
the boundaries for each of ninety-nine House of Rep-
resentative districts and thirty-three Senate districts.
Sucb meeting shall convene on a date designated by
the govemor between August 1 and October 1 in the
year one thousand nine hundred seventy-one and ev-
ery tenth year thereafter. The govemor shall give such
persons two weeks advance notice of the date, time,
and place of such meeting.

The govemor shall cause the apportionment to be pub-
lished no later than October 5 of the year in wbich it is
made, in such manner as provided by law.

(1967)

RATIO OF REPRESENTATION IN HOUSE AND SENATE.

§2 The apportionment of this state for members of

the General Assembly shall be made in the following
manner The whole population of the state, as deter-
mined by the fedeml decennial census or, if such is
unavailable,. speb otherbasss a,c the Ge_ngral ASSembly
may direct, shall be dividedby t6e nuin er icty-
nine" and the quotient shall be the ratio of representa-
tion in the House of Representatives for ten years next
succeeding such apportionment. The who]e popula-

POPULATION A' EACH SENATE DLSTRICF.

§4 The population of each Senate district sbal] be
substantially equal to the ratio of representation in the
Senate, as provided in section 2 of this Article, and
in no event shall any Senate district contain a popula-
tion of less than ninety-five per cent nor more than one
hundred five per cent of the ratio of representation in
the senate as detennined pursuant to this Article.

(1967)

REPRESENnI7rON FOR EACH HOUSE AND SENATB DISTRICF.

§5 Each House of Representatives district sliall be

entitled to a single representative in each General

Assembly. Every Senate district shall be entitled to a

single senator in each General Assembly.
(1967)

CREAr7ON OF DISTNCT BOUNDARIESJ CHANGE AT END OF

DECENN/AL PERIOD.

§6 District boundaries established pursuant to this
Article shall not be changed until the ensuing fedetal
decennial census and the ensuingapportionmentnr,as_^
provided in section 13 of this Article, notwithstand-
ing the fact that boundaries of political subdivisions or
city.wards within tbe district may be cbanged during
that time. District boundaries shall be created by using

THE CONST1TU71ON OF THE STATE OF OHIO



ARTTCLE XI: APPORTIONMENT

the boundaries of political subdivisionsind city wards
as they exist at the time of the federal decennial census
on which the apportionment is based, or such other
basis as the General Assembly has d'veoted.

(1967)

REPEALEA PROI7DED ADDLTlONAL SENATORS FOR

DISTRICTS W/TE A RATIO OF REPRRSENTATION (+'REA7ER

rNAN ONE.

§6a
(1956, rep. 1967)

BOUNDARPLINESOFHOUSEOFREPRESENTATLVES

DJSTRIC75:

§7 (A) Every House of Representatives district shall
be compact and composed of contiguous tenitory, and
the boundary of each district shall be a single non-
intersecting continuous line. To the extent consistent
with the requirements of section 3 of this Article, the
boundary lines of districts shall be so drawn as to de-
lineate an area containing one or more whole
counties.

(B) Where the requirements of section 3 of this Article
cannot feasibly be attained by fonning a district from a
whole county or counties, such district shall be formed
by combining the areas of governmental units giving
preference in the order named to counties, townships,
municipalities, and city wards.

(C) Where the requirements of section 3 of this Article
cannot feasibly be attained by combining the areas of
gove:,.mental units as prescribed in divisio.n. (B) of
this section, only one such unit may be divided be-
tween two districts, giving preference in the selection
of a unit for division to a township, a city ward, a city,
and a village in the order named.

tation. Any fiaction of the population in excess of a
whole ratio shall be a part of only one adjoining House
of Representatives district.

The number of whole ratios of representation for a
county shall be determined by dividing the popula-
tion of the county by the ratio of representation for the
House of Representatives determined under section 2
of this Article.

(1967)

WIIEN POPULATTON OF COUNTY L4 FRAC7TON OF RATTO OF

REPRESENT.IT7ON.

§9In those instances where the population of a coun-
ty is not less than ninety percent nor more than one
hundred ten perccnt of the ratio of representation in
the House of Representatives, reasonable effort shall
be made to cn:ate a House of Representatives district
consisting of the whole county.

(1967)

DN1SlON OF STATE IN7n EOUSE DIS771IC7S; STANDARD&

§ 10 The standards prescribed in sections 3, 7; 8, and 9
of this Article shall govem the establishment of House
ofRepresentatives districts, which shallbe created and
numbered in the following order to the extent that such
order is consistent with the fnregoing standards:

(A) Each county containing population substantially

equal to one ratio of representation in the House of

Representatives, as provided in section 2 of this Ar- .

ticle, but in noevent less than ninety-five per cent of
fheratignnrrnere fha_nonr}mn_Ielfivepercentoffite

ratio shall be designated a representative district.

(B) Each county containing population between nine-
ty and ninety-five percent of the ratio or between one
hundred five and one hundred ten per cent of the ratio

(D) ln malting a new apporlionment, district boundar- may be designated a representative district

ies established by the preceding apportionment sball - (C) Proceeding in succession from the largest to the
be adopted to the extent reasonably consistent with the smallest, each remaining county containing more than

requirements of section 3 of this Article. one whole ratio of representation sball be divided into
(1967) House of Representatives districts. Any remaining ter-

ritory within such county containing a fraction of one
DErERMDVArrON OF NUMBER OFgOr1SE OF whole ratio of representation sball be included in one

BRPRESENTArrvFS DLrrRicDC WLrare.-Far.aa C.pWffe- _-tipresentative district by combining it with adjoining
§8 A county having at least one House of Representa- territory outside the county.
tives ratio of representation shall have as many House
of Representatives districts wholly within the bound-
aries of the county as it has whole iatios of represen-

(D) The remaining territory of the state shall be com-
bined imo representative districts.

(1967)



ARTICLE XI: APPORTIONMENT

SENATE DISTRJCTSJ FORMATIOA:

§11 Senate districts shall becomposed of three con-
tiguous House of Representatives districts. A county
having at least one whole Senate mtio of representa-
tion shall have as many Senate districts wholly within
the boundaries of the coanty as it has whole Senate
ratios of representation. Any fraction of the popula-
tion in excess of a whole ratio sball be a part ofanly
one adjoining Senate district Counties having less
than one Senate ratio of representation, but at least one
House of Representatives ratio of representation shall
be part of only one Senate district. . ,

The number of whole ratios of representation for a
county shall be determined by dividing the population
of the county by the ratio of representation in the Sen-
ate detem»ned under section 2 of this Article.

Senate districts shall be numbered from one through
thirty-three and as provided in section 12 of this
Article.

(1967)

TFRM OF SENATORS ON CIIANOE OF DlSTRICT BOUNDARLES

OF SENATE.

§12 At any time the boundaries of Senate districts are
changed in any plan of apportionment made pursuant
to any provision of this Arlicle, a senator whose tenn
will not expire within two years of the time the plan of
apportionment is made shall represent, for the remain-
der of the term for which he was elected, the Senate
district which contains the latgest portion of the popu-
lation of the district from which he was elected, and
the district shall be given thenumber of the district
fmm which the senator was elected. If more than one
senator whose term will not so expire would tepresent
the same district by following the provisions of this
section, the persons responsible for apportiomnent,
by a majority of their number, shall designate which
senator shall represent the district and sball designate
which district the other senator or senators shall repre-
sent for the balance of their term or terms.

(1967)

.IURISDICTJON OF SUPREME COURT, EFFECT

. OFAET^dBR^SkN.4'/S9M Od^Lf•.'La-;A'^'-rFL^TJ_ONALfTPj

APPORTJONMENT.-

§ 13 The Supreme Court of Ohio shall have exclusive,
original jurisdictionin all cases arising under this Ar-

ticle. In the event that any section of this constitution

relating to apportionment or any plan of apportion-
ment made by the persons responsible for appottion-
ment, by a majority of their number, is determined to
be invalid by either the Supreme Court of Ohio, or
the Supreme Court of the United States, then notwith-
standing any other provisions of this constitution, the
persons responsible for apportionment by a majority
of their number shall ascertain and detennine a plan
of apportiontnent in confotntity with such provisions
of this constitution as are then valid, including estab-
lishing terms of office and election of inembers of the
General Assembly from districts designated in the
plan, to be used until the next regular apportionment
in conformity with such provisions of this constitution
as are then valid.

Notwithstanding any provision of this constitution or
any law regarding the residence of senators and rep-
resentatives, a plan of appordonment made pursuant
to this section shall allow thirty days for persons to
change residence in order to be eligible for election.
The govemor shall give the persons responsible for
apportionment two weeks advance written notice of
the date, time, and place of any meeting held pursuant
to this section.

(1967)

CONTlNUATION OF PRESENT DISTRICT BOUNDAR7ES

§14 The boundaries of House of Representatives
districts and Senate districts from which representa-
tives and senators were elected to the 107th General
Assembly shall be the boundaries of House of Repre-
sentatives and Senate districts until January 1, 1973,
and representatives and senators elected in the gen-
etal election in 1966 shall hold office for the terms to
which they were elected. In the event all or anypart
of this apportionment plan is held invalid prior to the
general election in the year 1970, the persons respon-
sible for apportionment by a majority of their number
shall ascertain and determine a plan of apportionment
to be effective until January 1, 1973, in accordance
with section 13 of this Article.

(1967)

,. _ 66 THE CONSTTCOTION OF THE STrtTE-oF OHio



ACTION: Internal Iylan.agement

011-1-09 Apportionment plans.

DATE: 08/05/2011 10:17 AM

Any person or organization may submit for the consideration of the t>Tpeiztieaffieat
$eer&.pportionment board a detailed plan for the apportionment of the members of the
Ohio Ge"erfA -4esea^}ygeneral assemblv.

Apportionment plans submitted to the ReaFftard for consideration should be complete
for the entire Statestate, with legal definitions and visual ^resentations of the proposed
boundaries. Partial apportionment plans which propose minority districts need not be
complete for the entire $tatestate, but should include legal definitions and visual
Lepresentations of the nronosed boundaries of adjeeeat all districts in the countyor
counties which would contain the progosed nrinoritv districts .

The AMeAienmeatBeafftportionment board shall only consider those plans submitted
to the geer•etafysecre of the $eerdboard prior to 9:ootwelve a.m: n.m. on September
2423 299I2011.

Plans submitted to the Bowdboard for consideration shall be submitted to the secretary of
the $eardboard at the office of the Ohio house clerk on the second floor of the Ohio
statehouse, Columbus Ohio 43215 address speeified in -'a° ^11 1 01 of «L,.

Ten paper copies and one electronicallv-stored conv of le a
definitions and visual renresentations for each plan shall be submitted, in ad"este the

effeR+8 FAffirW se
tA t GD DL ^ ^:-1^ with an2-^$II ^^299 - tl - .] by

L C1....-„a.....

r r L^ ..AA-......' ___ 1- 1111 1 ht the

The Secretary of the Board shall deliver promptly, but in no event.
later than 12e98five p.m. September 2323 49012011, to the 1vIembersmembers of the
,4ggeFEienmeat 13ear^wortionment board one copy of each plan submitted and shall
retain the remaining copies for review by the public at a place,, ef places. or website
designated by the Bsafdboard.
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Adopting General
Assembly and
Congressional Districts*
PREP9RED BP: LYNDA J. JAcoBsEN, LSC STAFPA77YJRNEY

REviEwEDBY.• MrcrrAEL BuRras, LSC DtvlsroN CN1EF

In Ohio, General Assembly and Congressional districts are adopted using
different procedures. This informational brief describes the timelines and
procedures for adopting district plans for both.

The Apportionment Board adopts General Assembly districts, and is
constitutionally required to adopt those districts between August 1 and
October 1, 2011. Congressional districts, which are adopted by the General
Assembly, are on a different timeline. Those districts must be adopted prior
to February 8, 2012, which is the deadline to file candidacy paperwork for
the May 2012 primary election.

General Assemblv districts

Persons responsible

Article XI of the Ohio Constitution specifies the process for adopting
General Assembly districts. According to Section 1 of that Article, the
following persons are responsible for apportioning Ohio for members of the
General Assembly:

• The Governor;
• The Auditor of State;
• The Secretary of State;

-^bne person chosen b3rthe Speaker of the House of lFepresent^taves
and the leader in the Senate of the political party of which the Speaker of the
House is a member;

Volume 129lssrie 1- Revised
July 15, 2011

The Ohio Constitution
designatesfrve
officials, commonly
referred to as the

Apportionment Board,
to estab'liah Gerseral
Assembly districts.

* This Members Only brief is an update of an earlier brief on this subject dated

December 21, 2010 (Volume 128 Issue 14).



Congressional Districts
Members Only brief
Yol. 129 Issue 1 - Revised

Once General Assembly
district boundaries
are established, they
generally cannot be
changed until the next
census and the ensuing
apportionment.

July 15, 2011

• One person chosen by the
legislative leaders in the two houses
of the major political party of which
the Speaker of the House is not a
member.

These persons, or a majority
of them, are required to meet and
establish boundaries for the 99 House
districts and 33 Senate districts.'
Together, they are commonly referred
to as the Apportionment Board.

Tmelinesfor adopting General
Assembly districtingplans

The Apportionment Board
is required to meet and establish
General Assembly districts on a
date designated by the Governor
between August 1 and October 1
in each year ending in the numeral
"1." The Governor must give the
Board members two weeks' advance
notice of the date, time, and place of
the meeting. The General Assembly
district plan must be published no
later than October 5 of ti:e year ia
which it is made.Z

Generally, once district bound-
aries are established, they cannot
be changed until the next federal
decennial census and the ensuing
apportionment. However, there is one
exception. If the Ohio Supreme Court
or the U.S. Supreme Court invalidates
the General Assembly district plan,
the Apportionment;$oard must meet
to determine a new district plan using
the provisions of Article XI that
remain effective. The Governor must
give the Board members two weeks'
advance written notice of the date,
time, and place of that meeting'

Criteria for GeneralAssembly
districting

The Obio Constitution establishes
various requirements that General
Assembly district plans must
meet. Orle requirement deals with
population equality between districts.
Population equality is based on the
"ratio of representation." The ratio
of representation is determined by
dividing the population of the state
by 99 for House districts, and by 33
for Senate districts. The population
of each district generally must be
between 95% and 105% of the
applicable ratio of representation.
If a county contains a population
of between 90% and 110% of the
ratio of representation for the House,
reasonable effort must be made to
create a House district consisting of
the whole county..

In addition to population equality,
General Assembly district plans must

meet other criteria. House districts
m,,,,g4 l.e compact anLl Gnmposed of

contiguous territory, and the boundary
of each district must be a single,
nonintersecting, continuous line.
Where possible, the districts must
be composed of whole counties.
Where districts cannot meet the
other requirements and be composed
of whole counties, they must be
drawn so as to keep govermuent units
who 1e, , giv4P_&vrefcrMr^, -W- nrdq,
to counties; townships, municipal
corporations, and city wards."

Senate districts must be composed
of three contiguous House districts.
A county with at least one whole
Senate ratio of representation must F
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have as many Senate districts wholly
within its borders as it has whole
Senate ratios of representation. The
population of the districts must be
between 95% and 105% of the Senate
ratio of representation s

In addition to these specific
criteria, the U.S. Supreme Court has
stated that the Equal Protection Clause
of the Fourteenth Amendment to the
U.S. Constitution applies to both
Congressional and state legislative
districting plans. Although state
legislative plans may have a wider
population variance between districts
than Congressional plans, the districts
still must have substantial equality of
population.b

purpose of adopting district plans!
Constitutionally, a majority of the
entire Board, not just a majority of
the quorum, is required to adopt a
district plan.

Because each new Apportionment
Board adopts it own rules, the
processes set forth in the 2001
rules may or may not be used in the
future.

Theprocessfor
adopting a General
Assembly district
plan varies with
each Apportionment
Board, depending on
the rules adopted by
the Board

Processfor establishing General
Assembly districtingplans

In the past, the Apportionment
Board has established rules for its
operation and for the submission of
potential district plans by members
of the pubiic. OnAugust 3, 2001, for
example, the Apportionment Board
filed rules specifying the process by
which the 2001 General Assembly
plans would be considered and
adopted. The rales required the Board
to conduct its meetings in accordance
with the Open Meetings (Sunshine)
Act, provided for submission of
proposed plans by members of the
public,' an'd estalzlished-fiimes for
public comment on proposed plans.
A majority of the Board constituted
a quorum, and a majority of the
quorum generally could act on the

^ Board's behalf, other than for the

Congressional districts

Persons responsible

The U.S. Constitution requires
Congressional representatives to be
apportioned according to the number
of persons in each state.g It does not
specify how districts must be drawn.
In Ohio, Congressional district plans
are enacted by the General Assembly
and codified in section 3521.01 of the

Revised Code.

T Fmelinesfor adopting
Congressional districtingplans

The federal census detemiines the

population as of April 1, in each year
ending in the numerral "0." Within one
week after the opening of Congress

the following year, the President
must report the census counts,

and the number of Congressional

representadyqs-tp ?tpch ceeh-stste
is. entitled, to the Clerk of the U.S.
House of Representatives. And
within 15 days after receiving that

information, the Clerk must notify

each state governor of the number

In Ohio,
Congressional district
plans are enacted by
the General Assembly
and codhed in the
Revised Code.



Under cement law,
the filing deadline
for the 2012 Ohio
primary election is
Febntary 8, 2012.
The Congressional
distri cting plan. will need
to be enacted before that
date.
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of representatives to which the
govemor's state is entitled.9

The detailed census reports, which
identify the number ofpeople living in
each census block, block group, and
tract, mustbe releasedbyApril 1 of the
year after the census is taken. Those
reports, along with the apportionment
determination delivered by the Clerk
of the U.S. House, form the basis for
Congressional redistricting.10

There is no statutory deadline
for completion of Congressional
redistricting. Instead, the filing
deadline for nominations for the office
of Congressional representative in the
year after census data is released
serves as the practical deadline.
Because candidates are nominated in
the district in which they are seeking
election, the districts must be drawn
prior to the filing deadline for the
primary election at which candidates
will seek nomination. The General
Assembly therefore generally enacts
the Congressional districting plan
between April i of the year ending in
the numeral "1" (when census data is
officially released) and the primary
filing deadline for the following
year.

For example, the 2000 census
figures were released in March
2001.11 The first election required to
be conducted using those figures was
the May 7, 2002, primary election.

plan. The bill enacting those districts
was an emergency measure that
passed the General Assembly on
January 23, 2002, and took effect
January 24, 2002.12

The timeline will be similar for
2012. The 2012 primary election
will be held on May 8.13 The filing
deadline for that election will be 90
days before the day of the primary
election,14 which will be February
8, 2012. Thus, the Congressional
districtmg plan will need to be enacted
prior to February 8, 2012, to allow
candidates time to obtain signatures
and file their candidacy petitions on
that date.

Redrawing Congressional districts
between censuses

It is not entirely clear under what
circumstances a state may redraw
Congressional districts between
censuses. Plans must be redrawn if
a districting plan is determined to
be unEOnstitatit7nSi. And in2v^^vv`,

the U.S. Supreme Court permitted
the Texas Legislature to redraw,
in the middle of the decade, a
districting plan that had been adopted
by a federal court.15 The Supreme
Court did not determine, however,
whether a legislature may draw a
new redistricting plan mid-decade
if the prior plan was adopted by the
nslatrrrjcr^-= Thv-y_ it gs uncertainAfter the. release of the censius data -A

in March 2001, the General Assembly . wliether states may redraw their own
had until the February 21, 2002, filing legislatively enacted plans prior to the
deadline for the 2002 primary election next census.
to enact a Congressional districting

July 15, 2011
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Criteria for Congressional
districting

The U.S. Constitution does
not set forth specific criteria that
Congressional districts are required
to meet. However, the U.S. Supreme
Court has identified various criteria
that districts must meet in order
to fulfill the requirements of the
Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments
to the U.S. Constitution. Additionally,
statutory requirements, such as
applicable provisions of the Voting
Rights Act of 1965, must be met.

Congressional districts must be
as equal in population as practicable.
Unlike General Assembly districts,
which may vary in population by up to
5% above or below the ideal population,
Congressional districts must be as
equal as possible. The Supreme Court
has required that "absolute population
equality be the paramount objective
of apportionment" in establishing
Congressional districts.'b

in addition to stt̀ict popiiiatiou

equality, Congressional districts also
must meet statutory requirements
arising from the Voting Rights Act of
1965." Depending upon the particular
state, different parts of that act may
apply. Section 2 of the act applies
to all jurisdictions. It prohibits any
state or political subdivision from
imposing a voting. qualification or a

language minority group. Under this
section, Congressional districting
plans cannot dilute the voting strength
of certain minorities. Some practices
that have been questioned under the
section include multimember districts,
the packing of minority voters into a
limited number of districts, and the
fracturing ofminority voting strength
by dividing minority voters into a
large number of districts.'B After a
Congressional redistricting plan is
established, it is often challenged
on Section 2 grounds. As a result,
federal courts often determine whether
Congressional redistricting plans
meet the requirements of the Voting
Rights Act

Courts have recognized several
policies or goals as traditional
redistricting principles. These
principles include:"

• Compactness;
• Contiguity;
• Preservation of political

subdivisions;
- P.-eSe:zvauou of commmties

of interest;
• Preservation of cores of prior

districts;
• Protection of incumbents;

and
• Compliance with Section 2 of

the Voting Rights Act
The persons responsible for

drawing Congressional district maps
standard, practice, or procedure, that-^4^term^neq 1^ch ,of these principles
results in a denial or abridgment of will-be considered; and how much
the right to vote on account of race, consideration each will receive, in
color, or status as a member of a establishing the districts.

Congressional
districts must be as
equal in population
as practicable.
Congressional
districts also must
satisfy requirements
of the Voting Rights
Act of 1965.

Courts have
recognized seven
policies or _izoals
as traditional
redistricting
principles, including
compactness,
contiguity, and
preservation of
communities of
interest.

5
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Process for adopting Congressional
districts

Although some states have enacted
a statutory process for adopting
Congressional district plans, such
as having those districts determined
by a board or commission, nothing
in Ohio law specifies a particular
process for adopting Congressional
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districts. Traditionally, those districts
have been adopted by statutory
enactment of the General Assembly.
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Delaware

2010 Pop. Abs Dev- RelOev. 2010 VAP %of Pop
174.214 57.684 49.50% 123,710 71.0%

Wht BIk Hsp nd Mn P. O01 M9T
2010P0P 88.4 3.3 2.1 ' 0.1 4.2 0-0 0.1 1.7
2U1nVAP 89.8' 3.2 1.7 0.1 4.1 0.0 D-1 0.9

1 Newbold, Craig (R) Columbiana

2010 Pnp. Abs Dev. Rel Dav. 2010 VAP %of Pop
107,941 -8,689 -7.46% 84,257 78.1%

Wbt Bik Hsp Ind Asn. Pae 01h MRT

2070POp 94.9 2.2 1.3 02 0.3 0.0 0.1 1.2
2mOVAP 95.3 2.3 1-2 0-2 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.7

2 Brenner, Andrew (R)

3 Amstutt, Ron (R)

^ Wht Blk fkP rM Asn Pac . Otll MRT

2010PaP 94.7 1.5 1.6 0.1 0.8 0.0 0.1 1.3
2010VAP 95.5' 1.4 1.3 0.1 0.8 0.0 0.1 . 0.8

4 Huffman, Maft (R)

Whl Blk Hsp Ind Mn Pao Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
2010 Pop 82.5 11.8 2.4 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.3 2.3
2010 VAP 85.0' 11.0 1.9 02 0.7 0.0 0.1 1.1 0-4 0-1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1

-_: 2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev:
93,568 -22,962-19.71% 73,002 78.0%

Whl Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pao Oth MHT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 37.5 55.0 1.8 0.2 3.4 0.0 0.2 2.0
2010 VAP 39.9 52.6 1.7 0.2 4.0 0.0 0.2 1.5 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.2

POIIDATA (R) Demog2phlc and PdiOcal Guides. AII Rigbts Reserved. Copydght (c) 2011. Pogdata. www.po5dafa.on]
1. Population for 2010 fmm PL9i-17/ RedisWding Dale Irom U.S.Bureau of the Censos.2000 Census data from various soumes. Strte populatlon:11,536.504, 99 membeR, itleal is 118,530.
2. Pie Charts give a rough approwumatlon of rhe devkr9on from the 2010 Ideal Population for the cunent dlstdcL The overall srse of each pie is scaled to Ihe ideal pepulation for this district type-

3. A Grey ple, ar a White slice, indicatas a posAive deviation (ealm populaflon): A Whire pie, or a Grey sfce, indicates s negative deviatlon (shod populalion).

4. Raolal breaks ara for RacelHispanic Origin Combinatlon. MRT is Multi-Racial Tntal persons. The sum of these, aside from munrOng, should be 100 pement.' for pretlominant group.

5 Stebelton, Gemld (R)

6 Gardner, Randy (R)

I
7 Yuko, Kenny (0)

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
114,520 -2,010 -1.73%

2010 Pop. Abs Dev.. Rel Dev.
106,331 -10,199 -8.75%

2010 PoP. Abs Oev- Rel Dev-
146,156 29,628 25.42%

age .

Wayne
2010 VAP %ol Pop

B5,375 74.6%

Allen
2010 VAP %of Pop

80,886 78.1%

Fairfield
2010VAP %ofPap
107,747 73.7%

WM Blk Hsp IrM Asn Pac Oth MRr WB WI WA WP WO 91

2DID Pop 89.2 5.9 1.7 0.2 1.1 0.0 0.1 1.7
2o1UVAP 91.1' 5.3 1.4 0.2 1.0 0.0 0.1 1.0 0.2 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0

21U Pop. Abs Dev. Ral Dev.
125,488 8,958 7.69%

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pao Olh MRT

2010 Pop 90.1 2.3 4.5 0.2 1.5 0.0 0.1 1.3
201oVAP 91.3' 2.5 3.6 0.2 1.5 0.0 0.1 0-9

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
102,553 -13,977 -11.99%

Wood
2of0VAP %oiPPp

98,213 78.3%

Guyal.og3'

2010VAP %of Pop
79,079 77.1%

Wht BIk Hsp nd Asn Pae Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 42.6 522 1.7 0.2 12 0-0 0.2 1.9

2010VAP 47.9' 47.9 1.4 0.1 - 1.3 0.0 0.1 1.2 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2

8 Budish, Armond (D) Cuyahoga*
2010 PoP. Abs Dev. Rel Dev. 2010 VAP %01 Pop

104,966 -11,564 -9.92% 60,454 76.6%

Wht Blk Hsp nd Asn Pac ON MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

G 2010 Pop 36.2 57.1 1.8 0.1 2.8 0.0 02 1.8 ' . ..
2010VAP 38.1 56.1 ` 1.5 . 0.1 21 0.0 0.1 1.2 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2 .

IaeyIXOEV-pepktll2-kr9e1 . . . . ^ .. . .. . ^ _ ^ . .

5. Adtlitional breaks areNcluded it MRT Is over 1%. White-Black, White-Am.intlian, While-Asien, WhHe-PaciOq, Wh6e-Otherand Blerk-Am.indlan.
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10 Patmon, Bill (D)

11 Williams, Sandra (D)

=V^^

12 Barnes, John, Jr. (D)

13 Antonio. Nickie(D)

' WM Blk FLSp Ind Asn Pae OdM MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
2010 POp 87.5 14.3 -13.2 0.3 1.9 0.0 0.3 2.5
2010 VAP 72.3' 12.7 10.9 0.3 1.9 0.0 02 1.6 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1

14 Foley, Mike (D)

Redistricting Handbook for OHIO
District Populations for STATE HOUSE

. - - ' . Ctryahoga`

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Ret Dev. 2010 VAP %of Pop
92,627 -23,903 -2051% 71,348 77.0%

Wltt BD: H¢p Ind Mn P. Dlh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2D10 Pop 329 47.4 14.8 0.3 2.6 0.0 0.2 1.9
201uVAP 37.0 45.4' 12.8 0.3 3.0 - 0:0 0.2 1.3 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2

2010 Pop. - Abs Dav. Rel Dsv.
94,163 -22,367 -19.19%

Cuyahoga'
2010 VAP %of Pop

68,241 72.5%

WM BIk Hsp Ind Asn Pac OUr MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2070 Pop 33.9 57.1 5.7 02 1.3 0.0 0.1 1.7
2010 VAP 39.3 52.7' 4.8 D.2 1.6 0.0 0.1 1.3 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 02

' 2010 Pop. A0s Dev. Rel Dev.
98,837 -17,693 -15.18%

Wht Blk Hsp Irrtl Asn Pac ON M1RT

2010 Pop 25.1 70.9 1.4 0.2 0.7 00 0.1 1.5

2010 VAP 28.3 68.6 1.1 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.1 1.0

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. RelOev.
99.462 -17,068 -14.65%

Cuyahoga'

2p1U Pop. AbsDev. ReI Dev. - 201U VAP % 01 Pop-

103,628 -12,902 -11.07% 80,578 77.8%

WM Bik Hsp Ind Asn Pae Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pap 74.6 11.0 9.6 0.2 2.4 0.0 0.1 2.0
zmOVAP 79.0' 9.6 7.6 0.2 2.4 0.0 0.1 1.1 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1

15 - DeGeeter, Timothy (D)
. . . Cuyahoga'

201DPoR ARSDav. RelDev. 2010VAP %ofPOp
708,895 -7,635 -6.55% 87,241 80.1%

WM Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pac 08, MRf
2010 Pap 69.4 2.4 4.1 0.1 2.6 0.0 0.1 1.2
2010VAP 91.2' 2.2 3.2 0.1 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.7

16 Baker, Nan (R)
Duyahrya'

2010POp. AbsDev. RelDev. 2010VAP %otPop
1.18,044 1,514 1.30% - - ' 92,308 78.2%

WM Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pac Oth MRT

2010P0p 91.7 1.4 2.6 0.1 2.7 0.0 0.1 1.2

2010 VAP 92.8 1.4 2.2 0.1 2.7 0.0 0.1 0.7

2010 Pcp. Abs D. Rel Dev. -

Cuyahoga'
2010VAP %OtPep

74,557 75.4%

WB WI WA WP WO BI

0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2

Cuyahoga'
2010VAP %ofPOp

77,101 77.5%

Cuyahoga'
201UVAP %ofPap

96,693 77.5%

2010 VAP % of Pop
91,397 76.2%

POLIDATA (R) Damo9rapltic and PolDicai Guides. All RIOh(S Reserved. Copydpht (c) 2011. Polidala v,ww.pofidaiaorg - .. . ^ .
1. Populafion for20f0 from P194-171 Redsaictin9 Data fmm U.S. Bureau of the Census.20D0 Census data fromvarious sources. State populatiom 11,536,504, 99 mem0ers, iaeal 1.116,530.

2. PIe Charts give a rou9h approvmalbn W me deviation tmm lhe 20101dsal PoPulaOon forthe cunenr disidct. The ovetsll siie of each pia is scek:d to me Ideal populatian for ihis dislrzttype. -

3. A Grey pie, or a Whlle slice,Indicates a posl0ve deviaGOn (exlr8 popula4on). A White pie, or a Gmy slice; In6cates a negatrve deviaEOn (short population).

4. Racial brezks are Im Race/Hspanic Onpin Comb'maYon. MRT is Multl-Raclal Total persons. The sum of these. aside from raundin9, should be 100 pen:ent'tor pre0omtnardgraup.

5. AGdMOnel breaks are incWded if MRT is aver 1% WMte-Black. White-Am.Ihdian, Whits--Asian, Whim-Pedfic, Whlte-Other snd B'ack-Am.lndlan.

2010Pdp. 'AbsDev. RelDev.
116,917 387 0.33%

Wht Blk Hsp InQ -ASn Pae Om MRT
2010Pop 91.1 2.4 2.2 0.1 2.8 0.0 0.1 1.3

2010VAP 92.2` 2.3 1.8 0.1 2.7 0.0 0.1 0.8

124,619 8,089 6.94%

Wnt Blk Nsp Ind Asn Pae Orh MRT

2010Pop 86.0 6.7 1.5 0.1 4.5 0-0 0.1 12

2010VAP 87.6* 621.2 0.1 4.1 0.0 0.1 0.7

18 Dovilta, Mike (R)
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19 Gonmles,Anne(R) . , . Franklin'
- - 201DPOp. AbsDev. Re1Dev. 2D10VAP %olPap

157,070 40,540 34.79% 115,646 73.6%
_....

Wht BlkHap Ind Asn Pac 01h MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

1

2010 Pop 71.2 205 3.0 0.2 2.1 0.0 0.2 2.7

2010VAP 75.6' 18.0 2.5 0.2 2.1 0.0 0.1 1.5 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1

20 Garland, Nancy (D)
Franklin'

201UPop. AbsOev. RelDev. 2DIUVAP %o1Pop
198 15,668 13.45% ' . - - 99,426 75.2%132 ,

- Wllt Blk Hap nd Mn Pae Olh MRT Wa WI WA WP WO BI

4p 2010 Pop 68.7 20.4 4.4 0.2 3.2 0.0 0.22.7
2010VAP 72.1' 19.1 3.7 0.2 3.2 0.0 0.1 1.5 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.2

21 Duf(ey, Mike (R)
Franklin'

2010Pap. AlnDev. RelDev. 2610VAP %ofPop
121293 4,763 4.09% 91,486 75.4%

Wllt Blk Hap nd Aen Pac Oth MRr WB WI WA WP WO BI
2010 Pop 62.8 22.4 6.9 0.2 4.8 0.0 0.3 2.6
2010 VAP 66.8' 20.4 5.9 0.2 4.8 0.0 0.2 1.8 015 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1

22 Camey, John Patrlck (D)
Franklin'

2010Pop. AbsDev. RtlOev. 2010VAP %ofPOp
125,989 9,459 8.12% 99,058 78.6%

Wht Blk Hsp nd Asn P. Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
2010 Pop 77.5 6.5 4.3 0.1 9.0 0.0 0.3 2.3
2010 VAP 80.3' 6.0 3.6 0.1 8.4 0.0 0.2 1.5 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0

23 Groesman, Cheryl (
R) FrankOn'

2010Pap. AbsOev. RelDev. 2010VAP %ofPop
135,650 19,120 16.41% 100,645 74.3%

WM Blk Hsp Ind Mn P. OON MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 84.3 4.5 5.1 02 3.6 0.1 0.1 2.1
2010 VAP 86.7' 4.1 _ 4.1 0.2 3.6 0.1 0.1 1.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1

24 Celeste, Ted (D)
Frankifn'

2010Pap. AbsDev. RelDev. 2010VAP %clPop
126,534 10,004 8.58% 96,417 762%.

Wht Bk Hsp Nd A. Pac Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 78.9 7.1 5.5 0.2 5.7 0.0 0.2 2.4

4D 20/OVAP 812- 6.4 4.6 0.2 6.0 0.0 0.1 1.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.1

25 Siinzieno. Michael (D)
Franklin'

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev. . . . 2010 VAP %of Pop

128,872 12,342 10.59% 98,722 76.6%

WhtBik Hsp Ind Asn Pac Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pap 75.1 13.8 5.5 0.3 2.4 0.1 02 2.7
2010VAP 79.2' 11.9 4.3 0.3 2.6 0.1 0.1 1.6 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1

28 Heard, Tracy (D)
Franklin'

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel 0m. 2010 VAP %oI Pop
115,974 -556 -0.48% 88,211 76.1%

O Wht Blk Hsp Ind Mn Pac ON MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 36.8 53.3 4.7 0.3 1.5 0.0 0.3 3.1
2D10 VAP 41.6 50.0' 4.0 0.3 1.7 0.0 0.2 2.2 0.8 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.3

-..iM1!?dd4ng:o!,i,W_Ca110u1(D)
2010POp. AGs Dev. Rel Dev.
119,834 . 3,304 2.84%

PrankOn'
:^-yAP %olPOp

95,DB1 79.3%

WM B1k Hsp Ind Asn Pac Clh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 44.0 45.9 4.1 0.3 2.7 0.1 0.2 2.7
2010 VAP 50.7' 40.2 3.4 0.3 3.2 0.1 0.2 1.9 0.6 0.3 0.3 0.0 D.0 0.3

POUDATA (R) DemogmPhic and Polifical Guides. All Rights Reserved. CopyriBM (c) 2011. Polidata mra.pofidatsorg -

/. Populafron for 2010 from P194171 Redstfic6n9 Data hom U.S. Bureau of Ne Census. 2000 Census data fmm various soumes. State population:11,536,504. 99 memben;, ideal B 116,530.

2. Pie Chada give a rnugh approamafion of the deviaGon from the 2010 Ideal Populatlan fOr the cuneM district The averall si¢e of each pie Is sceletl tn the ideal populallon forNls dislrlct lype

3. A Greypie, ora White srice, indicates a pos,tive deviation (eAra populalion). A WhiFe pie, or a Grey sgce, indicates a negaMeEeviagon (shod populatlon). - -

4. Rad21 bmaks are for RacelHispanic Otlgin Comb'ma0on. MRT Is Muhi-Raclal Total pelsons. The sum of these, aside han rounding, should be 100 percent.' for predominant 9roup.

5. Additional breaka we included if MRT is over 1%. WIJIe-Black, White-Am.lndien, White-Asian. Whde-Pacifc, White-0Iher and Blatlc-Am.lnrlan.

(sepomeV-walmllz-Ias01 . . . " , . .
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28 Piilich, Connie (D)

0
29 Blessing. Louis (R)

Redistricti ng Handbook for OHIO
District Populations for STATE HOUSE

2010 Pop. Abs Oev. Rel Dev.
109.005 -7,525 -6.46%

Hamilton`
2010VAP %alPOp

82,785 75.9%

Wht B& Hsp Ind Asn Pac OOM MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010Pap 62.3 26.2 4.8 0.1 4.0 0.1 0.3 2.3
2010 VAP 65.8' 24.7 4.0 0.1 3.9 0.1 0.2 1.2 0.3 0.2 02 0.0 0.0 0.1

2010 Pop. Ahs Dev. Ret Dev.
113.937 -2,593 -2.23%

^ . . Wht BOt Hsp nd Asn Pac Olh MRt- .. . WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pap 69.9 24.8 19 0.2 1.0 0.1 0.2 2.1
2010VAP 74.2' 22.0 1.4 0.2 1.1 0.1 0.1 1.0 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1

30 Mecldenborg, Bob (R)
2010 Pop. Abs D. ReI Dev.
114,509 -2,021 -1.73%

V . . Wht Blk Hap Ind Asn . Fsc Olh MRT

2010POp 95.7 1.8 0.9 0.1 0.9 0.0 0.1 1.0

2010VAP 98.0' 1.7 0.7 0.1 0.8 0.0 0.1 0.6

31 Driehaus. Denise (D)

.. ^'..,,.^^..-'.

32 Mallory, Dale (D)

33 Reece, Alfcia (D)

2010 Pop AES Dev. Rel Dev.
97,992 -18,538 -15.91%

Hamilton'
2010VAP %ofPpp

85,597 75.1%

Hamilton•
2p10 VAP %of Pop

87,026 76.0%

Hamilton'
2070 VAP %of Pop

70,816 72.3%

Wht BIk Hsp Ind Asn Pac 01h MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 55.4 37.3 3.6 0.2 0.7 0.1 0.2 2.4
2010VAP 81.3' 33.0 3.1 02 0.8 0.1 0.11.3 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 D.1

Hamilton•

2010Pop. AhsDbv. RelDev. 2010VAP %olPOp
103.395 -13,135 -11.27% 03,112 80.4°5

WM B4 Hsp nd Aan Pae Olh MRi WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 43.6 47.9 2.7 0.2 3.0 0.0 0.2 2.2
2010VAP 49.5• 42.6 2.4 0.2 35 0.0 0.2 1.6 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 02

HamiRan'

2010Pop. AbsDav. RelDev. 2010VAP %ofPOp
97,277 -19,259 -16.53% 76,377 7B.5%

WM - 61k Hvp nd ASn Pac Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

4 0.2 0.8 0.0 0.2 2.028 4944 5 .. . .2010POp
2010VAP 47.6 47.7 2.1 0.2 0.9 0.0 0.1 1.3 0.4 0.1 0.1 D.0 0.0 0.2

34 Steutberg,Peter(R)

0
35 Maag, Ron (R)

rI^
36

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
106,816 -9,714 -8.34%

Hamilton'
201U VAP %of Pop

82,755 77.5%

Whf BIkHsp nd Asn Pac Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 85.6 8.4 2.0 0.1 2.0 0.0 0.2 1.7
2010VAP 86.8 8.1 1.7 0.1 2.1 0.00.1 1.1 0.3030.30.00.00.1

2p10 Pop. Ahs D. Re? Dev.
128,703 12,173 10.45%

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pac Oth MRT

2010 Pop 90.0 2.8 2.3 0.1 32 0.0 0.2 1.4
201O VAP 91.0' 2.8 1.9 0.1 3.2 0.0 0.1 0.8

Hamilton'
2010 VAP %M Pop

.95,461 74.2%

.
- 2010VAP%olFrop

84,944, 76.4%

WM Bk Hsp nd Asn Pac OM MAT - WB VA WA WP WO BI -

4010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
111,134 -5,396 -4.63%

2010POp 86.3 8.3 1.8 0.2 1.4 0.0 0.1 2.0
2010VAP 88.3 7.6 1.3 0.2 1.4 0.0. 0.1 1.1 0.3 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1

POUDATA (R) Demog2phk and Politieal Guides. All Rights Reservetl. Copydght (c) 2011. Polidata www.poll0ata.or9

1. Populafion for2810 fmm PL94-171
RedisNcOng Dattafmm U.S. 8ureau of the Census.2000 Census data Imm vadous soumPS: State populafion:11,536.500. 89 members, itleal is 118,530.

2. Pie Chans give a rough approqmation of fhe devia5on fmn, the 20101dee1 Populatlanforthecunent diaVicl The overa0 size of each pie is scaled to me ideel population forfhie tlis[rim type.

3. A Grey pie, or a While slice, Indicates a posNVe deviation (eertra popula0on). A White pie, or a Gray slice, int0oates a negative deviation (short populatian).

4. Racial breaks am fnrRace/HlepanisOrigin CamMnafon. MRT is MulE-RaelalTotal persons. The sum ot these. aside hom rounding. should be 100 pemeM.' for pledominantgroly.

h' -0th E Black Amindianert n -W s e^5.Addilionalbreaksare includedifMFTIsover1%.White-Blask,Whita-Am.lndian.WhiteAVian,Whde-PadOc,
[390EW-PWSd2-K"
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37 Butler, Jim (R)

elair, Terry (R)

39 Luckie, Clayton (D)

40 Winburn, Roland (D)

41 Slaby, Lynn (R)

201UPOp.
114,471

Whl
2010 Pop 87.8
2010VAP 89.5'

- 2010POp.
111,167

WM
2010 POp 88.8
2010VAP 90.6'

2010 P.P.
92,594

Vyht
2010 Pop 45.6
2010 VAP 50.0'

2010 Pop.
105,787

WM
2010POp 48.7
2010 VAP 522'

2010 Pop.
126,531

WM
2010 Pup 84.6
2010 VAP 86A'

42 Roegner, Kris90a (
R) z010 Pop.

114,054

V WM

2o10 Pop 923
2D10 VAP 93.5'

43 McKenney.Tadd(R). '
2010Pap.
126,658

2010 Pop 95.2

4D

WM

2010VAP 96.0'

Sykes, Vemon (D)

5,-..Miliml(ich. Zack (D)

2010 Pop.
103.672

W01
2010 Pop 46.0
2010 VAP 50.7"

2010 Pop.
107,689

2otUPop 80.2
2010VAP 84.2`

Montgomery'
2010VAP %oIPOP

AbsDev. RnJDev. . . .
%

-2,059 -1.77% 88,502 77.3

61k- HsP nd Asn Pac ON MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

5.5 2.3 0.2 2.3 0.0 0.1 1.8
4.9 1.9 0.2 2.4 0.0 0.1 1.1. 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0

AbsDev. RelDev.

Montgomery'
2D70VAP %MPOp

-5,363 -4.60% 86,901 78.2%

6& ILSp Ind Asn P. OM MRT WB WI WA WP WD BI

3.7 2.3 0.2 2.9 0.0 0.1 1.9
3A 1.9 0.2 2.7 0.0 0.1 1.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0

D R4 D e -

Montgomery'
2010 VAP %of Pop

Ars w.
-23,936

.e

-20.54% 71,647 77.4%

Blk Hsp nd Aan Pac Ofh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

47.3 3.4 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.2 2.6
44.1 2.8 0.3 0.8 0.0 0.1 1.8 0.6 0.2 02 0.0 0.0 02

Ab D Rel Dw

Montgomery"
2010 VAP %of Pop

a w.
-10,743

.
-9.22% 79,880 75.5%

BIk Hap Ind Asn Pac Om MRT WB WI WA WP WO 61 .

45.1 2.0 0.2 1.1 0.0 0.2 2.6
43.1 1.6 0.2 1.1 0.0 0.1 1.6 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2

Abs Dw. Rel Dev.

Summtt'
2010 VAP %Of Pop

10.001 B.58% 98,047 77.5%

elk
8.8

HsP
1.3

nd
0.1

Acn
3.6

Pec
0.0

DM
0.1

MAT
1.5

8.3 1.1 0.1 3.3 0.0 0.1 0.8

Abs Dev. Rel Dev.

Summit'
2010 VAP %cf POp

569 76.8%87
-2,476 -2.13%

,

Blk HsP Ind Asn Pac 01h MRT

2.5 1.5 0.1 22 0.0 0.1 1.3
2.4 1.1 0.1 2.0 0.0 0.1 0.6

. . SummM

AbsDev. RelDev.
201DVAP %arPOp

%
10,128 8.69% 98,993 78.2

Blk
1.6

Hsp
0.9

Ind
02

Asn
0.8

Pac
0.0

Olh ,
0.1

MRT
1.2

1.4 0.7 0.2 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8

A5s Dw.
-12,858

Rd Dw.
-11.03%

Summn'
,201DVAP %WPOp

80,289 77.4%

Blk Hsp Ind Asn P. Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

45.2 2.7 02 2.6 0.0 0.3 3.1
42.1 23 0.2 2.6 0.0 0.2 1.9 0.7 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.3

Abs Dev.
-8,841

R01 Oev.
-7.59%

SummB'
^-- 2D1DVAP %ofPUp

81,822 76.0%

Blk Hsp nd Asn Pae Of0 MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

14.0 1.5 0.3 1.3 0.0 0.2 2.7

11.7 1.2 0.3 1.2 0.0 0.1 1.4 0.5 02 0.20.00.0 0.1

POUDATA (R) Demogmphle and Political Guidae AII Righls Reserved. CopytOht(c) 2011. Polidata. vmw.po6dataoq

1: Populs0on Ior2010 from PL94-171 Redistdetin9 Date fmm U.S. Bureau of the Census.2000 Census dah fmm varbus eaumea. BIa1e popWallon:11,538,504. 99 membem, itleal fs 116,530.

2. Pie Chads give a mugh approximafion of Ne devlaGon fmm ihe 20101desl Papulation for fhecunenl dlstrict. The over411 size ot each pie Is scaled lo the Ideal populeli0ql0rthls dislriol type.

3. A Greypie, ora Whue s0oe, inN ates a posdive daviedon (extra pOpulaDOn). A White pie, or a Grey slice, indicates a nega8vs devialion (short populaMOn).
4. Raclal breaks an: for Rsce/Hispanic Origin Combmation. MRT Is Multl-Racial Total persona. TfM sum 01 these, aside from munding, sh0uld be 100 pemenL' for predominant group.

`"'"'" A-'-. wnua.rrher and elack-Am.lndian.A5. AdOitlonal breaks are Included if MRT is over 1%. WhReBlack White-

p9pl%DEV-qePkEl24ff3J) ' . .

Wht -
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46 Sears, Berbara (R)

AlliNL
WM Bik Hap nd Asn Pao Oth MRT

2010 Pop BB.4 4.2 3.1 0.1 2.6 0.0 0.1 1.4
2D10VAP 90-2' 3.9 2.4 0.1 2.5 0.0 0.1 0.8

47 Fedor; Teresa (D)

Wht Blk Hap Ind Aan Pan- Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010POp 67.4 17.1 10.7 0.3 1.1 0.0 0.2 3.1
2D1uVAP 72.9' 15.6 8.3 0.3 12 0.0 0.1 1.6 0.6 0.2 02 0.0 0.0 0.1

48 Ashtor0, Mike(D)

Redistricting Handbook for OHIO
District Poputations for STATE HOUSE

2010 Pap. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
127,690 11,160 9.58%

2010 P.P. Ahs Dev. Rel Cev.
102,904 -13,628 -11.69%

2010 Pop- Abe Dev. Ret Dev.
103,896 -12,634 -10.84%

Whl Blk Hsp Ind - Asn P. Oth MRT

2010 Pop 39.5 50.2 5.5 0.3 1.4 0.0 0.2 2.8
2010VAP 44.3. 47.4` 4.4 0.3 1.7 0.0 0.1 1.8

2010 Pop. Aba Dav. Rel Dev.
107,325 -9205 -7.90%

Luoas'
2010VAP %dPap

96,668 75.7%

Lucas'
2010VAP %dPOp

77.356 75.2%

Lucas'
2010VAP %dPop

79,212 76.2%

WB WI WA WP WO BI

0-7 0.2 0-2 0.0 0.0 0.2

Lucas'
2U10 VAP %d Pop

82,442 78.8 %

49 SzoPosi, Matthew (D)

0
50 Hagan, Christina (R)

0
51 Schuring,Kirk(R)

Wht Rlk Hap nd Asn Pac Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 PaP 84.1 6.8 5.9 0.2 0.7 D.0 0.1 2.2
2o1OVAP 87.4` 6.0 4.4 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.1 1.2 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
114,718 -1,812 -1.56%

Wht 91k Hap Ind Aen Pac Oth MRr
2010 Pap 962 1.1 1.1 0-1 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.0
2010 VAP 96.9 • 1.1 0.8 0.1 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.6

2010Pop. AbsDev. RelDev.
122.852 6,322 5.42%

Wht BIk Hap nd Asn Pac OM MRTMAMMA
samiff3

2010POp 902 4.8 1.6 0.2 1.4 0.0 0.1 1.7
. 2010 VAP 91.8' 4.4 1.3 0.2 1.3 0.0 0.1 0.9

52 Slesnick, Stephen (D)
2010 Pop. - Ahs Dev. Rel Dev.

99,936 -16,594 -1424%

WM BIY Hap Ind Asn Pac Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 74.6 18.6 2.2 0.4 0.3 0.0 0.3 3.6

2010VAP 79.0' 16.5 1.8 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.8 0.7 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.2

Fa

. 2010 Pop. Ahs Dav. Rel Dav.
118,174 1,644 1.41%

Stark'
2D10 VAP %d Pop

87,491 76.3%

Stark'
201UVAP %ofPOp

98,324 78.4%

Stark'
2010VAP%dPap

76,120 76.2%

BuBer
2010VAP %dPop

92,884 78.6%

Whl Blk Hsp nd Asn Pae Oth MHT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 91.5 3.8 1.5 0.1 1.6 0.0 0.1 1.6

2D10 VAP 92.5' 3.3 1.3 02 1.7 0.0 0.1 1.1 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
114,483 -2,047 -1.76%

Wht Bik Hso nd Asn Pac Oth MRT
2010 Pop 81.4 9.3 5.6 0.2 113 0.1 0.1 Z.1
2010 VAP 84.3' 8.7 4.4 0.2 1.3 0.1 0.1 1.1

R etl d ht (c) 2011 Polldata www poldataorgrv Cohtll RI 9

53 Derickson, Tlmathy (R)

L
;:::^`= •--'a`-°- _ BuBer'

24510`e`AP %dPOp
86,530 75.6%

WB WI WA WP WO El

0.4020.20.00.00.0

. py5 esePOIJDATA ( R) Demographa: and PoM1bcal Gudes. A 9
1. PopNaOOn for 2010 fnml P19A-171 Redstdc5ng Data fmm II.S. Bumao of Ne Census. 2000 Cenaus data hom varioue sources. Slate popdetion:11,53Q503, 99 membem, idaal Is 116.53D.

2 Pie Charls
give a mugh approadmalion u1 the daviaGon from the 20101deel Poputationfor the cuned clstdct. The ovemll eize of ach pie Is scated to the ideal populalion lorthls dstdcl type.

3. A Grey pie, or avalte alice, tntlicates a p(Dstive deviagon (extm popuiation). A Whl1e pie• or a Gmy sliee, indicates a nega0ve deviatfon (short popularion).

4. Racial breaks ara /or Race/Hrepanie Origin Combinatlon. MRT is MuIGRxial Totd persuns. The sum of Mrse. aside from rounGng, should be 100 pement.' for pretlominant Oroup-

S Additional breaks are mduded if MRr is over 1%. Whi[e-61ack, Whge-Am.lndian. WM1ile-ASlan, WMIe-Pad6c, While-Obmr end 91ack-AmJndian.. IaspIXOEV-pspledl2-IOSO] "
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55 Coley, Bill (R) ButleY

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev. . . ' 2010 VAP %of Pop

135,473 18,943 16.26% 96,112 70.9%

Wht
2010 Pop 80.4

Bik Hsp
8.6 4.7

Ind
0.2

A.
4.0

Pac
0.1

ON
0.2

MRT
1.8

2010 VAP 82.9* 7.8 4.0 0.2 4.0 0.1 0.1 0.9

56 Ramos, Dan (D)
2010 Pop. Ahs D. RCI Dev.

Lorsin"
2UfoVAP %ofPw

113,103 -3,427 -2.94% 84,925 75.1%

^

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pee Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010Pup 64.2 14.4 17.1 0.3 0.6 0.0 0.1 3.2
2010VAP 69.9* 13.2 14.1 0.3 0.7 0.0 0.1 1.7 0.60.20.20.00.00.1

57 Lundy. Matt (D)
Lorain"

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev. 2D10 VAP %of Pup

IS 138,935

Wht
2010 Pop 89.4

20,405 17.51%

Blk Hsp
4.1 3.2

Ind
0.2

Asn
1.4

Pee
0.0

Oth
0.1

MRT
1.7

103,752 75.8%

2010 VAP 91.2' 3.9 2.5 0.2 . 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.9

58 Boose. Terry (R)
Huron`,Lorain', Seneoa'

2010 P.P. Abs Dev. Rel Dev. 2010 VAP %of Pop

471120 3,941 3.38% 91,655 76.1%,

Wht Bk Hsp Ind Asn Pac Om MRT

2010 Pop 91.5 , 2.5 4.2 ' 0.2 0.3 0.0 0.0 12
2010vAP 92.5 3.0 3.1 02 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.7

- . ' Mahoning`59 Gerberry, Ronald (0)
2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Oev. 2010 VAP %of Pop

112,255 -0,275 -3.67% 89,152 79.4%

G WM
2010FOp 91.3
2010 VAP 92.8

Blk Hsp
3.9 2.4
3.7 1.9

Ind
0.1
0.1

Asn
1.1
1.0

Pac
0.0
0.0

Olh
0.1
0.0

MRT
1.0
0.6

60 Hagan, RObert (D) Mahoning'
2010Pop. AbaDev. RelDev. 201UVAP %dPop

95.158 -21,372 -18.34% 73,598 77.3%

Wht
2010 Pop 54.9

Blk Hap
33.4 8.5

Ind
0.3

Asn
0.4

Pac
0.0

Olh
0.2

MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
2.4

2010VAP 59.5' 30.8 7.5 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.4 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2

- Ca..L,n Tusoarawas5*ark'Mahonlng'61 Dkey, Mark (u)
, , ,.

2010 Pop. Aba Dee. Rei D. 2010 VAP %of Pop

116.012 -518 -044°'a 89,881 77.5%

Bl li Ind Aan Pac 0111 MRT

(3

WM
2010 POp 94 3

apk
2.6 1.0 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.4.

29t0VAP 95.4' 2.5 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.7

62 Fende, Lorralne (D) Lake`

2010 Pop- Abs Dev. Rel Dev. 2010 VAP %of Pop

111,790 -0,740 -4.07% 68,546 79.2%

WM Blk Hap Ind A. Pac Ola MRT

^

2010 POp 92.7 3.3 1.3 0.1 1.3 0.0 0.1 1.2
2nt0VAP 93.7' 3.1 1.0 0.1 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.6

. ' ., . . - Lake'
63 Young, Ron (R) _ .

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Re L tu 2016 VAP %uf Pop

118,251 1,721 1.48: ^ ' . . 90,469 76.5%

Wht
2010 Pop 89.1
2010 VAP 91.8'

Blk Hsp -
2.9 5.4
2.6 3,9

Ind
0.1
0.1

Mn
0.9
0.9

Pao
0.0
0.0

Oth
0.1
0.0

MRT
1.5
0,8

POIJDATA (R) Demogtaphic and Political Guldes. AII Rights Reserved. Copyrl9hl (c) 2011. Polidata, mww.poldaLtorg
1. PopMatlon for 2010 fmm PL94171 Redmhic4ng Da1a frum U.S. Bureau of Ore Densus. 200) Census date from various suurces. State population: 11,536$04, 99 membem, ideal c 116,530.
2. Pie Charts give a rough approumatlon of Ihe devia0on from me20101dea1 Population for the cunenldistricL The overall sae of each ple is sceled to the itleal populaGon torthis (fistdct type.

3, A Grey pie, ora White slice, indlcates a poskive Oeviallon (evtra populalion). A Whife pie, ar aGrey slice, indicates a negatlve deviagon (shnR population).

4. Racial breaFs are for RaceMlspanic OAgin Comdnatlon. MRT Is Multi-Racial Tofal parsons. The sum of Ihese, aside from ruundln9. should be 100 percent.' for predominant grnup.
5.Addi6onalbreaksareindudedifMRTIsover1%.White-Black,While-Am.lnd®n,Whife-ASfan,White-Padfx:,White-OtflerxndBlack-Am.lndian.

(a9pg(nEV-papleAl2-kR14] - - '
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Letson, Tom (D)

Redistricting Handbook for OHIO
District Populations for STATE HOUSE

2010 Pap. Abs Dw. Rel Dw.
101,187 -15,343 -13.17%.

Wht B1k Wp Ind Asn Pac OOr MRr
2010Pop 83.1 12.8 1.4 0.2 0.5 0.0 0.2 1.8
2010VAP 85.5' 11.8 1.1 0.2 0.5 0.0 0.1 0.8

65 O'Brien, Sean (D)

65 Uecker, Joe (R)nI
67 Beck, Peter(R)

2010Pop. AbsDw. RelDw.
102.284 -14.246 -12.23 %

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Asn P. - OOr _ MRT
2010 Pop 92.5 4.1 1.3 0.1 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.4
20tUVAP 93.6' 3.9 1.0 0.1 05 0.0 0.0 0.8

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dw. -
137,778 21,248 1823%

WM Blk Hap Ind Asn P. 01h MRr
2010POp 94.0 1.4 1.7 0.2 12 0.0 0.1 1.3
2010 VAP 95.0' 1.4 1.4 0.2 12 0.0 0.1 0.8

143,439 26,909 23.09% 103,033 71.8%

Wht Blk Hsp nd Asn Pac Oth MRT
2010 Pop 87.1 4.0 2.3 0.1 4.8 0.0 0.1 1.4
2010 VAP 88.3' 4.6 1.8 0.2 4.3 0.0 0.1 0.8

69 Batoheltler, William (R)

u
70 Martin, Jarrod (R)

2010 Pop- Abs Dw. Rel Dw.
124,596 8,06B 6.92%

Wn1 BIk Hsp nd Aen Pao Olh MRi

2010 Pop 90.1 4.9 1.4 02 1.6 0.0 0.1 1.7
2010VAP 91.1 4.6 1.2 0.2 1.7 0.0 0.1 1.0

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dw.
130,902 14,372 12.33%

Wht Elk Hsp nd Asn P. 001 MRT

2010 Pop 94.6 1.3 1.7 0.1 1.1 0.0 0.1 1.1

2010VAP 95.7' 1.2 1.3 0.1 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.6

2010 Pop. Abs Dw. Rd Dw.

Portage
2010 VAP %of Pop

99,227 79.6%

Warren'

2010 Pop. - Abs Dev. Rd Dw. 2010 VAP %of Pap

123,974 7,444 6.39%

Wht Bik Hsp Ind Asn P. Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO 61

2010 Pop 82.9 8.4 2.3 0.2 3.5 0.1 02 2.5
2010VAP 84.1 8.6 1.9 0.2 3.5 0.1 0.1 1.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.1

71 Hottin9er, Jay (R)

I

2010Pop. AbsDw. RelDev.
126,986 10,456 8.97%

W6 WI WA WP WO BI

0.3 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0

Medina
2010 VAP %of Pop

97,305 74.3%

Greenv
2010VAP %ofPap

97,258 78.5%

Trumbull'
2010VAP %of Pop

77,644 76.7%

Trurnbull".
2010VAP %pfPop
81-303 79.5%

ClermonC
2U10VAP %o1POp
101,662 73.8%

Licking
2010VAP %olPap

95,457 75.2%

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pac Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010POp 91.5 4.0 1.5 0.3 0.8 0.0 0.1 1.9
2D1uVAP 92.9 3.7 1.2 0.3 0.8 0.0 0.1 1.0

_ . .. . ._^_.. .- .r,.._-
2010POp. AbsDw. RelDw.

102,568 - 13,962 -11.98%

Wht BIk Hsp Ind Asn Pac Oth MAT
2010 Pop 81.8 11.1 3.4 0.3 0.6 0.0 02 2.6
2010VAP 84.5' 10.5 2.6 0.3 0.6 0.0 0.1 1.4

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

- - . ' Clark'
^^^y 2010VAP %ofPop

78,062 76.1 %

WB WI WA WP WO 91

0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1

POLIDATA (R) Demogmphk and PoGtical Guides. All Rights Reservetl. CopydgM (c) 2011. Pditlata vmw.pofdata.org

1. Populafion tor2010 from PL94-171 Redistricfin9 Data 1mm U.9. Bumau of Ihe Census.2000 Ceneus data 1mm various soumes. 8tate population: 11,536,504, 99 members- iCeal is 116,530
2. Pie Chads give amugh approrimauon oi 01e deviafion from Me 20101deal Populafion for Ihe cunent dislrlcL The overa0 size of each pie is scaled to Ne ideal population for this distrlct type.

3. A BrwPie, or e WliRa slise, intlicates a posilNe deNsOon lextra population). A While p'e,or a Orey slice- indica<ac a ne0a0ve deviation (shorl populatron).

4. Radal breaks are 1or RaceMlapanlc Origin Combination. MRT Is Mutli-Racial Total perswls. The sum ofinese. aside Irom munding, should be 10D pement' for pretlorninant 9mup.

5. Adddional breaks are iroluded It MRT Is over t% Whl1s-BIaGL White-Arn.IndWn, While-ASian. White-PaciHC, WhXeAlher and Black-Am.Indlan.
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73 Goyal, Jay (O)

74 Goodwin, Bruce (R)

Li
75 Wachlmann, Lynn (R)

El
77 Buchy,Jim(R)

78 Adema,John(R)

3
79 Adams, Richard (R)

BO Muna . Dennis (D)Y

0
81 Damschroder, Rex (R).

q

2010 PoP . Abs Dev. ReI Dev. - '

Richland
2010VAP %ol Pop

105,536 -10,994 -9.43% 81,912 77.6%

Wht Blk Hsp tntl Asn Pap Oth MFiT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010Pep
2010VAP

85.3
86.2'

10.6
10.8

1.4
1.2

0.2
0.2

0.5
0.5

0.0
0.0

0.1
0.1

1.9
1.0 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1

Defance', FuRon, Williams

2010PoP AbsDev. RalDev. 2010VAP %o1Pop
75 3%

118,430 1,900 1.63% .89,127

2010 Pop
Wht

90.6
Blk

1.0
Hsp

6.9
Intl

02
Asn
0.4

Pae

0.0
Olh
D.0

MRT
0.9

2010 VAP 92.5 1.0 5.3 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.5

2010 Pay. Ate DeV. Rel Dev.

De6ance', Henry, Paulding, PIMam, Van Wert
2010 VAP %ol PoP

112,019 -4,511 -3.137% 83,395 74.4%

Wht Blk HsP nd Asn Pao 0tl1 MRT

2010 Pop 93.5 0.6 4.8 0.2 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.7

201n VAP 95.0' 0.4 3.7 02 02 0.0 0.0 0.5

2010 Pnp Aba Dev. Rel DeV.

Auglalze', Hancock, Hardin
2010 VAP %01 Pop

.
120,854 4,324 3.71% 92-262 76.3%

2010Pop
2010 VAP

Wht
92.9
94.2'

Blk
1.1
1.1

Hsp
3.3
2S

nd
0.2
02

Mn
12
1.2

Pap
0.0
0.0

Olh
0.1
0.0

MRT
1.2
0.7

2010PoR AbaDev. ReiDev:

Darke', Mercer, Preble
2010VAP %olPpp

118,691 2,161 1.85% 88,925 74.9%

Wht Blk HsP nd Mn P. Olh MRi

2010P0p 98.8 0.4 1.2 02 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.9

2010VAP 97.5' 0.3 0.9 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.6

RelDev.AtnDev201UPo

Auglaize', Champaign, Shelby
2010VAP %otPOp

.p.
121,456 4,925 4.23% 89,651 73.8%

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pso Olh MRT

2010 POp 94.8 1.6 1.2 02 0.6 0.1 0.1 1.5

2010 VAP 95.8 1.5 0.9 02 0.6 0.1 0.0 0.8

Rel DevAbs Dev

Darke',Miami
2010VAP %ofPOp

..2010 Pop.
2 86%

90,632 75.8%.119,858 3,32B

Wht 61k HsP Ind Mn PBC Olh MRT

2010 Pop 942 1.8 1.2 0.2 1.0 0.0 0.1 1.5

2010VAP 95.4' 1.7 0.9 02 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.8

Rel Dev.Abs Dev201U Po

E rie, Cttavra'
2010VAP %dPOp.p.

110,118 -6,412 -5.50%
86,416 78.5%

Wht Blk HsP Ind Mn Pac Olh MRT

1 92010P09 87.5 6.2 3.7
2010 VAP 89.8' 5.7 2.9

0.2
02

0.5
0.5

0.0
0.0

0.1
0.0

.
0.9

Ottawa, Santlusky, Seneoe'
2010VAP %oFPop-

2016Pop
116,551 21 6.02%'

"^ 88,709 76.1%

Wht Bik Hsp nd Asn Pec ON MRT

2010POp - 88.4 2.5 6.9 0.1 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.6
2010 VAP 90.8 2.3 5.4 0.2 0.5 0.0 0.0. 0.8

POLIDATA (R) Demographlc and Po9tical Guitles. AII Rights Reserved. Copyri9hl (c) 2011. Politlata. www.P0litlet3ory
1. Populatian for2010 from PI.94-171 Reaistriatlng Deta lrom U.S. Bureau o11he Census.2A00 census tlata from vsrious sources.3late popuiaHon:11,536,504, 99 members, ideal is 115,530.

2. Pie COarts give a rough approrimation of tne deviation from the 2010 Ideal Popula5on forthe cunent diatricl. The overell eize of each pie is scaled to the Meal population for this tlisttlct type.

3. A Grey pie, or a White slice, indcates a posflive deNatiOn (ezlra population). A White ple, ot a Grey slice, indicates a negative deNafion (shorl population).

4. Raolal breaks are lor Racert95panic Ongin Combination. MRT is Multi-RacialTotal persons. The sum of Nese, aside from roundin& should Da 100 pen:ent.' for predominant group.

5. Addifionat break an: included 9 MHT is over 1%. White-Blaak, WhIte-Am.lnden. WMte-ASian,- White-Pacilic, White-0ther and Black-Am.lndian.

(99pIXDEV-pspletll2-KPoaJ ' . . . . . .
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82 McClain, Jef(rey (R)

0
2D10 Pop Abs Dev. Rel Dav.
111.625 -4,905 421%

WM Blk Hsp
2010 Pop 924 3.6 2.0
201DVAP 93.2' 4-0 1.5

Redistricting Handbook for OHIO
District Populations for STATE HOUSE _

Ind Asn Pac 001 MRT

0.1 _ 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.2
0.1 0.4 0.0 0.D 0.7

83 Burke, Dave (R)

El
84 Hacket[. Robert (R)

2010 PoP. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
119,433 2,903 2.49%

Wht Blk Hsp
2olaPop 93.8 1.7 1.2
2010 VAP 94.7 1.9 1.0

2010 Pop Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
116.799 269 0.23%

WM &k Hsp
201oPop 92.2 3.9 1.4
2m0VAP 92.8' 4.2 1.1

85 Peterson. Bob (R)
2010 PoR Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
125,655 9,125 7.83%

Allow% . . ' NfM Blk Hsp
slum 201OPOp 90.8 5.4 1.2

2010 VAP 91.0 6.3 1.0

86 Rosenber9er, CIi11(R)

0
87 Evans, Cyde (R)

2D70 Pop. AEe Dev. Rel Dev.
114,338 -2,192 -1.88%

WM Blk Hsp
2o1DPop 95.3 1.5 0.9
2D10VAP 96.1 1.6 0.7

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Der.
120,818 4,288 3.68%

Gallia, Jackson. Lawrence', Ross', Vinton
201oVFP %o1POp

91,7B0 76.0%

WM Blk - Hsp nd Aen Pan Oth MRT
2010 Pop 95.9 1.3 0.8 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.2
2010 VAP 96.5 1.3 0.6 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.9

88 Bubp, Danny (R)

C
89 Johnson, Terry (R)

2U10 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
122,323 5,793 4.97%

WM Blk Hsp nd Asn Pae Oth MRT
2010 Pop 97.1 0.6 0.8 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.1 1.0
010VAP 97.6 0.6 0.6 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.7

2010 Pop Abs Dev. Rd D.
120,820 4,290 3.68%

Ind Asn Pac Olh MRT
0.2 1s 0.0 0.1 1.4
0.2 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.8

Ind Mn Pac ON MR'r
0.2 0.7 0.0 0.1 1.5
02 0.7 0.0 0.1 0.9

Crawford, Marion', Wyandot
201UVAP %o1POp

86,044 77.1%

Logan, Madon', Union
201DVAP %olPop

88,782 74.3%

Ctark', Greene', Madison
2010VAP %o1Pop

90,438 77.4%

Fayette, Pickeway. Ross
2010VAP %otPop

96,608 76.9%

Ind ASn Pac ON MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

0.2 . 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.7
0.3 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.0 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

Clinton, Highland, Plke
2010VAP %otPOp

85,864 75.1%

Ind Asn Pac Olh MRl- WB WI WA WP WO 91

0.3 0.3 0.0 . 0.1 1.5
0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

Ada,r
a
-', Brc ^ Cle.^r.ont'

2010 VAP %o1 Pop
92,294 75.5%

Adams", Lawrence, Scioto
2010VAP %a1Pop

92,888 76.9%

Wht Blk Hsp
2010 P8p 94.3 25 1.0
2010 VAP 94.8 2.6 0.7

.-, 90 Ruhl, Margaret Ann (R)-

r.
U

Ind Asn Pae OM MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
0.4 0.3 D.0 0.1 1.6
0.4 0.3 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

2010 Pop. Abe Dev: Rel Dev.= _- -
126,807 10,277 8.82%

Wht Blk Hsp
2010 Pop 96.1 0.8 1.1
2010VAP 96.8' 0.8-0.9

nd Asn Pac Oth MRT
0.2 0.6 0.0 0.1 1.1
0.2 0.6 0.0 - 0.1 . 0.7

Ashland', Knox, Monow, Rlchland
2010VAP %ofPOp

95,859 75.6%

POLIDATA (R) Demo9raphic and Polifical Guides. All Rights Reserved. Copydeht(c) 2011. Polidata www.pofitlalaory
1.Population/or2010tmmP194-171RedistricOn90atafiomU.SBuresuolMeCensus.2000Censusdalalmmvadouesoumes.Sfatepopulallon:11,53B,504, 99memDers,Ideali5116.530.

2. Pie Charts 91ve a rou9h apprmtlmation of the deviation trom the 2D10Ideal Populatlon Ior1M1e cunent distrkt The overall size of each pie is scaled to the ideal populatqn for tl,is distdG lype.

3. A Grey pie, or a While slice, indcates a positive devia0on (extra population). A Wh1te pie, or aGrey slice, indkates a neBative deviation (shon population).

4. Raoal breaks are tnr RacaMispenie O49in Combination. MRT is Mulli-Raeial Totzl persens. The sum ol lnese, aslde hum mundin0. shoWd be 100 pwcent.' Iorpredominanl Dmp.
tlBI k-Amlndiznait -0111er ane

i Addiional braaks are included'd MRT is over 1%. WhXe-Bieck, Vfiite-Am.lndan, Whee-ASian. WMIePaaM1e, Wh c . .. .IpgPmEV
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91 Hayes,B111(R)

J
92 PhlOips, Debbie (D)

2D10 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
123,037 6,507 5.58%

Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BIWhl Blk Hsp Intl Asn Pac
2010Pop 929 2.2 1.1 02 15 0.0 0.1 1.9
2010 VAP 93.2 2.3 1.0 0.2 1.7 0.0 0.1 1.5 0.4 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1^

93 Thompson, Andy (R)

® Wht Blk Hsp Ind Mn Pac Oth MRT

2010 Pap 96.3 1.1 0.7 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.2

2otOVAP 96.8' 12 DS 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.1 0.8

94 Balderson, Troy (R) Coshocton,
Muskingum'

2010 Pop- Abs Dav. Rel Dev. 2D1U VAP %oI Pop

117,946 1,416 1.21% 89,322 75.7%

- Whl Blk Psp )nd Asn PaC Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 93.6 3.0 0.8 0.2 03 0.0 0.1 2.0

2010 VAP 94.8 2.9 0.5 0.2 0.3 0.0 0.1 1.1 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

95 Gentile, Lou (D)

96 Landis, AI (R) Belmont', Harrison, Tuscarawas'
2010 VAP %ofPop

96.596 77.9%

201oPop. AbsGev. RelDev.
130,644 14.114 12.11%

Wht 61k Hsp Ind Asn Pac
2010 Pop 96.5 0.9 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.0
2010 VAP 97.1 0.9 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.0

Belmont', Jefferson

2010 Pap. Abs Dev. ReI Dev. 2D1O VAP %o1 Pop
106,820 -9,710 -8.33% 85,332 79.9%

VPub Blk HspInd Asn Pao Olh MIT
2010 Pop 92.5 4.5 0.9 0.1 0.3 0.0 0.1 1.5
2010VAP 93.8 4.1 0.7 0.1 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.8

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Oev.
124,049 7,519 6.45%

Wht Blk Hap Ind Asn P. Olh MRT
2010 Pop 94.6 2.2 1.6 0.1 0.4 0.1 01 1.1
2010 VAP 94.9 2.5 1.4 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.7

ns.land- Holmes, Medina
2010VAP %otPop

90,343 72.4%

98 Holfington,Richard (R) Cuyahog9`,
Gesuga'

2010VAP %o1PoP

2010 Pop Abs Dev. Rel Dev.

Pof'rtical Districts
Page 39.X.11

Hocking. Licking', Perry, Pickaway
201oVAP %o1Pop

98.525 75.4%

Olh
0.1

MRf
1.2

0.0 0.8

Athen, Meigs, Morgan, Washington
2D1O VAP %o1 Pop

99,655 81.0%

Guernsey, Monroe. Muskingum', Noble, Washington
201DVAP %o1P0p

116,725 195 0.17% 91,51B 78.4%

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
124,815 8,285 7.11%

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pac Oth MRT
2mOPop 97.0 0.6 1.0 0.1 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.8
2010 VAP 97.4' 0.6 0.8 0.1 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.8

97 Ha11, Dave (R)

0
99 Ko7Jowski, Casey (R)

. .. ^"' . - 201oV<P %4fPw,' ..-̂ `^...^

^' ^ 223 759%` -'-"-.:̂108,338 8 792 7 . . . 82.

Wht B1k Hsp Ind Asn Peu Om MRT

201DPop. AbsDev. RMOev.
115,232 -1,298 -1.11% 87,013 75.5:0

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Aen Pac Oth MRT

2010 Pop 93.7 22 1.2 0.1 1.9 0.0 0.1 0.9
2010 VAP 942' 2.2 1.0 0.1 1.9 0.0 0.1 0.5

Ashtabula, Tmmbull

2010Pop 91.2 3.3 3.2 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.0 1.7
2010 VAP 92.6' 3.5 2.4 02 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.9

POUDATA (R) Demopraphic and PoliGcal Gultles. A9 Ri9hls Reserved. Copyright(o) 2D71. Polidata www.polidataorg

1. Popula0on Mr 20101mm PL94-171 RedisWctlng Data 1rom U.S. Bureau 01 me Census. 2" Census tlaha from vadous sources. Slele population: 11,536,504, 99 members, ideal is 116,530.
2. Pie Charls 9h'e a rough approbmation of the deviation bom the 2010 Ideal Popula0on for the curtent district. The overall size of each pie is scaled to the itlsal population forthis dstrict type.

3. A Grey pie, or a While slice, Indicates a positive deviaUon (e#ra populaUon). A While pie, or a Gray slica, Indcates a negal-rve devia0on (shbrt popularion).

4. Raciel breaks are lor Rece/Hispanic Origin Combinaeon. MRT is Mula-Raciall Total persans. The swn of these, avide lrom roundng, should be 10 percenL' for predominant group.

- 5. Addilbnal breaks an: included 9 MRT is over 1%. White-Black, Whita-Am.lndian, White-ASlan, Whlte-Pacific, WhileOlher and Black-Am.lndian.

" (a9pOm[V-pspldl2-Iffa^l . . . ' . .
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Ranked by 2010 Population per Member with Deviation from Ideal Population for 2010

ED Member TotPup AsbDav RelDev DWstrkr

2 Brenner,Andrew(R) 174,214 57,684 49-50 Delaware
'19 Gonzales. Anne (R) 157,070 40,540 34.79 Franklin

5 Stebelton, Geraltl (R) 146.156
143 439

29,625
90926

25.42
23 09

Fairfield
Warren'

87
66
57

Beck, Peter (R)
' Uecker, Joe (R)
Lundy.Matt(D)

.
137,778
136,935

,
21,248
20,405

.
18.23
17.51

Clermont'
Loraln'

'23
55

Gmssman, Cheryl (R)
Bill (R)Coley

135,650
135,473

19,120
18,943

16.41
16.26

Frarddin
BuBer'

20
,

Garland, Nancy (D) 132.198 15,688 13.45 Franklhi
diM69

91
Batchelder, William (R) ,
Hayes, Bill (R)

130,902
130;644

14,372
14,114

12.33
12.11

nae
Hocking, Licking*, Perry. Pickawey

`kli25
35
46

S9nzieno. Michael (D)
Maag, Ron (R)

Barbara(R)Sears

129,872
128,703
127,690

12,342
12,173
11,16D

10.59
10.45
9.58

nFran
HamiBon'
Luras'

71
,

Hot6nger, Jay (R) 126,986
807126

10,456
27710

8.97
8 82

Licking'
Ashland', Knox, Morrow, RicNantl

90
43
24

Ruhl, Margaret Ann (R)
McKenoey, Todd (R)

Ted (D)Celeste

,
126,658
126.534

,
10,128
10,004

.
8.69
8.58

SummiP
Franklin'

41
,

Slaby, Lynn (R) 126,531 10,001 8.58 Summh'
'22 Carney, John Patrick (D) 125,989 9,459 8.12 Franklin

BB Peterson, Bob (R) 125,655 9,125 7.83 Fayette, Pidcaway, Ross

6
7

Gardner, Randy (R)
Dave (RH ll

125,488
124,815

8,958
8,285

7.69
7.11

Wood
Ashland', Holmes, Metlina9

17
68
98

),a
Anielski, Merlene (R)
Clyde, Kathleen (D)
Landis, AI (R)

124.619 .
124,596
124,049

8.089
8,066
7,519

6.94
6.92
6.45

Cuyahoga'
Podage
BelmonC, Harrtson, Tuscarawas'

70
2

MarBn.Janod(R)
Debbie (D)Phitli s

123,974
123 037

7,444
8,507

6-39
5.58

Greene'
Athen. Meigs. Morgan, Washington9

51
p .

Schuring, Kirk(R)

,
122,852 6,322 5.42 Stark'

68 Bubp, DannY (R) 122,323 5,793 4.97 Adams', Brown, ClermonC
'78 Adams. John (R) 121,455 4,925 4.23 , Champaign, ShelbyAuglaize

kfi 'F21
6

Dufiey, Mike (R)
Robert (R)ra ueS

121,293
120 854

4,763
4,324

4.09
3.71

nran
Auglatze', Hancock, Hardin

7
89

g ,p
Johnson, Terry (R)

,
120,820

818120
4,290
4 288

3.68
3.68

Adams', Lawrence, Scioto
Gallia, Jackson, Lawrence', Ross', Vinton

87
58
79

Evans, Clyde (R)
Boose, Terry (R)
Adams, Richard(R)

,
120,471
119,858

,
3,941
3,328

3.38
2-86

Huran', Lorain', Seneca'
Darke', Miami

klin'F27
33

7

Weddington, W. Caoton (D)
Burke, Dave (R)

Jim(R)hB

119,834
119,433

691118

3,304
2,903
2,161

2.84
2.49
1.85

ran
Logan, Marion', Union
Darke', Mereer, Preble

7
74

y,uc
Goodwin, Bmce (R)

,
118,430 1,900 1.63

48
Defianr-z', Fuhon, Williams
L ke'63

53
Young, Ron (R)

Timothy (R)Derickson
118,251
118,174

1,721
1,644

1.
1.41

a
Butler

16
,

Baker, Nan (R) 118,044 1,514 1.3D Cuyahoga'
'

94 Balderson,Troy(R) 117,948. 1,416 121 Coshocton,Muskingum
'18 Dovilla, Mike (R) 116,917 387 0.33 Cuyahoga

Madison'k' G84 Hackett, Robert (R)
(R)n AndTh

116,799
725116

269
195

0.23
0.17

reene ,Clar .
Guernsey, Monroe, Muskingum', Noble, Washington

93
81

, yompso
Damschroder, Rex (R)

,
116,551 21 0.02 Ottewa', Sandusky, Seneca`

''61 Okey, Mark (D) 116.012 -518 -0.44
4

, Tuscarawas, StarkCarroll, Mahoning
klin'F28

98
Heard. Tracy (D)
Hollington, Richard (R)

115,974
115,232

-556
-1,298

-0. 8
-1.11

ran
Cuyahoga'; Geauga'

'50
3

Hagan,ChrisBna(R)
Ron (R)Amstulz

114,718
114,520

-1,812
-2,010

-1.56
-1.73

Stallc
Wayne

30
,

Mecklenborg, Bob (R) 114,509 -2,021 -1.73 Hamilton'
'54 Combs, Courtney (R) 114.483 -2,047 -1,76 Butler

'
37 Butler, Jim (R) 114,471 -2,059 -1.77 Montgomery

88
42

Roaenberger, Cllfi(R)
KrisBna (R)nerRoe

114,338
114,054

-2,192
-2,476

-1.88
-2.13

Clinton,Highland, Pike
Summ@'.

29
56

,g
Blessing• Louis (R)
Ramos, Dan (D)

Ronald (D)G berr

113,937
113,193
112355

-2,593
-3,427
-4,275

-2.23
-2.94
-3.67

Hamilton'
Lorain'
Mahonlna'59

75
er y,

Wachtmann, Lynn (R) 112,019 -4511 -3.87 Detiance', Henry, Paulding, Putnam. Van Wert
'

62 Fende, Lonaine (D) 111,790 -4,740 -4.07 Lake
'

82 McClain, Jeffrey (R) 111,625 = .-4,905 -
3 =^

4.24 , , Wyandot-- CrawPOrfi Marion
bnler 'ih^ Mb38

36
Blair, Terry (R)

Michael (R)Henne
111;167
111,134

63-'- =^5,
-5,396

-4-60-
-4.63

yjr
Montgomery' . ., -

80
,

Murtay, Dennis (D) 110,118 -8,412 -5.50 Erie, Ottawa'
'28 Pillich, Connie (D) 109,005 -7,525 -6.46 HamiBon

"
15 DeGeeter, Timothy (D) 108,895. -7,635 -6.55 Cuyahoga

POUDATA (R) Demographlc and Pdl5cal Guides. AII Rlghls Reserved. Capyright (c) 2011. Pdidats. www.poAdstaorg . .'
1. Populetlon tor 2010 from PL94171 RedisNcting Data from U.S. Bureau of Ihe Census. 2000 Census datz from vadous sources. State poputaHon:11,536,504. 99 members. Ideal is 116,530.
2 Pie Chads gwe e rough approximetion of Ihe deviation Irom the 20101deal PopuWtlon for the cunent dlstnct. The werall s¢e 01 each pie Is scaled to 6re ideal populagon for this district type.
& A Grey ple, or a Whlle slice, hdicates a posNve devieHOn (axtra populatlon). A Whtle pie, or a Grey slice, Indicates anegative tleviafion (shod populaaon).
4.RacialbreaksareforReceJHispanicOriginCombinatien.MRTIsMutti-RaeialTOtalpersons.Thesumotthese,asdefrommunding,shouldbe100pen:ant'iorpredominantgmup.
S Addil{onal breaks are included if MRT is ower 1%. Whlte-Black, White-Am.Indian, Widre-Asian, White-Pacilk, Whfle-0Ner and Black-Am.lnclilan. -

. . . . . . . f39ppmEy-pspletll2-IffaO] '.
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99 Casey (R)Kozlowsk) 108,338 .8,192 -7.03 Ashtebule,Trumbull

1
,

Newbold. Craig (R) 107,841 -8,689 -7.46 Columbiana

45
49

Milkovich, Zack (D)
Szollosi, Mat:he(v (D)

107,689
107,325

-8,1341
-9,205

-759
-7,90

SummiP
Lucas"

J' ff95 Lou(D) .Gentile 106.620 -9,710 -8.33 ersoneBelmoni ,
'34

,
Peter(R)Stautberg 106,816 -9,714 -8.34 Hamilton

4
,
Ma8 (R)Huffman 106,331 -10.199 -8.75 Allen

40
,
Roland (D)Winburn 105,787 -10,743 -922 Montgontery

73
,

Jay (D)Goyal 105,536 -10,994 -9.43 Richland
'

8
,

Amrond (D)Budish 104,966 -11,564 -9.92 Cuyahoga

48
,
Mike (D)Ashford 103.896 -12,634 -10.84 Lucas'

44
,

Sykes. Vemon (D) 103,672 -12,858 -11.03 SummIt'
'

14 Mike (D)Foley 103.628 -12,902 -11.07 Cuyahoga

32
,

Dale (D)Mallory 103.395 -13,135 -11.27 Hamilton`
'

47
,
Teresa (D)Fedor 102,904 -13,626 -11.89 Lucas

72
,

Ross (R)McGregor 102,568 -13,962 -11.98 Clark'
'7

,
Yuko Kenny(D) 102,553 -13,977 -11.99 Cuyahoga

65
,

O'Brien. Sean (D) 102,284 -14,246 -12.23 Trumbutl'

64 Tom (D)Letson 101,187 -15.343 -13.17 Trumbull'

52
,

Stephen (D)Slesnick 99,936 -16.594 -1424 Stark'
'13

,
Antonio. Nickie (D) °-9,462 -17,068 -14.65 Cuyahoga

'
12 John. Jr. (D)Bames 98,837 -17,693 -15.18 Cuyalwga

31
,

Denise (D)Driehaus 97.992 -18,538 45.91 Hamilton'
'

33
.

Allda (D)Reece 97271 -19,259 -16.53 Hamikon
'

60
,

Robert (D)Hagen 95.158 -21,372 -18.34 Mehoning
'

11
,

Sandra (D)Wllliams 94,163 -22.367 -19.19 Cuyahoga
'

9
,

Barbara (D)Boyd 93,568 -22,982 -19.71 Cuyahoga
'_

10
,

Pabnon, Bill (D) 92,627 -23,903 -20.51 Cuyahoga
'

39 Luckle, Clayton (D) 92,594 -23,938 -20.54 Montgomery

POLIDATA (R) Demographfe and Palifical Guides. All Rights Reserved. Copyright (e) 2011. Polidata wwv.polideta.org
1. Population for 2010 trom P194-171 Redstncting Dafa hom U.S. Bureau af the Census. 2000 Census data fmm varbus sourcas. Sfare populatlon:11,536,504, 99 merMem, ideal is 116,530.
2. Pie Chans give a mugh approximetlon ot the devlarlon 1mm the 2010 Ideal Populalion for the cunant dislrict The overall size of each pie is scaled to tne Ideal popula5on forthis distiiGtype.

3. A Grey ple, or a While sfce, indicates a posiiive Eeviafion lexlra popula5oe). A While pie, or a Grey slice, mdicates a negalive deviatioo (shod population).

4.RacielbreaksareforRaceMicpanicORginCombinagon.MRTisMuIl4RaclalTotalqersons.ThesumofNese,asidetromrounding,sheuldba100pement.'forpnmlominantgmup.
5. Ad,fitlunal breaks are inclutled il MRT Is over 1%. WMIe-91ack, Whita-Am.Indian, White-Asian, While-Pedfic, White-Olher end Black-Am.lndan.

Ia9ppmEV-pW1eL12-KP6J] . . . . . . . .
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Ranked by Member (Last Name) with Deviation from Ideal Population for 2010

ED

78

Member

Adams, John (R)

. TotPap 1

121,455

1 A°bDev

4,925

FelDev

4.23

Disfrict

Auglaise',Champaign,8he6y

79 Adams, Richard (R) 119,858 3,328 2.88 Darke, Miamf

3 Ron (R)Amstutz 114.520 -2,01D -1.73 Wayne

17
,

Anielski, Marlene (R) 124,619 8,089 6.94 Cuyahoga'
'13 Antonio, Nickle (D) 99,482 -17,068 -14.65 Cuyahoga

48 AsMortl. Mike (D) 103,896 -12,634 -10.84 Lucas'

1 Nan (RkerB 118,044 1,514 1.30 Cuyahoga'
6

94
),a

Baiderson, Troy (R) 117,946 1,416 1.21 Coshocton, Muskingum'

12 John,Jr.(D)Barnes 98,837 -17,893 -15.18 Cuyahoga'

69
,

William (R)Batchekfer 130,902 14,372 12.33 Medina

67
,

Beck,Peter(R) 143,439 26,909 23.09 Warren'
'

38 Blair,Teny(R) 111,167 -5,363. -4.60 Montgomery
'

29 Blesstng, Louis (R) 113.937 -2,593 -2.23 HamiHon
'''58 Boose,Teny(R) 120,471 3,941 3.38 , Seneca, LorsinHuron

'
9 Boyd, Barbara (D) 93.568 -22,962 -19.71 Cuyahoga

2 Andrew (R)Brenner 174,214 57,684 49.50 Delaware
'

88
,

Danny (R)Bubp 122,323 5,793 4.97 Adams', Brown, Clermont

77
,

Buchy, J'an (R) 118,691 2,161 1.85 Derke. Mercer, Preble
'

8 Armond (D)Budish 104,966 -11,564 -9.92 Cuyahoga

83
,
Dave (R)Burke 119,433 2,903 2.49 Logan, Madon', Union

37
,
Jim (R)Butler 114,471 -2,059 -1.77 Montgomery'

22
,

John Patdck (0)Carney 125,989 9,459 8.12 Franklin'

24
,

Ted (D)Celeste 126.534 10.004 6.58 Franklin'

66
,

Kathiaen (D)Cl de 124,596 8,066 6.92 Portege

55
y ,

Bill (R)Coley 135,473 18,943 1626 Butler'

54
,

Cortlbs Courtney (R) 114,483 -2,047 -1.76 Butler'.
'

81
,

Demschroder. Rex (R) 118,551 21 0.02 Othuwa', Sandusky, Seneca

15 Tanolhy (D)DeGeeter 108,895 -7,635 -6.55 Cuyahoga`

53
,

Derickson. Timothy (R) 118,174 1,644 1.41 Butler'
'18 Dovilla, Mike (R) 116,917 387 0.33 Cuyahoga

31 Ddehaus, Denise (D) 97.992 - 18,538 -15.91 Hamilton'
'

21 DuBey, Mike (R) 121,293 4,763 4.09 Franklln
VintonRoss'e

87 Evans,Ctyde(R) 120.818 4,288 3.68 ,,Gallia, Jackson, Lawrenc

47 Teresa (D)Fedor 102.904 -13,626 -11.69 Lucas-

82
,

Lorraine (D)Fende 111,790 -4,740 -4.07 Lake'

14
,

Foley, Mike (D) 103,628 -12,902 -11.07 Cuyahoga"

e Gardner, Randy (R) 125,488 8,958 7.89 Wood

20 Garland, Nancy (D) 132,198 15,668 13.45 Franklin'

95 Gentile, Lou (D) 106,820 -9,710 -8.33 Belmont', Jefferson
'

59 Gerberry, Ronald (D) 112,255 -4,275 -3.67 Mahoning
kr 'F19 Gonzales,Anne(R) .157,070 40,540 34.79 ran in

74 Bruce (R)Goodwin 118,430 1,900 1.63 Defiance', Fulton, Williams

73
,

Jay (D)Goyal 105,536 -10,994 -9.43 Richland

23
,

Grossman, Cheryl (R) 135,650 19,120 16.41 Franklin`
'

84 Hackett, Robert (R) 116,799 269 0.23 Clark', Greene , Madison
St k'50 .hric6ne (R)Hagan 114.718 -1,812 -1.56 ar

60
, -
Roberl(D)Hagan 95,158 -21,372 -18.34 Mahoning'

97
.

Dave (R)Hall 124,815 8,285 7.11 Ashlantl', Holmes, Medine

91
,

Bill (R)Hayes 130,644 14,114 12.11 Hocking, Licldng', Peny, Pickaway

26
,

Heard Tracy (0) 115,974 -556 -0.48 Franklin'

38
,

Michael (R)Henne 111,134 -5,396 -4.63 Montgomery'

98
,

Hol5ngton, Richard (R) 115,232 -1,298 -1.11 Cuyahoga', Geauga'

71 Holfinger,Jay(R) 126.986 10,456 8.97 Licking'

4 Maft(R)Huflmen 106,331 -10,199 -8.75 Allen

89
,

Johnson,Teny(R) 120,820 4,290 3.68 Adams', Lawrence', Scioto
l T b ll99

96
Ko>dowski, Casey (R)
Landis, Al (R)

108,338
124,049

-8,192
7,519

-7.03
6.45

Ashtabu a, rum u
Belmont', Hanison, Tuscarawas'

'64 latson, Tom (D) 101,187 -15,343 -13.17 Trumbuil
-M t mer '39 Luck'le,Clayton(D) 92594 -23,936 -20.54 .on go y

'
57 Lundy, Maft (D) 136,935 20,405 17.51 Lorain

ilt n'H35 Maag, Ron (R) 128,7113 12,173 10.45 oam
'

32 Mallory, Dale (D) 703.395 -13,135 -11.27 Hamilton
G e70 Mar9n, Jarrod (R) 123,974 7,444 6.39 reen

'
82 Jeffrey (R)McClain 111,625 -4,905 -4.21 , WyandotCrawford, Medon . - <--^
72

,
McGregor, Ross (R) ::3V225E8- ^3a962 1195-=, Clark'

'43 Todd (R)McKenney -426;69'E. -t0,12s- Summft

30
,

Mecklenborg, Bob (R) 114,509 -2,021 -1.73 Hamihon'

45 Milkovich,Zeok(D). 107,689 -61641 -7.59 SummiC

so h9urray, Dennis (D) 110,118 -6,412 -5.50
6

Fsie-Ottavra'
C lumbiana

I Newbold, Cralg (R) 107,841 -8,689 -7.4 o

POLJDATA (R) Demo9rephic and Pol'Neal Guides. Atl Ri9hss Reserved. Copyn9ht (a) 2011. Polidata www.polidataor9

1. Papula9on lor 2010 from PL94171 Reduatricling Data fmm U.S. Bureau oi the Census. 2000 Census data from various soumas. Slate popularion:11,536,5U4, 99 members, ideal is 116,530.

2. Pie Chans glve a ruugh approdma0on ol the deviallon Irum the 2010 Ideal Popule0on for the cunent district. The overell size of eacfr pie Is scaled fo Ne deal populafion for thte dlshlcl typa.

3. A Grey pie, ora Whlle sOce, indicates a positive deela0on (extra populafion). A Wh6e pie, or a Grey slice, Indicates a neganve deviafion (short population).

4 Racial breaks are 1m RscelHlspanic DriBm Combtnaliun. MRT is MuN-Racial Taral persons. The sum ot tliese. aside rram rounding. should be 100 percent'tor predommant 9mup.

5. Additbnal breaks are included e MRT is wer 1 % Whlte-Black, White-Am.lndian, WhiR-0.5ian, White-Paclfic, White-0Iher and Biack-Am.lntllan. la^^^^r2-Kfso7
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65 Sean(D)O'Brien 102,284 -14,246 -12.23 Trumbulr

51
,

Mark (D)Okey 116,012 -518 -0.44 Carroll, Mahoning'. Stark, Tuscarawas

10
.

Patmon, Bill (D) 92.627 -23,903 -20.51 Cuyahoga"

85 Peterson, Bob (R) 125,655 9,125 7.83 Fayette, Pickaway, Ross
Washingtoni s Mor anMAth92 Debbie (D)Phillips 123.037 6,507 5.58 g , g ,een,

28
,

Pillich, Connle (D) 109,005 -7.525 -6.46 Hamilton'

56 Dan (D)Remos 113,103 -3,427 -2.94 Lorein"

33
.

Reece, Alicia (D) 97,271 -19,259 -16.53 Hamilton'

42 Kristine (R)Roegner 114,054 -2,476 -2.13 Summit'

86
,

Rosenberger, Cliff (R) 114,338 -2,192 -1.88 Clinton. Highland, Pike

90 Margaret Ann (R)Ruhl 126,807 10,277 8.82 Ashland", Knox, Morrow, Richland

51
,

Schuring, K'ak (R) 122.852 6,322 5.42 Stark'

46 Barbara(R)Seara 127,690 11.160 9.58 Lucas'

41
,

Slaby. Lynn (R) 126,531 10,001 8.58 Summir

52 Slesnick,Stephen(D) 99,936 -16,594 -1424 Stark'

76 Robert (R)Sprague 120,854 4,324 3.71 Auglaize', Hancock, Hardin

34
,

Stautberg, Peter(R) 106,816 -9,714 -8.34 Hamilton'

5 Stebe9on, Gerald ( R) 146.156 29,626 25.42
90

Fair6ekl
Franklin'25 Stinziano, Michael (D) 128,872 12.342 1 .5

`44 Sykes. Vernon (0) 103,672 -12,858
205

-11,03
7 90

Summit
Lucas'49

93
Szokosi, Matmew (D)
Thompson, Andy (R)

107,325
116,725

-9,
195

.-
0.17 Guemsey, Monme, Muskingum . Noble, Washington

66 JUe(R)Uecker 137,778 21,248 18.23 Clermonr

75
,

Waphtmann,Lynn(R) 112.019 -4,511 -3.87 De6ance, Henry, Paulding, Pumam, Van Wert

27 Weddington, W. Cadton (0) 119.634 3.304 2.84 Franklin'

11 Wlllfams, Sandra (D) 94.163 -22.367 -19.19 Cuyahoga'
"40 Roland (D)Winburn 105-787 -10,743 -9.22 Montgomery

63
,

Young, Ron (R) 118,251 1,721 1.48 Lake`

7 Yuko, Kenny(D) 102,553 -13,977 -11.99 Ctryahoga'

POUDATA (R) Demogrephic and Politiral Guides. All Rights Reserved. Copyright (c) 2011- PWNata. wm,v.polidataarg

1. Populatlan for 2010 from Pt94171 Redistriding Data from U.S. Bureau of the Census. 20I10 Census data kam various sources.3tate populallonat,5%,600, 99 members, i0eal ie 916,530.

2. Pie Charfs give a mugh apprutdmaFon of the tlevialion from Ihe 20101deal Population forthecunent ddsaicL The overall size of eash pie is scaled tn 1he ideal population far tks distrct type.

3.AGreypie,oraWNtasfpe,indidatesapositlvedeviafion(exbapopulatlnn).AWhOepie,oraGreyalice,indieatesanegativedevlation(shortpopula6on).
4. Rapai breaks are for RaceJHispank Odgln Combinatlon. MRT is Multl-Ratlal Total persons. The sum of these, aside from munGng. should be 100 pement.' for predominant group.

5. Additional breala are Included if MRT is over 1%. Wh2e-BYaok, WhilnAm.lnr6an, White-Asian, WnIIe-Paclfic, White-0ther and Black-Am.lndian.

. . . . . . . . .139pDLIiV-papkdl24NFw
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Ranked by 2010 Minority Voting Age Population for Selected Subgroups

ED Member Minonty Hsp/Lat Black Asian District -

12 John, Jr. (D)Baines 71.7 @ 1.1 88.6 @ 0.7 Cuyahaga'
'

10
,

Patmon, Bill (D) 83.0 0 12.8 45.4 3.0 Cuvahoga
'

8 Budish, Armond (D) 01J @ 1.5 56.1 Q
52 7 @

2.7
1 6

Cuyahoga
ahoga"Cu

11 Williams, Sandra (D) 60.7 @ 4.8 . . y
'

9
-26

Boyd, Barbars (D)
Heard.Tracy(D)

602 ®
58.4®

1.7
4.0

52.6 ®

50.0 @

4.0
1.7

Cuyahoga
Fmnklin"

'
48 Mike(D)Ashford 55.7 0 4.4 47.4 17 Lucas

'
33

,
Reece. Alicia (0) 52.3 & 2.1 47.7 0.9 Hamilton

'
7 Kenny (D)Yuko 52.0 @ 1.4 47.9 13 Cuyehoga

'
32

,
Mallory, Dale (D)

_
50.5 ® 2.4 42.6 3.5 Hamilton

'
39
44

Luckia, Clayton (D)
Sykes. Vernon (D)

49.8
49,3

2.8
2.3

44.1
42.1

0.8
2.8

Montgomery
Summk'

"
27 Weddington, W. Cadton (D) 49.3 3.4 40.2 3.2 FranMin

'
40
80

Winburn, Roland (D)
Hagen;Robert (D)

47.7
40.5

1.6
7.5

43.1
30.8

1.1
0.4

'

Montgomery
Mahoning'

'
31 Driehaus, Denise (D) 38.8 3.1 330 0.8 Hamilton

'
28 Pillich, Connie (D) 34.2 4.0 24.7 3.9 Hamilton

"
21 Mike (R)Duffey 33.1 5.9 20.4 4.8 . Frenklin

53
,

Ramos, Dan (D) 30.1 14.1 132 0.7 Lorain'
'

20 Garland, Nancy (D) . .. 27.8 3.7 19.1 32 Franklin
'

13 Antonio, Nickie (D) 27.6 10.9 127 1.9 Cuyahoga
`47

29
Fedor, Teresa (D)
Blessing, Louis (R)

.. 2,7Q
25.9

8,3
1.4

15.6
22.0

1.2
1.1

Lucas
Hamitton'

'
19 Gonzales, Anne (R) 24.4 2.5 18.0 2.1 Franklin

'
52 Siephen (D)Slesnick 21-0 1.8 16.5 0.4 Stark

'
14

,
Mike (D)Foiey 21.0 7.6 9.6 2.4 Cuyahoga

25
,

no. Michael (D)Stin:)a - 20.9 4.3 11.9 2.6 Frankiin'

22
.

John Patridc (D)Camey 19.8 3.6 6.0 8.4 Franklin'

24
,

Celeste, Ted (D) 18.8 4.6 6.4 6.0 Franklld
'

55 Coley, Bill (R) 1Z7 4.0 7.8
68

4.0
53

Butler
Qreene'

70 Janod (R)MarBn 15.9 1.9 1 .
'

54
,

Combs Courtney (R) . 15.9 4.4 8.7 1.3 BuOer

45
,

Milkovich, Zeck (D) . . 15.9 1-2 11.7 1.2 SummiC
'

72 McGregor. Ross (R)' 15.5 2.6 10.5
11 0

0.6
0 7

Clark
Allen

4 Matt (R)Hurfman 15.0 1.9 . .

64
,
Tom (D)Letson " - 14.5 1.1 11.8 0.5 Trumbull'

73
,

Goyai, Jay (D) 13.8 1.2 10.8 0.5 Richland
'

41 Slaby,Lynn(R) 13.7 1.1 8.3
4 1

3.3
3 6

Summit

Frenklin'
23 Cheryl (R)Grossman 13.4 4.1 . .

',
t RP 213 1.7 8.1 2.1 Hamilton

34
49
17

e er( ) .Stamberg,
Szo)losl, Merthew (D)
Anielski, Marlene (R)

-
.

12.6
12.4

4.4
1.2

6.0
6.2

0.7
- 4.1

Luca,s'
Cuyahoga'

'
67 Peter(R)Beck 11.8 1.8 4.8 4.3 Warren

`
36

,
Michael (R)Henne 11.7 1.3 7.6 1.4 Montgomery

'
37

,
Jim(R)Butler 10.6 1.9 4.9 2.4 Monlgomery - '

'
80

,
Murray, Dennis (D) 10.2 2•9 5.7 0.5 Erie, Ottawa

2 6renner, Andrew (R) 10.1 1.7 3.2
3 9

4.1
2 5

DeHware
Lucas'

46 Barbara (R)Sears 9.8 2.4 . .
'

38
,
Terry (R)Blair 9.5 1.9 3.4 2.7 Montgomery

'
81

,
Rex (R)Damschroder 92 5.4 2.3 0.5 OBawa', Sandusky, Seneca

85
,

Peterson, Bob (R) 9.1 1.0 8.3 0.4 Fayette, Pickaway, Ross
d

5 Stebelton, Gerald (R) 9.0 1.4 5.3
2 8

1.0
32

Fairfiel
Hami)1on'

35 Maag, Ron (R) 8.9 1.9 .

6B Clyde, Kathleen (0) - 8.8 1.2
2

4.6
3 9

- 1.7
31

Ponage
Lorain'

57 Lundy, Matl (D) 8.8 .5 . .
6 Gardner, Randy ( R) 8.8 3.6

2
2.5

22
1.5 .
2 5

Wood
Cuyahoga'

15 DeGeeter,TUnothy(D) 8.7 3 . .

63 Young, Ron(R) .' 8.3 3.9
3

2.6
4 4

0.9
1 3

Lake

Stark'
51 Schudng, Kak (R) 8.2 1- . .

'
18 Dovilla, Mike (R) 7.8 1-8 2.3 2.7 Cuyahoga

'
53 Dedckson,TimoCly(R) 7.7 1.3 3.3 1.7

4
BuBer

WilliamsFultanDe6ance'
74 Bruce (R)Goodwin 7.4 5.3 1.0 0. ,,

99
,

Kozlowski. Casey (R) . 7.3 2.4 3.5 0.3 Ashtabula,Trumbull
'

59 Ronald (D)Gerberry 7.3 1.9 3.7 1.0 Mahoning
'

58
,

TerrK(R)Boose ..:.-73:.. 3.1 3.0 0.3 Huron', Lorain',Seneca
'

84
, __

Hackett,Robeit(R)- .. .:..... -..-7'.z 4.2 0.7 , Madisonbiark', Greene
'C h

16
71

Baker, Nan (R)
HotHnger, Jay (R)

72
7.1

22
1.2

1.4
3.7

2.7
0.8

uya oga
Licking'

tonhinWi M
92 Debbie (D)Phi1)ips 6.8 1.0 2.3 1.7 gorgan, asgs,Afhen, Me

'
82

,
McClaln, Jeffrey (R) 6.7 1.5 4.0 0.4 , WyandotCrawford, Marion

POLIDATA (R) Demographlc and PafNral Guides. MI Rights Reserved. Copyright (e) 2011. Polklata, www.pofdata.ory - - '

1. PopWafion far20101mm Pt94171 Redistdcfing Data from U.S. Bureau ot the Censvs.2000 Census tlata hom vadous sourcas. Stere populatiod:11,536,504, 99 membeis, ideal Is 116,530.

2. Pie Chads grve a rough apprmdma4on ot lhe deuiation hom the 20101deal Population for the currenf disrricl. The overell size or each pie is scaled to the ideal popularlon lor this distdct type.

3. AGrey pie. or a Whge slke, Indicates a posilive eeviaGOn (exVa popula4on). A While pk, or a Grey slice, indicates a negativ¢ deviatlon (short population)

4. Raoial breaks are tor Race/Hispanic Origin Combination. MRT is Multi-Racial Total persons. The sum of these, aside Irum rounding, shouldDe 100 pereent' lor prednminantgroup.
Wh6e-0Iher antl Black-Am.lntlian.White-PariOclanWhil A'' .,e- San,rf MRT Is orer 1%. Wtiae-Black. White^Am.lntl5. AdtliOonal breaks are inotuded (39EaKDW-PSPled124fV'3o)
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42 Krisfina (R)Roegner 6.5 1.1 2.4 2.0 SummR'
'

65
,
Sean (D)O'Biien 6.3 1.0 3.9 0.5 Trumbull

"
62

,
Fende, Lorrafne (D) 6.1 1.0 3.1 1.3 Lake

ff' J
95 Gentila, Lou (D) 6.0 0.7 4.1

2
0.3

91

ersonBelmoM , e
GeaugeCu ahoga'

98 Richard (R)Hollingrcn 5.8 1.0 2. . y ,

76
,
Robert (R)Sprague 5.7 2.5 1.1 1.2 Auglaize', Hancock, Hardin

'
83

,
Dave (R)Burke 5.3 1.0 1.9 1.4 , UnionLogan, Madon

'`
96

.
Landts Al (R) 52 1.4 2.5 0.4 ,Hanison,TuscarawasBelmom

'
94

,
Troy(R)Balderson 5.1 0.5 2.9 0.3 Coshodton, Muskingum

''89
,
Terry(R)Johnson 5.1 0.7 2.6 0.3 , Scioto, LawrenceAdams

'
66

,
Uecker Joe (R) 5.1 1.4 1.4 1.2 Clermont

75
,

Wachalterln, Lynn (R) 5.0 3.7 0.4 0.2 DeBance, Henry, Paulding. Pumam, Van Wert

1 Newbold, Craig (R) 4.7 1.2 2.3 0.3 Columbiana
i

79 Adams, Richard (R) 4.6 0.9 1.7 1.0 Darke, Miam
rawask' TSt'

81 Okey Mark (D) 4.5 0.8 2.5 0.3 ar , uscaCarroll, Mahoning .

3
.

Amstutr, Ron (R) 4.5 1.3 1.4 0.8 Wayne

69 Batchelder, William (R) 4.2 1.3 1.2 1.0 Medina
Sh lbi' h

78 Adams John (R) 4.1 0.9 1.5 0.6 e yampa gn,Augtaize , C

43
,

Todd (R)McKenrley 4.0 0.7 1.4 0.9 Summit'
'

30
,

Mecktenborg• Bob (R) 4.0 0.7 1.7 0.8 Hamigon

88 Rosenberger. Clgf (R) 3.9 0.7 1.6 0.3 Clinton, Highland. Pike
' '

87 Evans, Clyde (R) 3,5 0.6 1.3 0.4 , Vintun, RossGallia, Jackson, Lawrence

90 RuhL Margaret Ann (R) 3.3 0.9 0.8 0.6 Ashland', Knox, Morrow, Richlend
'

93 Thompson, Andy (R) 32 0.5 12 , Noble, WashingtonGuernsey, Monroe, Muskingum
'

50 Chrisrina (R)Hagan 3.0 0.8 1.1 0.4 Stark
'

91
,
Bill (R)Hayes 2.9 0.7 0.9 0.2 , Peny, PickawayHocking. Licking

97
,

Dave (R)Hell 2.8 0.8 0.6 0.5 Ashland', Holmes, Medina

77
,

Jim (R)Buchy 2.4 0.9 0.3 0.4 Darke', Mercer, Preble
'

8fd
,

Bubp,Danny (Fi) 2-3 0.6 0.6 0.2 Adems', Brown, Clermorn

POLIDATA (R) Oemopmphic and Pdifical Guides. AII Rights Reserved. CopydgM (c) 2U11. Pdidata. www.polidafaoq
1. Population for 20101rom PL94171 6edlsbicfing Data Irom U.S. Bureau of the Census. 2000 Census data Imm vadous sources. Sqte poWla6on: 11,536.504, 99 members, Itleal is 116,53D.

2. Pie Chads give a rough apprwumadon of the deviatlon hom Ihe 2010 Ideal Populanon forthe sunent tlistrlct. The overall size of exch pie Is scaled to the ideal population lor Mis distdcttype.

3. A Grey pie, w a Whfle slke, indicates a posilive deviauon (exlra pnpNatlon). A WMte pie, or a Grey slice, indicates a negatrve deviation (short popWa6on).

4. Racial bnvks an: for RacarHispanic Origin Oombinagon. MRT is MulA-Radal Total persons. The sum of Mese, asitle irom mundng, should be 100 pement.' mr predominant group.

5. Addifwnal breaks are induded If MRT is over 1%. White-Black, Whhe-Am.lndan, White-ASian, Whife^Pacific, White-0ther apd Black-Am.lndan.

" ' . ' . . . .. . . .IaepnmEV-pspleEl2-XpM
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1 Hite, Cllff (R)

2 Wagoner, Mark (R)

2010 Pop Ats Dae Rel Dev.

Political Districts
Page 39.Y.1

Hancock, Fulton, Pulnam, Deflance', Williams...
20f0VAP %ofPOp

351,303 1,712 0.49% 264,784 75.4%

Wht Blk Hsp nd Asn P. Olh MIiT

201uPop 92.3 0.9 5.0 0.2 0.8 0.0 0.1 1.0
2010 VAP 93.9 0.9 3.9 0.2 0.8 0.0 0.( 0.6

2010 Pap. Ahs Dev. RetDev.

Lucas', Wood, Erie, Otlawe"
2010VAP %ofPop
281,297 77.4%363,296 13,705 3.92%

Wht Blk flap nd Asn Pac ^ DIh MRT

2010 Pop 88.7 4.2 3.7 0.2 1.6 0.0 0.1 1.5

2010 VAP 90.5 3.9 3.0; 0.2 1.5 0.0 0.1 0.9

3 Bacon, Kevin (R)
Franklin'

Afx Dev. Rel Dev. 2D10 VAP %of Pop2010 Pop.
410,561 60,970 17.44% 306.538 74.7%

WM B0. Hsp nd Mn Pac Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 67.9 21.0 4.6 0.2 3.3 0.0 02 2.7
2010VAP 71.9' 19.1 3.9 0.2 3.3 0.0 0.1 1.5 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.1

Cates, Gary (R)
2010 Pop Abs Dev. Rel Dev.

- Hamlf[orr,Wa"n

2010Pop. AbsDev. RelDev. - ' 2010VAP %ofPop

378,958 29,367 8.401/6 281,239 74.2%

Whl Blk Hsp nd Asn Pas Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO 91

2010 Pop 84.3 72 4.0 0.2 2.4 0.1 0.1 1.8
2010VAP 88.6 6.6 32 0.2 2.4 0.1 0.1 1.0 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0

5 Beagle, Bi11(R) Montgomery', Miami, Darke'

2010 Pop. ACs Dev. Rel Dev. 2010 VAP %of Pop
318,239 -31,352 -8,97% 242,159 76.1%

^ Wht Bik Hsp Ind Asn Pac Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010 Pop 64.9 29.4 2.1 0.2 0.9 0.0 0.2 2.2
2010VAP 67.8 27.9 1.7 02 1.0 0.0 0.1 1.4 0.4 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1

8 Lehner, Peggy (R)
MontOomery'

2010 Pop. Abe Dev. Rel Dev. 2010 VAP %of Pop
336,772 -12,819 -3.67% 260,347 77.3%

^ .. Wht

B6c Hsp nd Aan Pac 0th MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

2010POp 87.7 5.8 2.1 0.2 2.2 0.0 0.1 1.9
2010VAP 89.5' 5.3 1.7 02 2.2 0.0 0.1 1.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0

7 Jones,Shannon(R)

0
S_1 aaineY, Eric H. (0)

Wht Blk Hsp nd Asn Pac Olh MRT
2010 Pop 87.7 4.9 2.2 0.1 3.5 0.0 0.1 1.5
2010VAP 68.8' 5.0 1.8 0.1 3.2 0.0 0.1 0.9

2010 Pop Abs Dev. Rel Dev.

Buger
2010VAP %ofPOp

368,130 18,539 5.30% 275,526 74.8%

Hamilton'
2010VAP %ofPap

337,451 -12;140 -3.47% 255,408 75.7%

WM Blk Hsp nd Asn Pao Olh MRT
2010 Pop 76.0 17.5 2.4 0.1 1.9 0.1 0.2 1.8 . . .
2010 VAP 78.9' 16.0 2.0 0.1 1.9 0.1 0.1 0.9

Hamilton'

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev. '- - 2010 VAP %of Pop
298,658 -50,933 -14.57% 230,305 77.1 %

Whl Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pas Olh MAT

2010Pop 47.9 45.0 2.9 0.2 1.6 0.1 0.2 2.2
2010VAP 52.5' 41.3 2.5 0.2 1.8 0.1 0.1 1.4

WB WI WA WP WO BI

0.5 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2

POLIDATA (R) Demogrdphic and PolPocal Guldes. All Rights Reserved. Copydght (c) 2011. Pulitla+a. wrvw.polkafaor9 -

1. Papulation for2010 tmm PL94-171 Redistricling Data hom U.S. Bureau of Ne Census.200D Census data fmm vadous sourees.5late population: 11,536,51M, 33 membms, ideal is 349,591.
2. Pie Charts give a rou9h appro>oma5on oF the tleviation from Ihe 2010Irleel Populatlon lor the cunentdistrict. The overal size of each pie is scaled to Ne Ideal popula5on for this distrlct type.

3. A Grey pie, or a White slice, inrGCales a posMlve dev¢fion (ezlra popula5an). A Whge pie, or a Grey slioe, indicales x negative deviafion (short populaEon)

4. Racial bRalo; ara for Race/Hispanlc Odgin Cumbinatlon. MRT Is Multi-Racial Total peROOS. The sum of Nese, aside from munding, should be 100 pement. -for predominant group.

5. AdtGtional breaks are included if MRT is over 1%. Whke-Black, Whlle-Am.indian, WhIIe-Aslan, Whi1e-Paclfic, WhiteOtherand BIaCk-Am.lndian.

t39pIYDEVy.PW12-KF3UI . . ' . ' . . . .. .
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10 Widener, Chris (R)
2010 Pop. Abe Dev. Rel Dev.
343.341 -6250 -1.79%0 Wht

2010Pop 85.7
2D1uVAP 872'

Blk
7.7
7.6

FLsp
2.3
1.9

11 Brown. Edna (D)
20f O Pop. Abs Dev. Re1 Dev.
314,125 -35,466--10.15%

WM Blk

201UPop 63.9 24.8

Hsp

7.3
2mnVAP 68.4' .22.8 5.7

12 Faber, Kehh (R)
Abs Dev2t110 Po Rel Dev.p.

346,477 -3,114

.
-0.89%

S Wht B@
2010POp 91.7 4.3
2010VAP 93.1' 4.1

liap
1.6
1.2

13 Manning, Gayle (D) -
Abs Dev2010 Po Rel Dev.p.

370.509 20,918
.

5.98%

[7 Wht BIX
2010 Pop 82.4 6.7
2010 VAP 852 6.4

Hap
7.8
8.2

14 Niehaus, Tom (R)
Abs Dev2010 P. Rel Oev.P.

380,921 31,330
.

8.96%

WM Blk

2010Pop 95.1 1.5

Hsp
12

201UVAP 95.8' 1S 0.9

15 Tavares, ChAe1a B. (D)
2010 Pop. Abs Dev.
364,68D 15.089

Rel D.
4.32%

n

Wht Blk

2010POp 52.7 36.9

Hsp
4.8

201u VAP 57.8 ` 33.4 3.9

16 Hughes, Jim (R)
2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.

ra 388,173 38,582

Wht BD;

11.04%

Hsp

^1
2010P0p 80.3 6.0
2D10VAP 82.8'5S

5.0
4.1

Redistricting Handbook for OHIO
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Greane, Clark, Madison
2010 VAP %of Pop
265,758 77.4%

Ind Asn
0.2 1.7
D.2 1.7

Pac Otl1 MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
0.0 0.2 22
0.0 0.11.3 0.3 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1

Lucas'
2010 VAP %cI PW

Ind Asn

0.3 1.1
0.3 1.2

239.010 76.1%

Pec ON MRT WB W1 WA WP WO BI
0.0 0.2 2.7
0.0 0.1 1.5 . 0.5 020.2 0.0 0.0 0.1

Allen, Darke', Shelby, Mercer, Champelgn...
2010VAP %alPop
259,462 74.9%

Ind Mn
0.2 0.6
0.2 0.6

PW OM MRT

0.0 0.1 1.5
0.0 0.1 0.8

Lorain, Huron', Seneca
P2010 VAP % o op

Ind Mn
0.2 0.8
0.2 0.8

Clermonq Scioto, Brown, Lawrence, Adams
apVAP f P. 2010 %o

288,844 75.3%

nd Mn PW Om MfiT
0.3 0.6 0.0 0.1 1.3
0.3 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.9

Franklin'
2010VAP %ofPOp
282,014 77.3%

ntl Mn Pa,: Oth MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
0.3 22 0.1 0.2 28
0.3 2.5 0.1 0.1 1.9 0.8 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2

Franklin'
2010VAP %otPop
296,320 76.3%

Ind Asn P. OIh MRT WB WI WA WP WO 91
0.2 6.0 0.1 02 23
0.2 6.0 0.0 0.1 1.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.1

17 Daniels, David T. (R) Ross, Lawrence, Jackson. Highland, Piokaway', Gallia; ...

2010Pop. AbsDev. RelDev. ' 2010VAP %olPOP
360,811 11,220 3.21 % 274,252 76.0%

WM Bik Msp Ind Asn Pac Oth MRT
2010POp , 94.0 2.8 1.0 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.1 1.5
2010 VAP 94.4 3.1 0.8 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.9 .

2D10 Pop. Abs Dev. RH Dev.
345,273 -4,318 -124% - ' .. -

Whf Blk HsP nd Asn Pee _ Om MRT
2010 Pop 91.8 2.8 2.7 0.1 1.4 0.0 0.1 12
2010 VAP 93.2' 2.7 2.0 0.1 1.4 0.0 0.1 0.6

POIJDATA R Demo hic and Politiql Guides AII RigMts Reserved. Copydght (c) 2011. Polidate: xww.Pofidataar0Brap

c -.^^.. ^,3i.4';=«^^s,_i¢,3;r4. Cuyahoga'
2Si10VAP %olPop
266,028 77.0%

1. Populeban for201 Dtrorn PL94-171 Redistricting Data hOm U.& Bureau ol Ne Census. 2000 Census data hom various souress. Stale populalbn:11,636,504, 33 membent, itleal I. 349,591.
2. Pie Charts Dive a rough approxlmadon of the neJ,ation fram the 2010Ideal Populadon Ior Necunem rOStriot The ovemli sizeof each pie Is scaled m the Ideal popula6on forthIS hcsUic[ type.

3. A Grey pie, or a WhKa slice, in7cates a positive devia0on (exVa population). A White pie, or a Grey sl'me, indicetes a na9alive deviation (shon populalinn).
4: Racial breaks are for RacoMispanb Origin Combination. MRr is Mulll-Raclal Total persons. The aum of lhese, aside lrwn roundin9, should be 1DD pmcent.' for predominantgraup.
6 Addidonal breaks are included If MRT is over 1%. While-Black White-Am.Indian, White-ASien. WNts-Pecific, WMa-Olher and BWck-Am.lndian.

. . . . . . . . IOaWYDEwPaPI'd12-KI`90)

280,332 75.7%

Pao dh MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
0.0 . 0.1 2.0
0.0 0.1 1.1 0.3 02 020.00.00.1
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19 Jordan, Kris (R)
2010 Pop. Abs Dav. RelOer.

Political Districts
Page 39.Y.3

Delaware, Richland, Knox, Ashiand-, Morrow
2010VAP %o1Pop
301,481 74.2%406,557 56,966 16.30%

V(ht Blk Hap Intl Asn
2010Pop 90.0 4.4 1.6 0.1 2.1
010 vAP 91-0' 4.5 1.3 0.2 2.0

2D Stewart,Jimmy(R)

E
21 Smhh, Shirley A. (D)

22 Obhof, Larry (R)

PM . Olh MRT
0.0 0.1 1.5
0.0 0.1 0.9

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
357,708 8,117 2.32%

Whl Blk Hap Ind Mn P. Oth

2010 Pop 942 2.1 0.9 0.2 0.8 0-0 0.1
2010 VAP 94.9' 2.1 0.7 0.2 0.8 0.0 0.1

201U Pop. Aba Dev. Rel Dev.
280,358 -69,233 - 19.80%

Whl B1k Hsp Ind Mn
2010Pop 34.8 53.2 7.4 0.2 2A
2010VAP 3&8 50.2' 6.4 0.2 2.9

P. Olh
0.0 0.2
O.D. 0.1

2010POp. AbsDeo. RelDev.
370,237 20,646 5.91%

Wnt Blk Hsp Ind Mn Pac Olh
2010POp 95.4 1.1 1.4 0.1 0.8 0.0 0.1
2010VAP 962` 1.1 1.1 - 0.1 0.8 0.0 .0.0

23 Skindell, Michael J. (D)
2010 Pop. Abs tlev. Rd Dev.
311,985 -37,606 -10.76%

WM Blk Hsp Intl Asn P. ON MRT WB WI WA WP WO 61
2010 Pop 77.5 9.0 B.8 02 2.3 0.0 02 1.9
2010 VAP 81.2 7.9 7.1 02 2.3 0.0 0.1 1.1 0.3 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 .0.1

24 Patmn,Thomas(R)
2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dsv.
359,580 9,989 2.86%

Wht Blk Hap Intl Asn Pac Om MRT
2010Pop 89.5 3.6 2.1 0.1 3.4 0.0 0.1 1.2

2010VAP 90.8 3.4 1.7 0.1 3.2 0.0 0.1 0.7

25- Tumer,Nina(D)

26 GIIImor,Karen(R)

0
27 LaRose, Frank (R) _

2010 Pop. Abs Dev. Rel Dev.
306,356 -43;235 -12-37 %

Medina, Ashland*. Wayne, Holmes
2010VAP %WPOp
273,023 73.7%

CuyBhoga`
2010VAP %olPOp
244,920 78.5%

Cuyahoga'
2010VAP %ofPap
280,398 78.0%

Cu'rahoga
2010 VAP %of Pop
234,090 76.4%

Wht 131k Hsp Ind Asn Pac Olh MRT WB WI WA WP WO 81
2010 Pop 34.8 59.9 1.6 0.1 1.6 0.0 02 1.8
2010VAP 38.3 57.3 1.4 0.1 1.6 0.0 0.1 1.2 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2

2010 Pop. Abs Der. Rel Dev.

Sandusky, Seneca', Ottawa', Marion, Crawford, Union...
2010VAP %ofPop

347,609 -1,982 -0.57% 263,535 75.8°ro' -

WIM Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pec Olh MRT

2010 Pop 91.5 2-6 3.4 0-2 0.8 0.0 0.1 1.4 . .
2010VAP 92-9 2.7 2.5 - 0.2 0.80.0 0.0. 0.8

2010POp 85.8 8.3 1.4 0.2 2.4 0.0 0.1 1.8
2010VAP 88.0' 7.4 1.1 02 - 2.2 0-0 0.1 1.0 - 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1

_ - _ _- . SunimlP

2010 PaP. Abs Dav: HerD,^,+ 201U VAP %of Pop

348,274 -1,317 -0.38% 267,438 76.8%

Whl Blk - Hsp Intl Mn Pac OM MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI

POIIDATA (R) Demo9raphic and PoIlXCaI GuiUes AII RI9MS Reeervetl.COpytlght (c) 2U11. Politlata. www.poFtlalaory
1. Population lor 201U lmm PI94-171 Retlistnctlng Da1a fmm U.S. Bureau of Me Censua:2D0UCensus tlatafmm varbua sources. S[ate populaGOn: 11,536,504, 33 members. idaal Ls 349,591.

2 Pie Charls give a mugh approximation ol the deviafion from the 2010Ideal Population lor the eunent diaMct. The orerall size of eatli pie is scaled to the ideal population lorthis dislrict lype.

3. A Grey pie, or a Whiie slbe, indicates a posfllve daWatWn (extra population). A Whke pie. ora Grey slice, Indicates a negative GeviaHon (shorl population).

4. Raelal breeks are lor RaceHispanic Origia Oombinatlon. MRT is Multi-Raaal Total pensons. The sum of Ihese, asltle Irom mmartlin9, should be 100 pelcem.' for pnWominant group.

5. ACEhional breaks are included it MRT is ouer 1 %. White-Black, WhBt Am.lndian, While-Aslan, Whitefachic, While-Olher antl Black-Am.lndian.. --

(39pMD2Vy>'VW12-Nf30] . - - .. . . . . .. . ' . .. .

Muskingum, Washington, Coshocton, Athens'...
201oVAP %otppp
280,495 78.4%

MRr WB W1 WA WP WO BI
1.7
1.1 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

Cuyahoga'
2mOVAP %olPop
212,591 75.8%

MRT WB WI WA WP WO BI
1.8
1.4 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2

MRT
1.0
0.7
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Sawyer, Thomas (D)

29 Oelslager,SOOtt (R)

0
30 Wilson, Jason (D)

O
31 Schaffer, Tim (R)

32 Cataro, Capri (D)

33 Schiavonl, Joe (D)

0

. . Redistricting Handbook for OHIO
District Populations for STATE SENATE

2010 P.P. Abs Dev. Rel Dev. .

SummB', Portage
. 2010 VAP %oi Pop

354,926 5,335 1.53% 278,509 78.5%

WM Blk Hsp Ind Asn P. Oh MRT WB WIWA WP WO 81

201UPop 79.0
2'2010VAP 81

15.5
14 3

1.8
1 4

0.2
0 2

1.6
1 7

9.0
0.0

0.1
0.1

1.9
1.2 0.3 02 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1.

.

. . . .

' ' . ' Stark'

2D10 Pop. Abs Dev. Ral D. 2010 VAP %of Pop

337,506 -12,085 -3.46% 259,935 77.0%

Wht elk Hap lnd Mn Pae Oth MRT WB VA WAWP WO BI

2010 Pop 87.6 7.6 1.6 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.2 2.0

2010 VAP 89.8' 6.8 1.3 02 0.7 0.0 0.1 1.1 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1

2010POp. AbsDev. RelDev. .

Columblana. Tuscarawas'; Jefferson, Hanison...
2010VAP %aPop

710338 881-10 .3.11% 266,185 78.6%
,

Wm

,

Blk Hap IM Asn Fac ON MRT

2D70 Pop 94.0 2.9 1.3 0.1 0.3 0.0 0.1 1.3

2010 VAP 94.7' 3.0 1.1 0.1 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.7

DevAb Rel Dev

Llcldng, Fairfiekl, Perry, Hocking, Pickaway
2010 VAP %of Pop

2010 PuP
403,786

.s
54,195

.
15.50% 301,729 74.7%

Wht Blk Hsp Ind Am P. ON MfiT

2010 Pop . 92.3 3.7 1.4 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.1 1.6

2010 VAP 93.6' 3.3 1.1 02 0.7 0.0 0.1 0.9

2010 Pop. Ah^. Dev. Rel Dev.

Trumbull, Ashtabula
2010 VAP %of Pop

311,808 -37,782 -10.81% 241,170. 77.3%

Wnt Bik Hap Ind Asn P. Oth MRT

2D10 Pop 89.0 6.6 2.0 0.2 0A 0.0 0.1 1.7

2010VAP 90.7` 63. 1.5 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.9

2010 P Abs Dev Rel Dev

Mahooing. Stark', Qanoll, Tuscamwas'
2010 VAP %of Pop

op.
323 425

.
166-26

.
-7.48%

252,631 78.1%
,

WM

.

Blk Hsp Ind Asn Pac OON Mrrr

2010 Pop 81.7 12.1 3.7 02 0.6 0.0 0.1 1.6

2010 VAP 84.0' 11.2 . 3.1 0.2 0.6 0.0 0.1 0.9

POLIDATA (R) Denro9rephic and Pollticai Guides. AO Ri91tls Reservetl. CopydgM (c) 2011. Polidala vrv+w.polidau.org - - -

1. Population for2010 iromP194171 RedsbicOng Datafmm U.S. Bureau Of MeCenau.2000 Census date from vadous soumea. SWte poWietion-11,536.504, 33 members, Ideal is 949,591. .
2. Pie Charls pive a mu9h appro>dmation of Ihe devia5on trom tne 2010Ideal Populatlan lor Ihe current dislrict. The overall size of eaoh ppa is acaled to the ideal populalion for this distdct typa:

3. A Grey pie, or a Whlle slice, indicates a positive deviation (ektra populsEOn). A While pie, er a Grey skc¢, indicates a negallve devleGOn (shoM1 populatbn).

4. Radal breaks are for RaePJHispanic Odgin Combinacon. MRi is Multi-Raoal TOtel persons. The sumoi tliese; aside from roundin9, sh0utd be 100 peicmt.' for predOminant9mup.

5. Adtlitional breaks ere included H MRT Is Over 1% Whife-Black, White-Am.Indien, White-Avlan. Whhe-Pacirn, Whlle-Other and Black-Am.lndian.
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Ranked by 2010 Population per Member with Deviation from Ideal Population for 2010

ED Member TutPop AsbDer Remav District

3 Kevin (R)e 561410 60,970 17.44 Franklin'

19
acon,

Kds (R)Jordan
,

406,557 56,966 16.30 Delawere, Richland, Knox, Ashland', Morrow

31
,

Schaffer, Tim (R) 403,786 54,195 15.50 Ucking, FairBeld, Perry, Hocking. Pickaway
'16 Hughes,Jim (R) 388,173 38-582 11.04 Franklin

Lawrenoe AdamsScioto BrownontCl14 Tom (R)Niehaus 380,921 31.330 8.96 ,, .,erm

7
,

Jones,Shannon(R) 378,95B 29,367 8,40 Hamihon', Warren
S'

13 Manning, Gayle (D) 370,509 20,918 5.98
1

enecaLorain. Huron ,
HolmesWayneAshland'M di22 Obhof Larry (R) 370,237 20,64B 5.9 ,,e na,

4
,

Cates, Gary (R) 36B,130 18,539 5.30 BuOer
'

15 Tavares,Chrlete B.(D) 364.680 15.089
1 705

4.32
3 92

Franklin
Ottawa"Wood ErieLucas'

2
17

Wagoner, Mark (R)
Daniels, David T. (R)

363,296
360,811

3.
11,220

.
3.21

. ..
Ross, Lawrence, Jackson, Highland, Pickaway', Gallia,...

24 Thomas (R)Patton 359,580 9,989 2.86 Cuyahoge'
'

20
,

Stewart, Jimmy (R) 357,708 8,117 2.32 ...Muskingum, Washington, Coshocton. Atltens
t e' P

28 Sawyer, Thomas (D) 354,926 5,335 1.53 or agSummit .
lliamsfi e Wt D

1 Hite,CldF(R) 351,303 1,712 0.49 anc , i ...nam, eHancock, Fulton, Pu
'27 LaRDSe,Frank(R) 348,274 -1.317 -0.38 Summit

Union...CrawkMOftawa' MadonSeneca'kS d26 Karen (R)Gillmor 347,609 d,982 -0.57 ,, ,,y,an us

12
,

Faber, Kehh (R) 348,477 -3,114 -0.89 Allen, Dadce', Shelby, Mercer, Champaign...
'C h

18 Grendell, Timothy (R) 345,273 - 4,318 -1.24
791

uya ogaLake, Geauga,
Clatk MadlsonGreene10 Chds (R)Widener 343,341 -6,250 - . ,

'
30

.
Wilson,Jason(D) 338,710 -10,881 -3.11 , Jeffemon, Hanison...Columbiana, Tuscerawas

29 Oelslager, Scott (R) 337,50f3 -12,OB5 -3.46 Stark'

8 Sei1z, William (R) 337,451 -12,140 -3.47 Hamilton'
'6 Lehner, Peggy (R) 336,772 -12,819 -3.67 Momgomery

Carrall Tuscarawas'StarMM h i33 Joe (D)Sohiavonl 323,425 -26,166 -7AB ,,a on ng,
' '

5
,

Bea91e, Bill (R) 318,239 31,352 -8.97 , DarkeMontgomery'. Miami

11 Brown, Edna (D) 314,125 35,466 -10.15 Lucas'

23 Michael J. (D)Skindell 311,985 -37,606 -10.76 Cuyahoga"

32
,

Cafaro. Capri (D) 311.809 -37,782 -10.81 Trumbull. Ashtabula
'25 Turner, Nina (D) 306,356 -43.235 -12.37 Cuyahoge

'9 Kearney, Eric H. (D) 298,658 -50,933 -14.57 Hamilton
'21 SmSh, Shirley A. (D) 280,358 -69.233 -19.80 Cuyahoga

PGLIDATA (R) Demographlc end Politlcal GuNes. All Rights Reserved. Capyright (c) 2011. Polidet3 www.poIPoata.org

1. Population for 2010 fmm PL94-171 Redlslricfin9 Data from U.S. Bumao of Ne Census. 2nD9 Census data fmm various soumes. 6tate populaliom 11,538,501, 33 mambers, ideal k 349,591.

2. Pie Chans 9Me a mugh approrimalbn of the tlevia4on hnm the 2010 Ideal Papulafion torthe curreM Rsirict The overall sl2e ol each pie is scaled to the Ideal population for thls disldct type.

3. A Grey pie, or a Whhe slice, indicates a positive devlaUon (extra population). A White pie, oraGrey slice, indicates a negative deJetlon (short population).

4. fladal breaks am kr Race/Hispanic Gngin Combination. MRT Is Multi-Raclal Tdal peraons. The sum of fiese, aslde from rounding, should ba 100 pement' for predominant gmup.

5. Atloirtonal breaks are included it MRF Is over 1%. White-elack, Whge-lvnindian, WNte-Asian, Whim-Pacilic, WhBe-0iher and Black-Am.lndian.

fasM'pEVynqael2-KFaal . - .. . - . , . . .
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Ranked by Member (Last Name) with Deviation from Ideal Population for 2010

FA Member TotPop AsbDev RelDev Disblet

3 Kevin (R)Becon 410,561 60,970 17.44 Franklin'
• ''

5
,

8111(R)leBea 318,239 31,352 -8.97 ,Darke .,MiamiMorttgomery
.

11
,g

BroW n, Edna (D) 314,125 -35,468 -10.15 Lucas• . .
AshtabulallT b

32
4

Cafaro, Gapd (D)
Cates, Gary (R)

311.809
368,130

-37,782
18,539

.-10.81
5.30

,rum u
Bu6er

.:.Pickaway', Gallia,HighlandJacksonLawrenceR
17 David T. (R)Deniels 360,811 11,22D 321 ,,.oss,

ai nh'
12

,
Kelth (R)Faber 346,477 -3,114 -0.89 g ...amp, Shelby, Mercer, CAllen, Darke

Union:CrawfordM r' '
26

,
Keren (R)Gillmor 347,609 •1,982 -D.57 ..,lon,a, Ohawa ,Sandusky, Senerz

'
18

,
Grendell, Timothy (R) 345•279 -4,318 -1.24 Lake;Geauga,Cuyahoga

Williams...Degance'Fulton PutnamckH.
1

16
Hi[e, CIiB (R)
Hughes, Jim (R)

351,303
388,173

1,712
38,582

0.49
11.04

4

,, .,anco
FrankYn'

Warrenmilfon'H
7 Shannon (R)Jones 378,958 29,367 08. ,a

Morrowhl d'
19

,
Jordan, Kris (R) 406,557 56,968 16.30 an ,Delaware, Richland, Knox, As

H iBon'
. 9

27
Kearney. Edc H. (D)
LaRose, Frank (R)

298,658
348,274

-50,933
-1,317

-14.57

-0,38

am
Summ@`

mer lM t
6 Pe9gy (R)Lehner 336,772 -12,819 -3.67 go y7on

'
13

,
Manning. Gayle (D) 370-509 20,918 5.98 , SenecaLorain,Huron

Lawrenca, AdamsBrownmonq SciotoCl
14 Niehaus,Tom (R) 380•821 31.330 8.98

91
,,er

HolmesWayneAshland'Medina
22 Larry (R)Obhot 370,237 20,846 5. ,,.

`
29

,
Scatt (R)Oeislager 337,506 -12,0B5 -3.46 Stark ' - .

`
24

,
Thomas (R)Patton 359,580 9,989 2.86 Cuyahoga

28
,

Thomas (0)erSaw 354,926 5,335 1.53 SummiC, Portage
Pi waki k

31
,y

Tirn (R)Scha6er 403.786 54,195 15.50 a yng, cLicking, Fairfield, Perry, Hoc
was'T'

33
,

Schiavoni, Joe (D) 323,425 -26.166 -7.48 usoara,Carro(hMahoning,Srark
ilton'H

8 Seitz, Williem (R) 337.451 -12.140
7 606

-3.47
7610

am
Cuyahoga'

23 Michael J. (D)Skirdell 311,985 ,-3 .•
'

21
,

Shiney A. (D)Smith 280,358 -69,233 -19.80 Cuyahoga
Athens'h t

20
,

Jimmy (R)Shtwart 357,708 8,117 2.32 ...on,ocMuskingum,Washington,Cos
'

15
,

Chdeta B. (D)Tavares 364,680 15,089 4.32 FranMln
'

25
.

Turner, Nina (D) --' 306.358 -43.235 -12.37 Cuyahoga
Ottawa"Wood Eries'L

2 Wagoner, Mark (A) 363,296 13,705 3.92
79-1

.,uca ,
MadisonClarkGreene

10 Chris (R)Widener 343,341 -6,250 . ,,
HanlsonB'

30
,

Wilson, Jason (D) 338,710 -10,881 -3.11 ...erson,, JeColumblana. Tuscarawas

or9polidatawwwPolitlela2011M ...(c) .POLIDATA (R) Domographp and Pdiboal GuiGes: All Rights Reseroed. Copydg

1. Populalion tur 2e10lrom PL9A-171 Redislricling Data fmm U.S. Bun:au oi Ihe Census. 20D0 Census deta hom varlous sources. 31ate populaliort 11,53B,5D4,.33 memDers, ideal is 349,581.

2. Pie Chens 9ive a rough appnnumation of the deviacon 1mm the 2010Ideal Population lorthe currenl astdel. The ovarall size of each pie is scaled to the itleal population farthis distdct type.

3. A Grey Pie, Dra Wnile slioe, mtlieatss a pasAive devia4on (exba population). A Whita Pie, or a Grey srae. intlicates a ne9afive deriaaon (sholtpopuladon} . , ,

4. Racial breaks are ror RaceNiup?nic 0ri91n CambilaMon. MRT is Multi-Raelal Tolel Peisons. Tne sum of rhese, aside lrom roundin9, should be t0D pemenr. • for predominant 9mup.

-5. AddlAonal breaks are included if MRT is over 1 Y. WhileBlack, Whke-Am.Indian, White-ASIan, Wrtix-Pac16c, WDlte-0Ner and Blask-Am.lndan. _ I^^^^t2-KFaDj -



Redistricting Handbook for OHIO
District Populations for STATE SENATE

Ranked by 2010 Minority Voting Age Population for Selected Subgroups

Pofrtical Districts
Page 39.Y.7

ED Member Minoah' Hspftat f3lack Asian Distdct

25 Turner, Nine (D) 61.7 @ 1.4 57.3 @ 1.6 Cuyehoge
ho a'C

21
9

Smhh, Shirley A. (D)
Kearney, Eric H. (D)

61.2 is
47.4

6.4
2.5

50.2 @
41.3.

2.9
1.8

guya
Hamilton'

anktin'F
15 Chrieta B. (D)Tavares 42.2 3.9 33.4 2.5 r

''
5

,
6ill(R)Beagle 32.3 1.7 27.9 1.0 , M)ami , DarkeMontgomery

'
11

.
Edna (D)Brown 31.6 5.7 22.8 1.2 Lucas

`
3

,
Kevin (R)Bacon 28.1 3.9 19.1 3.3 Franklin

'
8

,
Seitz, Wdliam (R) 21.1 2.0 16.0 1.9 HamiBon

ePortan8'S
28 Sawyer, Thomas (D) 18.9 1.4 14.3

7 9
1.7

32
gu1m ,

Cuyahoge
23 Skindell, Michael J. (D) 18.7 7.1 . .

Franklin`
16 Hughes, Jim (R) 17.3 4.1 5S 6.0

Tuscarawas'CarrollStark"honinM
33 Joe (D)Schiavoni 16.1 3.1 . 11.2 0.6 ,,g,a

`
is

,
Gayle (D)Manning 14.8 6.2 6.4 0.8 , SenecaL.orain, Huron

4
,

Cates, Gary (R) 13.6 32 6.6 2.4 Butler
Mad'ISonClarkeG

10 Widener. Chris (R) 12.8 1.9 7.6
7 4

1.7
2 2

,reen ,
Summlt`

27 Frank (R)LaROSe 12-0 1.1 . .
'

7
,

Jones, Shahnon (R) . 11-1 1.8 5.0 3.2 , WarrenHamtRon
er 'M t

8 Lehner. Peggy (R) 10.6 1.7 5.3
6 8

2.2
70

yon gom
Stark'

29 Scott (R)Oelslager 10.2 1.3 . .
"Oi'

2
,

Wagoner Mark (R) 9.6 3.0 3.9 1.5 trawa ., Wood, Er e,Lucas

32
,

CaParo, Capd (D) 9.3 1.5 6.3 0.4
2

Trumbull, Ashtabula
aho a`C

24 Patton,Thomas(R) 9.2 1.7 - 3.4 3.
2 0

guy
Ashland', MorrowRichlarM KnoxDeleware

19 Kris (R)Jordan 9.0 1.3 4.5 . , ,,
C Unionf d' ' i

26
,

Karen (R)Gillmor 7.1 2.6 2.7 0.8 ...rew or ,on,, Ottawa , MarSandusky, Seneca
Ch i

12
,
Keith (R)Faber 7.0 1.2 4.1 . 0.6 ampa gn...Allen,barke, Shelby, Mercer,

'
18

,
Timothy (R)Grendell 5.9 2A 2.7 1.4 Lake, Geauga, Cuyahoga

waPi k
31

,
Schafler,Tim (R) 6.3 1.1 3.3 0.7 yc aLicking, Fairfield, Perry, Hocking.

Williams...Defiance'Fulron PutnamckH
1 Hhe, Cliff (R) 6.2 3.9 0.9 0.6 ,, ,,ancp

Gallia, ...Pickaway'Jackson, HighlandLawrenceR
17 David TDaniels (A) 55 0.8 3.1 0.4 , ,,oss,

niH`
30

..
Jason (D)Wilson 5.2 1.1 3.0 0.3 son.-.a, JeBerson.Columbiana,Tuscerawas

i n Athe s'C h
20

,
Jimmy (R)Stewarf 5.0 0.7 2.1 0.8 ...o , nos ocMuskingum, Washington,

Ad m
14

„
Niehaus Tom (R) 4.2 0.9 1.5 0.6 a sClermont, Scloto. Brown, Lawrence,

'
22

,
Obhof, Larry (R) 3.8 1.1 1.1 0.8 , Wayne, HolmesMedine, Ashland

POLIDATA (R) Demogmphic and Politkal GultleB. All Rights Reserved. Copyr!ght (c) 2011. Pofdeta www.polidata.org
1. PoPUlafion for2mD fmm P194-171 Redslricling Data from U.S. Bureau of the Census. 2000 Census data from vadous sourses. Slale populenon:11,536,504. 33 mambers, ideal Is 349,591.
2. Pie Charls give a rough approvmation ol Me deviation lrom Me 201010eal Populztion for Ihe cunent district The overall size of each pie is scaled to the itleal populadon for this district type.

3. A Grey pie, ar a While sNCe, indicates a posilive devie0on (ertra populatlon). A White pie, ora Grey slice, indkates a negative devatlon (short populatlon):

4. Racial breaks are for FacdHispanie Ofigin Combinauon. MRr Is Multl-Racial To1al pareons. The sum otMese, aside from rounding, should be 100 pemem.' for predominant gmuP

5. AUEltional breakc are included l MRT is over i%. Whife-Bleck. Wnile-Am.lndian, Whbe-ASien, Wh'ReAablic, WNte-Olher end Bleck-Am.lndian.

(99ynDEV-VSPled12-KF9% .
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ROLL CALL

DATE: 8/22/11(_OSU-Lima)

m lD
ki

^gn^esM,e bers
.. . . ..: .. ... _..,.'....,.,, . _.i_ :

..; _ 3

Michael Grodhaus (Designee for Governor Kasich)
Auditor Dave Yost 3

Halle Pelger (Desi ee for Secretary Husted) 3

Matthew Schuler Desi ee for President Niehaus ) 3

Rep. Kathleen Clyde (Designee for Leader Budish) 3

RAYDIROSSI,SECRETARY



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

WITNESS & MEDIA INFORMATION

PLEASE COMPLETE THE WITNESS/MEDIA INFORMATION FORM BEFORE TESTIFYING

DATE: // ,y az 20//

NAME:

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE):

POSITION/TITLE:

ADDREss: 2 08/ G3 - t-lrv J'i

CITY: STATE:4*0 ZIP:

TELEPHONE: ^JL9 ) 228 '/ y y^ EMAIL: /'S CO.J- L L°

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF- . ORGANIZATION

WILL YOU HAVE A WRITTEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAL TO DISTRIBUTE?

YHS: No: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

IF YOU ARE PRESENT ON BEHALF OF A MEDIA ORGANIZATION, PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO

RECORD:

AUDIOTAPE: VIDEOTAPE: BROADCAST:



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

WITNESS & MEDIA INFORMATION

PLEASE COMPLETE THE WITNESSIMEDIA INFORMATION FORM BEFORE TESTIFYING

DATE: ^! 41

NANIE: y i ^ liju_ . . _ . , . .

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE): A (-Le^o d0up Tz Ve/^ ^AGe-

POSITION/TITLE: 116TSViak

ADDRESS:

CITY: L`t^VY STATE: 19/7 ZIP: TO0

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF 3 ORGANIZATION

TELEPIJONE:I Dig

WILL YOU HAVE A VJRTTTEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAL TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: NO: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

IF YOU ARE PRESENT ON BEHALF OF A MEDIA ORGANIZATION, PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO

RECORD:

AUDIOTAPE: VIDEOTAPE: BROADCAST:



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

WITNESS & MEDIA INFORMATION

PLEASE COMPLETE TI-IE WITNESS/MEDIA INFORMATION FORM BEFORE TESTIFYING

DATE: 8 22- Z.0

NAME: OV uA^V /r'

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE): A ^^r^ ° ^ ^vTy

POSITION/TITLE: / O n^ ^►+ ! SS i aN L^1

CTIY: L/^' STATE: Dl1^a ZIP: y5^.go z

TELEPHONE: ( Y^/ ) Z 23-85`dY EMAII.:
^FF^A^tew " K.v^f' al,id. ce.••

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF . ' ORGANIZATION

WILL YOU HAVE A WRIITHN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAI. TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: No: v (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TOIF YO:J AqB pnFgENT npr ugunr F nF a MFDiA ORGANIZATION,

RECORD:

AUDIOTAPE: VIDEOTAPE: BROADCAST:



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

WITNESS & MEDIA INFORMATION

PLEASE COMPLETE THE WITNESS/MEDIA INFORMATION FORM BEFORE TESTIFYING

DATE:

NAME:

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE):

I ^ .

POSITION/TrrLE:

ADDRESS: 11^v

CITY: STATE: ZIP:

'I'ELEPHONE: ( EMAIL:
. . . . . . .^^ . .

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF ORGANIZATION

WILL YOU HAVE A WRITIEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAL TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: NO: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

IF YOU ARE PRESENT ON BEHALF OF A MEDIA ORGANIZATION, PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO

RECORD:

AUDIOTAPE: VIDEOTAPE: BROADCAST:



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD
8-22-11

SAM BASSITT
ALLEN COUNTY COMIVIISSIONER

Thank you for this opportunity to offer a few brief remarks at this hearing of the Ohio

Apportionment Board on the Ohio State University Lima Campus. I am Allen County

Commissioner Sam Bassitt.

I have been a resident of Allen County for over 60 years, and have represented the

citizens of Allen County as a township Trustee for over 20 years, and as a county

Commissioner for nearly 10 years. During all of those years it has been my privilege to

work closely with our local elected Representatives and Senators.

The challenge of effective representation has, I believe, been met here in Allen County

and our region of the state. In terms of the House of Representatives, the single county

representative has been effective and served our citizens well. I believe the citizens of our

12 townships, our 8 villages, and our 2 cities, of Alien County have solid represcritaiion

at the General Assembly. In terms of the Senate, the current configuration brings together

the common interests of our strong agricultural community as well as our business and

industrial economic interests.

In summary, I believe the current stnacture, has served our county and our region with

solid representation at the state level.



OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

WITNESS & MEDIA INFORMATION

PLEASE COMPLETE lIl&WlJlqESS/MEDIA INFORMATION FORM BEF RE TESTIFYING

DATE:

NAME:

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE):

POSTTION/TITLE:

ADDRESS:. -G ^--
CITY: C' I STATE: ZIP:

S
TELEPHONE: (_ (!^^^) 2Z?i"/^`^ I EMAIL:

C7I`} f^ ^v

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF /,f!f:^ ORGANIZATION

WILL YOU HAVE A WRITTEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAL TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: )_ NO: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

IF YOU ARE PRESENT ON BEHALF OF A MEDIA ORGANIZATION, PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO

nE,CO

AUDIC+TAPE : VIDEOTAPE: B ROADCAST:

r^ ^^Qor



WYOMING LEGISLATIVE SERVICE OFFICE

K f

DATE April 14,2011

To Members,Sixty-First Legislature of the State of Wyomipg.

FROM Matt Obrecht, Staff Attorney

SUBJECT Principles of State Legislative Redistricting Law

Introduction

i um

There are basic legal principles of redistricting state legislative districts which help guide
a legislature to craft a redistricting plan that>isconsti.tutional and which will survive a court
challenge. This memorandum will.provide a discussion of these guiding principles and their
judicial development, as well as a brief history of challenges to past Wyoming redistricting plans.
Hopefully this memorandum will be a helpful guide to legislators as the Joint Corporations,
Elections and Political Subdivision Interim Committee begins the process of developing plans for
redistricting Wyoming State.House.andSenate districts based on the201.0 United States Census.

Discussion -Redistricting Principles

On April 12, 201"I, `the"9oint "Corporations,E'lections and'Potitioal Subdivision Interim

Committee, which is tasked with sponsoring a redistricting bill for introduction during the 2012

session, adopted a list of "Redistricting Principles". Any plan developed by the Committee was

reqtlireu' to adhere to tile Redlstrlcti ng Principles. The Redistriefing Princi`n,les arlnpted hv the

Committee were:

1. Election districts should be contiguous, compact, and reflect a community of

interest;

2. Population of election districts should be substantially equal, with the range of

deviation not to exceed 10%;

3: To the greatest extent possible, in establishing election districts:
a. County boundaries should be followed;
b. The majority.oftlm-popuL4inn-ofaach.eounty should be in one district;
c. Census blocks shouid belollowed.
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4. The plan should avoid diluting voting power of minorities in violation of the
Voting Rights Act;

5. The House shall have 60 seats and the Senate shall have 30 seats;

6. Consideration should be given to two (2) contiguous House districts in each
Senate district; and

7. Significant geographical features should be considered in establishing districts.

This'memorandum will discuss'each'b'f'the Redistricting Principles -to give all members
of the Legislature, a background understanding of why these principles are necessary to ensure
that the 2012 redistricting plan will meet or exceed all constitutional requirements.

One Person - One Vote

"One person, one vote" is the overarching guiding principle and ultimate goal of all

redistricting efforts. This phrase encompasses the notion that the full protections of the United

States Constitution are imposed on State actions effecting voting in general, and legislative
redistricting in particular, through the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to
the United States Constitution.' The concept of "one person, one vote" has been described by

the United States Supreme Court as meaning that "as nearly as is practicable one man's vote in a
...election is...worth as muc'h as anothe'r's."z In furtherance of this principle, the United States
Supreme Court has held that when drawing legislative boundaries "the overriding objective
must be substantial equality of population among the various districts, so that the vote of any
citizen is approximately equal in weight to that of any other citizen in the State."3

. To ensure population equality among state legislative districts,. the.. United States

Supreme Court eventually settled on a formula that a legislative districting plan with a
maximum population deviation of 10% or less of the ideal district population (that is if the
largest legislative district contains a population 10% larger or less than the population of the
smallest legislative district) does not establish a prima facie violation of the Equal Protection

TheFourteenthAmendmentprovides:

All persons bom or naturalized in the United States, and subject to the
jurisdiction thereof, are citizens of the United States and of the State wherein
they reside. No State shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the
privileges orimmunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any State
deprive any person of life, liberty, or property; without due process of law; nor
deny to any person within itsjurisdiction the equal protection of the laws.

' Wesbervy v. Sanders, 376 U.S. 1, 8(1964).

Reynolds r. Sims, 377 U.S. 533, 579 (1964).
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Clause The effect of this ruling is that if a state advances a plan with less than a 10% total
deviation, there is no burden on the state to justify the population deviation.5 While adopting a
redistricting plan with a total deviation of less than 10% does not guarantee that a Court will
find the plan constitutional, it is the most sure approach that states have employed to prevent
and then defeat challenges to their redistricting schemes.

Redistricting in Wyoming - From Statehood to Present

The decisions of the United States Supreme Court requiring substantial population
equity among all state legislative districts have directly clashed with provisions of the
WyomingConstitution;'}lrtiblc'3, Section 3'wiri'c'h provides: '

Each county shall constitute a senatorial and representative district; the

senate and house of representatives shall be composed of inembers elected by the
legal voters of the counties respectively, every two (2) years. They shall be
apportioned among the said counties as nearly as may be according to the number
of their inhabitants. Each county shall have at least one senator and one
representative; but at no time shall the number of members of the house of
representatives be less than twice nor greater than three times the number of
members of the senate. The senate and house of representatives first elected in
pursuance of this constitution shall consist of sixteen and thirty-three members

respectively. (emphasis added).

All of Wyoming's redistricting plans from statehood incorporated the requirement that
each county constitute at least one senate and house distribt:6 However, things began to change
with the redistricting cycle following the 1960 census. The Federal District Court for the District
of Wyoming held that the 1963 Wyoming redistricting plan, which provided that each county was
its own.senate district, was a violation of the 14th Amendment to the United States Constitution.7

The Schaefer court stated that strict compliance with Art. 3, § 3 of the Constitution "would be
wholly unreasonable, untenable and impractical."e The court then went on to bold that "the
Wyoming Reapportionment Act of 1963... insofar as it provides for representation in the state
senate, constitutes an invidious discrimination, and violates the equal protection clause of the
Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution.

Gafney v. Cummings, 412 U.S. 735, 751-52 (1973).

s Gorrn v. Karpan, 788 F. Supp. 1199, 1201 (D. Wyo. 1992).

' Various Wyoming Redistricting Plans have alsoincorporated multi-member districts which will be further
addressed in this memorandum.

" ld. at 252
.Schaejer, 240 F.Supp at 252.
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The Schaefer decision, however, did not alter the manner in which representatives to the
Wyoming House were apportioned. Redistricting plans subsequent to Schaefer still provided that
each county was required to be, at least, its own house district. In fact, the 1981 redistricting
plan, which provided that every county shall constitute at least one house district, survived a
direct challenge to the United States Supreme Court.10 However, everything changed following

the decision in Gorin v. Karpan, 775 F.Supp, 1430 (D. Wyo. 1991). Gorin is currently the
leading case on redistricting law in Wyoming. In Gorin, the United States District Court for the
District of Wyoming held that Wyoming's 1991 Legislative Reapportionment Act was an
unconstitutional violation of the Equal Protection Clause because the 1991 Act had a population
deviation of 83% in the House of Representatives which served no rational state policy. The
1991 i,egislative"Reappottion'ment A'ct`a'llobated'one'representativeto`each county regardless of
county population, with the remaining 15 seats allocated among the most populous counties. The

Gorin court held that the Legislature must disregard Art. 3, Section 3 when reapportioning house
seats because of its inherent conflict with the one person, one vote principle. The court set a
deadline for the legislature to develop a plan which conformed to the requirements of the United
States Constitution and also explicitly warned the legislature that if it failed to come up with a
plan which satisfied these constitutional requirements by the deadline, the court itself would
reapportion the state legislative districts., ^

Leaislative Response

In response to the District Court's decision in Gorin, the Wyoming Legislature enacted a
new redisti•icting plan in 1992.12 The 1992 Act was a"nested" plan - two house districts were
placed wholly inside of the boundaries of one senate district. The house and senate boundaries
did not adhere strictly to county boundaries. The 1992 Acthad a range of population deviation
of less than 10% among districts in each chamber of the legislature. The Federal District Court
for the District of Wyoming concluded that the 1992 act met the constitutionally required
mandate. of substantial equality of population among legislative distr.icts.13

The 2002 Redistricting Act14 followed the basic structure and guidelines of the 1992 Act
and used nested house and senate districts with a population deviation of less than 10%. The
2002 redistricting plan was not challenged in court.

Minority Voters and Communities of Interest

^n Brown r. Thomson, 462 U.S. 835 (U.S. 1983).

Id. at 1466.

See 1992 Session Law Chapter l, § 7.

° Gorin v. Karpan, 788 F. Supp. 1199 (D. Wyo. 1992).

^a See Wyoming Session Laws 2002 Sp. Ses§. cti.l, §l:
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The Voting Rights Act of 1965 had broad reaching effects on the manner in which states
conducted the redistricting process. Under the Voting Rights Act, many states are required to
receive pre-approval of their redistricting plans from the Department of Justice to ensure that
the plans give minority groups representation in Congress and state legislatures that is
commensurate with a minority group's populatiod in.a given geographical area. Wyoming is
not a state that is required to receive Department of Justice pre-approval before implementation
of its redistricting plan.

However, in past redistricting cycles, the Wyoming Legislature has recognized that the
Native American population residing within the Wind River Reservation in Fremont County

constitutes-a geograptiically distinrt minority group'with a""SufficiePtt popu'lation'to warrant the
creation of a Native American majority house district. In developing the 2002 Redistricting
Plan, the Joint Corporations, Elections and Political Subdivision Interim Committee actively
sought the input of the Eastern Shoshone and Northem Arapahoe Tribes to ensure that Native
Americans were fairly represented in the redistricting plan.

Additionally in the 2001-02 interim, the Wyoming Legislature reached out to Hispanic
groups throughout the state to make certain that these groups were fully advised of the
Committee's redistricting activities and were giv.en an opportunity to comment and provide
input on redistricting plans.

Unlike numerous other states' redistricting plans, including those of some neighboring
states, a Wyoming redistricting plan has never been challenged in court for illegally under

representing minority groups.

"Community of interest" has a meaning which includes distinct racial, ethnic and
minority groups, but also encompasses such concepts as "shared broadcast and print media,
public transport infrastructur.e,and institutions such as schools and .churcfies",and even the
characteristic of certain neighborhoods.15 At least one court has stated that "community of
interest" is an imprecise term and is difficult to apply.16 In Wyoming, communities of interest
may arise around a shared water source, impact from energy development, recreational issues,
or other issues which directly affect a limited portion of the population in a geographically
distinct area. While it is not possible, and certainly not practicable, to attempt to ensure that all
communities of interest are in the same legislative district, the Joint Corporations, Elections and
Political Subdivision Interim Committee considered it an essential concept to bear in mind
when developing redistricting plans.

Multi-Member Districts

'' Sush i. 4 era^517 U.S. 952,964 (U_S. 1996)

- ^° Polish Anr. Cong. r. Cih,qfChi., 226 F. Supp. 2d 930, 936 (N.D. 111. 2002).

W'iomil.vG LEG1sLATwn: SeRv1CE OFFICE Memorandum

LEGAL SERVICES DIVISION • 213 State Capitol • Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002
TC:LEPnoNE 307-777-7881 • FAx 307-777-5466 • EMAIL Iso@state.wy.us • WERsrrE http://legisweb.state.wy.us



April 14, 2011 • P.aCE 6 OF 9

Until the 1992 Redistricting Act, Wyoming legislative apportionment plans incorporated
multi-member legislative districts, or districts in which more than one senator or representative
was elected to represent the entire district.17 As stated previously, the 1992 Redistricting Act
incorporated hested senate and house districts in which one senator and one representative were
elected to represent each senate or house district, respectively:

The shift away from multi-member districts was not directly necessitated by a court
decision. The courts have held that multi-member legislative districts are not per se, or
automatically, unconstitutional, but some courts have found such districts present inherent
weaknesses which are difficult to square with the constitutional requirement of "one person,
one vote". The tJnitetfStates'Fe'dera'hDistrict°Cotrrt"'for"the'District of Wyomingfias noted
possible constitutional infirmaries of multi-member districts, which include:

I. Voter confusion more likely;

2. Legislators may be more remote or distant from their constituents;

3. Electoral minorities]$ tend to be submerged while the electoral majority is
overrepresented;

4. Candidates running for office in districts electing more than four (4)
representatives face significantly greater campaign costs and are less likely to
defeat incumbent candidates; and

5. Voter participation is historically lower in most multi-member districts.l9

While choosing to incorporate multi-member districts in Wyoming's 2012 redistricting plan is
not.constitutionally prohibited, such a plan would need to.be carefully drawn. It.should alsobe..
noted that if Wyoming was to return to multi-member districts, it would break with national
precedent in a number of ways. First, a state which has adopted statewide single member
districts has never opted to return to multi-member districts or create multi-member districts for
the first time. Second, there has been a broad trend among states away from multi-member

" See 7he /992 Reapportionment Law: The Demise ofthe Multi-Member Districi System and its Effect Upon the
Representation of Woinen in the 6Pyoming Legislature 34 Land & Water L. Rev. 407 (1999).

In this context, an electoral minority, while possibly encompassing racial, ethnic or religious minorities, refers
more directly to minority political parties within the legislative district. Corin r. Karpan, 775 F.Supp. 1430,
( D. W yo. 1991).

'9 /d. at 1447, n.23.
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districts'0 ft may also be that a return to multi-member districts could increase the likelihood
that the redistricting plan would be challenged asvi4Fating "one person, one vote".

Political Gerrymanderin^

"Political gerrymandering" is the term used to describe a redistricting plan which does
not follow traditional or accepted principles of redistricting, but which is intended to maximize
the advantage of a certain group or party. The name for the term comes from then
Massachusetts governor Elbridge Gerry who authorized a redistricting plan in 1812 with
districts which were not contiguous or compact, but which reminded one commentator of
resembling theshape ofa'saiamander; •hencethe•term`"gerrymandering"?1

There is uncertainty whether political gerrymandering claims can be effectively
adjudicated in courts, given the traditional hesitancy of courts to wade into what may be
deemed a purely "political question" 22 However, in 1986 the United States Supreme Court
opened the door to claims that political gerrymandering is unconstitutional asserting that the
claim wasjusticiable and that a court could develop standards to determine when a redistricting
plan constitutes political gerrymandering. The United States Supreme Court waded into this

fray in League of Uniled Latin American Citizens v. Perry, 548 U.S. 399 (2006) with less than
clear results. In that case, the Court rejected appellants' challenge to the plan on the basis of
political gerrymandering, and did not reach agreement as to whether a reliable test for political

gerrymander might exist.

Given the current posture of the courts on political gerrymandering in redistricting, the

National Conference of State Legislatures has advised that,

If a redistricting plan is so discriminatory that the state cannot articulate any
legitimate governmental interest in drawipg it, the,..plan may be rejected by a
lower court and provide an occasion for the Supreme Court to articulate the
necessary standard for determining its constitutionality. For now, redistricting
plans are being examined on a case-by-case basis, with a strong focus on the
circumstances surrounding their design and adoption, to determine whether the
alleged partisan gerrymander goes beyond constitutional limits. 23

Articulating a legitimate govemmental interest for drawing a redistricting plan is a relatively low
hurdle to clear if a redistricting ptan is challenged in court. The 2002 Wyoming Redistricting

20 As of 2009, 13 states still had multi-member districts in at least one legislative body. (See NCSL - Redistricting

Lan,2010, pp. 136-37 and accompanying table).

'-' See Vierh v. Jubelirer, 541 U.S. 267, 274 (U.S. 2004).

'-'- /niliallve & Referendum /nst. v. W1alker, 450 F.3d 1082, 111 1(10th Cir. 2006).

" Redistrictine Law 2010, p. 115, National Conference of State Legislatures (2010). ` - -
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Principles took a very proactive approach to dispel even the appearance of political
gerrymandering by adopting a principle that consideration of residence of current legislators
(who would obviously constitute a majority of the political party in control of the legislature)

should be avoided 24

Contieuous Compact GeoEraphic Features, and Census Blocks

Ensuring that legislative districts are both contiguous and compact has been. identified by
the United States Supreme Court as traditional principles of redistricting.25 Contiguity requires
that all parts of a district be connected at some point with the rest of the district. The term
"compactness" has historicatly°been`vsedtoTel.ute-to the7rtirrimum°distancebetween all parts of
the constituency. However, given the enormous disparities in legislative districts across the
nation (a city block in New York with over 3000 residents compared to an entire county in
Wyoming without that many residents) there are no hard and fast rules as to when a district is

-compact.

In tneasuring compactness; at least 3 separate tests have been employed by the courts Z6

The United States Supreme Court stated that it uses an "eyeball approach" to evaluate

compactness`' A state does not need to show that.it drew the most compact district possible, but
is required'to have compactness as one of its primary goals. Compactness has been described not
as a reference to geographical shape,

but to the ability of citizens to relate to each other and their representatives and to
the ability of representatives to relate effectively to their constituency. Further, it
speaks to re"lafion'sh'ipsthat are facilitated by shared interests and by menibership
in a political community, including a county or city zS

Thus, in the context of redistricting Wyoming legislative districts, the constitutional.requirement
of "compactness" is akin to the other requirements of leaving community of interests intact and
Following political subdivision boundaries and geographical features Z9

2it is interesting to note, that according to the United States Supreme Court, protection of incumbents when

drawing a redistricting plan is actually a traditional redistricting principle. Abrams v. Johnson, 521 U.S. 74 (1997).

Shaiv r. Reno, 509 U.S. 630, 642 (U.S. 1993).

Those tests are: 1) The total perimeter test; 2) The Reock test; and 3) The Schwartzberg test. See Stone v.

Flechler, 782 F. Supp. 1116, 1127 (N.D. W.Va 1992). - . , , . " - . . -.

Brish v. 4'era, 517U.S. 952, 960 (1996).

-F DeWiI1 r. IN'ilson, 856 F. Supp.-1409, 1414 (E.D. Cal. 1994). -

It should lie noted that the term ' compactness" has different meanings in.the context of the legal claim being-- - `"`-" °

asserted. In racial gerrymandering cases for instance, "compactness" is used as a threshold test to determine a prima
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A "census block" is a geographic area bounded on all sides by visible or nonvisble
features shown on census maps. A census block is the smallest geographic entity for which the
Census Bureau collects and tabulates decennial census information. States have input into the
boundaries of census blocks through the first phase of the Redistricting Data Program, when the
county clerks and Census Bureau work together to draw accurate lines. County clerks utilize
census blocks when establishing precinct boundary lines. Following census blocks helps ensure
that legislative districts follow boundary lines of other election districts, such as county and
municipal elected officials, school board and special districts. Whil.e following cpnsus block
boundaries certainly helps county clerks and other election officials as they prepare for an
election, the ftdl benefit is realized on election day with a reduction in different ballots required
at a polling, station; less voter confustion, and°a decreased• li#elihood that election irregularities "

will occur.

Conclusion

While certainly not an exhaustive remedy for all potential issues that may arise during the
redistricting process, adherence to the Redistricting Principles will help ensure that a redistricting
plan introduced in the 2012 Budget Session will conform to the principles of "one person, one

vote" and is likely to withstand. a legal challenge.

cc: Dan Pauli, Director

File tilnruer: i'.UtF:I11S1'RI(-I'IiV(1ltedistrichng 20121AIe1110s

-facie case ofracial discrimination under the 14th Amendment. See League of UrzitzrlLc?1ra.4{nersctin^;Y'zns;v.

Perr),, 548 U.S.-399 (2006).
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August 20, 2011

To: State of Ohio Apportionment Board

Re: 2011 Redistricting

I would like to encourage you to let Allen County remain as a House District unto
itself as you go through the redistricting process.

t believe it would be unproductive to attempt any °split" of Allen County when
redrawing the lines. I believe the County of Allen has sufficient population and
meets the general criteria necessary to remain intact.

I realize that in the end this State will iose seats in the U.S. House of
Representatives due to population decline and some district boundaries will
change. The Lima City Council is going through our own redistricting process at
this time.

We will be eliminating 1 Ward - going from 8 Wards to 7 Wards - and I know
well the concems of the voters affected and the concems of elected officials
regarding voter disenfranchisement. In our process, we have to attempt to follow
natural boundaries, streets, etc. Basically we try to follow "obvious" points of
demarcation. It appears to me that County boundary lines are such a "natural"
boundary or point of demarcation that they could be used when considering
redistricting.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerel,v, .

John G. Nixon
Lima City Council President
50 Town Square
Lima, Ohio 45801
Ph: 419-228-1118

1
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BEFORE THE OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

In the Matter of the
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General Assembly District
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Moiiday, Augi^t 22, 2.n.11. .
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Monday Afternoon Session,

August 22, 2011.

MS. MANN: We, now call to order the Ohio

Apportionment Board.

As people arrive who would like to

testify, we would ask that you please fill out a

witness slip on the table to provide them to Lisa

and Kylie, our staff who are down here in the

audience.

The.2011 Apportionment Board is

responsible for drawing districts for the Ohio

Senate and the Ohio House of Representatives. It

held its initial meeting on August 4th, 2011. At

that meeting, the Board adopted rules which

required a series of public hearings throughout the

state to gather public input and comment and, also,

appointed myself, Heather Mann, and Ray DiRossi as

joint secretaries of the board.

Seeing that the Vice-Chair of the

Apportionment Board, Auditor Dave Yost, is here

with us Q^iask if Auditor. Yost will

preside over this regional hearing.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

Will the secretary please call the



Proceedings

3

1

2

4

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

roll? Diiring this attendance roll call, please

state their name and the office they represent if

they are present as a designee.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost?

AUDITOR YOST: Here.

MS. MANN: Mike Grodhaus.

MR. GRODHAUS: Here, representing

Governor Kasich.

MS. MANN: Representative Clyde?

REPRESENTATIVE CLYDE: Here,

representing Minority Leader Armond Budish.

MS. MANN: Mike Schuler?

MR. SCHULER: Here, representing Senator

Tom Niehaus.

MS. MANN: Halle Pelger?

MS. YxSLGER: Here, represe:yting

Secretary of State Jon Husted.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

We would first like to thank the

University of Toledo and, in particular, President

Dr. Lloyd Jacobs and the Board of Trustees for

hosting us here today`. We!d also liketo extend

our gratitude to Aaron Baker and Lisa Byers for

helping make the arrangements here.

I'd like to remind everyone that the
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purpose of the hearing is to gather information,

comments, and inputs regarding the upcoming

reconfiguration of the House and Senate district

lines.

The Apportionment Board and the panel

before you is not responsible for re-drawing Ohio's

congressional districts. New congressional

districts will be established by state legislature

as a bill that will be voted on by members of the

Ohio House and the Ohio Senate, and.then either

signed or vetoed by the Governor.

We would ask all witnesses to please

limit your comments and testimony to the matter

before the Apportionment Board; that is, being the

Ohio House and Ohio Senate districts.

we're here today to listen. We're not

here to debate you or each other. We're here to

get input from Ohioans on the apportionment process

and how it impacts your communities and your

representation in the Ohio General Assembly.

Today, we have a limited amount of time

Zzl -tF^ We are scheduled for two hours, -^-^^ ^

and we may ask witnesses to limit their testimony

in the interest of time and out of courtesy for

other personswho wish to address the panel.
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Looking around the room, I am suspecting that

limiting the time will not be a particular issue

here this afternoon.

A few facts. In Ohio, as most states,

legislative reapportionment occurs every ten years,

the year following the federal census. The census

figures released this year indicate that Ohio has a

population of 11,536,504 people. That means that,

ideally, each of the 99 house districts should

contain 116,530 people and each of the 33 senate

districts should contain 349,590 people.

Anyone who has researched or undertaken

the actual drawing of legislative districts knows

this process involves far more than somebody

putting roughly the same number of people in each

ciistrict.

In Ohio, the General Assembly districts

must conform to traditional redistricting

principles and other requirements that are embodied

in Article 11 of the Ohio Constitution. Article 11

contains specific rules governing construction of

--`^ese districts, including several layers r^f^^

sometimes complex requirements.

In addition to the Ohio Constitution,

the Board must also comply with all applicable
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federal laws, including, most notably, the Voting

Rights Act.

And I think, at this point, we have a

representative of the Secretary of State's office,

and I would like to ask her to give us a brief

summary of the project that the Secretary of State

has undertaken to promote public participation in

the line drawing exercise.

MS. PELGER: Thank you, Auditor Yost.

A few weeks ago, the Secretary of State

Jon Husted, along with the support of the

legislative task force on redistricting, aswell as

the Apportionment Board, launched a website called

reshapeohio.org. The goal of the website is to

provide an open and interactive process where

Ohioans can both follow the proceedings of these

hearings with the minutes, testimony, et cetera,

and also try their own hand at drawing maps.

As Auditor Yost mentioned, drawing maps

isn't as easy as it may appear. It's often time-

consuming and sometimes addicting. Ten years ago,

'- =^tionment Board: provided .mapp.ing; s^^

at libraries and at various government buildings.

Technology having advanced, you can now do this

from your home at any time of day by signing onto
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reshapeohio.org.

You can also use the site to help you

draw the map and then get the information that you

will need to submit your map with the guidelines

set forth by the Board and their rules, which, I

believe, are available outside and they're also on

the website.

The goal of all this is to promote

openness and transparency in the process and

provide the public with as much of an opportunity

to participate as possible.

To date, we have more than 300 people

signed up to use the site, and we hope that number

continues to grow. And you can sign up at

reshapeohio.org.

AULiTvR YvST: Tiiaiik y0u, iaalie.

Because these hearings are being

conducted for the purpose of receiving your input

in the process, we are not going to go over the

details of the law. However, for those of you who

are interested, copies of Article 11 and the Ohio

Constitution, as well as oEMAK acisuch as

population changes, the apportionment process, how-

the public may submit plans, are available at the

table. We encourage you to pick these up and
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review them, as they are the same guidelines the

Board has to follow as it draws legislative

districts.

A few other items before we begin.

These proceedings will be transcribed by a court

reporter so the Board, in its deliberations, may

consider the things that are said here today. So

please speak clearly and loudly enough so the

members of the board and the audience and the court

reporter can all hear you. And I'm probably, by

far, the oldest up here. I can tell you, I'm a bit

hard of hearing and appreciate it if you'.d speak

up.

Also, if you have written testimony,

please submit it to our staff so.that it may be

include in the official record of the proceeding.

We will make sure that all testimony received at

the hearing is available on the Secretary of

State's website at reshapeohio.org.

As the secretary -- we've already

covered that.

So, at- this point., we'r-e^eady,,h^

receive witnesses. Our first witness today is the

president of the student body here at the

University of Toledo. Appreciate that. Matthew
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Rubin, if you would come forward and we'll receive

your testimony at this time. Thank you for being

here with us today. Speak into the microphone

right here.

MR. RUBIN: Thank you, Auditor Yost.

I want to welcome the entire committee

to the University of Toledo. I hope you're

enjoying our beautiful campus, and we want to

welcome you. Thank you for coming.

At the University of Toledo, we're

growing in a lot of different ways, especially in

alternative energy. We're actually a hub up here

in northwest Ohio for that. And, also, looking to

expand, you know, jobs and manufacturing of things

like solar panels.

So all of our represeiatatl0n tt we

currently have in northwest Ohio in the state

level - people like Barbara Sears, Mark Wagoner,

Teresa Fedor - we would really like to keep.them

and make sure we are continued to be represented

down at the state level.

AUDITOR° I appreciate--'

that.

MR. RUBIN: Thank you. Go Rockets.

AUDITOR YOST: Our next witness today is
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Mary Humphrys.

MS. HUMPHRYS: Actually, I had a

question about the.process, which was already

answered, so I can give my time back then.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

Let the record reflect that Ms. Humphrys

had a question that was answered during the

introductory remarks and has passed on her

presentation.

Next, we have, I believe, Williann

Moore. Welcome.

And I've been instructed by staff that

they would prefer if you used this microphone over

here.

Thank you for being here today, ma'am.

MS. MOORE: Good afternoon, everyone.

Welcome to Toledo, the Glass Capital of the World

and the Gateway to the Sea. We thank you for

coming and hosting this here.

I wish that we had had some pre-advanced

notice. Was this on the website as to the meeting

dates and•.where the meetings=wp^^^ '

Well, then -- then I apologize fornot

being up -- up to snuff. But I did -- I was

informed and I: am here.
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We -- the NAACP -- I represent the state.

conference for the Ohio State NAACP. I'm the

District 1 coordinator, and we're very much

interested in being a part of the process.

We're also very much interested in -- in

giving our input. So we will be going on the

website and we would -- we will be educating people

in our community, because for us this means jobs,

education, and justice.

And we definitely want this to be a

process where we are not desperately affected, but

we are included and that we will be making a

positive and proactive approach to the

redistricting.

This is not just for --.this affects us

in education, also, because those li.,es are going

to be redrawn. And we have been making a lot of

great progress here in Lucas County, in Toledo,

Ohio, and we would like to continue to do that.

I do have the -- the -- the times and

the dates of the other meetings that are going to

^rid Akron, and --NAACP

members will be attending those meetings and we

will be a part of that process, because we are

very, very much interested in educating our
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community, the entire community, whoever wants to

come out on redistricting, so that everyone

understands this process and understands how they

will be affected for the next ten years.

I thank you, again. And from the

President Sybil Edwards-McNabb, President of the

Ohio State Conference, I say, again, thank you for

us being involved in this process. And we

definitely will be involved. You will hear from us

and you will see us in Columbus. You will see us

all around the state.

Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

Our next witness is Catherine Turner

(sic) of Ohio Citizen Action. Welcome.

MS. TURCER: Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: While she's coming up, I

will ask that the record reflect that Ms. Turner

has submitted - excuse me - Turcer has submitted a

written statement, which we will offer into the

record.

MS c TURCRR-^ .M och. And

good afternoon to all.of you.

As he said, my name is Catherine

Turcer. I speak less than you do, so I'll try to:
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keep this very brief.

I'm Catherine Turcer. I'm the director

of the Ohio Citizen Action's Money in Politics

Project. So we do a lot of campaign finance

stuff.

We also focus on things -- you know, my

life is like eighth grade social studies. We do a

lot of, "Let's look at districting reform and kind

of good government stuff."

You'll notice I'm out of breath from

running from Columbus. Sorry about that. I just

made it in.

Anyway, we were founded in 1975. We

have about 80,000 members. And I really wanted to

thank you all for this opportunity to testify. And

I actually really appreciate that you ieit Colu,wus

and you went on the road, because I think it's so

nice to be able to actually hear from people just

outside of our little bubble.

You know, as you all know, I'm not

saying something you don't know, although the

distri t^^rre^- ^drawn every teti years,

redistricting can profoundly impact our elections..

Partisan manipulation of the district lines is, in

fact, a manipulation of the voters.
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Historically, redistricting took place

out of the public eye, and I actually really

welcome this opportunity for a more transparent.

process..

And I -- once again, I appreciate the

number of public hearings you're doing and this

whole taking the show on the road.-

The League of Women Voters of Ohio and

Ohio Citizen Action, in partnership with the

Midwest Democracy Network, initiated the Ohio

Redistricting Competition. You probably have heard

a little bit about it. It's drawthelineohio.org.

It's -- some of the information is similar to what

the Secretary of State has done.

And I was very happy that Ken Blackwell,

ten years aao, did the Remap Ohio. And now we

really are from a very different time period: Just

ten years later, software is just so much easier.

If you look at the software the Secretary of State

is using, Maptitude, is just very simple and easy

to use. The software we're using is kind of public

domain softwarea-^,Agt,-^ -^-

And, in fact -- this'is the other reason

for running around and being out of breath,if you

can imagine. Yesterday, at 5:00 p.m., we had our
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deadline for the redistricting competition.

Basically, everybody submitted their maps, and so

we had quite a late night and until noon kind of

looking at maps, kind of trying to understand what

works best.

Basically, what we're looking at is

compactness, looking at competitiveness, what they

call fair representation, and kind of -- basically,

can you try to keep the counties together. So kind

of as a proxy for what you might think of as

communities of interest.

So in that process, we actually had four

maps that were submitted from the Reshape Ohio

site. So I just really think this is a wonderful

collaboration and an opportunity that we haven't

had in the past to reaiiy bring in public ^..^..e-

And I'm really, you know, just happy to be here

today.

I did want to let you know that, by the

end of the week, Wednesday or Thursday, because it

takes a little time, as you know, with maps, to

-°^^^^riough this process and highligni sT,^J

maps, so when you come to the end of your week,

you'll actually have an opportunity to have some

maps to look at from citizens in Ohio.
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Thank.you.

And, let's see. Back to my testimony.

Sorry about that. Let's see.

As you know, I.really believe that a

fair, open, and transparent process is important,

and that this will actually affect all of us, you

know, for a decade to come, and it's just really

important to have public input.

The one thing I'd like to highlight is,

these kind of hearings are a little like having --

talking about maps on radio. You know, it's hard

to have these conversations unless we have the

maps.

And so what I'd really like to encourage

you all to do is to publish the maps that you're

considerina two weeks before you get to the final

stages so that we can actually have an opportunity

to participate, as the public, and kind of weigh in

kind of works.off and it's a republican," and you

on the maps.

Because, I mean, we can look at Lucas

County and say, "Okay. There are three house

z^crats. There-'s one that.di:str iqta^,_-,t -a

can have -- you can have that kind of conversation,

but it's very abstract until we actually have the
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"Well, what is it that you're looking at and what

is it that you're evaluating?"

Once again, I want to thank you for this

opportunity to testify, and I hope that this is the

beginning of a process.

Thank you.

And I'm no longer out of breath.-

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

Are there any questions for the

witness?

REPRESENTATIVE CLYDE: I have a

question.

AUDITOR YOST: Representative Clyde.

REPRESENTATIVE CLYDE: Thank you,

Auditor Yost.

Good afternoon. It's good to see you

18 again, and wondered if you could tell us -- I've

19 been following the competition that your group is

20 sponsoring and the criteria that you are judging by

21 preserving county boundaries, compactness,

KWF iveness, and l^epresentational'^a^-pxejJn;'=.ss

23 How are those criteria displayed in our

24 current map in Ohio, and how could using these

25 criteria produce a better map that may be fairer?
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MS. TURCER: Thank you very much,

Auditor Yost, Representative Clyde.

I think one of the things that you can

do is, if you look, for example -- it's easy to

talk about this when you're talking.about the

congressional maps, so I'll use that as an

example.

Fortunately, because you're looking at

legislative maps, there are things, there are

constraints in our constitution that make it so

those pres- -- you can only have so much fun if you

have to preserve those municipal boundaries.

So, I mean, we can look at -- for

example, this would be our former Secretary of

State's.old senate district. If you think of it as

a donut district, the one that kind of goes around

Montgomery County. That might be an example of

kind of the republican burbs all drawn together.

That would be an example of something that you kind

of look at-and think, "Okay. What was going.on?".

That's something that was created in '91.

zes =
o there's.only-so much fun.that.^

can have with the state legislative.

When you look at congressional, then --

for example, there are 44 county breaks in
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competition, which we did in 19 -- 2009, which was

kind of this intellectual exercise, because you're

taking the old census data and you're taking ...

partisan indexing. This is something that Mark

Salling from the Cleveland State University helped

to go through and grade all of those kinds of

things.

9 You know, we had county -- there were,

10 you know, as few as 14 and as many as 23. They

11 certainly weren't up there at 44.

12 . AUDITOR YOST: That was congressional.

13 MS. TURCER: That's congressional.

14 . AUDITOR YOST: And you understand that

15 the hearing today is limited to the state

16 apportionment and we have nothing tc do with

17 congressional.

18 MS. TURCER: I do understand that. I --

19 when she asked the question, I was trying to think

20 I about the best way to explain it, and I can explain

21 it more easily with Congress.because of the -- we

id the competition in 2009.

23 But we'll take that Montgomery.County,

24 old Jon Husted's district, is a good example.

25 AUDITOR YOST: Don't.the state
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constitutional boundaries forbid removing minority

voting strength and also frown on splitting

counties where it's not absolutely necessary? So I

4 wasn't around in 1991, but the state Constitution,

5 wouldn't you agree, does provide a set of rules to

6 guide our decisions that prevent the kind of thing

7 you're talking about to a large degree?

8 MS. TURCER: Yes, Auditor Yost, I would

9 say that there are some -- there are some

10 constraints. If we look at -- whether it's the

11 Voting Rights Act or whether it's that -- when

12 you're speaking of the deletion of the.minorities

13 or whether you're talkinq about breaking

14 communities, but we also do know that there are

15 many times, if we look at our maps, where democrats

16 are jam packed toaether.

17I For example, there is a district here in

18I Lucas County that has 83 percent partisan indexing

19 1 for democrats. Now, I don't know if you could --

201 basically, it's the three democrats and the one

21 1 republican. I don't know, without mapping, if you

ange that and ^reate more.compet^.^};.z

231 districts, especially since there's this loss of

24 1 census population. So that, I don't know that you

25 could.
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That being said, I guess I'm here today

to talk about really encouraging you all to focus

on the voters, rather than focusing on incomes.

AUDITOR YOST: Listening to voters is

why we're here having this hearing.

Thank you very much.

Are there any or questions for the

witness?

REPRESENTATIVE CLYDE: Can I have

another one?

AUDITOR YOST: Please do.

REPRESENTATIVE CLYDE: I just want to

focus in on the difference, like you said, between

the congressional districting and the State House.

And one of the things that strikes a lot of my

constituents about the a^
ni at.̂- c aiv.-...vu3 di°triCts is,^ ^,

Ohio tends to be, in a lot of statewide elections,

a 50/50 state. You know, we are a very close

election in Ohio. Our last statewide election was

very close margins in our statewide races.

Yet, our State House is about 60/40 in

favor -oY one party; aiid ou^^^^s a-laout

70/30 in favor of one party. And I think that

that's a way to maybe discuss some of your criteria

about competitiveness and representational
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fairness.

Do you think, if those criteria were

considered, it may be less of a lopsided State

House, which would be more representational of Ohio

voters?

MS. TURCER: Auditor Yost,

Representative Clyde, it's always a -- it's always

difficult to talk about these things without

teasing out other factors.

So, for example, we do know that the --

the districts are stacked so that they favor

republicans or democrats pretty.significantly.

They did this, you know, ten years ago. Of course,

there's this population migration, which is one of

the factors.

The other factor, as we think about

this, that we always need to think about is,

what -- is what -- democrat -- poli sci professors

wouldtake two different things that they'd look.

The first has to do with, democrats are

insufficiently distributed. And I know it sounds

si11y to say it,that way. -

Basically, what that means is that

that we can create mor@'competitive districts, and

that's one of the criteria that we have, but that
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doesn't mean that you can create competitive

districts everywhere.

And much like what Auditor Yost was

saying, there are other factors that are

important. Compactness,.VRA. There are other

factors that are important.

One of the things, as we looked at this

competition, was to say, you know, "We want to

think about, well, what are the things that will

create more competitive districts, more compact

districts, but you wouldn't lose," what you're

getting at, "which is the fair representation?"

And so we tried, as much as we could, to

weigh each of them, knowing that no system is

exactly perfect.

Tife other factor, Of .^.....rse, 1s mnnay ,

You know, no matter how we look at this, campaign

contributions can make a huge difference in the

outcome of races, as well.

But as we think about -- this is a

wonderful opportunity to lay the groundwork for

something that °is' rffTty -:ta--r-is as

competitive as possible, in the context of how we

live in the State of Ohio.

AUDITOR YOST: Any follow-ups?
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that there's insufficient distribution of voters of

both parties or only one?

MS. TURCER: No. Did you understand

what that meant?

AUDITOR YOST; I certainly did.

MS. TURCER: Okay. Isn't that funny?

I think there's an insufficient

distribution of voters. I -- I wish more Ohioans

were voters, of both political parties and all ilks

and no political party.

AUDITOR YOST:. Thank you. Anything else

of this witness?.

Are there any other witnesses here today

who perhaps came in early (sic)? We would love to

hear from vou if there.are. If you'd come forward

and author a witness slip and we will listen to

you.

Seeing that no one is standing up and

rushing forward to the microphone, do any members

of the Board desire anything further?

With no Surther witnesses,.

this meeting adjourned, pending our next hearing

tomorrow morning at 9:00 at Cleveland State

25 I University, Maxine Goodman Levin College of Urban
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Cleveland.

Thank you very much for being here.

(Thereupon, the hearing was adjourned at
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ss:
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I do certify that the foregoing is a true

and correct transcript of the proceedingstaken by
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Good afternoon. My name is Catherine Turcer and I am the director of Ohio Citizen Action's

Money in Politics Project. Founded in 1975, Ohio Citizen Action has 80,000 members.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify at this public hearing. Although district lines are only

redrawn every ten years, redistricting can profoundly impact elections. The partisan

manipulation of district lines is the manipulation of voters. Historically, redistricting took place

out of the public eye and I welcome a more transparent process: I appreciate the number of

public hearings you have set up and thank you for "taking the show on the road."

The League of Women Voters of Ohio and Ohio Citizen Action, in partnership with the Midwest

Democracy Network initiated the Ohio Redistricting Competition. The public is able to draw

their own maps which will be scored using objective nonpartisan criteria: preserving county

boundaries compactness, competitiveness and representational fairness. We will announce the

winner or winners for the state legislative maps this week and then these winning maps will be

submitted to the Apportionment Board for you to consider.

It is essential to have a fair, open andtransparent process for drawing district lines. How our

state legislative and congressional districts are drawn will have an effect on every Ohioan for a

decade to come. We believe therefore that the Apportionment Board (and the Legislature

When they Eonsi'uer cui^gressi'viiai m ^aps) sh^vuid pwbiish prop.^•Sed mal^,s on tho intarnotwt Ieact

two weeks before they are voted on, to allow for public input. This will help take the process

out of the political backrooms.

There is general consensus that Ohio's redistricting process needs to be reformed. The major

Ohio newspapers have consistently issued editorials in support of a nonpartisarrredistricting

process. If you truly want maps that benefit the public, it makes sense to request public input

during the final stages of map selection. It's time to learn from the mistakes of the past-focus

on the voters' needs, rather than those of the incumbents or the politicaf parties.

Thank you again for this opportunity to testify.
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Tuesday Morning Session,

August 23, 2011.

MS. MANN: We now call to order the

Cleveland Regional Hearing of the Ohio

Apportionment Board.

As people who arrive who would like to

testify, we ask that you please fill out a witness

slip located over there on the.table and please

provide them to our staff, Lisa or Kylie, who are

sitting over there in the corner.

The 2011 Apportionment Board, which is

responsible for drawing districts for the Ohio

Senate and the Ohio House of Representatives, held

its initial meeting earlier this month, on..August

atr 2n11. At that meetina, the Board adopted

rules which require.a series of public hearings

throughout the state, including this one here.

today, to gather public input and comment.

And at that meeting, they also appointed

myself, Heather Mann and, also, Rick DiRossi to

serve-ias_,joint-secretaries of the Board.

Seeing that Vice-Chair of the

Apportionment Board, State Auditor Dave Yost, is

herev:tith us today, I will ask if Auditor Yost will
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please preside over this regional hearing.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

Will the secretary please call the

roll? During this attendance roll call, please,

each member, state your name and the office that

you represent if you are present as a designee.

MS. MANN: Auditor Yost?

AUDITOR YOST: Present.

MS. MANN: Leader Budish?

LEADER BUDISH: Present.

MS. MANN: Mike Grodhaus?

MR. GRODHAUS: Present, representing

Governor Kasich.

MS. MANN: President Niehaus?

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Present.

MS. MANN: Ha1le Pelger?

MS. PELGER: Here, representing

Secretary of State Jon Husted.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

We'd first liketo thank Cleveland State

University and President Ron Berkman, the Board of

Trustees; as well as my old friend Bill Napier, who

is here today, and Laurie Day for hosting us at

this hearing today. .

In addition, we have a special guest
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from Washington D.C. Leader Budish,.I wonder if

you'd like to introduce your son.

LEADER BUDISH: Sure. Thank you.

I'd like to introduce my son, Ryan, who

is here on -- this is.how he spends his summer

vacation, so he has something to write about, the

fun while he's here. And thank you for joining us.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Leader

Budish.

I would like to remind everyone, the

purpose of this hearing is to gather information,

comments, and input regarding the upcoming

reconfiguration of the House and Senate district

lines.

.The Apportionment Board and the panel

hafnre yr,u is not_responsible for re-drawing Ohio's

congressional districts. New congressional

districts will be established by the state

legislature as a bill.that will be voted upon by

the members of the Ohio House of Representatives

and the Ohio Senate. That bill would then go to

the-Gover-nor for signature or veto.

We would ask all the witnesses to limit

their comments and testimony to the matter before

us; that is, the Ohio House and Ohio Senate
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districts.

We're here today to listen. We're not

here to debate you, and we're not here today to

debate one another. We're here today to get input

from Ohioans on the apportionment process and how

it impacts your communities and your representation

in the Ohio General Assembly.

Today, we have a limited amount of time

for hearing. We're scheduled for two hours and

have actually two other cities that we'll be

traveling to today. So we ask witnesses to -- we

may ask witnesses to limit their testimony in time

as a courtesy for other persons who wish to speak.

Although, I'm guessing, looking around, that that

may not be a burning issue.

In Ohio, as in most states, legislative

reapportionment occurs in years ending in 1, which

are also the years following the federal decennial

census. The census figures this year indicate Ohio

has a population of 11,536,504 people. That means

that, ideally, each of the 99 House districts

should contain 116,530 peopl-e-and each of-the 33

Senate districts should contain 349,590.

Anyone who has researched or undertaken

the action of drawing legislative districts knows
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that this process involves much more than somebody

putting roughly the same number of people in each

district.

In Ohio, the General Assembly districts

must conform to traditional redistricting

principles and other requirements that are

enumerated in Article 11 of the Ohio Constitution.

Article 11 contains specific rules covering

construction of these districts, including several

layers of sometimes complex requirements.

In addition to the Ohio Constitution,

the Board must also comply with all applicable

federal laws; most notably, the Voting Rights Act.

And those provisions are not always in harmony with

the rules set out in Article 11.

Ar rhic t;me, I would like to call upon

Halle to give us a presentation from the Secretary

of State's office regarding their project.

MS. PELGER: Thanks, Auditor Yost.

A few weeks ago, the Secretary of State

Jon Husted, with the support of the

^gislative tasle-force -- I'm sorry --an .. yoi^=-=^^j

hear me?

The Secretary of State, along with the

support of the legislative task force on
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redistricting, as well as the Apportionment Board,

launched a website called reshapeohio.org. The

goal of the website is to provide the public

information on these proceedings, give minutes,

notices, and testimony, as well as allow people to

try their hand at drawing the map.

As Auditor Yost mentioned, the process

is often difficult and time consuming. But ten

years ago, the Board set up computers around the

state in libraries and government buildings.

Technology has come a ways now that we can do that

and you can access the site from your own home at

any hour of the day and draw your own map.

You can also use the site to -- once

you've completed a map, to help you follow the

Apportionment Board's guidelines for submission.

The site has that information on it, and it can

also be found if you look at the ta]?le over there.

The goal of all of this is to provide

more openness and transparency in the process and

provide the public with as much access as

possible.

So far, we have over 300 people signed

up to draw maps, and we hope to get more. So visit

reshapeohio.org.
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Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Halle.

A few housekeeping items. We have

copies. of Article 11, the Ohio Constitution, and

other information on population changes, the

apportionment process, and how the public may

submit plans that are available for you at the

table. We encourage you to pick these up and

review them, as they are the same guidelines the

Board has to follow as it draws legislative

districts.

These proceedings will be transcribed by

a court.reporter so that the members of the Board

may consider these things that are said here today

during their deliberations.. So please speak

clearly and lo„dly Pnnuah for the panel and the

audience members and our court reporter to hear.

If you have written testimony, please

submit it to the staff so it may be included with

the official record of the proceeding. We will

make sure that all testimony received at the

hearing i = s available at t b . e ' s

website, reshapeohio.org.

As.the Secretary -- whoops. We've

already.done that.
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. So, great. Now we move right to our

first witness, and our first witness of the day is

Robert Heltzel. _

MR. HELTZEL: Close enough.

AUDITOR YOST: "Heltzel."

MR. HELTZEL: Very good.

Good morning, everybody. Thank you very

much for being here at this convenient hour of

9:00 a.m.

In any case, really, my request is

fairly simple for what i would like the Board to

consider, both of yourselves and the people that

actually draw the lines here. This tends.to be a

process that is very steeped in obscurity and not a

great deal of transparency happening in terms of

how this map is going to look.

So, as Mr. Budish on the end there

offered in earlier council that I understand

happened, why not consider placing this new

district map on-line for the public to see weeks

before it is voted in finality?

It's my understannng, from what I've .

kind of researched in history, that governments

that operates in secrecy also tend to operate in

tyranny. .
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areas.

And the answer to Mr. Budish's request,

the answer to the public's request was no. And the

reasoning why was some generic response about the

ink having already been dried. And that, to me,

didn't make a great deal of sense, because then,

what's the harm? If it's already dried, what else

do you have to do beyond simply displaying the

information to the public?

So it's my query, as an Ohio citizen, do

you fear the criticisms of the people across the

state and m_vhe thev miaht disaaree with the

gerrymandering of the partisan line drawing that's

happening here?

The republican party was in charge of

this process, I believe, in 2001, 1991. The

democratic party in 1981.And it's generally the

same, from what I undi^^^?^ dx'aw the

districts so that their representatives have the

most fortuitous opportunities to;basically, get

their reps in.
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So what I'm asking is that you post

on-line, at least two weeks before it's being voted

on, so everybody canactually look at it. Doesn't

seem too complicated. I think we have the

technology to post a jpeg image of a map on-line

well before it's actually to be voted on.

But, I mean, you know, I don't know.

I'm of the Echo Boomers generation here. Maybe

we're just a little bit more technology inclined

than anybody sitting up at the table. Mr. Niehaus,

I read that you're good at blogging or whatever, so

maybe I'm wrong. Mr. Yost, I think I've heard that

you power on a computer.

In any case, that more or less truncates

my remarks here in terms of what else I've got to

say. I can go on all day, and this massive

audience, I'm sure, has plenty more statements that

they'd like to make on the matter. Again,

9:00 a.m. is the perfect time to have one of these

meetings. Generally, nobody's at work yet and this

is a morning person country.
z,.

very much
,
. ^1nd, again; I'm'

_

going to ask you to put the map on-line so people

can actually see it. If you're afraid of

transparency, then none of you should probably be
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government officials because you're public

servants.

Have a good day.

AUDITOR YOST:. Thank you.

Are there any questions for the

witness?

Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: I will not -- mine is

not a question, but more of a comment.

First, I appreciate your comments. I

appreciate you taking the time to come out today.

And I did propose that, before we even

have these hearings, that we first have a map that

we can have input on from the public. I thought

that made a lot of sense.

Just to correct one thing you said.

Auditor Yost did support my position on that.

Unfortunately, three others did not, so it did not

succeed. .

But I'm hoping that when the map or maps

are prepared,.that the public will still have an

opportunity for that, and I'm

hoping my colleagues here will support that at that.

time.

MR. HELTZEL: Thanks.a lot.. Rock on,
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man.

AUDITOR YOST: Any other questions,

comments?

Thank you very much for your testimony,

sir.

Our next witness is Carol Gibson of the

League of Women Voters. Let the record reflect

that the witness has tendered written testimony,

which we've received into the record without

objection.

MS. GIBSON: Good morning. I am Carol

Gibson, co-president of the Cuyahoga Area League of

Women Voters. Thank you for the opportunity to

provide public testimony on the issue of drawing

new Ohio Senate and House district lines.

Redistricting is an issue that goes to

the heart of our democratic system of government

because representative democracy depends on.voters

choosing their elected officials. When, instead,

officials choose their voters - and I know you've

heard this before - when officials choose their

-^.'-
ti
.. =z^:-;.

o ers by ^,.re^ng districts^that strongly favor

one political party, our system doesn't work as

intended.

What is at stake when it comes to how
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political district lines are drawn is whether

voters choose our leaders or leaders choose our

voters.

At the most basic level, redistricting

must support the constitutional principle of one

person, one vote.

Ultimately, the.redistricting process

determines how a voter -- how a voter's community is

defined, who a voter has the opportunity to vote

for, what kinds of policies and issues get debated,

what happens to voter tax dollars, and how the

complex set of challenges we face are handled or

not.

To ensure the most democratic outcome

for the current redistricting process, the League

nf TeTpman VotPTR recommends the formation of

districts that are compact, competitive,.

contiguous, and of similar population numbers. In

Cuyahoga County, diversity also needs to be a

consideration factor again.

Any stranger to our region looking at a

map of th^^rggricts in Cuyahoga County

could see problem in the U-shape of Ohio Senate-

District 24 that sweeps around three edges of the

county. Such partisan gerrymandering needs to be
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August 21 was the deadline for

submission to the League's contest to design new

Senate and House district maps. The maps we're

designing, that are found to be most supportive of

democracy, will be well publicized around the state

and they will be sent to the Apportionment Board to

aid and encourage your work, as they were last

year -- or in the previous round.

Voters are finding it harder than ever

to think of their votes as important in this

recessionary and bitterly partisan times. If the

Apportionment Board rose to this occasion by

actually creating manifestly doable fair districts,

Ohio would immediately become famous for achieving

a home run for democracy.

You have within your power the ability

to give Ohioans a lift by creating districts that

make sense. You can do it. Put Ohio on the map

for fairness.

Thank you.

AUDITOR YOSTc Thank you. -

23

24

25

Are there any questions from members of

the Board?

Leader Budish.
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LEADER BUDISH: Thank you, again, for

your testimony and for coming out today. We

appreciate it.

Would you describe a little bit more, if

you could, the process and purpose for the League

of Women Voters map drawing competition that's been

on-line?

MS. GIBSON: A little. I mean, I'm not,

you know -- I'm not the -- Ann Henkener is our

Columbus-based expert on redistricting, so I'm not

presenting myself as that. Although, I wrote

the -- this testimony myself.

We have been on this issue for decades

about redistricting. The League has always

championed doing it in a more democratic way, such

as Iowa or Arizona has managed to do. No system is

perfect, but we could do it much.better:

The contest -- the first one was in the

last round of redistricting, and it was -- it was

borne out of frustration with getting attention-to

the issue of redistricting. And I think, for the

le are starting to pay attentkon m

maybe I'm wrong, but I feel like the public

24

25

is waking up to redistricting.

When we tried to talk about it,..even to
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ourselves, I remember my own reaction.

"Redistricting? You know, what?" It's sort of

esoteric insider baseball, but people are starting

to get it.

So it was borne out of frustration. We

got to do something sexy; to take the white gloves

off and the little old lady tennis shoes. Do

something that will catch the attention of the

voters, and it did.

I mean, the very fact that -- I might be

wrong about this, but I think we were first in

doing a -- imitation is the -- and if so, imitation

is the best compliment. And I'm happy to see the

Secretary of State's office is conducting one,

also. The more it's out there, the more people

will find it important.

LEADER BUDISH: Follow up.

AUDITOR YOST: Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: Mr. Chairman.

The map drawing contest, I assume, is

more than just being done for academic interests or

un for competition. 1 assumethat your'^aa^ `

that we, as a Board, utilize the maps that are

submitted to help guide us and direct us in our --

MS. GIBSON: Absolutely.
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LEADER BUDISH: -- deliberation.

MS. GIBSON: And some attention -- we

could see some attention having been paid the last

time around to -- today, we have in the audience -

I don't know whether he signed up to give testimony

or not - but one of the people that drew districts

the last time around, that was one of our top

entries, and I hope he'll come up and talk to you.

He could give you more detail.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Ms. Gibson.

I'm sorry.

LEADER BUDISH: Follow up.

AUDITOR YOST: Please.

LEADER BUDISH: Okay. Switching gears

for a second. Last cycle, last year, in

r I worked closelv with members of the.

League. You were not one of the people, but

members of the league, along with then-Senator

Husted, in coming up with a different approach to

redistricting reapportionment.

The House passed a plan. The Senate,

e1 w^pK P^epident Niehaus-; passed- a plan.Tb

different, but both of them made significant

improvements to the current reapportionment

process.
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Were you familiar with those plans? Do

you -- are you in a position to comment on --

MS. GIBSON: No, I'm not.

LEADER BUDISH: Okay.

MS. GIBSON: I wish I were, but I'm

not.

LEADER BUDISH: Then I won't push the

question any further.

MS. GIBSON: You're welcome.

AUDITOR YOST: Are there any other

questions?

Yes, President Niehaus.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Thank you,

Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Gibson, how many people participated

in this contest the League has put on? And, you

know, what is their geographic representation?

What parts of the state?

MS. GIBSON: I only have a general

impression of that, in that the League -- the State

League Board considers it very successful, and

that, again, perhaps the geHieman Tere

participated could speak more from that. I just

don't have that figure in my head, but they

considered it very successful.
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PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Thank you.

MS. GIBSON: And -- and around the

state. And it was definitely not limited to League

members. I can safely say that, those two things.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Anything further?

Thank you for your testimony, ma'am.

Our next witness today is Brendan

Barrington.

MR. BARRINGTON: Hello.

AUDITOR YOST: Please state your name

for the record and the organization you may

represent.

MR. BARRINGTON: My name is Brendan

Barrington. I'm a student here at the Levin

rOllege Of iTrhan Affairs. I'm actually upstairs.

So I had a quick question. I am a grad

student here at the Urban Affairs College and,as.

grad students, we write a lot of papers. And I was

thinking, if I were to write a paper about the

instate redistricting, would you have a topic for

^,^at paper that- would focus on. tha^E u^:c^

generate a good topic for discussion?

AUDITOR YOST: I'm not sure that that's

within the scope of this hearing, but since.we
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don't have a long list of witnesses, I'll just

start with the Secretary of State's office. Would

you have a suggestion for the gentleman?

COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. I can't

hear you.

MS. PELGER: I just asked if he tried to

draw a map on the Reshape Ohiosite.

MR. BARRINGTON: I think that would be a

good place to start.

AUDITOR YOST: Anybody else?

SPECTATOR: We can't hear the

conversation.

AUDITOR YOST: Does anyone else want to

offer a suggestion?

Thank you, sir. Do you have any other

testimony?

Oh, you raised your hand, Leader

Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: I did.

How about a topic, something like, how

political power undermines one man, one vote in

Ohio? 7_t

MR. BARRINGTON: Thank you for your

input.

AUDITOR YOST: Do you have any
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testimony?

MR. BARRINGTON: Not at the moment.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you for your

interest in the process.

MR. BARRINGTON: You're welcome.

AUDITOR YOST: Our next witness is T.

Tony Dejak.

MR. DEJAK: I'm not a witness.

AUDITOR YOST: Not a witness. I'm

sorry. You're welcome to testify.

MR. DEJAK: No, thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Do we have any other

witnesses?

We have one more witness in process, so

we will wait for a moment.

wh;le we're waiting for that, I'd like

to make special note that, this year, we have

eleven hearings around the state over a five-day

period. Traditionally, we have not had that many

hearings, public hearings, in this process.

Also, traditionally, the elected

officialTs have not been prekfTit, a:-^;or

customarily, and today we have both President of

the Senate, Tom Niehaus, and Minority Leader from

the House, Armond Budish. And it certainly is
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exciting to see this develop at such a high level

and not the staff folks. Gentlemen,

congratulations for taking the time.. It's

appreciated.

Our next witness is Tim Clarke.

MR. CLARKE: Hi. My name is Tim

Clarke. It wasn't actually my intention to come up

and speak today, but when Leader Budish asked about

some of the details about the contest, I felt I

could give a little more detailed explanation of

what was going on.

I was a participant in the contest just

completed last Sunday, and I was also a winner of a

similar contest held by the League of Women Voters

and a number of other organizations back in 2009.

did backuai-n ^^"^-++o.Basically, Wilat they d.7.+
r.+ is,

it was a competition set up to redraw the 20 -- the

2001 congressional lines based on the 2001 census

data and the 2000 President election, based on the

objective criteria of compactness, county

preservation - let me make sure of the other ones -

competitivenessFân'"p;oi-i"troal fairness. Basically,

making sure that the -- that the representation

would be relatively equal to the overall political

balance in the state.
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In 2001, a similar consortium of

organizations set up a contest; started last July.

And in that contest, the participants were

permitted to submit both state legislative

districts and congressional legislative districts

based on the 2010 census. The congressional

contest is still ongoing. That has a deadlirie of

September 11.

But the state legislative competition

had a deadline on Sunday. We don't yet know what

the results are. For all I know, I finished at

last.

I would be happy to answer any other

questions about the about the makeup of the.

contest.

AUDITOR YOST: Questions from the

Board?

Leader Budish.

LEADER BUDISH: As you proceeded through

the map drawing for this year's League of Women

Voters contest, is it accurate -- is it right to

s^aV --were you usi

contest?

data for this;• .

MR. CLARKE: That is correct.. We were

re-drawing the lines based on the same data that
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the Apportionment Board is using for its

apportionment.

LEADER BUDISH: Follow up.

AUDITOR YOST: Uh-huh.

LEADER BUDISH: I want to do this

correctly.

AUDITOR YOST: Yes.

LEADER BUDISH: With the line drawing

that you were doing, is it my understanding that

you were to follow the Voting Rights Act, as well

as the Constitutional requirements set forth in

Ohio's Constitution. And was there anything else

involved?

MR. CLARKE: The way it was set up

now -- as far as the Voting Rights Act was

concerned, the way it was set up is that we were

required to create districts which included, on the

State House side, four majority black districts in

Cuyahoga County, along with one majority black

district in Franklin County, and on the Senate

side, two majority black districts in Cuyahoga

Count^ = b^ tF7^r--a threshold requirement.

As far as a Constitutional -- as far as

the Constitutional requirements, we were required

to follow the Constitutional requirements, except
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that, because the program did not handle -- it did

not specify the ward lines, making it much more

difficult for participants to follow the ward

lines. The contest did not disqualify someone for

failing -- for -- for dividing -- for dividing

multiple wards.

Now, the entry that I submitted, I went

out, found -- made sure I found the ward lines and

followed the -- and followed the ward lines to the.

letter. So as far as -- as far as I believe, the

submission that I-- that I made was in strict

compliance with the Ohio Constitution, but because

of technical limitations, that was not a strict

requirement of the competition. .

It was -- by the way, it was

specif;caily rPcommended that vou follow the ward

lines to your -- the best of your ability.

LEADER BUDISH: In drawing your map

then, is it correct that you were trying to

maintain counties intact, and then townships, and

then cities, in order of the way the Constitution

pr.ovides? -

MR. CLARKE: The -- the contest

specifically -- specified that you -- that you were

being scored on how many county -- on how many



Proceedings

27

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

counties you were breaking up.

On the other hand, you still had to

follow the Constitution on saying you could only --

you had to keep -- you had to keep the counties and

townships and the cities and, to the extent you

could, city wards, and you can't divide more than

one political -- you can't divide more than one

political subdivision. That was a requirement.

The contest was designed to follow the

Ohio Constitution, so that it -- so that the maps

that were created would potentially be adopted by

the Apportionment Board.

LEADER BUDISH: I'm assuming that you're

not an attorney; is that --

15 MR. CLARKE: Actually, that's not true.

"t6

17

18

19

20

I am an attorney.

LEADER BUDISH: Oh, great. Okay. Then

let me ask the question this way:

In your experience, the current map that

we have right now in the House and Senate, it's my

21 understanding that it divides hundreds of

3't
Based on your understandt g

23 what the Constitution requires, is the current map

24

25

constitutional?

MR. CLARKE: I don't know that I can
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find -- I don't know that I would necessarily -- to

be honest, I don't know that I would necessarily

find it unconstitutional. I read through the -- as

part of the -- as part of -- we try to read the

Constitution; make sure I got the constitutional

requirements right.

I read the legal description from the

20 -- from the 2001 apportionment, and other than

the fact that -- you know, it seemed that the Board

took the position that noncon- -- that dividing --

separating noncontiguous portions of township and

city wards would not be considered, that township

and city ward.

Having worked on this mapmyself, I can

understand why they did that. There is only one

si*,aarir,n T saw that there were -- that there were

a couple of wards out of Dayton. There's one

district -- or a couple.wards in Dayton and a

couple wards from Kettering.that could conceivably

be treated as dividing multiple subdivisions, but

otherwise, I didn't see anything.that

speeif^'_,-a^_ _^ha•^as specifically out of line.

Although, I will say this: When I did,

take a look at it and said, "Okay. Let's see what

the Board's doing," I kind of assumed that the.
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1 Board knew what it was doing. I wasn't really

2 looking to try to -- to try to take down what the

3 Board did in 2001.

4 Obviously, I'd like to see it a lot less

5 politicized, but -- and, you know, I can take I

6 can take a look and I can say, "Well, you know -- "

7 I do think that comparing what I did

8 with what the -- with what the Board did in 2001, I

9 felt in -- in all the criteria, I.met the criteria

10 that the -- that was set out by the competition

11 better than what the Board did in 2001, but I

12 wasn't really -- I wasn't really thinking, "Did

13 they -- did the Apportionment Board act

14 unconstitutionally in 2001?"

15 AUDITOR YOST: Any other questions for

16 this witness?

17 I would like to ask a couple.

18 You're aware that the current map --

19 current districts, that map was challenged for its

20 constitutionality, correct?

21 MR. CLARKE: I didn't specifically look

24 1 to the criteria for the contest you participated
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MR. CLARKE: Yes.

AUDITOR YOST: And what is the -- how

many minority districts does it require?

MR. CLARKE: It required a total of five

minority districts in the -- on the House side and

two on the Senate.

AUDITOR YOST: And only in Cleveland and

Franklin County?

MR. CLARKE: That's correct.

AUDITOR YOST: So since you've worked

with the numbers and the maps, is it your opinion,

as a lawyer, that the only minority districts that

this ward should be concerned about exist in

Franklin County and Cuyahoga County?

MR. CLARKE: I'm not sure I want to --

I've got to be careful -- I've got to be careful

about this.

I -- I would tend to -- I would tend to

agree with that. Although, it's one of those

things, as I look -- you know, as I looked at the

numbers, could you draw additional

#y districts?:•Yes:, you definiteI,

could. There are a handful of other places you

could draw majority and minority districts.

I'm not really an expert on the Voting
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Rights Act, so it's hard for me to say, does the

Voting Act -- Voting Rights.Act require additional

majority and minority districts. I can't really

say that. I can't really say that specifically.

But, you know, just -- as far -- you

know, for competition purposes, I took the seven

majority/minority districts as being what the

requirement was and I made sure -- I made sure I

met that.

AUDITOR YOST: Okay. And back to the

criteria of the competition. Was there any

requirement for minority influence districts to be

considered?

MR. CLARKE: There was no -- there was

no requirement for minority influence districts.

It was -- it was recommended, but no plan was going

to be excluded for not having any minority

influence districts.

AUDITOR YOST: So would it be fair then

to say that, given the Voting Rights Act and

jurisprudence surrounding it, that the standards

- ^= .^this Board faees with regard

23

24

25

representation are substantially more stringent

than the criteria set out in this competition?

MR. CLARKE: Again, I'm not an expert on
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the Voting Rights Act, so I'm not -- I don't -- I

not -- I don't think I can offer an opinion about

exactly what the -- about exactly what the

requirement of the Board is going to face in

complying with the Voting Rights Act.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you.

Are there any follow-up questions from

'm

the Board?

Seeing none, I thank you for your

testimony, sir. Good luck to you in the

competition.

MR. CLARKE: Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: The next witness before

the Board will be.Sean Logan.

MR. LOGAN: Members of the Apportionment

Board, my testimonv is simple. Please respect

Article 11, Section 9 of the Ohio Constitution and

keep Columbiana County a single and whole county

Ohio House district.

As a resident of Columbiana County, I

believe that we represent one of the intended

ww'purposes of the 1967 Amendmenttfi-^lx.

Constitution. The drafters of the Amendment

understood the significance, as do many Ohioans, to

have a single voice representing our collective
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interest as a single and whole county.

If we don't agree with the

representation we are receiving, then a single --

then as a single, whole county district, we can

vote for a change of voice.

As you know, Section 9 provides what I

call extra protection to keep a county as a single,

whole county district by allowing the ratio of

representation to deviate between 90 percent and

110 percent of the quotient. The quotient, of

course, or otherwise known in our Constitution as

the ratio of representation, as provided for in

Article 3, is the state's total population divided

by 99.

Generally, Ohio House districts are not

to be less t'nan 9J percent and not more than 105

percent of the ratio -- ratio of representation.

The exception to the above general rule is also

enunciated in Section 3, except -- quote, "Except

in those instances where reasonable effort is made

to avoid dividing a county in accordance with

Sectioff'9 of this articTe M-^---,;^

This extra protection is specifically

contemplated at the beginning of the apportionment

process, not at the end.
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Further, with the numbering system

delineated in Section 10, it begins with single,

whole county districts.

So, please, don't merge portions of an

adjacent county with Columbiana County or split

Columbiana County between other House districts.

To place a finer point on this request

for common sense, my research, as the table below

illustrates, there has been only one county that

has always been a single, whole county Ohio House

district since the adoption of this 1967 one man,

one vote Amendment; Columbiana County.

As shown above, past deviations have

ranged from the high of 109.4 percent - Wood

County, 2000 - and a low of 91.1 percent -

Ashtabula, 1990.

Columbiana County's 2010 population, and

all of the 2010 census-eligible counties, are.

within existing precedence and, therefore, protect

the integrity of Section 9 of the Apportionment

Amendment.

It is-interesting to.-no.l^y=

back as 1857, Ohioans have been voting on various

ways to provide for apportionment of Ohio House

districts. After the landmark U.S. Supreme Court
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cases of Baker versus Carr in 1962 and Reynolds

versus Sims in 1964, Ohioans defeated proposed

constitutional amendments in May 1965, as well as

in May 1967.

Finally, on November 7th, 1967, by 59

percent, Ohioans voted to replace the 1851

provision with at least one state representative

for each county with the current Article 11.

While I am in no way a historian, or the

cynic that the Plain Dealer's Tom Suddes is, I will

be the first to recognize the irony that a

democrat, me, is attempting to protect the last

remaining vestiges of the pre-1967 republican-

benefited scheme of at least one state

representative for each county.

However, this appearance i4s far from

reality when you consider the consistent history

and common sense approach that Section 9 has

provided to hundreds of thousands of Ohioans living

in a sinqle, whole county district.

Further, with the words "reasonable

2'efforts shall 'be"ma^e;. q5^^^^fik^sets a high bdY

to deviate from its provisions and the consistent

history of the previous four apportionment boards

to split or add to a protected, single, whole
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In other words, you would have to be

going out of your way to add Carroll County or

parts of Stark, Mahoning, or Jefferson Counties to

a Columbiana County district, or to make it clearer

and cover all bases, or splitting Columbiana County

among one or more of them, even though there's

protection of going more than once in.a split.

Any reconfiguration of Columbiana

County, other than a single, whole county district,

would be really hard-pressed to pass a straight

face test when you consider we border Pennsylvania

and West Virginia. Meaning, there are fewer

compelling reasons, slash, factors to not make a

reasonable effort to keep us whole and single when

our ratio -- when our 2010 ratio is 92.5. -- of

17 92.5 is 1.4 percent from the greatest.past

18 deviation - Ashtabula in 1990 - and 2.5 percent

19 from the low end, 90 percent, of the constitutional

20 provisions in Article -- in Section 9.

21 To.add a personal and, hopefully,

23

24

25

_haantmorous story tc • this topic, I..wdl ^^^_- gm:`:

remember when then-State Representative Lynn

Watchman stopped me at the bank of elevators on the

third floor of the Riffe Center in Columbus shortly
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after the 1990 election. I was still a new member

of the Ohio House, representing Columbiana County

at age 24.

And he said, quote, "So, Sean, do you

want to be part of West Virginia or Pennsylvania?"

I smugly replied,, while he was slapping

his knee, "Article 11, Section 9."

I may be the only person in our county

that cares so much about this issue, but I'm

thankful for this opportunity to express my views,

and thank you for your time in dealing with this

very serious matter.

Columbiana County has survived four

rounds of reapportionment as a single, whole county

Ohio House district. Please make it five and

respect the Ohio Constitution.

Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, sir.

Questions from the panel?

Thank you for your testimony. Thank you

for your service.

i: WN ^'^^Yara^ you.

AUDITOR YOST: Are there any other

witnesses that wish to address the committee

today?
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Seeing none, without objection, I'll

adjourn this, pursuant to our.next hearing at the

University of Akron at 1:00 today at the Martin

University Center Ballroom, 105 Fir Hill, Akron,

Ohio.

Thank you very much for being here.

(Thereupon, the hearing was adjourned at

14

15

17

18

19

20

21

j ==^2

23

24

9:52 a.m.)

25
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STATE OF OHIO

COUNTY OF LORAIN.

ss:

CERTIFICATE

I do certify that the foregoing is a true

and correct transcript of the proceedings taken by

me in this matter on Tuesday, August 23, 2011, and

carefully compared with my original stenographic

notes.

Laurel M. Keller, RPR
Registered Professional Reporter

and Notary Public within and for

the State of Ohio.
My commission expires 12/11/10.
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August 23, 2011
Public Testimony before the Ohio Apportionment Board

Ohio Senate and House Redistricting
Cleveland State University, Cleveland, Ohio

Good moming. I am Carol Gibson, Co-President of the Cuyahoga Area League of Women
Voters. Thank you for the opportunity to provide public testimony on the issue of drawing new

Ohio-Senate and House districts.

Redistricting is an issue that goes to the heart of our democratic system of govermnent because
representative democracy depends on voters choosing their elected officials. When, instead,
officials choose their voters by creating districts that strongly favor one political party, our
system does not work as intended.

What is at stake when it comes to how political district lines are drawn is whether voters choose
our leaders or leaders choose the voters. At the most basic level, redistrioting must support the
constitutional principle of "one person, one vote."

Ultimately, the redistricting process determines:
• How a voter's community is defined
• Who a voter has the opportunity to vote for
• What kinds of policies and issues get debated
• What happens to voter tax dollars and
• How the complex set of challenges we face are handled (or not)

To ensure the most democratic outcome for the current redistricting process, the League of
Women Voters recommends the formation of districts that are compact, competitive, contiguous,
and of similar population numbers. In Cuyahoga County, diversity also needs to be a considered
factor. Any stranger to our region looking at a map of the current districts in Cuyahoga County
could see a problem in the U shape. of Ohio Senate dist ►ict 24 toat sweeps arouiid th«e edges of

the county. Such partisan gerrymandering needs to be set aside.

August 21 was the deadline for submissions to the League's contest to design new Senate-and
House district maps. The maps most supportive of democracy will be well-publicized around the
state, and they will be sent to the Apportiomnent Board to aid and encourage your work.

Voters are finding it barder than ever to think of their votes as important in these recessionary
and bitterly partisan times. If the Apportiomnent Board rose to this occasion by actually creating
manifestly doable fair districts, Ohio would immediabely become famous for achieving a home

_rtin for democracy. You have within your power the ability to give Ohioans a li$ by_creating

districts tlia-t make sense. You can do it; put Ohio on the map for faiiness

Thank you_
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TESTIMONY OF

SEAN LOGAN,

RESIDENT OF COLUMBIANA COUNTY, OHIO

BEFORE THE 2011 OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

AUGUST 23, 2011

CLEVELAND STATE UNIVERSITY, CLEVELAND, OHIO

Members of the 2011 Apportionment Board:

My testimony in simple: Please respect Article XI, Section 9 of the Ohio Constitution

and keep Columbiana County as a single, whole county Ohio House district.

As a resident of Columbiana County I believe that we represent one of the intended

primary purposes of the 1967 Amendment to the 1851 Constitution. The drafters of the

Amendment understand the significance, as do many Ohioans, to have a single voice

representing our collective interest as a single, and whole, county. If we don't agree

with the representation we are receiving, then, as a single, whole county district, we can

vote for a change of voice.

As you know, Section 9 (When population of county is fraction of ratio of
representation) provides f^r :.hat I C^11 'extra prnt'eCfiol? to keep a COll11tV as a Single,

whole county House district by allowing the ratio of representation to deviate between

90% and 110% of the quotient. The quotient - or the "ratio of representatiori' - as

provided for in Article 3 (Population of each House of Representatives district), is the

state's total population divided by 99. Generally, Ohio House districts are not to be less

than 95% and not more than 105% of the ration of representation.

The exception to the above general rule is also enunciated in Section 3: "except in those

instances where reasonable effortis made to avoid dividing a county in accordance with section 9

of the^^ ^,
of this Article."Tbm-extra protection is specifically contemplated at the beginning

apportionment process - not at the end. Further, with the numbering system delineated

in Section 10 (Creation and numbering of House of Representatives districts) begins

with single, whole county districts.



So, please, don t merge portions of an adjacent county with Columbiana County or spHt

Columbiana County between other House districts.

To place a finer point on this request for common sense, my research as the Table below

illustrates, there has only been one county that has always been a single, whole county

Ohio House district since the adoption of this 1967 'one man, one vote' amendment -

Columbiana County!

2010 2000 1990 1980

90%-110% of the

Ration of

Representation (by

alpha)

Allen 91.2%
Columbiana 92.5%
Richland
Wayne
Wood

106.8%
98.3% .

107.7%

Single, Whole Single, Whole Single, Whole
CountyDistrictw/3'o CountyDistrictw/% CountyDistrictw/%
of Ratio (by district of Ratio (by district of Ratio (by district

number) number) number)

Columbiana 97.7% Allen 100.2%

Deleware 95.9%
Wayne 97.2%

Allen 94.5%
Fairfield 107%
Wood 109.4%

Warren 103.9%
Columbiana 98.8%
Wood 103.4%
Ashtabula 91.1%

Fairfield 94.4%
Wayne 92.6%

Allen 102.9%

Ashtabula 95.5%

Columbiana 104.1%

Medina
Wood

103.7%
98.4%

1970

Single, Whole
County District w/%
of Ratio (by alpha)
Columbiana ]A0.6%
t.icking 100.1%.

As shown above, past deviations have ranged from the high of 109.4% (Wood 2000) and
the low of 91.1% (Ashtabula 1990). Columbiana CounWs 2010 population - and all of

the 2010 Census eligible counties - are within existing precedents and therefore, protect

the integrity of Section 9 of the apportionment amendment.

li is mtt'SeSilrtg tô_ 1-1_va,.,.c u,.w..aaa^ c} c.... c.,,.a++i...-+H^ as l 8 57s -----(^hinanc have been votinQ on vaxious

ways to provide for apportionment of Ohio House districts. After the landmark U.S.

Supreme Court cases of Baker v. Carr in 1962 and Reynolds v. Sims in 1964, Ohioans

defeated proposed constitutional amendments in May 1965 as well as in May 1967.

Finally, on November 7,1967, by 59%, Ohioans voted to replace the 1851 provision of at

least one state representative for each county with the current Article M.

While I am in no way the historian (or the cynic) that the Plain Dealer's Tom Suddes is, I

will be the first to recognize the irony that a Democrat, me, is attempting to protect the

last remairiing vestiges of the pre-1967, Bepubtitan lienefited sc.heme of at least one =-

state representative for each county. However, this appearance is far from reality when

you consider the consistent history and common sense approach that Section 9 has

provided to the hundreds of thousands of Ohioans living in single, whole county

districts.



Further, with the words, "reasonable efforts shall6e rnade" Section 9 sets a high bar to

deviate from its provisions and the consistent history of the previous four

Apportionment Boards to split, or add to, a protected, single, whole county district such

as Columbiana. In other words, you really would have to be, going out of your way to

add Carroll County or parts of Stark, Mahoning or Jefferson counties to a Columbiana

County district (or splitting Columbiana among one or more of them). Any

reconfiguration of Columbiana County other then a single, whole county district would

be really hard pressed to pass the straight face test when you consider we border

Pennsylvania and West Virginia. Meaning, there are fewer compelling reasons/factors

to not make a reasonable effort to keep us whole, and single, when our 2010 ratio of

92.5% is 1.4% from the greatest past deviation (Ashtabula 1990) and 2.5% from the low

end (90%) of the constitutional provisions in Section 9.

To add a personal and humorous story to this topic, I will always remember when then-

State Rep. Lynn Watchman stopped me at the bank of elevators on the third floor of the

Riffe Center in Columbus shortly after the 1990 election. I was still a new member of the

Ohio House representing Columbiana County at age 24 and he said, "So, Sean, do you

want to be a part of West Virginia or Pennsylvania?" I smugly replied while he was

slapping his knee, "Article XI, Section 9."

I may be the only person in our county that cares so much about this issue, but I am

thankful for this opportunity to express my views and for your time in dealing with this

very serious matter. Columbian County has survived four rounds of reapportionment

as a single, whole county Ohio House district, please make it five, and respect Ohio's

constitution.

Thank you.

Sean D. Logan

32927 Lucille Lane

Lisbon, Ohio 44432

330.853.6612
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MR. DiROSSI: We'll go ahead and get

started, and we'll officially call to order the

fourth of our eleven regional hearings of the Ohio

Apportionment Board, our fourth hearing being here

at the University of Akron.

And as additional people arrive, we have

witness slips on the table as you enter the room in

the back, and we also have them with our staff,

both Kylie and Lisa. If you can just identify

yourselves for anybody who's looking for witness

slips. We have one witness slip so far.

As many of you know, the 2011

Apportionment Board is responsible for drawing the

Ohio Senate and Ohio House of Representative

districts. And that entity held its first meeting

on August 4th, 2011. And at that meeting, the

Board adopted rules which require a series of

public hearings throughout the state.so that we can

gather -public inpu-t anck comment, and -appointed both

Heather Mann and myself to serve as joint

secretaries of the board.

Now, seeing that today we have the Vice-

2

4;=:
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Chair of the Apportionment Board with us, Auditor

Dave Yost, I'd ask if he would preside over this

hearing.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Ray.

Will the secretary please call the

roll? And during this attendance call, could each

member please state their name and which office

they represent, if they're present as a designee?

MR. DiROSSI: Mike Grodhaus?

MR. GRODHAUS: Present, representing

Governor Kasich.

MR. DiROSSI: President Tom Niehaus?

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: Present.

MR. DiROSSI: Auditor Dave Yost?

AUDITOR YOST: Present.

MR. DiROSSI: Representative Clyde?

REPRESENTATIVE CLYDE: Present,

representing Minority Leader Armond Budish.

MR. DiROSSI: And Halle Pelger?

MS. PELGER: Present, representing

Secretaryof State Jon Husted.

AUD"S-'TOR YOS`P i.iiank you

We'd first.like to thank the University

of Akron for hosting us here today. In

particular -- particularly, President Dr..Luis M.
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Proenza, the Board of Trustees, John LaGuardia, and

Winifred Alexander for making the arrangements

here. Thank you for making us feel so welcome.

We would also like.to remind everyone

that the purpose of this hearing is to gather

information, comments, input concerning the

upcoming configuration of the House and Senate

district lines.

The Apportionment Board and the panel

before you is not responsible for the makeup of

congressional lines. The new congressional

districts will be established by the state

legislature as a bill that will be voted upon by

members of the Ohio House and the Ohio.Senate.

That bill will then go to the Governor for a

^ ^iirc nr aS VPt n-

We would ask all the witnesses to please

limit their comments to the matters that are before

the Board this morning; that being, the -- or this

afternoon; that being, the Ohio House and the Ohio

Senate districts. .

ere.today to listen. We're.not

here to debate you or to debate each other. We're.

here to get input from Ohioans on the apportionment

process and how it impacts yourcommunities and

7,-^-^,
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your representation in the Ohio General Assembly.

We have a limited amount of time for the

hearing. We're scheduled for two hours, and we

have another hearing later this afternoon in

Youngstown. So if we do experience a flood of

witnesses here in the next few minutes, we may ask

witnesses to limit their testimony.

. In Ohio, as most states, legislative

reapportionment occurs in the years ending in 1,

which are also the years which the federal census

figures are released by the U.S. Department of

Commerce. Census figures released this year

indicate that Ohio has a population of 11,536,504

people. That means that, ideally, each of the 99

house districts would contain 116,530 people and

each of the 33 senate districts should contain

349,590 people.

Anyone who's researched or undertaken

the actual drawing of legislative districts knows

that this process involves far more than somebody

putting roughly the same number of people in each

=c-.Tk-^1' strict .

Ih Ohio, the General Assembly districts

I must conform to traditional redistricting

principles and other requirements that are
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established in the Ohio Constitution, Article 11.

Article 11 contains specific rules concerning the

construction of these districts, including several

layers of sometimes complex requirements.

In addition to the Ohio Constitution,

the Board must also comply with all applicable

federal laws; most notably, the Voting Rights Act.

At this time, because we want everyone

to experience the joy of drawing lines, I'd like to

call on the Secretary of State's representative to

give a brief overview of the project enabling

citizens to do that.

MS. PELGER: Thank you, Auditor Yost.

A few weeks ago, Secretary of State Jon

Husted, with the support of the legislative task

force o n.•• red18tr1Cting, as wall as the

Apportionment Board, launched a website. It's

called reshapeohio.org. The goal of the website is

to provide Ohioans with an opportunity to learn

about the process, follow the hearings and

proceedings, and also try their own hand at drawing

As Auditor Yost mentioned, drawing a map

.is not as easy as it may seem. It's often time

consuming. Ten years ago, the Board provided
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software and computers at libraries and government

buildings across the state. Technology has come a

ways and now you can do it from the comfort of your

own home any time of day.

You can also use the site when you're

finished to draw a map to help you follow the

guidelines that this Board has set forth at its

earlier meeting of submitting the map.

The goal of all this is to provide

openness and transparency in this process and give

the public as much access as possible.

So far, we've had about 300 people sign

up for the site, and we hope to have more. So we

hope you'll all sign onto reshapeohio.org.

Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Haiie.

At the table in the rear, you'll find

copies of Article 11, the Constitution. You will

also find information regarding population changes

and other information that will help guide you.

It's the same information that will guide the

Apportioiiment Board in if's'^^re^s"e

constitutional duties. It's, therefore, to your

benefit. We encourage you to pick them up.

A few other housekeeping matters before
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we begin. These proceedings are being transcribed

by a court reporter, and we ask that, if you

testify, please speak up so that old, deaf people,

like me, can hear, as well as the court reporter.

If you have written testimony, please

submit it to our staff so that it may be included

in the official record of the proceeding. And we

will make sure that all of the testimony received

in the hearings are available on the Secretary of

State's website at reshapeohio.org.

With that, we're prepared to take our

first witness, former Representative Sean Logan.

The record will reflect we previously received

written testimony from Mr. Logan.

Please proceed, sir.

;,un. L.ncnN; Thank you, Mr. Yost and

17J members of the 2011 Apportionment Board.

18I Some of this is repeating, at least for

19 the first three of you, and I appreciate your

20 patience. And for Mr. DiRossi, Representative

21 Clyde, at least it's partially new. And my good

iend, Represe.iitative Sawyer

SENATOR SAWYER: I answer to anything.

MR. LOGAN: I understand that. Maybe

25 1 he's the one that's most experienced in the room
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with the Apportionment Board.

I was one year -- I was one years -- 1.9

years old when the law passed that we're dealing

with right now, so that will help hit the spot.

But my testimony is simple. Please

respect Article 11, Section 9 of the Ohio

Constitution and keep Columbiana County as a

single, whole county Ohio House district.

As a resident of Columbiana County, I

believe that we represent one of the intended

purposes of the 1967 Amendment to the 1851

Constitution.. The drafters of the Amendment

understand the significance, as do many Ohioans,

have a single -- the significance, as do many

Ohioans, to have a single voice representing our

collective interests as a single and whole county

district.

If we don't agree with that

representation that we're receiving, then as a

single, whole county district, we can vote for a

change of the voice.

° And a9 you'k^aa^r, ^^^Y^c rr `3 provides for

what I call extra protection to keep a county as a

single, whole county House district by allowing the

ratio of representation to deviate between 90
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percent and 110 percent of the quotient. The

quotient, or the ratio of representation, as

provided for in Article -- in Section 3 is the

state's total population divided by 99.

Generally, Ohio House districts are not

to be less than 95 percent and not more than 105

percent of the ratio of representation. The

exception to the above general rule is also

enunciated in Section 3, quote, "Except in those

instances where reasonable effort is made to avoid

dividing a county in accordance with Section 9 of

this article."

This extra protection is specifically

contemplated at the beginning of the apportionment

process, not at the end.

purther, with the numbering system

delineated in Section 10, it begins with single,

whole county districts.

So, please, don't merge portions of an

adjacent county with Columbiana County or split

Columbiana County between other House districts.

To place. a fa,ner-k^F-t*-- ^quest.

for common sense, my research, as shown -- as the

table below illustrates, there has only been one

county that has always been a single, whole county
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Ohio House district since the adoption of this 1967

one man, one vote Amendment; Columbiana County.

If you look at it, I started from -- if

you think about it, this is only the fifth time

that apportionment under this process, and so, in

some way, it's -- we're all still new at this. And

yet, one consistent thing has shown, Columbiana

County, in 1970, was at about 106.6 percent of the

ratio; in 1980, which then was the Third House

District, 104.4 percent; in 1990, 98.8 percent of

the ratio of representation. And currently, as the

First House District, 97.7 percent of the ratio.

And using the 2010 census, Columbiana County is at

92.5 percent of the ratio.

So past deviations have ranged from the

high of 100 -- 1 09.4 percent, which is the current

Wood County, 2000 map, and the low of 91.1 percent,

Ashtabula, 1990.

Columbiana County's 2010 population and

all of the 2010 census-eligible counties are within

existing precedence and, therefore, protect the

integrity- of ApportionmenE

Amendment.

It is interesting to note that, as far

back as 1857, Ohioans have been voting on various
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ways to provide for apportionment of Ohio House

districts. After the landmark U.S. Supreme Court

cases of Baker versus Carr in 1962 and Reynolds

versus Sims in 1964, Ohioans defeated proposed

constitutional amendments -- Ohioans defeated

proposed constitutional amendments in May of 1965,

as well as in May of 1967.

Finally, on November 7th, 1967, by 59

percent, Ohioans voted to replace the 1851

provision of at least one state representative for

each county with the current Article 11.

While i am in no way a historian, or the

cynic that the Plain Dealer's Tom Suddes is, I will

be the first to recognize the irony that a

democrat, me, is attempting to protect the last

relTlalniiig 'v'e3tigeS Cf the- nrc,-l Q67 renlthli can-

benefited scheme of at least one state

representative for each county.

However, this appearance is far from

reality when you consider the consistent history

and the common sense approach to Section 9 as

provided to_ the hurad*zi of Ohioans

living in single, whole county districts.

Further, the words, quote, "reasonable

efforts shall be made," end quote, in.Section 9
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sets a high bar to deviate from this provision and

the consistent history of the, previous four

apportionment boards to split or add to a

protected, single, whole county district, such as

Columbiana.

In other words, you really would have to

be going out of your way to add Carroll County or

parts of Stark, Mahoning, or Jefferson Counties to

a Columbiana County district, or splitting

Columbiana among one or more of them.

Any reconfiguration of Columbiana

County, other than a single, whole county district,

would be really hard-pressed to pass a straight

face test when you consider we border Pennsylvania

and West Virginia. Meaning, there are fewer

compelling, slash, factors to not make a reasonable

effort to keep us vihole and single when our 2010

ratio of 92.5 percent is 1.4 percent from the

greatest past deviation - Ashtabula, 1990 - and 2.5

percent from the low end, 90 percent, of the

constitutional provisions of Section 9.

° : ^- ^ ^-^ ^ ._ . n K^^- a^^ .^^rsonal and humorous story to

this topic; I will always remember when then-State

Representative Lynn Watchman stopped me at the bank

of elevators on the third floor of the Riffe Center
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in Columbus shortly after the 1990 election. I was

still a new member of the Ohio House, representing

Columbiana County at age 24.

And he said, quote, "So, Sean, do you

want to be part of West Virginia or Pennsylvania?"

I smugly replied, while he was slapping

his knee, quote, "Article 11, Section 9," end

quote.

I may be the only person in our county

that cares so much about this issue, but I am

thankful for this opportunity and to express my

views and for the time in dealing with this very

serious matter that all of you have put into it.

Columbiana County has survived four

rounds of reapportionment as a single, whole county

^h; c Ha,.ae dist,-ict- Please make it five and.,..^ -

respect Ohio's Constitution.

Thank you.

Glad to.answer.any questions.

AUDITOR YOST: Any questions from the

21

2.2

23

24

25

Board?

testimony, sir.

MR. LOGAN: Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: And I apologize for my

lack of good manners. The record should reflect
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that we have two distinguished members of the

legislature in attendance today, State Senator Tom

Sawyer from Senate 28, and as well as State

Representative Lynn Slaby from House District 41.

Welcome, gentlemen. It's good to see you.

Charles Walker is our next witness from

NAACP. Welcome, sir.

MS. AVERITT: Thank you.

I am the president of the NAACP and I'm

on the National Board of the NAACP around the

country.

And this is, of course -- thank you.

Thank you. Good evening, everybody. Good

morning. Is it evening yet? Yes, it is.

I'm going to present to you Mr. Walker,

,..,
which is one of my custom workers, one of

^ ''̂ ^avSe

that have been on the battlefield for many years,

making.a difference in the lives of others.

My name is Ophelia Averitt. Thank you

so much. This is one of my staunch members here.

MR. WALKER: Good afternoon, Ladies and

e Auditor, th`e' Legislatures.-

It is an honor to be here. I'm Charles

Walker, representing the Akron branch of the NAACP,

and so I'm president of the Akron branch and on the
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State and National Board.

And I hope you all come back October the

8th, 7th, and 6th to the state convention. It's

going to be held in Akron, Ohio, and attend the

Freedom Fund. And Ms. Averitt will sell you a

membership before you leave today.

The NAACP is concerned about

redistricting, the way it's going to apply and

affect the minority community, especially the Afro-

American community.

I am in Summit County. I live in Akron,

Ohio. When we weregrowing up, 3, 4, 5, and 8 was

in the district; state representative district.

When I was growing up, the 27th district had our

location for years. One day, we woke up, and they

were gone. :;=rd 1 s 4, _ and 5 were the 28th. .-• -- .

district, just like that. No public hearings, no.

nothing.

As the gentleman from Columbiana County

said, let's keep this district whole and compact as

possible.

^ = ^^^^teen minority:

representatives in the State of Ohio. I hope we

don't lose one. I hope we keep them the same.

These districts, the people that live
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there don't recognize their neighbors. It is very

important. And maybe Summit County can be made

whole again.

I lived in Columbus for eight years.

Franklin County is a big county, but it shouldn't

be connected to some of the rural counties that

don't relate to each other. Summit County don't

really relate well to Lorain or Youngstown.

So let's try to keep Summit County

whole. Let's try to have the district fair and go

with the Constitution.

I know we're not here to talk.about the

congressional, and I will -- and I will stay with

the legislative. But the same should be done, and

they're not going to have a public hearing. Maybe

you could tell them. Zn Summit County, we have

three congressmen representing us. Franklin County

has over a million people. Columbus should have

their own congressman. Cincinnati should have

their own congressman. ,

As Lou Stokes said 20 years ago, "God

should have tinother Afro-AmeriMT-

congressman in Ohio, rather than that one." So

maybe you should tell your colleagues that..

But, please, let's make it compact..
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Let's seep the minority representatives as close as

possible and not lose one.

I know we had lost population. I know

northeastern Ohio had lost population and growth.

People leaving the northeastern part of the state

as fast as you can count them.

But representation is important; to have

someone represent you that shares some of your

goals and values and some of your philosophy.

In closing, I'd like to hope that some

of the things you're doing in Columbus are to teach

and to vote -- voter IDs -- I don't have a driver's

license. I flunked my driving test. I won't be

getting -- I probably won't get one.

So asking someone to have a driver's

1].^ense t n .rn1`c rlnogn't wnrk_ T dnn't have a

Buckeye Card. I'm old enough, but couldn't figure

out a way to get one. Called three places, but we

don't know how you get one. Take that into

consideration.

I haven't voted since '72, and I'm not

1,^^^tt^^^tt t^r^ floor when .L go to vote. It-'s -t-

hard enough to get people to go vote. I don't know

very many that's left that's in Ohio that people

25 1 are cheating and go vote, on the corner voting in
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Cleveland in 2010. We shQuld be urging people to

vote. And we do not want to have voting laws on

the books.

Please, I lived in Mississippi. We

don't need grandfather clause, and I hope we don't

go back to what we had in Ohio in 1920, 1910, the

black holes laws. That's remembering.

Jim Rhodes created a district in

Cleveland that got us Lou Stokes and created a

district that got us more Afro-American

legislatures. .

So thank you for hearing me. Take into

consideration. Keep our district compact and, yes,

Summit should be made whole and kept together in

the state legislative redistrict and the

congressi.onai redistrict.

Thank you very much.

AUDITOR YOST: Thank you, Mr. Walker.

Are there any questions from the board?

Thank you very much.

MR. WALKER: Thank you, thank you.

^_
AUD3TOR YOST: LiSa, `"T^c^^r i^

might aid Mr. Walker in connecting with the Buckeye

Card program, if he wishes to do so.

MS. GRIFFIN:- Sure.
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AUDITOR YOST: And since the issue of

redistricting has been brought up, I'm going to

call on President Niehaus and ask whether any

similar hearings to these have been or are

scheduled for the subject of congressional

redistricting.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: At this point, I'm

not aware of any hearings that have been scheduled,

but the input.is available through the various

offices for members of the legislature.

SENATOR SAWYER: You had the hearings.

PRESIDENT NIEHAUS: There are no future

ones. We already had hearings, but those have

already passed. There's none coming up. We've

already been through the first series. I'm not

aware of any new on es.

Thank you.

AUDITOR YOST: Do we have any further

witness?

MR. DiROSSI: Not at this time.

AUDITOR YOST: Is there anyone in the

24

25

auq^ _. _ :1s^ -care to testify that has not

had the opportunity yet?

Please step forward, ma'am.

MS. JONES: I wasn't prepared for this.
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AUDITOR YOST: That's all right. If you

could step up.

MS. JONES: My name is Katharine Jones.

I'm from the Medina County Democratic Party.

And since I wasn't prepared and I just

found out about this, I just would like to say that

we would like to keep our county under one

congressional district, also. It's hard when it's

split up with Stark, Holmes, and the other

counties.

And, also, we'd like it if -- if the

proposed maps would be published on the Internet

two weeks before they're voted on to allow for

public input. I understand that could be taken

into consideration.

And that's all I have to say. Thank

you:

AUDITOR YOST: Is there anyone else?

Thank you all for attending this

hearing. Our next hearing is in -- this afternoon

in Youngstown, beginning at 3:30.

SPECTATOR: 5.00

AUDITOR YOST: Excuse me. 5:00. 3:30

might be a little bit difficult to get to.

If there's no objection, this meeting
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will stand adjourned until 5:00.

(Thereupon, the hearing was adjourned at

. 1:30 p.m.)
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STATE OF OHIO

COUNTY OF LORAIN.

ss:

CERTIFICATE

I do certify that the foregoing is a true

and correct transcript of the proceedings taken by

me in this matter on Tuesday, August 23, 2011, and

carefully compared with my original stenographic

notes.

Laurel M. Keller, RPR
Registered Professional Reporter
and Notary Public within and for

the State of Ohio.
My commission expires 12/11/10.
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WTINESS & MEDIA INFORMATION

PLEASE COMPLETE THE WITNESS/MEDIA INFORMATION FORM BEFORE TESTIFYING

DATE:
/, //

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE):

POSTITON/TITLE: (I 7 I

ADDRESS: 7 Z

CITY: STATE:21,1ZIP: 7 / /5 7-

TELEPHONEJ EMAu,: Jea ^y- &Y,^ ^

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF_^ ORGANIZATION

WILL YOU HAVE A WRTITEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAL TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: NO: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

IF YOU ARE PRESENT ON BEHALF OF A MEDIA ORGANIZATION, PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO

RECORD:

AUDIOTAPE: VIDEOTAPE: BROADCAST:



TESTIMONY OF

SEAN LOGAN,

RESIDENT OF-COLUMBIANA COUNTY, OHIO

BEFORE THE 2011 OHIO APPORTIONMENT BOARD

AUGUST 23, 2011

UNIVERSITY OF AKRON, AKRON, OHIO

Members of the 2011 Apportionment Board:

My testimony in simple: Please respect Article XI, Section 9 of the Ohio Constitution

and keep Columbiana County as a single, whole county Ohio House district.

As a resident of Columbiana County I believe that we represent one of the intended

primary purposes of the 1967 Amendment to the 1851 Constitution. The drafters of the

Amendment understand the significance, as do many Ohioans, to have a single voice

representing our collective interest as a single, and whole, county. If we don't agree

with the representation we are receiving, then, as a single, whole county district, we can

vote for a change of voice.

As you know, Section 9(When population of county is fraction of ratio of

repreSei'atatinn) pm0riec fnr cnrh,at T rall^ 'e.vtra prnteectinTi tokeep a count,v as a single,

whole county House district by allowing the ratio of representation to deviate between

90% and 110% of the quotient. The quotient - or the "ratio of representation" - as

provided for in Article 3 (Population of each House of Representatives district), is the

state's total population. divided by 99. Generally, Ohio House districts are not to be less

than 95% and not more than 105% of the ration of representation.

The exception to the above general rule is also enunciated in Section 3: "except in those

instances where reasonable effort is. made to avoid dividing a county in accordance with section 9

" _ -V,ctra protection is specifically contemplatedat#&ha.m^ta^_-c^f

apportionment process - not at the end. Further, with the numbering system delineated

in Section 10 (Creation and numbering of House of Representatives districts) begins

with single, whole county districts.



Further, with the words, "reasonable efforts shall be made" Section 9 sets a high bar to

deviate from its provisions and the consistent history of the previous four

Apportionment Boards to split, or add to, a protected, single, whole county district such

as Columbiana. In other words, you really would have, to be goiirig out of your way to

add Carroll County or parts of Stark, Mahoning or Jefferson counties to a Columbiana

County district (or splitting Columbiana among one or more of them). Any

reconfiguration of Columbiana County other than a single, whole county district would

be really hard pressed to pass the straight face test when you consider we border

Pennsylvania and West Virginia. Meaning, there are fewer compelling reasons/factors

to not make a reasonable effort to keep us whole, and single, when our 2010 ratio of

92.5% is 1.4% from the greatest past deviation (Ashtabula 1990) and 2.5% from the low

end (9096) of the constitutional provisions in Section 9.

To add a personal and humorous story to this topic, I will always remember when then-

State Rep. Lynn Watchman stopped me at the bank of elevators on the third floor of the

Riffe Center in Columbus shortly after the 1990 election. I was stiIl a new member of the

Ohio House representing Columbiana County at age 24 and he said, "So, Sean, do you

want to be a part of West Virginia or Pennsylvania?" I smugly replied while he was

slapping his knee, "Article XI, Section 9."

I may be the only person in our county that cares so much about this issue, but I am

thankful for this opportunity to express my views and for your time in dealing with this

very serious matter. Columbian County has survived four rounds of reapportionment

as a single, whole county Ohio House district, please make it five, and respect Ohio s

constitution.

Thatik you.

Sean D. Logan

32927 Lucille Lane

Lisbon, Ohio 44432

330.853.6612
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WILL YOU HAVE A WRITTEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTIIER MATERIAI. TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: No: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

. IF YOU ARE PRESENT ON BEHALF OF A MEDIA ORGANIZATION, PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO
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D.. ' ' . . . . .
CORD: . ' .
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ORG TION (IF APPLICABLE):

POSITION/TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY:

i

STATEG^^.f^ZIP: ^^OU2 15
ti .

TF,LEPHONE: (°J ^,I.J^EMAIL:

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF t/ ORGANIZATION

WILL YOU HAVE A WRIITEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAL TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: NO: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

TF YnT r AR F PBFSENT ON BEHALF OF A IvIEDIA ORGANIZATION. PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO

RECORD:

AUDIOTAPE: --- T_ VIDEOTAPE: BROADCAST:
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DATE: &' 1 'g-0 t ^

NAME:J!^;aar LhP Jr}Uvt'!^' . . . ..

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE): M^ji-Ak `-t%l
< I

OUiq]pim^ nm-,

CITY: I a 1/1 /4 ^f ^ ^ 1^1 ^ l STATE: ZIP:

'IELEPHONE: M6 3 J - U EMAII-:

ARE YOU REPRESENTING: YOURSELF ^ ORGANIZATION

WILI. YOU HAVE A WRITCEN STATEMENT, VISUAL AIDS, OR OTHER MATERIAL TO DISTRIBUTE?

YES: NO: (IF YES, PLEASE PROVIDE COPIES TO THE CHAIR OR SECRETARY)

IF YOU ARE PRESENT ON BEHALF OF A MEDIA ORGANIZATION; PLEASE INDICATE YOUR REQUEST TO

RECORD:

AUDIOTAPE: V IDEOTAPE: BROADCAST:

ADDRESS: a'^ 0)b
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